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andcontact persons of the issuer, issue manager(s), underwriter (s), auditors, credit rating
company and valuer, where applicable;
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Contact person

Telephone, Fax Number, email&
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i) "A person interested to get a Prospectus may obtain from the issuer and the issue managers"

iii) olf you have any query ab o isduertisbue managesandment , you
underwritero

® *BECDBEBEE dDEBEBGEE B D, EV BBPBEC, DIETHQEDD,
a

° DE p [DFBEE@B DEBWEBFEZ2D EICE? d b?’EGEE a BB § CE

3

| V) OCONSENT OF THE BANGLADESH SECURI TMISSION HASD
BEEN OBTAINED TO THE ISSUE OROFFER OF THESE SECURITIES UNDER THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ORDINANCE, 1969, AND THE BANGLADESH SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (PUBLIC ISSUE) RULES, 2015. IT MUST BE DISTINCTLY
UNDERSTOOD THAT IN GIVING THIS CON  SENT THE COMMISSION DOES NOT TAKE
ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE ISSUER COMPANY,
ANY OF ITS PROJECTS OR THE ISSUE PRICE OF ITS SECURITIES OR FOR THE
CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINION EXPRESSED WITH
REGARD TO THEM. SUCH RESPONSIBILITY LIES WITH THE ISSUER, ITS DIRECTORS,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, MANAGING DIRECTOR, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
COMPANY SECRETARY, | SSUE MANAGER, | SSUE MAN
OFFICER, UNDERWRITERS, AUDITOR(S), VALUER AND/OR CREDIT RATING C  OMPANY
(IF ANY)."

V) Risks in relation to the First Issue
0This being the first issue of the issuer, t h ¢
issuer. The face value of the securities is Tk. 10.00 (ten) and the issue price is Tk. 10.00 i.e. the face
value. The issue price has been determined and justified by the issuer and the issue manager as
stated under the paragraph on o0Justification o
the market price of the securities after list ing. No assurance can be given regarding an active or
sustained trading of the securities or the pri

VI) General Risk

Ol nvest ment in securities involves a degree o
this offer unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to
read the risk factors carefully before taking an inves tment decision in this offer. For taking an
investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the offer
including the risks involved. The securities have not been recommended by the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commi ssion (BSEC) nor does BSEC guarantee the accuracy or adequacy
of this document. Specific attention of i nvest
on page number(s) 195203 6

VII) Sonali life insurance company limited Absolute Responsibi lity

"The issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this
prospectus contains all material information with regard to the issuer and the issue, that the
information contained in the prospectus are true, fair  and correct in all material aspects and are not
misleading in any respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and
that there are no other facts, the omission of which make this document as a whole or any of such
informatio n or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material
respect.”
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(i) Names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, website addresses and e-mail addresses
and names of contact persons of the institutions where the prospectus and abridged version of
prospectus are available in hard and soft forms;

The Prospectus and Abridge version of Prospectus of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited are
available in hard and soft forms at the following add resses

Issuer Company

Contact person

Telephone, Fax Number, email &
web address

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
Rupali Bima Bhaban,

7 RAJUK Avenue,

Dhaka -1000.

Head Office ( Ext.)

68B, DIT Road, Malibagh, Dhaka.

Mir Rashed Bin Aman
Chief Executive Officer
(CO)

IP Phone: 09678200004
Fax: 88029565629

e-mail: info@sonalilife.com
Web: www.sonalilife .com

Managers to the Issue

Contact person

Telephone, Fax Number, email &
web address

ICB Capital Management Limited
Green City Edge (5t & 6t Floor),
89 Kakrail, Dhaka -1000.

Shukla Das
Chief Executive Officer

Tel: +880-2-8300421, 8300395,
8300555, 8300367

FAX: +880-2-8300396
E-mail:info@icml.com.bd

Web: www.icml.com.bd

Agrani Eq uity & Investment Limited
Swantex Bhaban (4th floor )
9/1, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka -100Q

Arundhati Mondal
Chief Executive Officer (CC)

Tel: +880-2- 9566670, 9568668
FAX: +88 02-9568668

E-mail: info@agraniequity.com
Web: www.agraniequity.com

Underwriter

Contact person

Telephone, Fax Number, email &
web address

ICB Capital Management Limited
Green City Edge (5t & 6t Floor),
89 Kakrail, Dhaka -1000.

Shukla Das
Chief Executive Officer

Tel: +880-2-8300421, 8300395,
8300555, 8300367

FAX: +880-2-8300396
E-mail:info@icml.com.bd
Web: www.icml.com.bd

Stock Exchanges Available at Telephone, Fax Number, email &
web address
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) DSE Library Tel: +88 02 95646017
DSE Library, +88 02 9666948
Research and Information Department Fax: +88 02 9569755, +88 02 9564721
9/F, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka -1000. E-mail: research@dsebd.org
web: www.dsebd.org
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) CSE Library Tel: +88 031 714633

CSE Building, 1080, Sk. Mujib Road
Agrabad, Chittagong -4100

Dhaka Liaison Office:

Eunoos Trade Center (Level-15)
52-53 Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000.

+88031 720871

Fax: +88 031 714101
+880-2-951391115

E-mail: jabed@cse.com.bd;
Web: www.cse.com.bd

Prospectus is also available

the websites

of Sonali Life

Insurance  Company

Limited (www. sonalilife .com), ICB Capital Management Limited (www. icml.com.bd ), Agrani Equity

& Investment Limited (www.agraniequity.com ), BSEGwww.sec.gov.bd), DSE (www.dsebd.org) ,
CSE (www.csebd.com) and Public Reference room of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) for reading and studying.
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i) Names and dates of the newspapers where abr idged version of prospectus was published

Sl. No. Name of the News paper Date of Publication
01 The Financial Express 27.04.2021
02 The Bangladesh Post 27.04.2021
03 Mmeou | kelth 27.04.2021
04 Mmeou | ftoftou 27.04.2021
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iii) Definitions and Acronyms or Elaborations

A

Allotment Letter of Allotment for Shares

B

BSEC Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
BAS Bangladesh Accounting Standards

BB Bangladesh Bank

BSA Bangladesh Standard of Auditing

BO A/C Beneficiary Ownerds Account or Depo
C

CDBL Central Depository Bangladesh Limited

Certificate Share Certificate

CiB Credit Information Bureau

Commission Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
CO. Company

Companies Act

Companies Act, 1994 @Act, No. XVIII of 1994)

CSE

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

D
Depository Act Depository Act, 1999
DSE Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
E
ERP Enterprise Resource Planning
F
FC Account Foreign Currency Account
FI Financial Institution
G
GOB Government of The Peopleds Republic
|
IAS International Accounting Standards
IDRA Insurance Development Regulatory Authority
IPO Initial Public Offering
Issue Public Issue of Shares of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
Issuer Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
N
NBR National Board of Revenue
NRB Non-Resident Bangladeshi
o]

. The Price of the Shares of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited being
Offer Price

Offered

Ordinance Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969
R

Registered Office

Head Office of the Company

RJSC Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

S

Securities/Shares Shares of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

SLICL Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

Sponsors The Sponsor Shareholders of Sonali Life InsuranceCompany Limited
SND Accounts Short Notice Deposit Account

Stockholders Shareholders

Subscription

Application Money
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CHAPTER I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
(@) About the industry

After liberation of Bangladesh in 1971, for the reformation of war -damaged economy then
government took control of all existing insurance companies at that time and nationalized them on
August 8, 1972. In the year 1973, the government constituted two insurance institutions Jibon Bima
Corporation (JBC) and Shadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) breaking all those insurance companies.
Later with the objectiv e of the development and expansion of insurance industry, government gave
opportunity to establish insurance companies in private sector.

Initially, The Insurance Industry of Bangladesh was governed by The Insurance Act, 1938 which
subsequently has been eplaced by the Act, of 2010. The office of the Controller of Insurance under
the Ministry of Commerce was abolished by the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority
Act, 2010; and Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) is functioning un der the
Ministry of Finance (previously under the Ministry of Commerce).

Through the enactment of Insurance Corporation Act, VI, 1973 two corporations, namely the
Sadharan Bima Corporation for general insurance and the Jiban Bima Corporation for life insurance
in Bangladesh were established on 14 May, 1973. The government allowed the private sector to
conduct business in all areas of insurance for the first time in 1984. At Present the insurance market
consists of 02 (Two) state owned Insurance Companies& 76 Private Sector Insurance Companies of
them 46 General Insurance and 32 Life Insurance Companies. Out of which, 36 Insurance Companies
are listed in the capital market of which 11 (eleven) are life insurance providers [National Insurance
Policy 2014 and source: www.dsebd.org].

(b) About the Issuer

Sonali Life Insurance Co. Limited (SLICL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on July 07, 2013 under the
Companies Act, 1994 as a public company limited by shares for carrying out all kinds of Life
insurance activities. SLICL was granted Certificate from RISC of Commencement of Business on 7th
July 2013 for life insurance business. The Company obtained the Certificate of Registration from the
Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) on July 30, 2013 und er Insurance Act, 2010.
The Authorized capital of the Company is Tk. 100.00 crore consisting of 100,000,000 ordinary shares
of Tk.10.00each and paidup capital is BDT 28.50 Crore.

Since its establishment in 2013 as one of the leading life insurance companies in the private sector, the
Company has within a short span of time established itself as one of the most reputed, trustworthy,
transparent and fully automated ERP basedlife insurance companies in the country. Selective
underwriting and prompt settlement of claims have contributed towards building up a very
respectable image of the Company within the business community. In less than seven years of
operations, Sonali Life Insurance Co. Ltd. launched over 76 branches and service centers across the
country.

12
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Principal products and services
The products and services of the Company are as follows:

Plan 1D Plan Name
1 Endowment Assurance Plan with Profits
2 Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan - 3 Stagewith Profits
3 Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan -5 Stagewith Profits
4 Ordinary Insurance Plan Without Profits
5 Money Back Term Insurance Benefitwith Profit Granted
6 Child Protection Assurance Plan with Profits
7 Education Expense Assurance Plan with Profits
8 Ordinary Endowment Insurance with Profits
9 Single Premium Insurance Plan Without Profits
10 Assurance Cum Pension Plan Without Profits
11 Denmohar Bima With Profits
12 Hajj Bima With Profits
13 Monthly Savings Assurance Plan with Profit
14 Monthly Savings Micro Insurance Plan with Profit

Financial Information

(Amount in BDT)

Particulars For the Year ended as on
31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15

Gross Premium 810,783,355 677,910,127] 407,524,585 195,473,483 236,379,931
E::;‘E:;ance 223 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Balance of Life Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636 253,073,934 57,496,790, 102,272,380
Total Assets 1,327,012,347 946,960,288 568,871,493 432,959,810 404,008,302
Sharehol der s 285,000,000 285,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000
Number of Shares 28,500,000 28,500,000 18,000,000 18,000,000 18,000,000
Face Value 10 10 10 10 10
Features of the issue and its objects
Face Value BDT 10.00
Public Offer Price BDT 10.00
Number of Shares to be Offered 19,000,000

Total Issue Size BDT 19.00 Crore

Issue Managers ICB Capital Management Limited

Agrani Equity & Investment Limited

Objectives of the Issue
expense.

For investment in FDR & Treasury Bond and to meet up the IPO

Legal and other Information

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited was incorporated on 7th July 2013 under the CompaniesAct,
1994 as a public company limited by shares for carrying out life insurance business and was granted
Certificate of Commencement of business on 7th July 2013.The Company obtained the Certificate of
Registration from the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) on July 30, 2013

under Insurance Act, 2010.
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(H Pr o mo thackgsound

When the company was incorporated, following persons/institutions were the subscriber to the

memorandum:

SL. Name
1 Noor-e-Hafza

2 Fauzia Quamrun Tania

3 K.M Farookh (Nominee of Rupali Insurance Company Limited)
4 Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury

5 Sheikh Mohammed Danial

6 Kamrun Nahar

7 Maya Rani Roy

8 Sheikh Omar Faruque

9 Omar Khayum

10 | Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani

11 | Hazera Hossain

12 | Hoda Ali Selim

13 | Nargis Mahmuda

14 Phowzia Khan

Brief profile s of all promoters are given below:

Noor -E-Hafza, Chairperson

Noor-E-Hafza is the Chairman of the company. She holds postgraduate degreeon zoology from
Rajshahi University. She completed diploma in Food & Nutrition from the University of Dhaka. She
obtained diploma degree on art and theaterfrom the University of London School Of Arts. She served
as personnel officer in Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation (BCIC). She worked as chief
nutritionist in National nutrition council for 3 years. She is a Director of Farnoor Garments Limited
for more than 30 years

Fauzia Quamrun Tania

Fauzia Quamrun Tania is the Sponsor Shareholder of the Company. She holds BSc Hons. as well as
post graduate degree in Business Management and Mathematics from Glasgow University UK, with
excellent academic track record. She is theManaging Director of Imperial Sweater Industries Ltd. and
sheis also a Director of Dragon Sweater Bangladesh Limited.

K.M. Farookh, Director

Mr. K.M Farookh represents himself as a Director of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited on
behalf of the Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.He is also the founder and Chairman of Farnoor
Garments Ltd.

Sheikh Mohammad Danial

Sheikh Mohammad Danial is aSponsor Shareholder of the Company. After Graduation from the
University of Canberra, as a young entrepreneur he has founded Mirage Agro Complex, which has
expanded its operations from fresh produce exports to food grain and commodity trading. He is also
a Director of Mirage Group, which has interest in Ready -Made-Garments, trading, and real estate.
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Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury

Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury is aSponsor Shareholder of the Company. After Graduating from
University of Florida with top honour she has been successfully contributing towards various
businesses that she is involved in. She is the Director of Perag Socks Industries.td. Dragon Sweater
BangladeshLtd. and Dragon Sweater and Spinning Ltd.

Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani, Director

Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani is aDirector of the Company. He is the Managing Director of Golden Harvest
Group and the founder and trustee of Samdani Art Foundation. He is also the founding committee
member of Tate Museum, United Kingdom, South Asia Acquisition Committee. He is the Secretary
General of the Bangladesh Human Rights Foundation. He has started his career as a commodity
broker with Stemcor. Over the years, his company, Golden Harvest has expanded its businesses into
Information Technology, Commodities, Logistics, Food processing, Agriculture, Aviation business,
Real Estate and Insurance business

Hazera Hossain, Director

Hazera Hossain is a Director of the Company. After graduating from AIUB, she has served in
different corporate houses in Bangladesh. She was a Director of Famous Spinning Mlls. She is also a
Director of Hannan Desh Wear.

Sheikh Omar Faruque, Director

Sheikh Omar Faruque is a Director of the company. He is involved in differen t types of Businesses.
He is a Director of Hotel Eram Int" Ltd. and Hotel Peacock Ltd. He is a proprietor of Olio
International .

Omar Khayum, Director

Omar Khayum is a Director of the company. After graduating, he is involved in different businesses.
He is a Director of Hotel Eram Int” Ltd. and Hotel PeacockLtd. He is also a proprietor & CEO of F. R
Orbit International Limited.

Kamrun Nahar, Director
Kamrun Nahar is a Director of the company. She is involved in Real Estate business. She is B0 a
Director of K.S.Z Properties Limited.

Maya Rani Roy, Director

Maya Rani Roy is a Director of the Company. She holds a Master of Arts Degree from Jagannath
University. She served in different corporate houses. She was an Alternate Director of Uttara Finance
& Investment Company Limited. She was a member of different voluntary welfare organizations in
the country.

Hoda Ali Selim, Director

Hoda Ali Selim is a Director of the Company. She holds post-graduation degree from National
University. She is involved in different types of business. She is a Director of Hotel Agrabad Limited.
She is also aManaging Director of Intraco Ready Mix Limited.

Nargis Mahmuda
Nargis Mahmuda is a Sponsor Share Holder of the company. After graduation, she is involved in
different businesses. She is a Director of Hotel Eram Int’Ltd. and Hotel PeacockLtd.

Phowzia Khan

Phowzia Khan is a Sponsor Share Holder of the company. She § an amiable and dynamic lady. She
has completed her Bachelor and masters from reputed University. She is involved in many
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businesses She is also playing vital role of professionalism in the ventures of Intraco Group, sheis
Director of IntracoGroupand i t s concern companyfs.

(g) Capital structure and history of capital raising

Authorized Capital

Particulars No. of Ordinary Shares Nominal Value in BDT Total Amount in BDT

Authorized Capital 100,000,000 10.00 1,000000,000.00

Paid-up Capital

Date of allotment Consideration No. of Shares Face Value Amount in BDT
07-07-2013 Cash 180,000,000 10.00 180,000000.00
09-06-2018 Cash 10,500,000 10.00 10500000000

Total 28,500,0000rdinary Shares @Tk. 10.00 each 285000,000.00

Paid-up capital before and after the Public Issue

Particulars of Paid -up Capital No. of Ordinary Shares Amount in BDT
Before Initial Public Offering 28,500,000 28500000000
Initial Public Offering under  Fixed Price Method 19,000,000 190000000.00
After Initial Public Offering 47,500,000 47500000000

(h) Summary of Valuation Report of securities

Disclosure
Summary of Valuation Methodology of Sonali Life Insurance Company Ltd. Price(Taka)
Sl. Method Used
a Net Asset Value per ordinary share 25.47

Note: The detailed workings of the valuation under above methods are given in this prospectus under
the head of Valuation Report of Securities' prepared by the Issue Manager

(i) Others

Declaration by the Issue M anager
Thisis to declaret hat the | ssue Manager 01 CB Capital Manageme.l
persons is in no way cSomlhlLéeclnswahce @ontpdmy ltinfited 61 © s ua@amyo of i |

connected person nor does hold any securities thereof.

Sd/ -
(Shukla Das)
Date: 16 July, 220 Chief Executive Officer
ICB Capital Management Limited
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Declaration by the Issue Manager

This is to decl ar e AdranitEquityk tnvedtnsent limiteMadn @agerany of i ts co
personsisinnowayconnected with the | ssuer o0Sonal. Life Insur
connected person nor does hold any securities thereof.

Sd/ -
Date: 16 July 2020 (Ahmed Yousuf Abbas)
Chief Executive Officer
Agrani Equity & Investment Limited

Declaration by the Issuer

This is to declared that Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited has not made any material change
including raising of paid-up capital after the date of audited financial statements as on31 December
2019 as included in the prospectus.

Sd/ -
(Mir Rashed Bin Aman )
Chief Executive Officer (CC)
Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
Date: 8 July 2020
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CHAPTER- II: CONDITIONS IMPOSED B 'Y COMMISSION

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF ISSUANCE OF SECURITY IN DEMATERIALIZED  FORM

As per provisions of the Depository Act, 1999 and regulations made there under, share of the
Company will be issued in dematerialized form only and for this purpose ofSonali Life Insurance
Company Limited will sign an agreement with the Central Deposi tory Bangladesh Limited (CDBL).
Therefore, all transfers, transmissions, splitting or conversions will take place on the CDBL system
and any further issuance of shares (including rights and bonus) will also be issued in dematerialized
form only.

CONDITIONS UNDER 2CC OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ORDINANCE, 1969

PART6A

1. The Company shall go for Initial Public Offer (IPO) for 19,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10.00
eachat par from which 40% of securities are reserved for Eligible Investors (Els) including Mutual
Funds and CIS and the remaining 60% of securities will be offered for General Public including
NRB, totaling to Tk Tk. 190,000,000¢ (taka nineteen crore) approximately following the Securities
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969,the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public
Issue) Rules, 2015, the Depository Act, 1999 and rules made there under.

2. The abridged version of the prospectus, as approved and vetted by the Commission, shall be
published by the issuer in 4 (Four) national dai ly newspapers (two in Bangla and two in English),
within 05 (five) working days from the date of issuance of this consent letter. The issuer shall
post the full prospectus, vetted by Commi ssi on,
websites of the Commission, stock exchanges, and the issue manager, within2 (two) working
days of publication of abridged version of prospectus in the newspaper from the date of issuance
of this letter and shall remain posted till the closure of the subscription list. The issuer shall
submit to the Commission, the stock exchanges and the issuemanager a diskette containing the
text of the vett eWorpdéo sfpoercntauts. i n 0 MS

3. The company shall submit 40 (Forty) copies of the printed prospectus to the Commission for
official record within 05 (Five) working days from the date of publication of the abridged version
of the prospectus in the newspapers.

4. The issuer company and the issue manager shall ensure transmission of the prospectus and its
abridged version for NRBs through email to the Bangladesh Embassies and Missions abroad
within 05 (Five) working days from the date of publication of the abridged version of the
prospectus in the newspapers. A compliance report shall be submitted in this respect to the
Commission jointly by the Issuer and the Issue Manager within 02 (Two) working days from the
date of said transmission of the prospectus.

5. The following declaration shall be made by the company in the prospectus, namely: -

oDeclaration about Listing of Shares with the stock exchange (s):
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None of the stock exchange(s), if for any reason, grants listing within 20 (twenty) working days from
the closure of subscription, any allotment in terms of this prospectus shall be void and the company
shall refund the subscription money within 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of refusal for listing by the
stock exchanges, or from the date of expiry of the said20 (twenty) working days , as the case may be.

In case of nonrefund of the subscription money within the aforesaid 15 (Fifteen) days, the Directors
of the company, in addition to the issuer company, shall be collectively and severally liable for refund
of the subscription money, with interest at the rate of 2% (two percent) above the bank rate, to the
subscribers concerned.

The issue manager, in aldition to the issuer company, shall ensure due compliance of the above-
mentioned conditions and shall submit compliance report thereon to the Commission within 7
(Seven) days of expiry of the aforesaid 1 5 ( Fi f t dirmenperioddatioyeddor refund of the
subscription money. 6

The stock exchanges shall complete the listing procedure and start of trading of securities within
20 (Twenty working days from the closure of subscription.

Each General Applicant (General Public and Non-resident Bangladeshi applicants) who intends
to submit application through the Electronic Subscription System (ESS) of the exchange(s) shall
maintain a minimum investment of Tk.20,000/ - (Taka twenty thousand only) in the listed
securities (matured securities) at market price (the dose price of both Exchanges whichever is
higher) as on the end of a working day which is immediately preceded by 5 (five) working days
from the first day of starting the subscription. The minimum application amount shall be Tk.
10,000/- (Taka ten thousand only) or its multiples not exceeding Tk. 50,000/ - (Taka fifty thousand
only). Exchanges shall send the list of BO Accounts who have applied in the IPO to the Central
Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). CDBL shall verify the list of BO Accounts provided by
the Exchanges regarding investment of general applicants in listed securities.

The IPO shall stand cancelled in case of undersubscription collectively above 35%. In such an
event, the issuer and issue manger shall inform the Commission within 02 (two) working days

and release the subscription money within 07 (seven) working days after receiving verification

report from CDBL and the information from exchanges regarding subscription.

20% of the securities reserved for general public excluding NRB shall be reserved for ® u X K1 » %

uc u =l dase loftugder-subscription under any of sub -categories of eligible investors category
or general public category, the unsubscribed portion shall be added to other sub-category of the
same category. In case of over subscription in the general public catgory, the securities shall be
allotted on pro -rata basis, any fraction shall be considered to the nearest integer and accumulated
fractional securities shall be allotted on random basis.

An applicant cannot submit more than two applications, one in his /her own name and the other
jointly with another person. In case, an applicant submits more than two applications, all
applications shall be treated as invalid and shall not be considered for allotment purpose. In
addition, 15% (fifteen) of the application money shall be forfeited and deposited to the
Commission and the balance amount shall be refunded to the applicant.

The applicants who have applied for more than two applications using same bank account, their
applications shall not be considered for allotment purpose. In addition, 15% of their subscription
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money shall be forfeited and deposited to the Commission. The balance amount shall be refunded
to the applicants.

Making of any false statement in the application or supplying of incorrect information t herein or
suppressing any relevant information in the application shall make the application liable to
rejection and subject to forfeiture of 25% of the application money and/or forfeiture of share
(unit) before or after issuance of the same by the issuer.The said forfeited application money or
sale proceeds of forfeited shares (unit) shall be deposited to the Commission. This is in addition to
any other penalties as may be provided for by the law.

The company shall furnish the list of allotees to the Commission and the stock exchange(s)
simultaneously in which the shares will be listed, within 24 (Twenty Four) hours of allotment.

Shares arenot allotted at the time of according this consent, but allotted after listing, in favor of
sponsors, directors or shareholders having 10% or more shares,other than alternative investment
funds, through stock dividends, shall be subject to a lock-in period of 02 (two) years from the date
of issuance of the prospectus.

If any share of Sponsors/Directors/Promoters is in paper format, it shall be handed over to
securities custodian registered with the Commission and shall remain held till completion of lock -
in period and the name of the securities custodian shall be furnished to the Commission jointly by
the issuer and issue manager, along with a confirmation thereof from the custodian, within one
week of listing of the shares with the stock exchange(s). Otherwise, those shares (sharesof
Sponsors/ Directors/ Promoters) can be dematerialized and shall remain in lock -in under CDBL
system and the issuer shall submit a dematerialization confirmation report generated by CDBL
system and attested by Managing Director of the company along with the lock -in confirmation to
the Commission within one week of listing of the shares with the stock exchange(s).In respect of
shares other than Sponsors/Directors/Promoters, the issuer will ensure their lock -in of those
shares and submit a statement to this effect to the Commission.

The company shall not declare any dividend/bonus shares be fore listing with any Exchange from
the date of this letter.

The company shall not engage itself into any merger/amalgamation or acquisition activities

without taking O0No Objectiond from t he Co mmi

merger/amalgamation or acqu isition, as recommended by the Board of Directors, before
approval by the shareholders in General Meeting.

Each Eligible Investor (EI) who intends to submit application through the Electronic Subscription
System (ESS) of the exchange(s) shall maintain a nmimum investment of Tk. 5,000,000/- (Taka
fifty lac) for approved pension funds, recognized provident funds and approved gratuity fu nds
and other Els of Tk.10,000,000/ - (Taka one crore) in the listed securities (matured securities) at
market price (the close price of both Exchanges whichever is higher) as on the end of a working
day which is immediately preceded by 5 (five) working days from the first day of starting the
bidding as per clause (e) of subrule (1) of rule 2 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015. The minimum subscription amount shall be Tk.

for the Eligible investors. Exchanges shall send the list of BO Accounts who have applied in the
IPO to the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). CDBL shall send a report to the
Exchanges on the basis of the list of BO Accounts provided by the Exchanges regarding holding
of Els in listed securities and the Exchange shall ensure the compliance in this regard.
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18. The Company shall invest at least 20% ofthe capital raised through IPO in the listed securities
complying with the provisionsof HVEBIT( G HVJT2TLVL)CRIHOTEBHEA@BEMTc T4 0 P$|

PART 0B

Application Process

Step-1 (Applicant):

1.  An applicant for public issue of securities shall submit an application/buy instruction to the
Stockbroker/ Merchant Banker where the applicant maintains customer account, within the cut -
off date (i.e. the subscription closing date), which shall be the 25" (twenty fifth) working day
from the date of publication of an abridged version of the prospectus .

2. The application/buy instruction may be submitted in prescribed paper or electronic form, which
shall contain the Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number, Total Amount and Category of the
Applicant.

a) Eligible investors shall submit an application through the electronic subscription system of
the exchange(s) and deposit the full amount intended to subscribe by the method as
determined by exchange(s).

b) The General Public and Non-resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants shall submit the
application in the electronic subscription system of the exchange(s) through the
Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers where the applicant maintains customer ac count.

Step-2 (Intermediary):
3.  The registered Stock broker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall:
a) Post the amount separately in the customer account equivalent to the application money;

b) Accumulate all the applications/buy instructions received up to the cut-off date and
transfer the amount to their respective Consolidated Customer Account;

4.  The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall prepare category wise lists of
the applicants containing Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number and within 3 (three)
working days from the cut-off date, upload to the ESS, the lists of applicantsin electronic
(text f or mat with tilde ©6~8 separator) format,
General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants by the method as
determined by exchange(s).

5.  The application/buy instructions shall be preserved by the Stock broker/Merchant Bankers
up to 6 (six) months from listing of the securities with the exchange.

6. The Exchanges shal/l prepare a consolidated I|ist
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BOIDs in electronic (text) format in a CDROM to CDBL for verification on the next working
day. CDBL shall verify the BOIDs as to whether the BO accounts of the applicants are active
or not, verify more than two applications by an individual; verify more than two applications
using same bank account and investment criteria.

7.  On the next working day , CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of
theappl i cants containing BO Account Number, Name, A
Account information along with the verification report.

8.  After receiving verification report and information from CDBL, the Exchanges shall scrutinize
the applications, prepare category wise consolidated lists of valid and invalid applications
within 5 (five) working days

9.  Within next working day , the Exchanges shall provide the Commission, Issuer and Issue
Manager with the soft copy of subscription result.

Step-3 (Issuer):

10. The Issuer and issue manager shall post the final status of subscription on their websites
within 6 (six) hours and on the websites of the Commission and Exchanges within 12
(twelve) hours of receiving information by the Commission and the Exchanges

11.  Within 3 (three) working days of receipt of the subscription result, the Issuer and Exchanges
shall:

a) Process prorata allotment of securities to the General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi
(NRB) applicants;
b) Prepare category wise lists of invalid applicants who are subject to penal provisions as per
conditions of the consent letter issued by the Commission in electronic (text format with tilde
6~0 separator) format ment i eachappicantt he penal ty amou

C) Issuer shall issue allotment letters in the namesof allottees in electronic format and
d) Issuer shall credit the allotted shares to the respective BO accounts on the basis of allotment

data (BOID and number of securities) via their CDBL VeDAS Termi nal.

Step-4 (Intermediary):

12.  Onthe next working day , Exchanges shall:

a)remit the amount of allotted EserpwAcooumtopesedfoo t he | s
subscription purpose;

b) send the penalty amount who are subject to penal provisionstothel ssuer 8s respective
Accounts along with a list; and

C) distribute the information and allotment letters to the stock broker/Merchant Bankers
concernedin electronic format with a request to refund the balance application money.
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On the next working day of receiving the documents from the Exchanges, the
Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers shall refund the excess application money in the customer
accounts and inform the applicants about allotment of securities.

Miscellaneous:

14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

19.

The Issuer, Issue Manager(s), ®ckbrokers, Merchant Bankers and the Exchanges shall ensure
compliance of the above.

The Issuer shall pay the costs related to process the Eligible Investors allotment if claimed by
the Exchange concerned upto an amount of Tk. 2,00,000/- (Taka Two Lac) only and Tk.
8,00,000/- (Taka Eight Lac) only for processing the applications of General Public and Non-
Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants.

The Stockbroker/Merchant Bankers shall be entitled to a service charge of Tk. 5/- (Taka five)
only per application irrespective of the amount or category for the service provided till

withdrawal of the money. The service charge shall be paid by the applicant at the time of
submitting an application.

The Exchanges shall provide the Issuer with a statement of the remittance.

The Issuer shall send the penalty amount to the Commission through a bank draft/payment
order issued in favor of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

The concerned Exchanges are authorized to settle any complaints and take necessargctions
against any Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in case of violation of any provision of the public
issue application process with intimation to the Commission.

PART&C

The issue manager(s) shall carefully examine and compare the published prospectusand its
abridged version on the date of publication with the copies vetted by the Commission. If any
discrepancy is found, both the issuer and the issue manager shall jointly publish a corrigendum
immediately in the same newspapers concerned, simultaneously endorsing copies thereof to the
Commission and the Exchanges concerned. In this regard, the issue manager(s) shall submit a
compliance report to the Commission within 5 working days from the date of such publications.

The fund collected through Initial P ublic Offer shall not be utilized prior to listing with the
Exchange(s) and that utilization of the said fund shall be effected through banking channel, i.e.
through account payee cheque, pay order or bank drafts etc.

The company shall furnish status report on utilization of Public Offering proceeds audited by
foreign affiliated auditors and authenticated by the board of directors to the Commission and the
Exchanges within 15 (Fifteen) days of the closing of each quarter until such fund is fully utilized,
as mentioned in the schedule contained in the prospectus. The issuer shall simultaneously post
the status report in its website and Exchanges shall also post the same in company information
contained in websites of the Exchanges. In the event of any irreguarity or inconsistency, the

23



4.

Prospectus of SLICL

Commission may employ or engage any person to examine whether the issuer has utilized the
proceeds for the purpose disclosed in the prospectus.

While auditing the utilization of IPO proceeds, the auditors will perform their jo bs under the
following terms of reference (TOR) and confirm the same in their report/certificate:
(@) Whether IPO proceeds have been utilized for the purposes/heads as specified in the

prospectus;
(b) Whether IPO proceeds have been utilized in line with the condition (if any) of the
Commi ssionds consent | etter;

(c) Whether utilization of IPO proceeds have been completed within the time
schedule/implementation schedule as specified in the published prospectus;

(d) Whether utilization of IPO proceeds is accurate and for the purpose of the company as
mentioned/specified in the published prospectus; and

(e) The auditors should also confirm that: ® assets have been
procured/imported/constructed maintaining proper/required procedure as well as at
reasonable price; and (i) audit or s report has been made on
documents/papers/vouchers in support of IPO proceeds making reconciliation with Bank
Statement.

All transactions, excluding petty cash expenses, shall be effected by crossed cheques or bank
transfers.

Proceedsof the Initial Public offer shall not be transferred to any other bank account before listing
with the Exchange(s). The proceeds shall not be used for any pupose other than those specified
in the prospectus without any valid ground. Any deviation in this respect of purpose and time
must have prior approval of at least 51% of the public shareholders, other than sponsors and
directors, in a general meeting through a Board approved agenda thereon and due notification to
the shareholders. Before the said general meeting, such deviation as recommended by the Board
of Directors shall be published as price-sensitive information with detailed description and
reasons Pbr such deviation. If approved by the shareholders, the meeting resolution shall be
submitted to the Commission along with reasonable explanations and the decision shall be
published as price-sensitive information.

If any quarter of the financial year -end after publication of the abridged version of prospectus
and before listing of its securities with any exchange, the company shall
disseminate/transmit/submit the said quarterly financial statements in accordance with the
Commi ssionds Not i f iCDRG06-158/208A A8 ddted RO June 2018 and
Rules 15 of the Securitiesand Exchange Rules,2020.

In the event of arising issues concerning Price Sensitive Information as defined under the
ukul BuguSP G E--NB | uei "199%akempublcatibn-ofctHe Kovidged Ysc k t
version of prospectus and before listing of its securities with any exchange, the company shall
disseminate/transmit/submit the information as price sensitive in accordance with the

Commi ssi onds Not i RMI/RQ 9536950 dhted OctelieiCA, 2000.
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PART 8D

As per provision of the Depository Act, 1999 & Regulations made thereunder, shares will only be
issued in dematerialized condition. All transfer/transmission/splitting will take place in the
depository system of Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) and any further issuance of
shares (including rights/bonus) will be made in dematerialized form only.

The issuer and the issue manager shall ensure due compliance of all the above conditions, the
6Banglhad®ecuri ties and Exchange Commission (Public
regulations of the Exchanges;

Provided that the Board of Directors of the issuer along with the Issue Manager(s) shall
conduct a quarterly meeting with the Capital Issue Depa rtment of the Commission regarding
compliance status of its business plan as mentioned in the Prospectus.

The Commission may impose further conditions/restrictions etc. from time to time as and when
considered necessary which shall also be binding upon the issuer company.
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CHAPTER-IIl: DECLARATION AND DUE DILIGENCE CERTIF ICATES AS PER
ANNEXURE (S)- A, BAND C
Annexure -A

Decl aration about the responsi bCHOiotthe SonéliLifehe Di rect o
Insurance Company Limited in respect of the prospectus
[Rule 4 (1) (d)]

This Prospectus has been prepared, seen and approved by us, and we, individually and collectively,
accept full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and adequacy of the statements made,
information given in the Prospect us, Documents, Financial Statements, Exhibits, Annexes, Papers
submitted to the Commission in support thereof, and confirm, after making all reasonable inquiries
that all conditions concerning this Public Issue and Prospectus have been met and that there ae no
other information or documents the omission of which make any information or statements therein
misleading for which the Commission may take any civil, criminal or administrative action against
any or all of us as it may deem fit.

We also confirm that full and fair disclosures have been made in this Prospectus to enable the
investors to make a well-informed decision for investment.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Noor -e-Hafza K.M. Farookh Kamrun Nahar
Chairman Nominee Director of Director

Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Maya Rani Roy Sheikh Omar Faruque Omar Khayum
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Hazera Hossain Hoda Ali Selim
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Honufa Akter Rikta Quazi Moniruzzaman Md . Nurun Nal
Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director
Sd/-

Mir Rashed Bin Aman
Chief Executive Officer (CC)

Date: 25 October 2020
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Annexure -B

Due diligence certificate furnished by issue manager

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Sub: Public offer of 19,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 190,000,000.00 by Sonali Life Insurance

Company Limited

Dear Sir,

We, the issue manager to the abovementioned forthcoming issue, state and confir m as follows:

(1) We have examined all the documents submitted with the application for the above-mentioned

public issue, visited the premises of the issuer and interviewed the Chairperson, Directors and
key management personnel of the issuer in connection with the finalization of the Prospectus
pertaining to the said issue;

(2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the directors, officers and auditors of

the issuer, other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the
issue and the contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

)

h)

The Prospectus filed with the Commission is in conformity with the documents, materials and
papers relevant to the issue;

All the legal requirements relating to the issue as also in the rules, notification, guidelines,
instructions, etc. framed/ issued by the Commission, other competent authorities in this behalf
and the Government have been duly complied with;

The disclosures made in prospectus are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a
well-informed decision for investment in the proposed issue and such disclosures are in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015 and other applicable laws;

Besides ourselves, all the intermediaries named in the prospectus are registered with the
Commission and that till date such registrations are valid;

We have satisfied ourselves about the capability of the underwriters to fulfill their underwriting
commitments;

The proposed activities of the issuer for which the funds are being raised in the present issue fall
within the O6main objects®6 |isted in the object
charter of the issuer and that the activities which have been carried out till now are valid in terms

of the object clause of its Memorandum of Association;

Necessary arrangements have been made to ensure that the moneys to be received pursuant to
the issue shall be kept in a separate bank account and shall be used for the purposes disclosed in
the use of proceeds section of the Prospectus;

All the applicable disclosures mandated in the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Public Issue) Rules, 2015 have been made in addition to other disclosures which, in our view, are
fair and adequate to enable the investor to make awell -informed decision;

We enclose a note explaining how the process of due diligence has been exercised by us in view
of the nature of current business background or the issuer, situation at which the proposed
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business stands, the risk factors, sponsors experiences etc. We also confirm that the due diligence
related process, documents and approval memos shall be kept in record by us for the next 5 (five)
years after the IPO for any further inspection by the Commission;

i)  We enclose a checklist confirming rule-wise compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015 containing details
such as the rule number, its text, the status of compliance, page numbes of the Prospectus where
the rules have been complied with and our comments, if any;

k) We also declare that we have managed the public issue of following issuers in the last 05 (five)
years:

2019 35%C

2018 35%C
The ACME Laboratories 2017 35%C
1. Limited 201516 409.60 77.00 63.50 201635%C
201535%C
201435%C
2019 17%C, 13%B
Doreen Power Generations 2018 15C, 10%B
2 and Systems Limited AU IO 22 /el 2017 10%C,10%B

2016 10%C, 20%B
201910%C, 10%B
3. | BBS Cables Limited 201617 20.00 10.00 54.60 2018 10%C, 15%B
2017 5%C,15%B
2019 10%C

4. | Aman Cotton Fibrous Limited 201718 80.00 36.00 26.80 2018 10%C

5 |- 201819 - - - -
Range of coupon rate
=8.5%-10.5%
Coupon

Ashugonj  Power  Station rate:R GEETES (B 5

6. Company Limited (Bond) 201920 100 5000 5011 Marg_ln*The reference
rate is the rate of 182
days Bangladesh
Treasury bill &
Margin=4%

7. | ADN Telecom Limited 201920 57 27 32.10 -

For Manager to the Issue
Sd/ -
Dhaka, (Shukla Das)
Date: 16 July2020 Chief Executive Officer

ICB Capital Management Limited
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AnnexureC
Due diligence certificate furnished by issue manager

To
The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Sub: Public offer of 19,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 190,000,000.00 by Sonali Life Insurance
Company Limited

Dear Sir,
We, the issue manager to the abovementioned forthcoming issue, state and confirm as follows:

(1) We have examined all the documents submitted with the application for the above mentioned
public issue, visited the premises of the issuer and interviewed the Chairperson, Directors
and key management personnel of the issuer in connection with the finalization of the
Prospectus pertaining to the said issue;

(2) On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the directors, officers and auditors
of the issuer, other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of
the issue and the contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

a) The Prospectus filed with the Commission is in confo rmity with the documents, materials and
papers relevant to the issue;

b) All the legal requirements relating to the issue as also in the rules, notification, guidelines,
instructions, etc. framed/issued by the Commission, other competent authorities in this behalf
and the Government have been duly complied with;

c) The disclosures made in prospectus are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a
well-informed decision for investment in the proposed issue and such disclosures are in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015 and other applicable laws;

d) Besides ourselves, all the intermediaries named in the prospectus are registered with the
Commission and that till date such registrations are valid;

e) We have satisfied ourselves about the capability of the underwriters to fulfill their underwriting
commitments;

f) The proposed activities of the issuer for which the funds are being raised in the present issue fall
within the édmain objectsd |isted in the object <cl a
charter of the issuer and that the activities which have been carried out till now are valid in terms
of the object clause of its Memorandum of Association;

0) Necessary arrangements have been made to ensure that the moneys to be received pursuant to
the issue shall be kept in a separate bank account and shall be used for the purposes disclosed in
the use of proceeds section of the Prospectus;

h) All the applica ble disclosures mandated in the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Public Issue) Rules, 2015 have been made in addition to other disclosures which, in our view, are
fair and adequate to enable the investor to make a well informed decision;
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We enclose a note explaining how the process of due diligence has been exercised by us in view
of the nature of current business background or the issuer, situation at which the proposed
business stands, the risk factors, sponsors experiences etc. We also céirm that the due diligence
related process, documents and approval memos shall be kept in record by us for the next 5 (five)
years after the IPO for any further inspection by the Commission;

We enclose a checklist confirming rule-wise compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015 containing details
such as the rule number, its text, the status of compliance, page numbers of the Prospectus where
the rules have been complied with and our comments, if any;

We also declare that we have managed the public issue of following issuers in the last 05 (five)
years:

Issue Month/Year (July to June) | lIssue FY | Issue Price | Dividend Payment History

N/A

For Manager to the Issue

Sd/-
Ahmed Yousuf Abbas

Dhaka, Chief Executive Officer
Date: 16 July, 2020 Agrani Equity & Investment Limited
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AnnexureC

Due diligence certificate by the underwriter(s)
[See rule 4 (1)(d)]

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Sub: Public offer of 19, 000,0000rdinary Shares of BDT. 190,000,000.000fSonali Life Insurance Company

Limited.

Dear Sir,

We, the under-noted Underwriter

collec

1)

@)

tively as follows:

to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state individually and

We, while underwriting the above-mentioned issue on a firm commitment basis, have examined
the draft prospectus, other documents and materials as relevant to our underwriting decision; and

On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer company, its directors and
officers, and other agencies, independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the
issue and the contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer company.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

(@) We are registaed with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission as a merchant banker

and eligible to carry out the underwriting activities.

Our present paid-up capital stands at Tk. 329.65

(Three hundred twenty -nine point sixty-five) crore and we have the capadty to underwrite a total
amount of Tk. 1,648.25 (Taka one thousand six hundredforty eight point two five) crore as per
relevant legal requirements. We have committed to underwrite for up to Tk. 6.65 (six point sixtyfive )

crore for the upcoming issue.

(b) At present, the following underwriting obligations are pending for us:

Sl. No. Name of the Company Amount Underwritten (in TkK.)

1 Desh General Insurance CompanyLtd. 5,600,000.00
2 Energypac Power Generation Ltd. 12,500,000.00
3 Ratanpur Steel ReRolling Mills Ltd. 37,500,000.00Q
4 AB Bank Limited 750,000,000.0¢
5 Dragon Sweater and Spinning Limited 381,666,660.00
6 eGeneration Limited 20,000,000.00
7 JMI Hospital Requisite Manufacturing Limited 51,250,000.00
8 Mir Akhter Hossain Limited 10,000,000.00
9 Infinity Technology International Limited 20,000,000.00
10 Omera Petroleum Limited 41,726,036.00
11 Taufika Foods and Agro Industries Limited 15,000,000.00Q

Total= 1,345,242,6980

(c) All information as is relevant to our underwriting decision ha s been received by us and the draft
prospectus forwarded to the Commission has been approved by us;

(d) We shall subscribe and take up the un-subscribed securities against the abovementioned public issue
within 15 (fifteen) days of calling up thereof by the issuer; and

(e) This underwriting commitment is unequivocal and irrevocable.

For the Underwriter -

Sd/-

(Shukla Das)
Chief Executive Officer

Date:

16 July 2020
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(a) Name of the issuer, dates of incorporation and commencement of its commercial operations, its logo,
addresses of its registered office, other offices, telephone number, fax number, contact person, website
address ande-mail address

Corporate and Branch

Name of the
Issuer

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

Date of

Incorporation as

a Private 07 July 2013
Limited

Company

Date of

Commenceme_nt 01 August, 2013
of Commercial

Operatio n

The Logo of the
Issuer

AR =AAZ (ONIF ARADIETS Gy AT =i

Addresses of
Registered
Office

Rupali Bima Bhaban,

7 RAJUK Avenue, Dhaka-1000.

Corporate Office

68/B DIT Road, Malibagh Chowdhury Para, Dhaka -1219.

Branch

76 branches

Sl. Description Location
01 [Motijheel(Metro) | 7 Rajuk Avenue Rupali Bima Bhaban, Motijheel Dhaka
02 |Malibagh 68/B DIT Road Chowdhury Para, Malibagh Dhaka
03 |Bakulia 806/ A Gquhpr Mansiondé (3rd Bahaddanat,
P.S: Chandgaon Dist: Chittagong.
04 |Comilla Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue (4 t floor) 2n Kandipar Comilla.
05 |Rajshahi llQ no. _Karim Super Market (3¢ floor), P.O: Ghoramara,P.S: Bowaliya, Dist:
Rajshahi.
House 170 (2nd Floor) Block - D Road No -2, Sugandha Residential Area
06 |[Sugandha . .
Panchlaish, Chittagong
07 |Meah Bazar Carnival (2nd Floor) P.O: Meah Bazar P.S: ChauddagramDist: Comilla.
08 |Mirza Pur Baima Hati,P.O.+ P.S:MirzaPur, Dist: Tangail.
09 |Chandanaish Hazi Shiraj Market (1st floor), boiltoli, Chandanaish, Chittagong.
10 |Kasba (Metro) Simanta Complex-2, 2nd Floor, Kasba PuratanBazar, Kasba, BBaria.
11 |Bonpara Shohid Dr. AynulHoqu_e PourashavaSuper Market (3rd Floor), P.o:
HararaP.O:Boraigram, Dist: Nator.
12 |Feni (Metro) Aziz Shopping Center (4th Floor), 189, S.SK. Road, Feni.
13 |Laxmipur Vill:Shomserabad, P.O:Laxmipur, P.S: Laxmipur Sadar, Dist: Laxmipur.
14 |Raozan Vill: SultanpurP.O + P.S:Raozan, Dist: Chittagong.
15 |Netrokona 180/1, Shahor Satpai,P.O.+ P.S. Dist: Netrokona
Norshingdi Vill; Srishtighor (Bus Stand Bazar) P.O: Chaitanya, P.S: Shibpur, Dist:
16 o
(Takaful) Norshingdi.
17 ggfé‘; Head 68/B DIT Road Chowdhury Para ,Malibagh , Dhaka
18 |Rangpur (Metro) | House No -196, Road no- 1 P.O: Alamnagar, P.S:Kotwali, Dist:Rangpur.
19 Akborshah Block No -I, Holding No - 174, Koibollodham R/ A, Shahjahan Bhaban, (1st
(Takaful) Floor) SevenMarket,P.O: Ferozshah,P.SAkborshah, Dist: Chittagong.
Sandip Town Islami Bank Bhaban (2nd Floor) Haramia, P.O: Sanerhat, P.S: Sandwip, Dist:
20 .
(Takaful) Chittagong.
21 |Comilla (Metro) Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue (8t floor) 2 Kandipar Comilla.
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Jongi Shibpur Bazar Vill: Hosen Nogar P.O: Hosen Nogar P.S: Raypura Dist:

22 |Shibpur Bazar A
Norshingdi
23 |Tangall House no - 410 Kodalia (1st Floor),P.0.:1900P.S:+ Dist: Tangail.
Sandip Akborhat - . . e
24 (Takaful) Vill: Gasuya P.O: Gasuya P.S: SandipDist: Chittagong.
Sondhip
25 |Shiberhat Amir Hazer Bari, mait Vanga, shiberhat, Sondhip, Chittagong.
(Takaful)
26 Bhuschi Bazar Vill: Bhuschi Bazar, P.O: Choto Sharitpur-3573, PS: Sadar DakshinDist:
(Laksam) Comilla.
Chittagong Chowdhury Center (3rd Floor),225/ A, C D A Avinew, Muradpur,
27 .
(Metro) Chittagong.
08 Cox's Kashem Plaza (2nd Floor) Building no - 1/3 Kalur Dokan Main Road, P.O:
Bazar(Metro) Coxs BazarP.S: SadayDist: Coxs Bazar.
29 |Chokoria (Metro) Abdlul Motlob Shopping Complex (2nd Floor), Chiringa, Chakaria,
Cox'shaza.
30 |Bhola Habib Super Market: (4th Floor) Mohajon Potti sadar RoadBhola
31 |Pekuya (Metro) I\B/I;);/;I;ana Jahangir Alam Market, P.O: Pekuya, Chowmohoni, Dist: Coxs
32 |Sylhet (Metro) \é\i%sot World Sopping City (8th Floor) Zollarpar Road, Zindabazar, Sylhet -
M.B Complex (3rd floor) Muntasir Center (6th Floor) 253, CD.A Avenue
33 |Wasa(Metro) Wasa Circle
P. O:-Dam paradP.S. Khulshi, Dist: Chittagong
Thakurgaon Holding no -512Naresh Chanhan road Thakurgaon Sadar P S +Dist:
34
(Metro) Thakurgaon
35 Maheshkhali Dangbangla para (2nd Floor) P.O: Gorakgata P.S.: Maheshkhali, Dist:
(Metro) CoxsBazar
36 |B-Baria (Metro) F.C Tower (3th Floor) Court Road, Brahmanbaria
37 '\Bﬂs:;horgonj Monohorgonj Bazar P.O + P.S: Monohorgonj, Dist: Comilla.
38 [Laldighi (Metro Ga;l Tower (2nd Floor) 47 Laldighi, P.O; Sada P.S: Kotowali Dist:
Chittagong.
39 Keranihat Vill + P.O.:Keranihat, P.S.: SatkaniaDist: Chittagong
(Metro)
Hathazari 1049, Hathazari City Corporation (3rd floor) P.O. + P.S: Hathazari Dist:
40 .
(Metro) Chittagong.
41 |Taraganj(Metro) | Paschim Kursha Dorjipara P.O + P.S: TaraganjDist:Dinajpur
42 Dagonbhuya 74, "Al - Nur Jame Mo s z iMdrket (3rd Floor) Chowmuhani Road, P.O +
(Metro) P.S:Dagonbhuiyan Dist: Feni.
Cox's Bazar 58, "Al Aksa Shoping Tower Market (2nd Floor) P.O: Chiringa P.S: Chokoria
43 - )
Agency (Metro) Dist: Cox's bazar.
44 Kurigram Vill: GoshparaP.O + P.S: Kurigram SadarDist: Kurigram
(Metro)
45 | Mirpur (Metro) Fair PlazaPlot -C/3Block -D Road no - 1 P.S.; ShahoaliMirpur -1, Dist: Dhaka.
Panchagarh Holding no - 626 Kayatpara P.O: Panchagarh-5000 P.S: Panchagarh Sadar
46 o
(Metro) Dist: Panchagarh
47 |Fulgazi (Metro) i&;il Fulgazi Trade Center (2nd Floor) Main Road P.O +P. S: Fulgazi Dist:
Jhenaidah House no - 48 Sher-E - Bangla Sarak, P.O. + P.S Jhenaidah Sada, Dist:
48 :
(Metro) Jhenaidah
49 |Jatrabari(Metro) 326, SouthKajla P.O:Dania, P.O: Jatrabari, Dist: Dhaka.
50 |Kendua Vill: Coat road P.O +P. S:KenduaDist: Netrokona
51 Gaibandha Titon Place (5th Floor) Moddho ParaRoad Moddho Para, PO: + P.S:
(Metro) Gaibandha SadamDist: Gaibandha
52 xﬂa;?;bpur Holding no - 349, Bus Stand Road P.O ¥.S:Madhabpur Dist:Hobigan;.
53 |Gulshan (Metro) Elzaltzno - A - 2 (2nd floor) Plot no -06 Gulshan Avenue Block - SW (H) Dhaka-
54 |Titas (Metro) Titas Tower, 1105 Mosjid RoadP.O + P.S #Dist: Brahmanbaria.
55 |Lama (Metro) Vill: Lama Pourashava P.O:+ P.S:LamaDist: Bandarban.
56 |Dohazari (Metro) | Vill + P.O:Dohazari, P.S:Chandanaish Dist: Chittagong.
57 Parshuram Anowara Shoping Complex (2nd Floor) Main Road, Parshuram Bazar, P.O +
(Metro) P.S:Parshuram,Dist: Feni.
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Telephone and
Fax number

Contact Person

Website
E-mail Address

58 Bandarban Hamid Market(2 no goli) Bandarban Bazar Bandarban.
(Metro)
59 ?&:ﬁg?malya Vill: Nur Nagar P.O:Chuadanga, PS: Chuadanga Sadar Dist: Chuadanga.
60 Debidwar Debidwar New Market (2nd Floor) Janata Super Market, P.O + P.S:
(Metro) Debidwar Dist: Comilla.
61 |Basurhat (Metro) Tf_:lhgr Mansmn (st Floor) High School Road, P.O:Basurhat P.S: Companigan]
District:Noakhali.
62 |Tangail (Metro) 2?9,. Zilla Sgdar Road, Akur Takur Para, P.O: Tangail -1900P.S:Tangail Sadar
Dist: Tangail.
63 |Jamalpur (Metro) | 1192 Tomal Tola Boro Mosjid Road P.O. + P.S Dist: Jamalpur.
64 |Digpait (Metro) Fancy New Market Jamalpur road P.O: Sontia Bazar P.S +Dist: Jamalpur
BoalKhali M.M. Tower East Gomdandi P.O East Gomdandi P.SBoalkhali,Dist:
65 .
(Metro) Chittagong .
66 ?/IMaé?rr:)an Vill: Mog Dail P.O.; Matarbari, P.S: Maheshkhali, Dist Cox's Bazar.
Chowmuhani Chowmuhani plaza (4th Floor) D.B Road, P.O:Chowmuhani P.S:Begumganj
67 o .
(Metro) Dist: Noakhali.
68 (DNeI;/\t/?(Sganj 588/1,(Ist Floor) Ward No - 04, P.O: + P.S: DewanganBazar, Dist: Jamalpur
Sonagazi Agency | Rakib Plaza Ac Market (2nd Floor) Holding no - 07 Pour Chator P.O +P. S:
69 S .
(Metro) SonagaziDist: Feni.
House no - 04 RN. Road Chowrasta Umesh Chandra Lane P.O + P.S:
70 |Jessore (Metro) S
Kotwali Dist: Jessore
71 |Gazipur (Metro) Muktijoddha Mohammad Ali Tower Flat No -2C (2nd Floor) Road no -27
P P.O: ErshadNagar, P.S: Tongi,Dist: Gazipur.
Madaripur Golabari New Dc office (1st Floor) P.O + P.S: Madaripur Sadar
72 o -
(Metro) Dist: Madaripur
73 |Bhairab (Metro) Bhairabpur (Ari Baparir Bari) 1st Floor P.O: + P.SBhairabDist: Kishoreganj
74 Shebarhat Ali Meahgi Bari (2nd Floor) Rajarampur P.O: Shebarhat, P.S: SenbaghpDist:
(Metro) khali
75 Chuadanga Sara Bhaban- 2 (Ground Floor) Shahid Abul Kashem Sorok P.O: Chuadanga
(Metro) P.S Chuadanga Sadar Dist Chuadanga.
76 Iﬁzgi;l Sadar Block -A /5 House no - 10 P.O: TangailP.S:Tangail Sadar Dist: Tangail
Phone: +88029565625, +8808567238
IP Phone: 09678200004
Fax: 88029565629
Mir Rashed Bin Aman, Chief Executive Officer (CC)
and http s://www.sonalilife.com
e-mail: info@sonalilife.com

(b) The names of the sponsors and directors of the issuer;

Sponsors of the company

SL No

Name

Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza

Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun Tania

Mr. K.M Farookh (Nominee o f Rupali Insurance Company Limited)

Mrs. Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury

Mr. Sheikh Mohammed Danial

Mrs. Kamrun Nahar

Mrs. Maya Rani Roy

Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque

OO |INOO|A|W[N|F

Mr. Omar Khayum

=
o

Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani

=
[N

Mrs. Hazera Hossain
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SL No

Name

12 Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim

13 Mrs. Nargis Mahmuda

14 Ms. Phowzia Khan

Directors of the Company

SL. Name Position
01 Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman
02 Mr. K.M Farookh (Nominee of Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.) Director
03 Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director
04 Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director
05 Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director
06 Mr. Omar Khayum Director
07 Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director
08 Mrs. Hazera Hossain Director
09 Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director

10 Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta

Independent Director

11 Mr . Quazi Moniruzzaman

Independent Director

12 Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi

Independent Director

**The independent directors were appointed on the 60 AGM of the company held on 17 September, 2019.

(c) The name, logo and address of the auditors of the issue, along with their telephone numbers,

fax numbers, contact persons, website and e -mail addresses

Auditor:
Particulars Description
Name Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Signing Partner: Mr. Md. Shirazul Islam Khan FCA
L)
Logo :
»
Address R.K. Tower (Level- 10), 86 Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road, (312, Sonargaor
Road), Dhaka-1205.
Telephone +88 029635139
Number
Fax Number : | FAX: +88 029672006
Mr. Md. Shirazul Islam Khan FCA
Contact Person .
Signing Partner
Website Address . | shirazkhanbasak.com.bd
E-mail Address . | shiraz_fca@yahoo.com
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Register to the Issue:
Information regarding the Register to the Issue is not applicable for SLICL.

Actuarial information

Prospectus of SLICL

Particulars Description
Name Z. Halim & Associates
Logo Z Halim & Associates
Actuarial & Pension Consultants
Address Empori Parkview Flat 9A, House 1/ C, Road 86, North Gulshan, Dhaka- 1212
Telephone (+88) 01713012238
Number
Fax Number N/A
Contact Person Zafar Halim

Website Address

www.zhalim.com

E-mail Address

ceo@zhalim.com

(d) The name(s) of the stock exchanges where the specified securities are proposed to be listed

SL Name of the Exchange Logo Address
| SN |
1 | Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) (= ‘alfg - | 9/F, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka -1000.
[ CHITTAGONG | cSE Building, 1080 Sheikh
i imi STOCK - -
2 | Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) éEXCHANGE MujibRoad, Chittagong.
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CHAPTER V: CORPORATE DIRECTORY OF THE ISSUER:

Corporate Directory of the Issuer

Name of the Issuer

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

Date of Incorporation as a Public
Limited Company

07 July2013

Date of Commencement of
Commercial Operation

01 August, 2013

Authorized Capital

Tk. 1,000,000,000.00

Issued, Subscribed &
Capital

Paid -up

Tk. 285,000,000.00

Addresses of the Registered Office

Rupali Bima Bhaban,7 RAJUK Avenue,Dhaka-1000.

Corporate Office

68/B D.I.T. Road, MalibaghChowdhury Para,
Dhaka-1219

Branch

76 no. of branches all over in Bangladesh

Board of Directors

12 Directors (including Three Independent Directors)

Auditor

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
R. K. Tower (Level- 10), 86 Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road,
(312, Sonargaon Road)Dhaka-1205.

Acturial Valuer

Zafar Halim

Actuary

Z. Halim & Associates

Empori Parkview Flat 9A, House 1/C,
Road 86, North Gulshan, Dhaka- 1212
(+88) 01713012238

Legal Advisor

Imtiaz Moinul Islam

LegalShelter,

Appollo Ispat Complex,
407,Tejgaonindustrial Area, Dhaka.

Tax Consultant

M/SSEKANDAR ALI & ASSOCIATES
52 New Eskaton TMC Building Level -9
Bangla Motor, Dhaka 8 1000.

Managers to the Issue

ICB Capital Management Limited
Green City Edge (5" & 6t Floor)
89, Kakrail, Dhaka-100Q

Agrani Equity & Investment Limited
Swantex bhaban (4" floor)
9/1, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka - 1000.

Compliance Officer

Sujan Talukder
Assistant General Manager

Telephone and Fax number

IP Phone: 09678200004
Fax: 88029565629

Website and E-mail Address

http s://www.sonalilife.com
e-mail: info@sonalilife.com

Banker for IPO

South Bangla Agricultureand Commerce Bank Limited
Principal Branch,47, Dilkusha, Motijheel, Dhaka- 1000.
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CHAPTER V |: DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER:

(a) Summary of the Industry

After liberation of Bangladesh in 1971, for the reformation of war -damaged economy then
government took control of all existing insurance companies at that time and nationalized them on
August 8, 1972. In the year 1973, the government constituted two insurance institutions Jibon Bima
Corporation (JBC) and Shadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) breaking all those insurance companies.
Later with the objective of the development and expansion of insurance industry, government gave
opportunity to establish insurance companies in private sector.

Initially, The Insurance Industry of Banglade sh was governed by The Insurance Act, 1938 which
subsequently has been replaced by theAct, of 2010. The office of the Controller of Insurance under
the Ministry of Commerce was abolished by the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority
Act, 2010; andInsurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) is functioning under the of
the Ministry of Finance (previously under the Ministry of Commerce).

Through the enactment of Insurance Corporation Act, VI, 1973 two corporations, namely the
Sadharan Bima Corporation for general insurance and the Jiban Bima Corporation for life insurance
in Bangladesh were established on 14 May, 1973. The government allowed the private sector to
conduct business in all areas of insurance for the first time in 1984. At Present the insurance market
consists of 02 (Two) state owned Insurance Companies & 76 Private Sector Insurance Companies of
them 46 General Insurance and 32 Life Insurance Companies. Out of which, 36 Insurance Companies
are listed in the capital market of w hich 11 (eleven) are life insurance providers [National Insurance
Policy 2014 and source: www.dsebd.org].

Business environment of the Issuer

There are 29 private, 1 nationalized and 2 foreign life insurance companies in the country, having
extensive branch networks, holding huge premium deposit and enjoying certain prerogatives. The
third -generationprivate sector insurance companies comparativelyhaving large branch networks,
reasonable access to technalgy and market. As a result, intense competition exists in this industry.
Although there is much competition in the insurance sector, the Sonali Life Insurance Company Ltd.
has earned a notable position in this market through its performance, reliabilities, efficient
management, experience and acceptance by its clients.

(i) Summary of consolidated financial, operating and other information

SLICL has no subsidiary or associatecompanies. Hence, summary of consolidated financial, operating
and other information is not applicable.

(b) General Information

() Name and address, telephone and fax numbers of the registered office, corporate head
office, other offices, factory, business premises and branches of the Issuer are as follows:

Rupali Bima Bhaban,

7 RAJUK Avenue, Dhaka-1000.
IP Phone: 09678200004

Fax: 88029565629

RegisteredOffice

68/B D.I.T. Road, Malibagh Chowdhury Para,
Dhaka-12119.

IP Phone: 09678200004

Fax: 88029565629

Corporate Head
Office
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Branch

Description Location
Motijheel (Metro) 7 Rajuk Avenue Rupali Bima Bhaban, Motijheel Dhaka
Malibagh 68/B DIT Road Chowdhury Para, Malibagh Dhaka
Bakulia 806/ A oBoshor _Ma_nsioné (3rd fl
Bahaddarhat, P.S: ChandgaonDist: Chittagong.
Comilla Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue (4 t floor) 2nd Kandipar Comilla.
. . 110no. Karim Super Market (31 floor), P.O: Ghoramara,P.S: Bowaliya,
Rajshahi S .
Dist: Rajshahi.
Sugandha House 170 (2_nd quor) Block - D Road No -2, Sugandha Residential
Area Panchlaish, Chittagong
Meah Bazar Carnival (2nd Floor) P.O: Meah Bazar P.S: ChauddagramDist:Comilla.
Mirza Pur Baima Hati,P.O.+ P.SMirzaPur, Dist: Tangail .
Chandanaish Hazi Shiraj Market (1st floor), boiltoli, Chandanaish, Chittagong.

Kasba (Metro)

Simanta Complex-2, 2nd Floor, Kasba PuratanBazar, Kasba, BBaria.

Bonpara

Shohid Dr. AynulHoque PourashavaSuper Market (3rd Floor ), P.O:
HararaP.O:Boraigram, Dist: Nator.

Feni (Metro)

Aziz Shopping Center (4th Floor), 189, S.SK. Road, Feni.

Vill:  Shomserabad, P.O: Laxmipur, P.S: Laxmipur Sadar, Dist:

Laxmipur .
Laxmipur.
Raozan Vill: SultanpurP.O + P.S:Raozan, Dist: Chittagong.
Netrokona 180/1, Shahor Satpai,P.O.+ P.S. Dist: Netrokona
Norshingdi Vill; Srishtighor (Bus Stand Bazar) P.Q Chaitanya, P.S:Shibpur, Dist:
(Takaful) Norshingdi.

Metro Head Office

68/B DIT Road Chowdhury ParaMalibagh Dhaka

House No -196, Road no - 1 P.O Alamnagar, P.S: Kotwali,

Rangpur (Metro) Dist:Rangpur.
Akborshah Block No -l, Holding No - 174, Koibollodham R/ A, Shahjahan
Bhaban, (1st Floor) SevenMarket, P.O: Ferozshah, P.SAkborshah,
(Takaful) o
Dist: Chittagong.
Sandip Town Islami Bank Bhaban (2nd Floor) Haramia, P.O: Sanerhat, P.S: Sandwip,
(Takaful) Dist: Chittagong.

Comilla (Metro)

Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue (8 t floor) 2nd Kandipar Comilla.

Shibpur Bazar

Jongi Shibpur Bazar Vil Hosen Nogar P.O: Hosen Nogar P.S:
Raypura Dist: Norshingdi

Tangalil House no - 410 Kodalia (1st Floor), P.O: 1900P.S:+ Dist: Tangail.
Sandip Akborhat - . . .

(Takaful) Vill: Gasuya P.O: Gasuya P.S: SandipDist: Chittagong.

Sondhip Shiberhat . . . . . .

(Takaful) Amir Hazer Bari , mait Vanga, shiberhat, Sondhip, Chittagong.
Bhuschi Bazar Vill:  Bhuschi Bazar, PO: Choto Sharitpur-3573, PS: Sadar
(Laksam) DakshinDist: Comilla.

Chittagong Chowdhury Center (3rd Floor),225/ A, C D A Avinew, Muradpur,
(Metro) Chittagong.

Cox's Kashem Plaza (2nd Floor) Building no - 1/3 Kalur DokanMain Road,
Bazarn(Metro) P.O: Coxs BazarP.S: SadayDist: Coxs Bazar.

Chokoria (Metro)

Abdul Motlob Shopping Complex (2nd Floor), Chiringa, Chakaria,
Cox'sbhaza.

Bhola Habib Super Market: (4th Floor) Mohajon Potti sadar RoadBhola
Mowlana Jahangir Alam Market, P.O: Pekuya, Chowmohoni, Dist:
Pekuya (Metro)
Coxs Bazar.
West World Sopping City (8th Floor) Zollarpar Road, Zindabazar,
Sylhet (Metro) Sylhet -3100.
M.B Complex (3rd floor) Muntas ir Center (6th Floor) 253, CD. A
Wasa(Metro) Avenue Wasa Circle P. O:Dam para P.S.Khulshi
Dist: Chittagong
Thakurgaon Holding no -512Naresh Chanhan road Thakurgaon Sadar P S 4Dist:
(Metro) Thakurgaon
Maheshkhali Dangbangla para (2nd Floor) P.O: Gorakgata P.S.: Maheshkhali, Dist
(Metro) CoxsBazar
B -Baria (Metro) F.C Tower (3th Floor) Court Road, Brahmanbaria
gﬂ;:;horgonj Monohorgonj Bazar P.O + P.S: Monohorgon|Dist: Comilla.

Laldighi (Metro

Gazi Tower (2nd Floor) 47 Laldighi,P.O; SadaP.S: Kotowali
Dist: Chittagong.
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Keranihat (Metro)

Vill + P.O.: Keranihat, P.S.: SatkaniaDist: Chittagong.

Hathazari (Metro)

1049, Hathazari City Corporation (3rd floor) P.O. + P.S: Hathazari
Dist: Chittagong.

Taraganj (Metro)

Paschim Kursha Dorjipara P.O + P.S: TaraganjDist:Dinajpur

Dagonbhuya 74, "Al - Nur Jame Moszid " Market (3rd Floor) Chowmuhani Road,
(Metro) P.O + P.S: DagonbhuiyarDist: Feni.
Cox's Bazar 58, "Al Aksa Shoping Tower Market(2nd Floor) P.O: Chiringa P.S:

Agency (Metro)

Chokoria Dist: Cox's bazar.

Kurigram (Metro)

Vill: GoshparaP.O + P.S: Kurigram SadarDist: Kurigram

Mirpur (Metro)

Fair PlazaPlot -C/3Block -D Road no - 1 P.S.; ShahoaliMirpur -1, Dist:
Dhaka.

Panchagarh
(Metro)

Holding no - 626 Kayatpara P.O: Panchagarh-5000 P.S: Panchagarh
Sadar Dist: Panchagarh

Fulgazi (Metro)

492, Fulgazi Trade Center (2nd Floor) Main Road P.O+ P.S:
FulgaziDist: Feni.

Jhenaidah (Metro)

House no - 48 Sher-E - Bangla Sarak P.O. + P.S:Jhenaidah SadaDist:
Jhenaidah

Jatrabari(Metro) 326, SouthKajla P.O:Dania, P.O: Jatrabari, Dist: Dhaka.

Kendua Vill: Coat road P.O +P. S KenduaDist: Netrokona

Gaibandha Titon Place (5th Floor) Moddho ParaRoad Moddho Para, P.O: + P. S
(Metro) Gaibandha SadaDist: Gaibandha

Madhabpur Holding no - 349, Bus Stand Road P.O +P.S: Madhabpur Dist:
(Metro) Hobiganj .

Gulshan (Metro)

Flat no - A - 2 (2nd floor) Plot no -06 Gulshan Avenue Block - SW (H)
Dhaka -1212.

Titas (Metro)

Titas Tower, 1105 Mosjid RoadP.O + P.S Dist: Brahmanbaria.

Lama (Metro)

Vill: Lama Pourashava P.Q + P.S:LamabDist: Bandarban.

Dohazari (Metro)

Vill + P.O: Dohazari, P.S:Chandanaish Dist: Chittagong.

Parshuram Anowara Shoping Complex (2nd Floor) Main Road,Parshuram Bazar,
(Metro) P.O + P.S:Parshuram,Dist: Feni.

Bandarban Hamid Market(2 no goli) Bandarban Bazar Bandarban.

(Metro)

Chhagalnaiya Vill:  Nur Nagar P.O:Chuadanga, P.S: Chuadanga Sadar Dist:
(Metro) Chuadanga.

Debidwar (Metro)

Debidwar New Market (2nd Floor) JanataSuper Market, P.O + P.S:
Debidwar Dist: Comilla.

Basurhat (Metro)

Taher Mansion (st Floor) High School Road, P.O Basurhat P.S:
Companiganj District :Noakhali .

Tangail (Metro)

229, Zilla Sadar Road, Akur Takur Para, P.Q Tangail -1900 P.S:
Tangail Sadar Dist: Tangail.

Jamalpur (Metro)

1192 Tomal Tola Boro Mosjid Road P.O. + P.S Dist: Jamalpur.

Fancy New Market Jamalpur road P.O: Sontia Bazar P.S +Dist:

Digpait (Metro) Jamalpur
) M.M. Tower East Gomdandi P.O East Gomdandi P.S:Boalkhali,Dist:
Boalkhali (Metro) Chittagong

Matarbari (Metro )

Vill: Mog DailP.O.; Matarbari ,P.S:Maheshkhali, Dist Cox's Bazar.

Chowmuhani Chowmuhani plaza (4th Floor) D.B Road, P.O Chowmuhani P.S:
(Metro) Begumganj Dist: Noakhali.

Dewanganj 588/1,(Ist Floor) Ward No - 04, P.O: + P.S: Dewnganj Bazar, Dist:
(Metro) Jamalpur

Sonagazi Agency
(Metro)

Rakib Plaza Ac Market(2nd Floor) Holding no - 07 Pour Chator P.O
+P.S:SonagaziDist: Feni.

Jessore (Metro)

House no - 04 RN. Road Chowrasta Umesh Chandra Lane P.O +P.S:
Kotwali Dist: Jessore

Gazipur (Metro)

Muktijoddha Mohammad Ali TowerFlat No -2C(2nd Floor) Road no -
27 P.O: ErshadNagar, P.S: Tongi,Dist: Gazipur .

Madaripur
(Metro)

Golabari New Dc office (1st Floor) P.O + P.S: Madaripur Sadar
Dist:Madaripur

Bhairab (Metro)

Bhairabpur (Ari Baparir
Kishoreganj

Bari) 1st Floor P.O: + P.SBhairabDist:

Box Ali Meahgi Bari (2nd Floor) Rajarampur P.O: Shebarhat, P.S:

Shebarhat (Metro) Senbagh,Dist: Noakhali
Chuadanga Sara Bhaban - 2 (Ground Floor) Shahid Abul Kashem Sorok
(Metro) P.O:ChuadangaP.S:Chuadanga Sadar Dist:
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Chuadanga.

Tangail
(Metro)

Sadar

Block -A /5 House no - 10P.O: TangailP.S:Tangail Sadar Dist: Tangalil

Other

offices/business
premises and

outlets

We have no other offices/business premises and outlets.

(i) The Board of Directors of the Issuer

Sl. Name of Director s Position

1. Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman

2. Mr. K.M Farookh (Nominee of Rupali Insurance Company Limited) Director

3. Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director

4, Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director

5. Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director

6. Mr. Omar Khayum Director

7. Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director

8. Mrs.Hazera Hossain Director

9. Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director

10. Ms. Hanufa Akter Rikta Independent director
11 Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman Independent director
12, Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi Independent Director

(i) Names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers and e-mail addresses of the Chairman,
Managing Director , whole time Directors, etc. of the Issuer :

Telephone number, Fax number

Sl Name Position Address .
and e-mail address
Dream Castle, House- 7, | IP Phone: 09678200004
1 | Mrs. Noor -e-Hafza Chairman Road- 4, Gulshan-1, | Fax: 8802956562%-mail:
Dhaka- 1212. noor.hafza@sonalilife.com
mrérﬁi'm'eFargﬁgzmr of | 7, Rajuk  Avenue, | IP Phone: 09678200004
2 . Director Motijheel C/A, Dhaka - | Fax: 88029565629
Rupali Insurance Co. . "
Ltd.) 1000. E-mail: Info@rupaliinsurance.com
House- 808, Road 24, | IP Phone: 09678200004
3 | Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director Block- F, Bashundhara, | Fax: 88029565629
Dhaka. E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
House- 67, Road 07, IP Phone: 09678200004
4 | Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director Block- F, Banani, Fax: 8802956562%-mail:
Dhaka- 1213. info@sonalilife.com
. Vill: South Hangla, | IP Phone: 09678200004
5 :\:A;'ruqueShe'kh S Director Sultanpur, Fax: 88029565629
Brahmanbaria. E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
My  Hart, Sukrabad, | IP Phone: 09678200004
6 | Mr. Omar Khayum Director House- 8/1, Sukrabad, | Fax: 88029565629
Dhaka. E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb _ House- 9, Road 12,| IP Phone: 09678200004
7 Samdani Director Block- SW(B), Gulshan1, | Fax: 2.38(_)29565629”
Dhaka. E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
. IP Phone: 09678200004
8 Mrs. Hazera Hossain Director 18{8’ East Raja Bazar, Fax: 88029565629
Tejgaon, Dhaka. - .
E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
. . . 1858, Sarder Ali Road, | IP Phone: 09678200004
o Ll el Sl Director | \;osque Goli, Chapilish, | Fax: 88029565629
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Chittagong. E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
Independent | B h Ut 1 IP Phone: 09678200004
10 | Ms. Hanufa Akter Rikta P asnura, Fax: 88029565629
Director Choddogr am, -
E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
. IP Phone: 09678200004
11 Mr. . Quazi Independent Sout h . Rup Fax: 88029565629
Moniruzzaman Director Rupgonj Nar o .
E-mail: info@sonalilife.com
H-1 8 .-3 R
! IP Phone: 09678200004
12 | Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi Independent | POChakbazar, |, gs120565629
Director PSPanchl ash, E-mail: inf llis
Chittagong -mail: info@sonalilife.com
Mr. Mir Rashed Bin Chief 68/B D.I.T. Road, | IP Phone: 09678200004
13 Arnan Executive Malibagh Chowdhury | Fax: 88029565629
Officer (CC) | Para, Dhaka. Email: rashed.aman@sonalilife.com

(iv)

Names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers and e-mail addresses of the CFO,

Company Secretary, Legal Advisor, Auditors and Compliance Officer

Name

Position

Address

Telephone, Fax number and e -
mail

Mr. Shah Abu Khair

Chief Financial

68/B D.I.T. Road, Malibagh

IP Phone: 09678200004
Fax: 88029565629

ity ST ARG E-mail: khair@sonalilife.com
Mr. Md. Rafe-Uz- Company 68/B D.I.T. Road, Malibagh 'FZEh;;gé;:gGS;;’OOO“
Zaman Secretary Chowdhury Para, Dhaka '

E-mail: rafe.zaman@sonalilife.com

Mr. Imtiaz Moinul

Lawyer (Legal

LegalShelter.
Appollo Ispat Complex, 407,

Tel: 029110974, 028815572
Fax: 029126291

Islam Advisor) Tejgaon Industrial Area, E-mail: legalheelim@yahoo.com
Dhaka

Shiraz Khan Basak & . R.K. Tower (Level-10), 86, BIr | 1| a5 07 9635139

Auditor Uttam C.R. Datta Road, . .

Co. Email-shiraz_fca@yahoo.com
Dhaka.

Mr. Suian Talukder Compliance 68/B D.I.T. Road, Malibagh ::F;Ehggoeg:g;)::s?:zzgoom

- =ul Officer Chowdhury Para, Dhaka ’

E-mail: sujan.talukder@sonalilife.coj

(v) Names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, contact person, website addresses and
e-mail addresses of the issue manager:

Managers to the Issue

Name

Telephone, Fax number,
E-mail and Web.

ICB Capital Management
Limited

Address Contact person
Green City Edge
(5th & 6th Floor) Shukla Das
. Chief Executive
89 Kakrail Officer
Dhaka-1000.

Tel: +880-2-8300421,
8300395,8300555, 8300367
FAX: +88 02 8300396
E-mail: info@icml.com.bd
Web: www.icml.com.bd

Agrani Equity &
Investment Limited

(4tfloor)

Swantex bhaban

9/l , Motijheel C/A,
Dhaka- 1000.

Ahmed Yousuf Abbas
Chief Executive
Officer

Tel: +880-2- 95666709568668
FAX: +88 02-9568668

E-mail: info@agraniequity.com
Web: www.agraniequity.com

Registrar to the Issue

N/A
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(&) The names of the credit rating agencies from which credit rating has been obtained;

Name of the Credit Rating Agency

Rating Date

Argus Credit R ating Services Ltd.

07 September, 2020

(b)The details of all the credit ratings obtained for the issue and issuer;

Rating Type Corporate/Entity
: : . . . . Long Term Short Term
Credit Rating Status(Claim Paying Ability Rating) AT ST

Publishing Date

07 September, 2020

Validity of Rating

06 September, 2021

(c) The Rationale or description of the rating so obtained, as furnished by the credit rating agency;

Rating Rationale

Key Rating Drivers:
We are assigning a long -term rating of "A+" and a short -term rating of "ST -2" to Sonali Life

1

Insurance Company Limited ( her ei nafter

OSLI QLG

or Ot he

SLICL is a new generation insurance company in Bangladesh with diversified product and

service portfolio. The company-started business in 2013 and as a new generation insurance

company it has been promoting Systemic marketing policy. Hence, offering a diversified
product and service portfolio with 14 different schemes. The company also offers Islamic
products and services such as Denmohar bima and Hajj bima with profits. SLICL has been

highly focused on its core business, life insurance business. Since inception, the company has

been running efficiently without having any subsidiary, which is uncommon among its peer

group. The company has captive customer base consisting of different national and
multinational compani es. The company is primarily staffed with professionals with long
experience, qualified insurance technocrats of international repute, and a team of highly

educated and skilled personnel. SLICL has some sophisticated software like Enterprise

Resource Planring Software (ERP). The ERP software has 24nodules in its interface such as:

©CoNoOA~AWNPE

el ol
WN RO

el
[N

Policy
Underwriting
Accounts

HRM

Agency
Payment
Commission
MIS

Policy Services

. Utilities

. Claims

. Chat Room

. Approval

. Asset Management
. Reinsurance
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16. Expenses

17. User Activity
18. Group Policy
19. Investment
20. Attendance
21. Maturity Claim
22. Page Access
23. Training

24. Loan

Last three years, SLICL has maintained a moderate balance sheet with adequate liquid
assets and low liabilities. Life insurance companies have various investment restrictions,
without prior permission from Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA) life
insurance companies cannot invest in any other assets besides FDR and Govt. bond. Hence,
most of the premium is generally kept in bank as FDR to support high claims paying ability.

o0 Cash &bank balance / Total assets: Historically, SLICL has maintained a high cash
&bank balance to total assets ratio, which is positive in our view. During the last
three years, the ratio demonstrates a decreasing trend. Between FY17FY18, the ratio
decreased from 50.35% to 41.76%. Subsequently, during FY18Y19, the ratio
decreased to 35.29%. Nenet, the ratio decreased 15.05 percentage points between
FY17 and FY19.

o Total liab ilities / Total equity: Historically, SLICL has maintained low total liabilities
to total equity ratio, which is positive in our view. Over the last three years, the ratio
demonstrates a fluctuating trend. Between FY17-FY18, the ratio decreased from
61.95%to 15.16%. Subsequently, during FY18FY19, the ratio further increased to
24.56%. Netnet, the ratio decreased 37.39 percentage points between FY17 and FY19.

o0 Yield on investment: Historically, SLICL has maintained good yield on investment
ratio, which is positive in our view. During the last three years, the ratio
demonstrates a fluctuating trend. Between FY17-FY18, the ratio decreased from 8.20%
to 6.55%. Subsequently, during FY18FY19, the ratio further increased to 7.65%. Net
net, the ratio decreased 055 percentage points between FY17 and FY19.

T SLICLGs 0seven days claim settl ement policyé

governance. Thus, the company does not carry any claims outstanding which is uncommon
among its peers. And SLICL settled all types of claim like death, maturity, surveillance,
surrender, PDAB and DIB on due date. Nevertheless, our research found that, during the last
three years, claim ratio is decreasing, which is positive in our view.

o Claims Ratio: Historically SLICL has maintained low claims ratio, which is positive
in our view. Between FY17 and FY19, SLICL's claims ratio demonstrates a fluctuating
trend. During FY17-FY18, claims ratio of SLICL decreased from 8.52% to 8.45%.
Subsequently, the ratio increased to 11.67% in FY19, which is driven by efficient
customer pool management (low claims) and target customer selection (high
premium). Net -net, SLICL's claims ratio increased 3.15 percentage points between
FY17 and FY19.

o Net premium / Total income: Historically, SLICL has maintained high net premium

to total income ratio, which is positive in our view. This means, the company is
highly focused in its core business, life insurance business. During the last three
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years, the ratio demonstrates a fluctuating trend. Between FY17FY18, the ratio
increased from 91.27% to 94.15%. Subsequently, during FY1&Y19, the ratio
decreased to 92.81%. Nenet, the ratio increased 154 percentage points between
FY17 and FY19.

ACRSL Research remains concerned about SLICL's expense ratio over the last three years.
SLICL has maintained a high expense ratio over the last three years, which is negative in our
view. Our analysis suggests that this is due to maintaining high marketing expenses over the
period. During the FY17-FY18 period, expense ratio decreased from 52.61% to 46.07%.
Subsequently, during the period of FY18-FY19, the ratio increased to 52.15%. Nenet, the
ratio decreased 046 percentage points between FY17 and FY19.

Historically, the company has maintained a decreasing trend of 36th month persistency
ratio, this ratio is a critical factor in the viability and success of insurance companies. For the
year FY17, SLICL's persisency ratio stood 97.88%, Nevertheless, during FY18, the ratio
decreased to 95.58%. which is below fromits peer. Low persistency ratio indicates inability to
retain customers; higher is better.

ACRSL Research has a positive long-term outlook on Bangl adesho&s | nasurance
view that is driven by rising income levels, steady remittance, rapid urbanization, and
expected overall economic growth.

o | DRADGS compl et e guideline wi || be a mi |l esto

Bangladesh. IDRA is preparing insurance business guidelines and all the necessary

regulations. When these rules and regulations will be implemented, then operation of

insurance business will become more efficient and transparent just like banks now.

IDRA is planning to provide cen tral software where all the insurance companies

(head office and all branches) will be able to use it simultaneously. Therefore, IDRA

can monitor all transaction easily and can solve any discrepancy in a fast manner.

This will be beneficial for all in long -term.

o0 Increase in stock market exposure during this bear market would be a good
strategy for long -term investment. In this bearish trend, it is easy to buy good
companies® share at a cheap price. By now all
the stock market collapse. Therefore, in future, in good economic condition when
economic activity will increase, the stock market is expected to get back into track
and show bullish trend. Then these investments will provide good return in form of
capital gain and dividend.

o The GDP of our country is increasing than the previous years which results in
increase of per capital income. So, this growing GDP and income holds bright
prospects for insurance companies. The major problem is the incapability of
our people to pay the premium charged by the insurance companies. With the
growth in the income, more and more people are now willing to take an insurance
policy for safeguarding themselves from any danger.

o There are a big opportunity lies ahead for the insurance companies as the
population of our country are increasing day by day . Although most of people of
our country live under extreme poverty level and want to avoid insurance policy
number of potential policyholde rs in Bangladesh is growing with growth of the
population. There is somewhat relationship between growing populations with the
number of public vehicles. As we know all public vehicle must have an insurance
policy. So,growing population also increase the motor insurance too. That is growth
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in population opens greater scope for every kind of insurance business that results in
growing prospect for insurance companies.

People are now much more conscious about their safety. So,they are encouraged to
take an insurance policy for making their life free from any unexpected occurrence.

Increase in literacy rate is helping predominantly to create awareness among the
people regarding taking insurance policy. Besides this insurance companies are also
trying to eradic ate the negative attitude of people towards the insurance company by
organizing various programs such as seminars, programs including social

responsibilities etc.

Micro insurance can be a great prospective area for the insurance business in our
country . Most of the people of our country are unable to have costly and long-term
insurance policies. Micro insurance can be provided to individual personnel or to
small business owners against little insurance premiums and with easy terms and
conditions. When they will afford to minimize their risks at a lower price, they will
take that opportunity and they will become to get used to it. This can cover a huge
portion of the society who can be a prospective target market for this business.

Insurance companies can usually make more profit from investment activities than
from their regular insurance business. The private insurance companies are
realizing this fact and playing role in the financial market. Insurance companies are
making large investment in government b onds, ICB projects and in private sector
business. There are opportunities to enhance profit through effective and efficient
money management by employing capable and experienced personnel. Scope of
investment expansion persists in the areas leasing, houshg, health and money
market.

Insurance is not just a tool of risk coverage. It is also an attractive instrument of
savings. The mixture of risk coverage with savings gives the opportunity for
innovative product designing which means service diversificatio n. In a dynamic
insurance market, one can expect to see new products being promoted at regular
intervals. So far very little efforts have been taken to innovative and introduce need
oriented insurance services in response to existing threats. The prospectof the
insurance business in various sectors that affect our economy can be differentiated in
the following way.

The economy of Bangladesh is predominantly an agrarian one, with most people
engage in farming and fishing . The uncertainty of agriculture due to crop failure
caused by climate variation, drought, cyclone, flood and pests affects farmer income
as well as government revenue. Furthermore, in the last few years commercialization
has occurred in some sections of the agricultural sector. Increase ininvestment in the
agricultural sector is creating a new opportunity for insurance industry. Various
agricultural insurance services are becoming common these days. Demand for
insurance protection against crop loans, livestock loans, fisheries loans and
equipment loans are also increasing day by day.

Nowadays in Bangladesh, the SME plays a important role in the economic
development . But they are deprived from taking loans from bank for large amount. If
insurance business focuses this section inBangladesh, they are able to contribute
more in the economy. Thus, insurance business has a bright prospect in business
sector in a developing country like Bangladesh.
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ACRSL remains concerned over the near-to-intermediate term about Bangladesh
Company6s e xhp maunance sedton Wé have a long-term positive outlook on
Bangl adeshds I nsur anto-mternediatet term, conogmns, based ®ra r
following analysis:

0 A vast majority of people especially in rural areas are left outside the insurance
coverage. This mainly results from the unawareness among the people. Even a large
portion of people don6t have the minimum
the benefits from the insurance policy and a great number of people believe that
insurance business is nothing but cheating and assume that insurance policy is
unnecessary. This negative attitude from the people is lessening the importance of
absorbing insurance policy in a large extent.

0 Most of the insurance companies in our country are located in urb an areas and
there are few branches in rural areas. They think that they might have better scope
for performing their business, as the economic condition of the urban is better than
the rur al areas. They donot t hi nk rdsibeain t
rural areas and if branches are expanded in rural areas then the business can thrive if
proper motivation policy is taken to aware the mass people of the rural areas. Thus,
this centralization policy acts as an obstruction for the growth of insur ance business
in our country.

0 Bangladesh is one of the poorest countries in the world and most of the people in
this country live under extreme poverty level . All of these people fight hard to earn
their livelihood and are marginal in relation to the expe nditure with the income. It is
quite impossible for them to save some money for future need. Therefore, they are
quite unable to give the amount to the insurer which is called as premium and
regarded as safety or precautionary measures against any accident The number of
people who can bear the premium to the insurance company is very few in regard to
those mentioned above. Therefore, the overall poor economic condition is creating
obstacle to flourish the insurance business in Bangladesh.

0 Most of the insurance companies of our country are facing financial problems.
Recently government is trying to take initiative to close some of the insurance
companies because they are not maintaining the minimum standards. They are
investing their money in poor secur ities and business, which is vulnerable regarding
getting back the money with profit. As a result, most of the insurance companies are
suffering from loss years after years and for poor financial condition, the insurance
companies are also unable to expandtheir branch which is a barrier for the growth of
insurance business in Bangladesh.

o Growing cost of business is another problem that insurance companies are facing
now a day. They urge that government tax, house rent, utility, commission fee,
stationeries are growing day by day. But their businesses are not growing so fast with
that rate. Besidesthis, the policyholders are not willing to pay too much premium
with growing cost that is hampering the strategies of insurance companies. So,they
are facing difficulties in running their business efficiently.

o Lack of surveillance from government ministry encourages many insurance
companies to follow some unethical practices like make harassment to policyholder
and showing less in the financial statement. This not only destroying the reputation
of the well -known insurance companies but also creates negative impact in the mind
of the people about insurance. Besides this government sometimes, impose some
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conflicting rules and regulation without discussing with insu rance companies
governing body. It creates conflict among insurance companies with government and
Act, as one of the main hindrances of growing insurance business.

Insurance companies perform their activities by recruiting marketing agent and

they try to convince the people to take a policy. Most of the cases the agents are not

properly trained and they do not know the right process to catch potential people to
make their policyholders . Therefore, these field level agents are unable to fulfill their
target and Act, as a constraint in the insurance business.

Spread of insurance business in Bangladesh failed for lack of proper training by
the employees specially the field employees of insurance companies. Still there is not
enough training center to provide proper training regarding insurance activities for
the officials of insurance company. Though there is one insurance training center in
Bangladesh it totally failed to achieve its target in insurance field.

Another main problem in the country is that the  media is unconcerned to send the
right message regarding insurance to the people. As a result, a large portion
of populati on is completely unaware about the insurance policy. Another problem is
that the insurance company does not provide adequate informatton i n t he
websites, which can fulfill the queries of their potential customers and satisfy
themselves to buy an insurance policy.

Some insurance companies create harassment on the policyholders or sometimes
on the dependents of the policyholders when they want back their money after
death or maturity . The insurance companies show different causes in order to make
delay to return back the money at expected time. Sometimes they are eager to pay
less than the desired amount by creating various circumstances such as they try to
say that the disaster of the subject matter of the policy is not responsible due to their
activities. Besidesthis, some field officials also create some illegal acts. They often try
to give false information to the people for buying a policy. And these kinds of illegal
acts create bad reputation to the insurance companies and hindrance the overall

insurance business. Those who are harassed by the insurance companies discourage

other not to take an insurance policy Lack of motiv ation program towards public.

To take an insurance policy there are great number of rules and regulations which
must be compelled by the insured person. And into those rules a vast number of
complexities is present there. Therefore, the people are discouraged to take insurance
policy because they think that the complexities will create extra pressure on their
mind, which may hamper other jobs.

Special Note: At the time of publication of this credit rating report by ARGUS Credit Rating Services
Limited, audited financial statements until FY19 (ending December 31) and unaudited financial

Q2FY20 (ending June 30) were available. Projections for FY20 and FY21 were arrived after taking into

consideration subsequent events up to the date of reporting, management feedback, and industry

insights.
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(d) Observations and risk factors stated in the credit rating report;
Business Risk Analysis
World Economic Outlook

Global Financial Stability Overview: Markets in the Time of COVID -19:

The corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic poses unprecedented health, economic and financial stability
challenges. Following the COVID -19 outbreak, the prices of risk assets collapsed and market volatility
spiked, while expectations of widespread defaults led to a surge in borrowing costs . Several factors
amplified asset price moves: previously overstretched asset valuations, pressures to unwind
|l everaged tr ad e ssheetadonstrairds and detbriarhtiamirc rearket liquidity. Emerging
market economies experienced the sharpest reersal of portfolio flows on record. As a result, financial
conditions tightened at an unprecedented speed. Decisive monetary, financial, and fiscal policy
actions aimed at containing the fallout from the pandemic managed to stabilize investor sentiment in
late March early April, with markets paring back some of their losses.

A further tightening of financi al conditions may expc
test the resilience of financial institutions. Asset managers may face further outflows and may be

forced to sell assets into falling markets. Distress may rise among leveraged firms and households.

Emerging and frontier markets may face challenging external funding conditions, rising rollover

risks, and increased incidence of debt redructurings. Although banks have more capital and liquidity

than in the past, have been subject to stress tests, and are supported by central bank liquidity

provision, their resilience may be tested in some countries in the face of large market and credit

losses. Wideranging fiscal, monetary, and financial policies, as well as strong international

cooperation, remain essential to safeguard economic and financial stability and to prevent the

emergence of adverse macrefinancial feedback loops.

Risky Credi t Markets: Interconnecting the Dots:

Risky corporate credit markets have expanded rapidly since the global financial crisis. The role of
non-bank financial institutions has increased, and the system has becomemore complex and opaquer.
This chapter maps out the financial ecosystem of these markets and identifies potential
vulnerabilities, which include weaker credit quality of borrowers, looser underwriting standards,
liquidity risks at investment funds, and increased interconnectedness. On the positive sid e, the use of
financial leverage by investors and direct exposures of banks which were crucial amplifiers during
the global financial crisis have declined. Run risks have lessened in some segments because of a
prevalence of long-term locked-in capital in t he private debt and collateralized loan obligation (CLO)
markets. In an illustrative severe adverse scenario, losses on risky credit exposures at banks are
estimated to be manageable, in aggregate, although losses at a few large banks could be substantial.
However, losses at nonbank financial institutions could be high. Given the now -limited role played
by banks, this could impair credit provision in these markets and make a recession more severe. The
corona virus (COVID -19) crisis, which has resulted in price declines in risky credit markets of about
two -thirds of the severity of the global financial crisis through late March. Policymakers should now
Act, decisively to contain the economic fallout of COVID -19 and support the flow of credit to firms.
Once the crisis is over, they should assess the sources of market dislocations and tackle the
vulnerabilities that have been unmasked by this episode.

Emerging and Frontier Markets: Managing Volatile Portfolio Flows:

The dramatic reversal of emerging market portfolio flows following the global spread of corona virus
(COVID -19) highlights the challenges of managing volatile portfolio flows and risks they may pose to
financial stability. A prolonged period of low interest rates had encouraged both borrowers and
lenders to take on more risk. Surges of portfolio inflows into riskier asset markets contributed to the
buildup of debt and, in some cases, resulted in stretched valuations. This chapter quantifies the
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sensitivities of different types of portfolio flows and the associated cost of funding to global and
domestic factors during onormalé times as wel/l as du
suggests that both bond and equity flows are much more sensitive to global financial conditions

during periods of extreme flows than in normal times, while domestic fundamentals may matter

incrementally more for equities and local currency bond flows. Furthermore, greater foreign investor

participation in local currency bond markets that lack adequate depth can gre atly increase the

volatility of bond yields. Dealing with immediate capital outflow pressures calls for using reserves to

reduce excessive volatility, deploying capital flow management measures, and preparing for long -

term external funding disruptions.

Banking Sector:

Profitability has been a persistent challenge for banks in several advanced economies since the global

financial crisis. While monetary policy accommodation has helped sustain economic growth during

this period and has provided some support for bank profits, very low interest rates have compressed

banksd net interest margins (the difference between
liabilities). Looking beyond the immediate challenges faced by banks as a result of the corona virus

(COVID-19) outbreak, a persistent period of low interest rates is likely to put further pressure on bank

profitability over the medium term. A simulation exercise conducted for a group of nine advanced

economies indicates that a large fraction of their banking sectors, by assets, may fail to generate

profits above their cost of equity in 2025. Once immediate challenges recede, banks could take steps to

mitigate pressures on profits, including by increasing fee income or cutting costs, but it may be

challenging to fully mitigate profitability pressures. Over the medium term, banks may seek to

recoup lost profits by taking excessive risks. If so, vulnerabilities could build in the banking system,

sowing the seeds of future problems. Authorities can implement a number of policies to help mitigate

vulnerabilities arising from excessive risk taking and ensure an adequate flow of credit to the

economy, including the removal of structural impediments to bank consolidation, the incorporation

of a low-interest-rate-e nvi r on me nt scenari o on banksd risk assessr
of macro prudenti al policies to tame banks® incentive

Banks globally have more and better-quality cap -ital, hold more liquid assets, and borrow less from

short-term markets than they did before the global financial crisis. This means that, on aggregate, the

banking sector is better prepared to confront losses and liquidity stresses. The resilience of banks,

however, may be tested in some countries in the face of the sharp slowdown in economic activity

resulting from the COVID -19 pandemic and the associated, necessary containment measures,

especially if the downturn turns out to be more severe and lengthier than currently anticipated.

Profitability is a concern because it affects bank resilience. While a very high level of profitability

could indicate excessive risk taking, low profits mean that it takes longer for banks to build capital

against unexpected | osses. Sl ower capital accumul at i
support the economy and their ability to absorb shocks, such as mark-to-market losses on their

investments or credit losses on loans extended to households and firms. Consistently weak

profitability i where the ex post return on equity is below the ex ante cost of equity capital (the return

that shareholders require)ii also makes it more difficult for banks to raise new capital from th e

market. This last factor provides a useful benchmark for profitability. Banks with a return on equity

below the cost of equity can be said to have an insufficient level of profitability. In this chapter, the

cost of equity is measured as theratoofatank 6s return on -t-gook ratip (thiso t he p
formulation is based on the Gordon growth model. While this market -implied cost of equity varies

over time, the median for each region has ranged from 8 percent to 14 percent since 2013.

50



Prospectus of SLICL

A decline in interest rates can affect bank profitability through four main channels.

1 Changes in net interest margins: The replacement of maturing loans by new ones issued at
lower interest rates, along with a reprising of bank deposits and other funding instrumen ts,
affects banksd net i nt er &dhe yeananmmgdiately aftér thé eéuroBet we e n
area debt crisisi and 2015, interest rates on deposits fell at a faster rate, on average, than rates
on loans, helping cushion the impact on net interest margins. After 2015, however, deposit
rates flattened out while interest rates on loans continued to fall. This dynamic led to a fall in
net interest margins in many countries.

1 Declines in loan loss provisions: Low interest rates can stimulate economic activity.
Continued accommodative monetary policy including asset purchase programs, forward
guidance and negative policy ratesfi has been crucial in supporting the global economic
recovery over the past decade and is playing a key role in responding to the COVID-198
related challenges currently faced by the global economy. A more dynamic economy benefits
households and firms by increasing their incomes and profits while, at the same time, lower
rates reduce their interest burdens. These two factors tend to reduce borrone r s 6@ pr obabi | it
default, enabling banks to lower their provisions against expected loan losses.

9 Higher credit growth: Low interest rates and higher economic activity stimulate credit
growth, resulting in higher revenues for a given level of net interest margins. However, this
would not mechanically result in higher return on assets, unless the expansion takes place
through a shift to customer loans from lower yielding securities and interbank assets. Higher
credit growth, never the -less, could lead to an increase in return on equity if the expansion in
assets is accompanied by an increase in leverage.

1 Higher noninterest income: A more dynamic economy could also result in higher
noninterest income (for example, through fees) if some activities, such as mergers and
acquisitions, become more prevalent . fAgaodgoher sour
their securities portfolios fi could also increase when rates decline, as the latter would lead to
a rise in asset prices

Climate Change: Physical Ris k and Equity Prices

Disasters as a result of climate change are projected to be more frequent and more severe, which
could threaten financial stability. The impact of climate change physical risk on global equity
valuations to assess this threat. The chaper shows that the impact of large disasters on equity
markets, bank stocks, and nordlife insurance stocks has generally been modest over the past 50 years
High levels of insurance penetration and sovereign financial strength can help preserve financial
stability in the face of climatic disasters. The chapter does not find those aggregate equity
valuationsfi as of 2019 reflect the predicted changes in physical risk under various climate change
scenarios, which suggests that investors do not pay sufficient attention to climate change risks. Better
disclosure of exposures to climatic disasters and stress testing for financial firms can help preserve
financial stability and should complement policy measures to mitigate and adapt to climate change.

Bangladesh Economy

Bangl adeshds economic freedom score is 56. 4, making i
Its overall score has increased by 0.8 point, led by a higher score for property rights. Bangladesh is

ranked 29th among 42 countries in the AsiadPacific region, and its overall score is well below the

regional and world averages. The country has benefitted from the outsourcing of production to places

where it can be done in a more costeffective way. The ready-made garments (RMG) industry is

labour intensive and labour is available in Bangladesh in abundance at a cheap price. The abundance

of labour has also made Bangladesh a major labour exporting country, bringing valuable foreign
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exchange. It also helps in the balance of payment situation. The poltical stability in Bangladesh in the

last decade and propitious circumstances brought on by globalization has resulted in very fast
economic growth in the country. Bangl adeshds GDP gro
percent. This was happening at a time when economic growth in rest of the world was slowing down.

However, this fast economic growth has been disrupted by the outbreak of the COVID -19 pandemic.

It now appears that Bangladesh is facing a major economic crisis in the making caused bythe Covid -
19 pandemic. After a brief reopening of the economy, the country now has reverted to 8 har d 6
lockdowns in various places to deal with the Covid -19 pandemic amid demands from certain sections
of the population to do so.

But lockdowns are not sustainable for the time that will be required to develop a vaccine. Also,
lockdowns are not feasible for a country like Bangladesh if people cannot be provided with the basic
necessities of life. More importantly, it would bring the economy to an almost grindi ng halt which
will cause a significant blow to the economy having crippling effects on the lives of people, especially
working people and business enterprises across the country. In fact, the economy is now almost
coming to a grinding halt with debilitatin g effectson all sectors of the economy thus threatening
millions of livelihoods in Bangladesh.

While the government is striving to contain the virus, emphasis should be directed more to augment
immunity. Given the resource availability and a weak and ina dequate healthcare system to deal with

the pandemic, Bangladesh may default into building up some kind of 6 her d i msoumoret yv' ,
people become immune to the virus, thus reducing transmission. This can be done by managing

rather than defeating the virus e nabling the country to begin to open up.

In fact, epidemics of the size of Covid-19 have huge economic impacts in terms of managing the
health crisis and containing the virus while trying to keeps the economy functioning.According to the
Bangladesh Bureauof Statistics (BBS), 20.5 per cent of the population live below the poverty line that
is about 34 million people and 85.1 per cent of work forces are employed in the informal sector that is
about more than 50 million people. Most of these workers in the i nformal sector are also unemployed.
Now the pandemic has further worsened their employment prospects. It is now estimated that the
pandemic has rendered 80 per cent workers unemployed in the informal sector. Only 6 million people
are employed in the formal sector, largely in manufacturing.

Over the last decade, the economy has been growing at around 7 per cent per annum, yet 20 per cent
of the population earn less than US$5.00 a day, 9.2 per cent of employed in the country earn less than
US$1.90 a day andonly 15 per cent of Bangladeshi workers earn over US$6.00 a day. This is the pre
pandemic employment and wages situation in the country. Now the situation has worsened
significantly.

Nearly 10 million Bangladeshis are working in foreign countries, mostly in the Gulf countries. Now
the depressed oil prices affecting the Gulf States and lockdowns imposed in Europe since April are
already causing serious economic slowdown in these countries having a negative impact on
expatriate Bangladeshi workers abroad.

On May, 9, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared that the pandemic situation globally was
‘worsening'. Amid this worsening global pandemic situation, the World Bank (WB) in its updated
Global Economic Prospects Reportprojected that the global economy would contract 5.2 per cent this
year (2020) and suggested a further downward revision was possible. That will cause the deepest
recession since a 13.8 per cent global economic contraction in 19486 at the end of the World War II.

Economic slowdown in Europe and North America is of particular concern for Bangladesh as these
are the principal markets for Bangladesh's principal export product -- readymade garments (RMG).
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These two regionsare also expected to continue to slow down at least for next six months or more
and that has implications for 4 million workers in the RMG industry in Bangladesh.

Also, RMG generates closeto $30 billion in exports accounting for 83 per cent of total exports and 14
per cent of GDP. Now the industry is in deep crisis as exports plummet due to the cancellation of
purchase orders from Europe and North America. According to the Financial Express of May 9,
merchandise exports dropped by 61.57 per cent equivalent to $1.46 billion in May this year compared
to the same month lastyear (2019).

Remittances from Bangladeshi workers accounted for $15.5 billion to the national economy in 2018.
Now host countries in Europe and the Middle East are themselves facing economic slowdown
causing large-scale layoffs of migrant worker. Most o f them are now returning home to Bangladesh
and on return heading towards their country homes exacerbating the health crisis.

Bangladesh has a greater reliance on trade relative tathe other countries in the region, making the
country more exposed to charges in the global economic environment due the current pandemic. The
impact on the Bangladesh economy due to fall in export earnings from RMG and other exports and
alsofall in remittances is likely to be very significant. Importantly, foreign exchange ear ningsof the
country are expected to drop by about 25 per cent which in monetary terms is estimated atmore than
$4 billion.

In early March, the Asian Development Bank (ADB) estimated that the Bangladesh economy would
contract by 1.1 per cent wiping$3.02 bilionoff its GDP. The World Bank (WB) and the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) predicted a decline of just over 2 per cent during the current fiscal year. Their
prediction appears to be fairly realistic given the rising numbers Covid -19 infections and fatalities the
country is currently experiencing and the reimposition of lockdowns. The Economic Intelligence Unit
(EIV) estimate is even direr, predicting a decline of 4 per cent of Bangladesh GDP next year.

Bangladesh is now categorized as a least developed country (LDC). But the last three decades have
been marked by the country achieving significant economic growth and poverty reduction. In recent
time, the rate of growth has been hovering around 7-8 per cent per annum which has propelled
Bangladesh to be eligible to become a developing country by next year (2021). Now the economic
downturn caused by the Covid -19 pandemic is likely to put that aspiration on hold.

Faced with the looming economic crisis, on March 25, Prime Minister Sheikh Hasina announced a
bailout/stimulus package of Tk 50 billion ($600 million) tosupport export-oriented industries. The
Prime Minister on April, 5, further announced another stimulus package of TK 67.7 billion. Taken
together these stimulus packages account for about 3 per cent of GDP. The IMF also provides a loan
of $732 million. But even well -designed stimulus packages can be rendered ineffective, if Bangladesh
cannot overcome and go past the allpervasive systemic barriers in utilising the stimulus packages.So
far, there have been no runs on basic essentials of life in Bangladesh as happened in many other
countries. Bangladesh also has greater social resilience than richer countries. People in Bangladesh, in
general, rely lesson the state and have far more experience in dealing with natural disasters. Also,
strong social bonds provide help to people to weather through difficult times. Bangladesh is also food
self-sufficient largely helped by high tariff barriers. The country al so has a long-established
government supported food distribution system geared for the poor. As such makes the country more
resilient to disruptions in global food supply chains.

Although health crisis may last for a while, the economic crisis that the pandemic has caused will

outlive it and last for several years, may even last for a decade or more. Areport published by the
International Labour Organisation (ILO) last month (May, 2020) concluded thatthe economic effect of
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the pandemic was delivering a 'triple shock' to young people by destroying their jobs, disrupting their
education and training and creating obstacles to seek or move between jobs.

In fact, the pandemic is creating a ‘'lockdown generation' of young people. That made Director
General of the ILO, Guy Ryder to comment 'if we do not take significant and immediate action to
improve the situation, the legacy of the virus could be with us for decades'. The prognosis is rat her
quite dire. There is now a growing fear that Bangladesh may risk a massive reversal of economic
gains made over the last three decades, more alarmingly an entire generation may be lost, if not in
lives, but in opportunities and dignity.

Economic downturns (recessions) are fundamentally cyclical, not structural, yet the boundary
between the two can be blurred. Quite often a cyclical downturn can rebound with a structural

overhang causing households' willingness and ability to spend or borrow being struc turally impaired

as was the casewith the US economy as it recovered from the GFC. This was equally true of
businesses to invest.

Also, recessions are caused by demand deficiencies, but this time it has been caused by the pandemic
leading to a supply shock negatively impacting both household and business expenditures.The
current economic crisis is still in its early stage, but the fear is that it will be as severe as the 'Great
Depression' of 192933, affecting the global economy. Bangladesh is now facedwith battling both the
pandemic and its economic fallout. In such a situation economic risks are not only limited to short
term, but also extend to major future productivity losses both through labour and capital. The
economic crisis islikely to trigger a series of corporate and household debt defaults turning into a
financial crisis as well.

Bangladesh hasalready initiated fiscal responses to mitigate the emerging crisis but the stimulus
packages do not look robust enough to meet the current needs. Bandadesh now has a relatively low
debt/GDP ratio but that may reverse as output falls sharply and deficit grows. That may make the
government hesitant to undertake any robust stimulus initiatives.However, the national budget of
202021 has allocated TK386.88billion stimulus package (FE, June, 12). While business leaders
welcomed the budget, but they remain unconvinced about its implementation of the package (FE,
May 12). However, surprisingly there was no reason/s advanced for their scepticism.

Bangladesh is now facing a critical period in its economic history and there is not much space for
exercising fiscal prudence at this critical point in time. Fiscal policy will have to play a far more
decisive and significantrolein view of the fact that the scope for using monetary policy to stimulate
the economy has become ineffective despite falling real interest rates. As the economic recovery
process can turn out be along-drawn -out process, the government must continue with the fiscal
stimulus until recovery is a ssured.
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Financial Risk Analysis

Operating Performance Analysis

Gross premium growth of

Gross
premium | 108.48% | 66.35% | B | 19.60% | B | SoICL demonstrated an | oo
rowth increasing trend over the last
9 3 years
Net premium growth of
Netpremium |, og 4305 | 66.58% | B | 19.20% | B | SLICL demonstrated - an | oo
growth increasing trend over the last
3 years

Claims ratio of SLICL
Claims ratio 8.52% 8.45% | b | 11.67% | B | demonstrated a fluctuating Neutral
trend over the last 3 years

Expense ratio of SLICL
Expense ratio | 52.61% | 46.07% | b | 52.15% | B | demonstrated a fluctuating Neutral
trend over the last 3 years

Combined ratio of SLICL
61.36% | 54.66% | b | 64.11% | B | demonstrated  afluctuating Positive
trend over the last 3 years

Combined
ratio

Gross Premium

FY17 FY18 FY19
Gross Premium Growth 108.48% 66.35% 19.60%

Gross premium
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2017 2018 2019

1 Historical Trend: Bet ween FY17 to FY19, SLICL®s gross
trend. During the FY17-FY18 period, gross premium increased 66.35% YoY, from BDT 407.52
MN to BDT 677.91 MN. Subsequently, during the period of FY18-FY19, however, gross
premium increased 19.60% YoY, to BDT 810.78 MN in line with high number of new life
insurance policy.
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Looking forward: ACRSL has a positive
management assumes that their qualified marketing team will be able to increase its present

market share.

Claims Ratio

Prospectus of SLICL

bias on SLICLG®Ss
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Claims Ratio
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11.67%
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Claims ratio
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9 Historical Trend: Historically SLICL has maintained low claims ratio, which is positive in our
view. Between FY17 and FY19, SLICL's claims ratio demonstrates a fluctuatingrend. During

FY17-FY18, claims ratio of SLICL decreased from 8.52% to 8.45%. Subsequently, the
ratioi ncreased to 11.67% in FY19, which is driven by efficient customer pool management
(low claims) and target customer selection (high premium).

1 Looking forward: ACRSL

has a neutral

bi as

on SLI CLO®s

increasing gross premium the company should be able to diversify its risk based on regular

survey

and other risk management

tool s.

also affected by disaster, accident, and other natural causes, which are notoriously difficult to
predict.

Expense Ratio

FY17

FY18

FY19

Expense Ratio

52.61%

46.07%

52.15%

54.00% -
52.00% -
50.00% -
48.00% -
46.00% -
44.00% -
42.00%

Expense ratio

2017

2018

2019
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91 Historical Trend: ACRSL Research remains concerned aboutSLICL's expense ratio over the
last three years. Our analysis suggests that this is due to maintaining high marketing
expenses over the period. During theFY17-FY18 period, expense ratio decreased from 52.61%
to 46.0®6. Subsequently, during the period ofFY18-FY19, the ratio increased to 52.15%.

1 Looking Forward: ACRSL has a neutral bias on SLICLG6s exp
Given the increasing salaries & all owance expense
at a high rate compared to its peer group. Since we anticipate SLICL will make persistency in
life insurance business more, hence, it is likely that management expense will decrease from
these levels going forward.

Liquidity Analysis

Cash & bank balance

Cash & Bank to total assets of
Balance / Total 50.35% 41.76% | b| 35.29% | b | SLICL demonstrated a Neutral
Assets decreasing trend over

the last 3 years
Liquid asset to net
claim of SLICL
11.66x 10.97x | b| 8.49x | b | demonstrated a Neutral
decreasing trend over
the last 3 years
Overall liquidity of
Overall Liquidity 471x | 20.82x |B| 18.01x | p | SHICL demonstrated a ) o o)
fluctuating trend over

the last 3 years

Liquid Asset /
Net Claim

Cash & Bank Balance / Total Assets

Fyi17 FY18 FY19
Cash &bank balance / Total assets 50.35% 41.76% 35.29%

Cash & bank balance / Total assets

60.00% -

50.00% -

40.00% -

30.00% -

20.00% -

10.00% -

0.00% -
2017 2018 2019
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1 Historical Trend: Historically, SLICL has maintained a high cash &bank balance to total
assets ratio, which is positive in our view. During the last three years, the ratio demonstrates
a decreasing trend. Between FY17FY18, the ratio decreased from 50.35%to 41.76%.
Subsequently, during FY18-FY19, the ratio decreased to 35.29%. Nehet, the ratio decreased
15.05 percentage points between FY17 and FY19.

1 Looking Forward: ACRSL has a neutral bias on SLICLG6s <cast
ratio for FY20.Given | i fe insurance businessds wunpredictahb

reliably project SLICL8ds cash & bank balance.
be in a stable range and overall economic activity will increase in near future, it is like ly that
the company will increase its cash &bank balance from these levels going forward.

Overall Liquidity

FY17 FY18 FY18

Overall Liquidity 4.71x 20.82x 18.01x

Overall liquidity
25.0x -

20.0x -
15.0x -
10.0x -

5.0x -

0.0x -
2017 2018 2019

9 Historical Trend: Historically, SLICL has moderate performance inoverall liquidity ratio.
During the last three years, the ratio demonstrates a fluctuating trend. Between FY17-FY18,
the ratio increased from 4.71x to 20. 82x.Subsequently during FY18-FY19, the ratio of the
company slightly decreased to 18.01x.

1 Looking Forward: ACRSL has a neutral bias on SLICLG®Gs
Gi ven l'ife insurance businessds unpredictabl e
project SLI CL6s ovWer adrle ldggquumdiing trlmdati oSLI CLOG S
within a stable range in the near future. Hence, we are expecting SLICL to report a stable
overall liquidity ratio going forward.
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Balance Sheet Analysis
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Net premium / Net premium to total equityof SLICL
prem 2.08x 2.25x 2.69x B | demonstrated an increasing trend over | Neutral
Total equity
the last 3 years
Total liabilities / Total liabilities to total equity of SLICL
. 61.95% | 15.16% 24.56% | B | demonstrated a fluctuating trend over | Positive
Total equity
the last 3 years
Balance of funds Balance of funds to total assets of
44.49% | 63.52% 71.84% | B | SLICL demonstrated an increasing | Positive
|/ Total assets
trend over the last 3 years
Total liabilities / Total liabilities to total assets of SLICL
21.23% | 4.80% 5.55% | B | demonstrated a fluctuating trend over | Neutral
Total assets
the last 3 years
Total asset Total asset growth of SLICL
31.39% | 66.46% 40.18% | B | demonstrated an increasing trend over | Positive
growth
the last 3 years
Total Liabilities / Total Equity
FY17 FY18 FY19
Total liabilities / Total equity 61.95% 15.16% 24.56%
Total liabilities / Total equity
70.00% -
60.00% -
50.00% -
40.00% -
30.00% -
20.00% -
10.00% -
0.00% -
2017 2018 2019
9 Historical Trend: Historically, SLICL has maintained low total liabilities to total equity ratio,
which is positive in our view. Over the last three years, the ratio demonstrates a fluctuating
and overall, in decreasing trend. Between FY17FY18, the ratio decreased from 6195% to
15.16%. Subsequently, during FY18FY19, the ratio further increased to 24.56%. Netnet, the
ratio decreased 37.39 percentage points between FY17 and FY19.
1 Looking Forward: ACRSL a neutral bias on SLICL®&s tota
forFY19. We anti pate, SLICLds bank overdraft wi

increase in FY20, as we are expecting the company will be able to generate higher net
premium in the coming years.
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FY17

FY18

FY19

Balance of funds / Total assets

44.49%

63.52%

71.84%

Balance of Funds / Total assets

80.00% -
70.00% -
60.00% -
50.00% -
40.00% -
30.00% -
20.00% -
10.00% -

0.00% -

2017 2018 2019

9 Historical Trend: Historically, SLICL has maintained a sufficient balance of funds to total

assets ratio. During the last three years, the ratio demonstrates an increasing trend. Between
FY17-FY18, the ratio increased from 44.49% to 63.9%. Subsequently, during FY18-FY19, the
ratio increased to 71.84%. Netnet, the ratio increased 27.35 percentage point between FY17

and FY19.

1 Looking Forward: ACRSL

has a positive

bf fuads to otal aSétsIfa@@ L 0 s

FY20.We are assuming that SLICL will be able to report positive growth in net premium,
thus, balance of funds will increase. Therefore, we are expecting SLICL to report an
increasing balance of funds to total assets ratioin the near future.

Net premium / Total equity

Fy17

FY18

FY19

Net premium / Total equity

2.08x

2.25x

2.69x

Net premium / Total equity

3.00x -
2.50x ~
2.00x -
1.50x -
1.00x -
0.50x -

0.00x
2017 2018

2019
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1 Historical Trend: Historically, SLICL has maintained a low net premium to total assets ratio.
During the last three years, the ratio demonstrates an increasing trend. Between FY17FY18,
the ratio increased from 2.08x to 2.25x. Subsequently, during FY18FY19, the ratio increased
from 2.25x to 2.69x. Netnet, the ratio increased 0.61x between FY17 and FY19.

1 Looking Forward: ACRSL has a positive bias on SLICL&6s bal
FY20.We are assuming that SLICL will be able to report positive growth in net premium,
thus, balance of funds will increase. Therefore, we are expecting SLICL to report an
increasing balance of funds to total assets ratioin the near future.

Following details of underwriting:

(a) Thenames,addresses,telephonenumbers,fax numbers, contact persons and e -mail addresses of
theunderwriters and the amount underwritten by them

Name and Address of the Telephonenumbers,F ax numbers Amount in
Sl. . Contact person .
underwriter andE-mail BDT

ICB Capital Management Tel: +880:2-8300421, 8300395,
1 L2l l\(/‘fllie?rllzli(lgiug\?s s N0 66,500,000.00

Green City Edge (5th & 6th Floor), Officer FAX: +88 02 8300396 e

89, Kakrail, Dhaka-1000. E-mail: ceocmcl@accesstel.net;

Total 66,500,000.00

(b) Declaration by the Underwriters

Declaration by the Underwriter

We are the underwriter of the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited.
We underwrite totaling to BDT 66,500,000.00 (six crore sixtyfive lac) on a firm commitment basis. In
this connection, we hereby declare that:

We have sufficient resources as per the regulatory requirements to discharge our respective
obligations.

For Underwriter

Sd/-
(Shukla Das)
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Dhaka
Date: 16July 2020.

(c) Major Terms and Conditions of the Underwriting Agreements

1. In case of under-subscription in any category by up to 35% in an Initial Public Offer, the
undersubscribed portion of securities shall be taken up by the underwriter.

2. In case of failure to deposit the remaining amount by the eligible investors, the unsubs cribed
securities shall be taken up by the underwriter.

3. The issuer, in the event of under subscription, shall send notice to the underwriter(s) within
ten days of closure of subscription calling upon them to subscribe the securities and pay for
this in cash in full within fifteen days of the date of said notice and the said amount shall be
credited into securities subscription account within the said period. If payment is made by
Cheque/ Bank Draft by the underwriter it will be deemed that the underwriter  has not
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fulfilled his obligation towards his underwriting commitment under this agreement, until

such time as the Cheque/ Bank Draft has been enca
In any case within 7 (seven) days after the expiry of the aforesaid 15 (fifteen) days, the

Company shall send proof of subscription and deposit of money by the underwriter to the

Commission.

In the case of failure by the underwriter to pay for the shares under the terms mentioned
above, the said underwriter will not be elig ible to underwrite any issue, until such time as he
fulfils his underwriting commitment under this Agreement and also other penalties as may
be determined by the Commission may be imposed.

In the case of failure by the underwriter to pay for the shares wi thin the stipulated time, the
Company/issuer will be under no obligation to pay any underwriting commission under this
Agreement.

In the case of failure by the Company to call upon the underwriter for the aforementioned
purpose within the stipulated time, the Company and its Directors shall individually and
collectively be held responsible for the consequences and/or penalties as determined by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission under the law.

4. The Company shall pay to the underwriter an underwriting commission at the rate of 0.50%
of the amount underwritten hereby agreed to be underwritten by it.

(d) Capital Structure

(i) Authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital (hnumber and class of securities, allotment
dates, nominal price, issue pr ice and form of consideration):

Nominal

Particulars N, Elf CITEEN (AT Price/Face Iss_ue Amount in Tk.
Shares Dates** Price
Value*

Authorized Capital 100,000,000 Allotment 10.00 10.00| 1,000,000,00000
Issued, Subscribed 28,500,000 Datesare 10.00 10.00| 285,00,00000
andPaid-up capital given below
UGIEY [PETE)-p i 28,500,000 285,00,00000
before IPO
After IPO
To be issued as IPO 19,000,000 10.00 10.00| 190,000,000.00
Paid-up Capital after IPO 47,500,000 10.00 475,000,000.00

**The Company has raised its paid-up capital in following phases:

Particulars of Date of Mode of Consideration Nominal Issue Amount in
allotment allotment In Cash Other Bonus Price Price Tk.
than Cash Share

First (at the time 07.07.2013 | 18,000,000 - : 10- | 10/- | 180,000,00000

of incorporation)

Second 09.06.2018| 10,500,000 - - 10/ - 10/- | 105000,00000
28,500,000
Ordinary

Total Shares @Tk. 28,500,000 285,000,000.0(4
10.00 each
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(i) Size of the present Issue, with break -up (number of securities, description, nominal value and
issue amount):

_ Category O:\clj(i)nzfry Nominal Value/ Isgue Issug Amount
Particulars Face Value | Price in Tk.
Shares
Initial Eligible El Excluding Mutual Fund & CIS 30% 5700000
Public Investor(El) Mutual Fund & CIS 10% 1900000
offering | General GP excluding NRB 50% 95,000,000
through | Public (GP) 10.00 10.00
Fixed
Price NRB 10% 1900000
Method
Total 190,000,000

(i) Paid up capital before and after the present issue, after conversion of convertible instruments
(if any) and share premium accou nt (before and after the issue):

Particulars Amountin Tk.
Paid up capital before the presentissue (as on December 31, 2019 285000,00000
Paid up capital after the present issue 475,000,000.00

The Company has no

Paid up capital after conversion of convertible instruments (if any) Lo
convertible instrument

Share premium account before the present issue@s on December

31, 2019 N/A

Share premium account after the present issue N/A

(iv) Category-wise shareholding structure with percentage before and after the present issue and
after conversion of convertible instruments (if any)

The paid-up capital of the Company is Tk. 285,000,000.00. The Company intends tassue 19000,000
ordinary shares of TK. 10 each at an issue price of Tk10 through Initial Public Offering (IPO) totaling
Tk. 190,000,000 under fixed price method

Shareholding No of ordinary shares Percentage of holding

SL Category Pre-Issue IPO Post-Issue Pre-lssue Post-Issue

(a) (b) (at+b)
1 | Sponsors and 28,500,000 - 28,500,000  100% 60%
Directors*,**

2 | Institutional - 7,600,000 7,600,000 - 16%
3 | Public - 11,400,000 11,400,000 - 24%
Total 28,500,000 | 19,000,000 47,500,000 100% 100%

*Transferred asperBd Bd E@FaeDF a E.CEC HIBRA YD E B d $534€30000.031.50.026.18.54d ¢ Dz
12abEBEBR]

* BdBdE@FaDF a B, CECE R4 128089 d ¢ B30A.0000.031.50.026.18. 22D E Bd @4 & @ERE ¢ d
¢desbr EDEYPEER®BM & "), 2, EbEREFACJIEC DEFGQEEC 100D P d=z d
BAd¢EbBORBCB"" Q CEEdDad, 8¢ DIDEFdEBEBB2 BOQd e, g EDEZE, d
DEFdCJE¢ B DCCRE ECBDAEROBBECD ¢f
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The company has no convertible instruments as on the date of this prospectus.

Directors & Sponsors shareholding structure with percentage before and after the present issue is

as follows:
No. of Ordinary Shares Hold Percentage o Holding

Sl Name Category Pre-IPO Post-IPO Pre-IPO (%) | PostIPO (%)
1 | Noor-e-Hafza Director 1,160,000 1,160,000 4.07% 2.44%
2 | Fauzia Quamrun Tania Sponsor Shareholder 2,835,750 2,835,750 9.94% 5.96%
3 | Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd. Director 3,000,000 3,000,000 10.53% 6.32%
4 | Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury Sponsor Shareholder 2,130,000 2,130,000 7.47% 4.48%
5 | Sheikh Mohammed Danial Sponsor Shareholder 1,700,000 1,700,000 5.96% 3.58%
6 | Kamrun Nahar Director 1,100,000 1,100,000 3.86% 2.32%
7 | Maya Rani Roy Director 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
8 | Sheikh Omar Faruque Director 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
9 | Omar Khayum Director 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
10 | Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director 1,030,000 1,030,000 3.61% 2.17%
11 | Hazera Hossain Director 1,285,000 1,285,000 4.51% 2.71%

Hoda Ali Selim Ahmed .
12 Director 950,000 950,000 3.33% 2.00%

Mohamed
13 | Nargis Mahmuda Sponsor Shareholder 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
14 | Phowzia Khan Sponsor Shareholder 330,000 330,000 1.16% 0.69%
15 | Quazi Moniruzzaman Sponsor Shareholder 110,000 110,000 0.39% 0.23%
16 | Md. Nurun Nabi Sponsor Shareholder 312,000 312,000 1.09% 0.66%
17 | Hanufa Akter Rikta Sponsor Shareholder 475,000 475,000 1.67% 1.00%
18 | Ajit Chandra Aich Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
19 | Ishra Tahiyat Sponsor Shareholder 612,500 612,500 2.15% 1.29%
20 | Khair Mohammad Farookh Sponsor Shareholder 500,000 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
21 | Alamzeb Radin Ahmed Sponsor Shareholder 500,000 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
22 | Md. Mahbubzzaman Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
23 | Mifrah Zahir Sponsor Shareholder 40,000 40,000 0.14% 0.08%
24 | Fatema Zahir Majumder Sponsor Shareholder 60,000 60,000 0.21% 0.13%
25 | Md. Momin Hossain Sponsor Shareholder 50,000 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
26 | Mir Rashed Bin Aman Sponsor Shareholder 109000 109,000 0.38% 0.23%
27 | Mst. Fazlutunnessa Sponsor Shareholder 720,000 720,000 2.52% 1.52%
28 | Abdul latif manik Sponsor Shareholder 25,000 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
29 | Md. Borhan Uddin Sponsor Shareholder 25,000 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
30 | Mohammad Wasser | sponsor Shareholder 25,000 25,000 0.09% 0.05%

Hossain Rifat
31 | Saidun Nessa Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
32 | Kamrun Nahar Ahmed Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
33 | Gazi Badrujjaman Sponsor Shareholder 6,500 6,500 0.02% 0.01%
34 | Md. Alauddin Mia Sponsor Shareholder 35,000 35,000 0.12% 0.07%
35 | Md. Rafe-Uz-Zaman Sponsor Shareholder 55,000 55,000 0.19% 0.12%
36 | Kallol Barua Sponsor Shareholder 1,000 1,000 0.00% 0.00%
37 | Sujan Talukder Sponsor Shareholder 25,000 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
38 | Md. Golam Kibria Sponsor Shareholder 7,500 7,500 0.03% 0.02%
39 | Sheikh Md. Bodyuzzaman Sponsor Shareholder 40,000 40,000 0.14% 0.08%
40 | Md. Golam Mostofa Sponsor Shareholder 25,000 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
41 | MK Muhammad Miraz Sponsor Shareholder 23,000 23,000 0.08% 0.05%
42 | Moushumi Roy Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
43 | Md. Abdullah Hil Kafee Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
44 | Md. Asraful Islam Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
45 | Rajesh Aich Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
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Sl. Name Category No. of Ordinary Shares Hold Percentage d Holding

46 | Mostafa Golam Quddus Sponsor Shareholder 2,680,000 2,680,000 9.40% 5.6%%6
47 | Mostafa Quamrus Sobhan Sponsor Shareholder 300,000 300,000 1.05% 0.63%
48 | Tasnia Quamrun Anika Sponsor Shareholder 1,200,000 1,200,000 4.21% 2.53%
49 | Md. Fahad Bin Farooque Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
50 | Md. Shahed Hossain Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
51 | Md. Parvez Igbal Sponsor Shareholder 20,000 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
52 | Sume Sen Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
53 | Md. Shajidul Anwar Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
54 | S. M. Mohiuddin Faruquee Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
55 | Md. Mir Kadim Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
56 | Md. Shah Alam Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
57 | Md. Rafiqul Islam Sponsor Shareholder 15,000 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
58 | Md. Anowar Ho ssain Sponsor Shareholder 10,000 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
59 | Uttam Kumar Bhowmik Sponsor Shareholder 10,000 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
60 | Md. Alauddin Sponsor Shareholder 10,000 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
61 | Mir Ashiful Karim Sponsor Shareholder 9,500 9,500 0.03% 0.02%
62 | Md. Thamjidul Alam Sponsor Shareholder 7,500 7,500 0.03% 0.02%
63 | Fazlur Rahman Sponsor Shareholder 7,000 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
64 | Jannatul Sponsor Shareholder 7,000 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
65 | Md. Delwar Hossan Sponsor Shareholder 7,000 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
66 | Md.Golum Mostofa Sponsor Shareholder 6,000 6,000 0.02% 0.01%
67 | Md. Sahidur Rahman Sponsor Shareholder 5,500 5,500 0.02% 0.01%
68 | Sanwar Hosan Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
69 | Marina Sultana Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
70 | Md. Abdul Malik Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
71 | Sanjoy Chakraborty Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
72 | Md. Shahidur Rahman Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
73 | Nusrat Sarmin Smriti Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
74 | Md. Anowar Hossain Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
75 | Md Lokman Hossain Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
76 | Md. Wazed Al Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
77 | Md. Wahidul islam Sponsor Shareholder 5,000 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
78 | Polly rani sarker Sponsor Shareholder 4,000 4,000 0.01% 0.01%
79 | Abu Shahadat Dulal Sponsor Shareholder 4,000 4,000 0.01% 0.01%
80 | Anika Aziz Sponsor Shareholder 3,500 3,500 0.01% 0.01%
81 | Md. Mohinul Hoque Khan Sponsor Shareholder 3,500 3,500 0.01% 0.01%
82 | Mohammad Mizanul karim Sponsor Shareholder 3,000 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
83 | Bijoy Parsad Bhadra Sponsor Shareholder 3,000 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
84 | Arfin Badal Sponsor Shareholder 3,000 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
85 | Kohinoor Akther Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
86 | Kaium Ahamed Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
87 | Shah Faysal Mahamud Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
88 | Anannya Bhattacharjee Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
89 | Md. Mahir Ameer Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
90 | Bikash Chandra Biswas Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
91 | Labiba laila Sponsor Shareholder 2,000 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
92 | Avijit Sarkar Sponsor Shareholder 1,500 1,500 0.01% 0.00%
93 | Borhan Uddin Mozumder Sponsor Shareholder 1,000 1,000 0.00% 0.00%
94 | Zaed-Bin-Zahir Sponsor Shareholder 50,000 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
95 | Nadia Khalil Choudhury Sponsor Shareholder 500,000 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
96 | Mohammed Riyadh Ali Sponsor Shareholder 50,000 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
Total 28,500,000 28,500,000 100.00% 60%

abEBEBKE]
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Other than Directors & Sponsor Shareholdings:
There is no Shareholder other than the Directors & Sponsor shares.

(v) Where Shares have been issued for consideration in other than cash at any point of time,
details in a separate table, indicating the date of issue, persons to whom those are issued,
relationship with the issuer, issue price and whether any benefits have been accrued to the
issuer out of the issue;

The company has not issued any share in other than cash.

(vi) Where Shares have been allotted in terms of merger, amalgamation or acquisition details of
the scheme and shares allotted;

The Company has not allotted any shares in terms of any merger, amalgamation or acquisition
scheme.

(vii) Where the issuer has issued equity shares under one or more employee stock option schemes,
including the price at which such equity shares were issued;

The Company did not issue any equity shares under one or more stock option schemes to its
employees.

(Viii) If the issuer has made any issue of specified securities at a price lower than the issue price
during the preceding two years, specific details of the names of the persons to whom such
specified securities have been issued, relation with the issuer, reasons for such issue and the
price thereof

The issuer has not made any issue of specified securities at a price lower than the issue price during
the preceding two years.

(ixX) The decision or intention, negotiation and consideration of the issuer to alter the capital
structure by way of issue of specified securities in any manner within a period of one year
from the date of listing of the present issue

The Company has no such decision or plan, contract, hegotiation and consideration to alter its capital

structure by way of issue of specified securities in any manner within a period of one year from the
date of listing of the present issue.
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(x) The total shareholding of the sponsors and dire ctors in a tabular form, clearly stating the
names, nature of issue, date of allotment, number of shares, face va lue, issue price,

consideration , date when the shares were made fully paid up, percentage of the total pre- and
post-issue capital, the lock in period and the number and percentage of pledged shares, if any,
held by each of them
Date of
Allotment Face
Number &
Sl Nature of UL N No. Of VIS Consider Pre- Post Lock in % of
Name date when & A IPO(% IPO( .
No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of
the shares Issue ) %)
. shares
were made Price
fully paid up
09.06.2018 | 1,767,500 No Share
1 | Noor_E-Hafsa Ordinary | 25.07.2019 | (1,767,500) | 10 Cash | 4.07% | 2.44% | 3Years | 'SPledged
(Sponsor Director) by the
Total 1,160,000 company
K.M Farookh 17.07.2013 3,000,000
(Noml_nee of 09.06.2018 1,566,000 No Share
Rupali Insurance 25.07.2019 (1,566,000) is pledged
2 | Company Ordinary 10 Cash 10.53% | 6.32% | 3 Years by the
Limited).
(Sponsor & Total 3,000,000 company
Director)
17.07.2013 2,450,000 No Sh
Fauzia Quamrun 09.06.2018 | 1,936,500 o ole g a;z
3 | Tania  (Sponsor | Ordinary | 25.07.2019 (75,000) 10 Cash | 9.94% | 5.96% | 3 Years E thge
Shareholder) 05.10.2020 | (1,480,000) y
company
Total 2,831,500
Shafia Sobhan 17.07.2013 1,930,000 No Share
Chowdhury . 09.06.2018 1,700,000 0 0 is pledged
4 (Sponsor Ordinary 507 2019 (1,500,000) 10 Cash 7.47% | 4.48% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) Total 2,130,000 company
Sheikh 17.07.2013 1,500,000 No Share
Mohammed . 09.06.2018 2,195,000 is pledged
0, 0,
5 Danial  (Sponsor Ordinary 2507 2019 (1,995,000 10 Cash 5.96% | 3.58% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) Total 1,700,000 company
) 17.07.2013 1,030,000 No Share
Ahmed Rajeeb .
. . 09.06.2018 500,000 is pledged
0, 0,
6 zalg?rc‘laacr:cl)rSSponsor Ordinary 507 2019 (500,000) 10 Cash 3.61% | 2.17% | 3 Years by the
Total 1,030,000 company
Hazera Hossain 17.07.2013 1,030,000 No Share
7 | (Sponsor & | Ordinary | 09062018 | 255,000 10 Cash | 451% | 2.71% | 3Years | 'S Pledged
Director) Total 1,285,000 by the
s company
Kamrun Nahar 17.07.2013 1,000,000 No Share
. 09.06.2018 150,000 is pledged
0, 0,
8 (S_,ponsor & | Ordinary 25.07 2019 (50,000) 10 Cash 3.86% | 2.32% | 3 Years by the
Director)
Total 1,100,000 company
Maya Rani Roy 17.07.2013 900,000 No Share
9 | (Sponsor & | Ordinary | 99062018 | 100,000 10 Cash | 351% | 2.11% | 3Years | 'S Pledged
Director) Total 1,000,000 by the
ota ,000, company
. . 17.07.2013 670,000 No Share
Hoda Ali Selim .
. 09.06.2018 330,000 is pledged
0, 0,
10 (S_ponsor & | Ordinary 2507 2019 (50,000) 10 Cash 3.33% | 2.00% | 3 Years by the
Director)
Total 950,000 company
Sheikh Omar 17.07.2013 1,000,000 i’s\lglsggé?j
i 0, 0,
11 Far.uque (Sponsor | Ordinary Total 1,000,000 10 Cash 3.51% | 2.11% | 3 Years by the
&Director)
company
. 17.07.2013 1,000,000 No Share
! ! 0 0,
12 | Omar Khayum | Ordinary Total 1,000,000 10 Cash 351% | 211% | 3Years | . pledged
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Name date when & A IPO(% IPO( .

No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of

the shares Issue ) %)
. shares
were made Price
fully paid up
by the
company
Nargis Mahmuda 17.07.2013 1,000,000 ils\lzlsggéz
i 0, 0,

13 | (Sponsor Ordinary Total 1,000,000 10 Cash 351% | 2.11% | 3 Years by the

Shareholder) company

17.07.2013 330,000 No Share

Phowzia Khan is pledged
i 0, 0,

14 | (Sponsor Ordinary Total 330,000 10 Cash 1.16% | 0.69% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) company
Quazi 25.07.2019 110,000 No Share
Moniruzzaman . is pledged

0, 0,

15 (Sponsor Ordinary Total 110,000 10 Cash 0.39% | 0.23% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) company
Md. Nurun Nabi 25.07.2019 312,000 iSNglesggéz

i 0, 0,

16 | (Sponsor Ordinary Total 312,000 10 Cash 1.09% | 0.66% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) company
Hanufa Akter 25.07.2019 475,000 iSNgleS;;ég

i i 0, 0,
17 | Rikta (Sponsor | Ordinary Total 475,000 10 Cash 1.67% | 1.00% | 3 Years by the
Shareholder) company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
Ajit Chandra Aich . 0 0 is pledged

18 Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 612,500 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged

19 | Ishra Tahiyat Ordinary Total 612,500 10 Cash 2.15% | 1.29% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 500,000 No Share
Khair Mohammad . is pledged

0, 0,

20 Farookh Ordinary Total 500,000 10 Cash 1.75% | 1.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 500,000 No Share
Alamzeb  Radin . 0 0 is pledged

21 Ahmed Ordinary Total 500,000 10 Cash 1.75% | 1.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Md. . is pledged

0, 0,

22 Mahbubzzaman Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 40,000 No Share
. . . o o is pledged

23 | Mifrah Zahir Ordinary Total 40,000 10 Cash 0.14% | 0.08% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 60,000 No Share
gq | FAtEMa o Zahir | o 10 Cash | 0.21% | 0.13% | 3vears | 'SPledoed

Majumder y Total 60,000 e it by the
company
25.07.2019 50,000 No Share
Md. Momin . o o is pledged

25 Hossain Ordinary Total 50,000 10 Cash 0.18% | 0.11% | 3 Years by the
company
Mir Rashed Bin 25.07.2019 55,000 No Share
26 Aman Ordinary 13.06.2020 54,000 10 Cash 0.38% | 0.23% | 3 Years | is pledged

Total 109,000 by the
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Number &
Sl Nature of | 1ransferand No. Of value | -onsider s POSE || ek in % of
Name date when & A IPO(% IPO( .
No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of
the shares Issue ) %)
. shares
were made Price
fully paid up
company
25.07.2019 625,000 No Share
27 '\F";;‘Iu nnessa Ordinary | 2%:12:2019 95,000 10 Cash | 2.52% | 1.52% | 3Years | ° E'eageed
Total 720,000 Cox]pany
25.07.2019 25,000 No Share
. . . 0 0 is pledged
28 | Abdul latif manik Ordinary Total 25,000 10 Cash 0.09% | 0.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 25,000 No Share
Md. Borhan . is pledged
0, 0,
29 Uddin Ordinary Total 25,000 10 Cash 0.09% | 0.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 25,000 No Share
Mohammad is pledged
i i 0, 0,
30 \é\?fe;stser Hossain | Ordinary Total 25,000 10 Cash 0.09% | 0.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 100,000 No Share
31 | Saidun Nessa Ordinary 21.12.2019 (95,000) 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years IS Elet(i]geed
Total 5,000 . Oﬁr’]p oy
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
Kamrun Nahar . 0 0 is pledged
32 Ahmed Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 6,500 No Share
. - . 0 0 is pledged
33 | Gazi Badrujjaman Ordinary Total 6,500 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 35,000 No Share
Md. Alauddin . is pledged
0, 0,
34 Mia Ordinary Total 35,000 10 Cash 0.12% | 0.07% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 55,000 No Share
Md. Rafe-Uz- . is pledged
0, 0,
35 Zaman Ordinary Total 55,000 10 Cash 0.19% | 0.12% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 55,000 No Share
36 | Kallol Barua Ordinary 13.06.2020 (54,000) 10 Cash 0.00% | 0.00% | 3Years | Eletc:]geed
Total 1,000 co;']pany
25.07.2019 25,000 No Share
. . o o is pledged
37 | Sujan Talukder Ordinary Total 25,000 10 Cash 0.09% | 0.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 7,500 No Share
. . o o is pledged
38 | Md. Golam Kibria Ordinary Total 7,500 10 Cash 0.03% | 0.02% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 40,000 No Share
Sheikh Md. . is pledged
0, 0,
39 Bodyuzzaman Ordinary Total 40,000 10 Cash 0.14% | 0.08% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 25,000 No Share
is pledged
Md. Golam .
0, 0,
40 Mostofa Ordinary Total 25,000 10 Cash 0.09% | 0.05% | 3Years by the
company
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Sl Nature of | |ransferand No. Of valie | onsiger | FTe POSE || ock in % of
Name date when & A IPO(% IPO( .

No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of
the shares Issue ) %) shares
were made Price

fully paid up
25.07.2019 23,000 No Share
MK  Muhammad . is pledged
0, 0,
41 Miraz Ordinary Total 23,000 10 Cash 0.08% | 0.05% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
. . is pledged
0 0,
42 | Moushumi Roy Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
Md. Abdullah Hil . is pledged
0, 0,
43 Kafee Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
. 0 0 is pledged
44 | Md. Asraful Islam Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
. . . 0.004 is pledged
0,
45 | Rajesh Aich Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% % 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 1,200,000 No Share
46 I\Q/I&sj;al}‘z;\ Golam Ordinary 05.10.2020 1,480,000 10 Cash 040% | 564% | 3Years is tr))letdhgzaed
Total 2,680,000 Y
company
25.07.2019 300,000 No Share
Mostafa Quamrus . 0 0 is pledged
47 Sobhan Ordinary Total 300,000 10 Cash 1.05% | 0.63% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 1,200,000 No Share
Tasnia Quamrun . 0 0 is pledged
48 Anika Ordinary Total 1,200,000 10 Cash 4.21% | 2.53% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
Md. Fahad Bin . is pledged
0, 0,
49 Farooque Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
Md. Shahed . is pledged
0 0,
50 Hossain Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 20,000 No Share
) 0 0 is pledged
51 | Md. Parvez Igbal Ordinary Total 20,000 10 Cash 0.07% | 0.04% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
. o o is pledged
52 | Sume Sen Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
Md. Shajidul . o o is pledged
53 Anwar Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
is pledged
S. M. Mohiuddin . o o by the
54 Faruguee Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3Years company
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Name date when & A IPO(% IPO( .

No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of
the shares Issue ) %) shares
were made Price

fully paid up
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
. . . 0 0 is pledged
55 | Md. Mir Kadim Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
. is pledged
0, 0,
56 | Md. Shah Alam Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 15,000 No Share
) . o o is pledged
57 | Md. Rafiqul Islam Ordinary Total 15,000 10 Cash 0.05% | 0.03% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 10,000 No Share
5g | Md- ANOWRr | 5 Ginar 10 Cash | 0.04% | 0.029% | 3vears | 'SPledoed
Hossain y Total 10,000 DAY BUeH by the
company
25.07.2019 10,000 No Share
Uttam Kumar . is pledged
0, 0,
59 Bhowmik Ordinary Total 10,000 10 Cash 0.04% | 0.02% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 10,000 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged
60 | Md. Alauddin Ordinary Total 10,000 10 Cash 0.04% | 0.02% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 9,500 No Share
. . . ) 0 o is pledged
61 | Mir Ashiful Karim Ordinary Total 9,500 10 Cash 0.03% | 0.02% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 7,500 No Share
Md. Thamjidul . 0 0 is pledged
62 Alam Ordinary Total 7,500 10 Cash 0.03% | 0.02% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 7,000 No Share
. 0 0 is pledged
63 | Fazlur Rahman Ordinary Total 7,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 7,000 No Share
. 0 0 is pledged
64 | Jannatul Ordinary Total 7,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 7,000 No Share
Md. Delwar . is pledged
0, 0,
65 Hossan Ordinary Total 7.000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 6,000 No Share
is pledged
by the

66 mg?:fl;m Ordinary Total 6.000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years | company

25.07.2019 5,500 No Share
Md. Sahidur . o o is pledged
67 Rahman Ordinary Total 5500 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
68 | Sanwar Hosan Ordinary 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years | is pledged
Total 5,000 by the
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No Issue Shares ation Period pledge of
the shares Issue ) %) shares
were made Price

fully paid up

company

25.07.2019 5,000 No Share

. . o o is pledged

69 | Marina Sultana Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the

company

25.07.2019 5,000 No Share

is pledged

70 | Md. Abdul Malik Ordinary 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3Years by the

Total 5,000 company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Sanjoy . 0 0 is pledged
71 Chakraborty Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Md. Shahidur . is pledged
0, 0,
72 Rahman Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Nusrat Sarmin . is pledged
0, 0,
73 Smriti Ordinary Total 5.000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Md. Anowar . is pledged
0, 0,
74 Hossain Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Md Lokman . 0 0 is pledged
75 Hossain Ordinary Total 5.000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged
76 | Md. Wazed Ali Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 5,000 No Share
Md. Wabhidul . is pledged
0, 0,
77 islam Ordinary Total 5,000 10 Cash 0.02% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 4,000 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged
78 | Polly rani sarker Ordinary Total 4,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 4,000 No Share
Abu Shahadat . is pledged
0, 0,
79 Dulal Ordinary Total 4,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 3,500 No Share
is pledged

80 | Anika Aziz Ordinary 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the

Total 3,500 company

25.07.2019 3,500 No Share

Md. Mohinul . o o is pledged
81 Hogue Khan Ordinary Total 3500 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years by the

company

Mohammad 25.07.2019 3,000 No Share

82 Mizanul karim Ordinary Total 3.000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years | is pledged
' by the
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the shares Issue ) %) shares
were made Price

fully paid up
company
25.07.2019 3,000 No Share
Bijoy Parsad . o o is pledged
83 Bhadra Ordinary Total 3,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 3,000 No Share
84 | Arfin Badal Ordinary 10 Cash | 0.01% | 0.01% | 3vears | 'SPledoed
Total by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged
85 | Kohinoor Akther Ordinary Total 2.000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
. . is pledged
0, 0,
86 | Kaium Ahamed Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
Shah Faysal . 0 0 is pledged
87 Mahamud Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
Anannya . 0 0 is pledged
88 Bhattacharjee Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
. . 0 0 is pledged
89 | Md. Mahir Ameer Ordinary Total 2.000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
Bikash  Chandra . is pledged
0, 0,
920 Biswas Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 2,000 No Share
. ) . 0 0 is pledged
91 | Labiba laila Ordinary Total 2,000 10 Cash 0.01% | 0.01% | 3Years by the
company
25.07.2019 1,500 No Share
) 0.003 is pledged
0,
92 | Avijit Sarkar Ordinary Total 1,500 10 Cash 0.01% % 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 1,000 No Share
Borhan Uddin . 0.002 is pledged
0,
93 Mozumder Ordinary Total 1,000 10 Cash 0.004% % 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 50,000 No Share
B g . o o is pledged
94 | Zaed-Bin-Zahir Ordinary Total 50,000 10 Cash 0.18% | 0.11% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 500,000 No Share
Nadia Khalil . is pledged
0, 0,
95 Choudhury Ordinary Total 500,000 10 Cash 1.75% | 1.05% | 3 Years by the
company
25.07.2019 50,000 No Share
Mohammed . o o is pledged
96 Riyadh Ali Ordinary Total 50,000 10 Cash 0.18% | 0.11% | 3 Years by the
company
28,500,000 100% 60%
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(xi) The details of the aggregate shareholding of the sponsors and directors, the aggregate number

of specified securities purchased or sold or otherwise transferred by the sponsor and/or by the

directors of the issuer and their related parties within six months immediately preceding the
date of filing the Prospectus;

Aggregate shareholding of the sponsors and directors:

L Name Percentage of Holding
Number of Shares Held Pre-IPO (%) Post-1IPO (%)
1 | Noor-e-Hafza 1,160,000 4.07% 2.44%
2 | Fauzia Quamrun Tania 2,831500 9.94% 5.96%
3 | Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,000,000 10.53% 6.32%
4 | Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury 2,130,000 7.47% 4.48%
5 | Sheikh Mohammed Danial 1,700,000 5.96% 3.58%
6 | Kamrun Nahar 1,100,000 3.86% 2.32%
7 | Maya Rani Roy 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
8 | Sheikh Omar Faruque 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
9 | Omar Khayum 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
10 | Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 1,030,000 3.61% 2.17%
11 | Hazera Hossain 1,285,000 4.51% 2.71%
12 | Hoda Ali Selim Ahmed Mohamed 950,000 3.33% 2.00%
13 | Nargis Mahmuda 1,000,000 3.51% 2.11%
14 | Phowzia Khan 330,000 1.16% 0.69%
15 | Quazi Moniruzzaman 110,000 0.39% 0.23%
16 | Md. Nurun Nabi 312,000 1.09% 0.66%
17 | Hanufa Akter Rikta 475,000 1.67% 1.00%
18 | Ajit Chandra Aich 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
19 | Ishra Tahiyat 612,500 2.15% 1.29%
20 | Khair Mohammad Farookh 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
21 | Alamzeb Radin Ahmed 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
22 | Md. Mahbubzzaman 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
23 | Mifrah Zahir 40,000 0.14% 0.08%
24 | Fatema Zahir Majumder 60,000 0.21% 0.13%
25 | Md. Momin Hossain 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
26 | Mir Rashed Bin Aman 109,000 0.38% 0.23%
27 | Mst. Fazlutunnessa 720,000 2.52% 1.52%6
28 | Abdul latif manik 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
29 | Md. Borhan Uddin 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
30 | Mohammad Wasser Hossain Rifat 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
31 | Saidun Nessa 5,000 0.026 0.01%
32 | Kamrun Nahar Ahmed 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
33 | Gazi Badrujjaman 6,500 0.02% 0.01%
34 | Md. Alauddin Mia 35,000 0.12% 0.07%
35 | Md. Rafe-Uz-Zaman 55,000 0.19% 0.12%
36 | Kallol Barua 1,000 0.00% 0.00%
37 | Sujan Talukder 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
38 | Md. Golam Kibria 7,500 0.03% 0.02%
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39 | Sheikh Md. Bodyuzzaman 40,000 0.14% 0.08%
40 | Md. Golam Most ofa 25,000 0.09% 0.05%
41 | MK Muhammad Miraz 23,000 0.08% 0.05%
42 | Moushumi Roy 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
43 | Md. Abdullah Hil Kafee 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
44 | Md. Asraful Islam 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
45 | Rajesh Aich 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
46 | Mostafa Golam Quddus 2,680,000 9.400 5.6%%0
47 | Mostafa Quamrus Sobhan 300,000 1.05% 0.63%
48 | Tasnia Quamrun Anika 1,200,000 4.21% 2.53%
49 | Md. Fahad Bin Farooque 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
50 | Md. Shahed Hossain 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
51 | Md. Parvez Igbal 20,000 0.07% 0.04%
52 | Sume Sen 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
53 | Md. Shajidul Anwar 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
54 | S. M. Mohiuddin Faruguee 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
55 | Md. Mir Kadim 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
56 | Md. Shah Alam 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
57 | Md. Rafiqul Islam 15,000 0.05% 0.03%
58 | Md. Anowar Ho ssain 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
59 | Uttam Kumar Bhowmik 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
60 | Md. Alauddin 10,000 0.04% 0.02%
61 | Mir Ashiful Karim 9,500 0.03% 0.02%
62 | Md. Thamijidul Alam 7,500 0.03% 0.02%
63 | Fazlur Rahman 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
64 | Jannatul 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
65 | Md. Delwar Hossan 7,000 0.02% 0.01%
66 | Md.Golum Most ofa 6,000 0.02% 0.01%
67 | Md. Sahidur Rahman 5,500 0.02% 0.01%
68 | Sanwar Hosan 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
69 | Marina Sultana 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
70 | Md. Abdul Malik 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
71 | Sanjoy Chakraborty 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
72 | Md. Shahidur Rahman 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
73 | Nusrat Sarmin Smriti 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
74 | Md. Anowar Hossain 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
75 | Md Lokman Hossain 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
76 | Md. Wazed Ali 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
77 | Md. Wahidul islam 5,000 0.02% 0.01%
78 | Polly rani sarker 4,000 0.01% 0.01%
79 | Abu Shahadat Dulal 4,000 0.01% 0.01%
80 | Anika Aziz 3,500 0.01% 0.01%
81 | Md. Mohinul Hogue Khan 3,500 0.01% 0.01%
82 | Mohammad Mizanul karim 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
83 | Bijoy Parsad Bhadra 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
84 | Arfin Badal 3,000 0.01% 0.01%
85 | Kohinoor Akther 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
86 | Kaium Ahamed 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
87 | Shah Faysal Mahamud 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
88 | Anannya Bhattacharjee 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
89 | Md. Mahir Ameer 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
90 | Bikash Chandra Biswas 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
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SL. Name Percentage of Holding

91 | Labiba laila 2,000 0.01% 0.00%
92 | Avijit Sarkar 1,500 0.01% 0.00%
93 | Borhan Uddin Mozumder 1,000 0.00% 0.00%
94 | Zaed-Bin-Zahir 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
95 | Nadia Khalil Choudhury 500,000 1.75% 1.05%
96 | Mohammed Riyadh Ali 50,000 0.18% 0.11%
Total 28,500,000 100% 60%

* Transferred as perBd Bds aEaFav aDH®FA)EEB d € HE0&ME0HI.50.026.18.54, d € D12
abEBEBEI|

o BdBds aEaFavaDFaE, EQ1200E9 EBz Ed€@z E 53.03.0000.031.50.026.18.72

as_.  EbEZE, dDEFdC¢dE¢E" d@oo( B¢ R FIBGd/EDEmGREN. @ £Ed, Dadd, d¢Bdm™ L
S DDEFd ¢z BEBEBQHREIE, Das, EbEZE, dDEFdCIEGE d¢*~ ECaDz® dDE, daE, CE(

Transferred by the sponsor and/or by the directors of the issuer:

To comply the rules of IDRA and by the concern of Bangladesh Exchange and Exchange Commission
we have raised our paid-up capital 18.00 ¢ore to 28.50crore on 09-06-2018. After getting the share
transfer from concern form IDRA our 07sponsor director are transferring their shares to 82 new
sponsor shareholdersof the company on 25-07-2019.

(xii) The name and address of any person who owns, beneficially or of record, 5% or more of the
securities of the issuer, indicating the amount of securities owned, whether they are owned
beneficially or of record, and the percentage of the securities represented by such ownership
including number of equity shares which they would be entitled to upon exercise  of warrant,
option or right to con vert any convertible instrument:

1 0,
Name of the Quantly o 4 Of Type of
Sl. Address Securities securities .
Shareholders ownership
Held owned
Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun | House- 03, Road 2/3, Sponsor
1 Tania Banani, Dhaka- 1213. 2,831500 9.94% Shareholder
. Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7 o .
2 | Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd. Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka. 3,000,000 10.53% | Sponsor Director
Mrs. Shafia  Sobhan| House- 69, Road 7, Block- Sponsor
) ) o
3 Chowdhury F, Banani, Dhaka. 2,130,000 741% Shareholder
Mr. Sheikh Mohammad | House- 4, Road- 6, Khulshi, Sponsor
0,
4 Danial Chittagong. 1,700,000 5.96% Shareholder
5 | Mrs. Hazera Hossain 18{8’ East Raja Bazar, 1,285,000 4.51% | Sponsor Director
Tejgaon, Dhaka.
Belgor, Miabazar, o Sponsor
6 | Mostafa Golam Quddus Choddogram, Comilla . 2,680,000 9.40% Shareholder

As far as the existing information is concerned, there is neither any event occurred nor any intent of
exercising warrant, option or right to convert any convertible instrument.

(xiii) The number of securities of the issuer owned by each of the top ten salaried officers, and all
other officers or employees as group, indicating the percentage of outstanding shares
represented by the securitie s owned:

S| No Name Designation No. Of Securities Pre-IPO(%)
01 Mir Rashed Bin Aman Chief Executive Officer (CC) 109,000 0.38%
02 Bikash Chandra Biswas General Manager 2,000 0.01%
03 Md. Rafe-Uz-Zaman Assistant General Manager 55,000 0.19%
04 Kallol Barua Assistant General Manager 1000 0.00%
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05 Sujan Talukder Assistant General Manager 25,000 0.09%
06 Md. Golam Most ofa Assistant General Manager 25,000 0.09%
07 Rajesh Aich Assistant General Manager 2,000 0.01%
08 Sanjoy Chakraborty Senior Manager 5,000 0.02%
09 Polly rani sarker Senior Manager 4,000 0.01%

(d) Description of the Business:

(i) The date on which the issuer company was incorporated and the date on which it commenced
operation and nature of business which the company and its subsidiaries are eng aged in or
propose to engage in:

The Company was incorporated on July 7, 2013and got the certificate to commence business on July
17, 2013. ltregistered with the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) in carrying
on the businessof life insurance on July 30, 2013

SLICL does not have any subsidiary.

Nature of Business:

The company is engaged in the ordinary life insurance, pension and group insurance business since
its incorporation. The company offers a wide variety of insurance products, which fulfils the
requirements of present and prospective policyholders. The product portfolio of the company feeds
the following insurance lines:

a. Ordinary Life Insurance,
b. Group Insurance,
c. Islami Jibon Bima (Takaful).

(i) Registered Office of the Company
The Registeredoffice is situated at Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7, Rajuk Avenue, Motijheel, Dhaka-1000.
(iif) Plant, machinery, technology, process etc.

This company is doing business in insurance sector. So,t has no operation with plant, machinery. It
usesonly computer soft w a rcastmized for doing life insurance business.

(iv) Details of the major events in the history of the issuer, including details of capacity or facility
creation, launching of plant, products, marketing, change in ownership and/ o r key
management personnel etc:

Incorporation of the Company

07 July, 2013

Starting of Commercial
Operation

01 August, 2013

Registered with IDRA

30 July, 2013

Capital Raise d (Last)

Tk. 105,000,00®0 (Cash) on 09 June 2018

Details of capacity or facility
creation, launching of plant

Since the Company is engaged in insurance business, so,
there is no facility to create any plant.

Changes in Ownership

At the time ofinception (2013) there were 14 Sponsor
shareholdersout of them 8 sponsor shareholders have
transferred their portion of shareholding to new 82 persons
in 2018. So present noof Sponsor shareholders is 96.

Change in  keyManagement No major changes have taken.
Personnel
Appointment of first

Independent Director

27 September, 208
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Three directors Mr.
mohammed Danial,
Sobahan Chowdhury,

board

Sheikh
Shafia
Fauzia | : | 12h September, 2020

Quamrun Tania resign from the

(v) Principal products or services of the issuer and markets for such products or services. Past
trends and future prospects regarding exports (if applicable) and local market, demand and
supply forecasts for the sector in which the product is included with source  of data;

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited is carrying out the following types of insurance business:

Principal Products

Plan Name

Ordinary Life Insurance

Endowment Assurance Plan with Profits

Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan - 3 Stagewith Profits

Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan - 5 Stagewith Profits

Ordinary Insurance Plan Without Pr ofits

Money Back Term Insurance Benefitwith Profit Granted

Child Protection Assurance Plan with Pr ofits

Education Expense Assurance Plan with Profits

Ordinary Endowment Insurance with Profits

Single Premium Insurance Plan Without Pr ofits

Assurance Cum Pension Plan Without Profits

Denmohar Bima With Pr ofits

Hajj Bima With Pr ofits

Monthly Savings Assurance Plan with Profit

Monthly Savings Micro Insurance Plan with Profit

Group Insurance

Principal Products

Plan Name

Islami Life Insurance
(Takaful)

Endowment Assurance Plan with Profits

Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan - 3 Stagewith Profits

Anticipated Endowment Assurance Plan - 5 Stagewith Profits

Child Protection Assurance Plan with Pr ofits

Single Premium Insurance Plan Without Pr ofits

Assurance Cum Pension Plan Without Profits

Denmohar Bima With Pr ofits

Hajj Bima With Pr ofits

Monthly Savings Assurance Plan with Profit

Monthly Savings Micro Insurance Plan with Profit
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Last five yearsCollection of insurance premium ofSonali life Insurance CompanyLtd. are as under:

Amount in Taka

Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Gross Premium 810,783,355 677,910,127, 407,524,585 195,473,483 236,379,931
Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Investment Income 61,031,185 41,086,232 33,060,314 30,748,911 30,422,610
Premium Deposit 374,357 379,623 235,547 143,543 150,320
Claim settlement:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
g IS 8 k=] IS 8 k=] IS 8 k=] IS 8 k=] e 8 k]
3 s| 8| | 5| 8| §| S| 8| §| 8| | &§| =8| &| §
= (5] (5] 5] 5]
8 5| | 5 5| X 5| 5| | 5| 5| | 5| 5| | B
S| gl 2| S| a| 2| S| a| 2| S| | 2| | o £
b4 b4 2 2 =2
Ordinary Life 49 | 18 | 31| 47 | 14 | 33 | 17| 2 | 15| 7 2 5 3 0 3
Group 68| 0 | 68| 100| 1 | 108 | 52 | 0 | 52 | 389 | 83 | 306 | 953 | 275 | 678
Insurance
Islami Jibon
Bima (rakafuy | 3 | O | 3| 1|0 1 110 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Future prospects regarding exports (if applicable) and local market, demand and supply forecasts:

After liberation of Bangladesh in 1971, for the reformation of war-damaged economy the then
government took control of all existing insurance companies at that time and nationalized them on
August 8, 1972. In the year 1973 the government two insurance institutions Jibon Bima Corporation
(JBC) and ShadharanBima Corporation (SBC) breaking all those insurance companies. Laer with the
objective of the development and expansion of insurance industry government gave opportunity to
establish insurance companies in private sector. As a result, there are 77 insurance companies
including JBC and SBC (31 life insurance and 46 geneal companies) are operating insurance business
in the country at present. If we consider the insurable life and property of huge population most of
their life and property have not come under insurance coverage. So, the sector is huge potentiality for
the expansion with the awareness of mass people, development of industrialization, trade and
commerce, import- export etc. The government has given more attention to this sector and working to
bring this sector from traditional trend to modernization through t
programs and rules-regulation to regularize this sector of the economy. As a part of that Insurance
Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) was formed and it has been strengthening more at
present by the Government. So, there is good prospect of this sector. (Source: National Insurance
Policy 2014). Sonali Life Insurance Co.Ltd. provides life insurance service only in Bangladesh and it
has no plan to provide insurance service globally in near future.

aking different

reformative

79
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of each product or service that accounts for more than

10%oft he companyds total revenues:
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

S S S 3 3

_ T Fog Fog Fog Eog

Particulars Gross g Gross g Gross g O g Gross &

Premium S Premium S Premium S S Premium S

2 o o 2 2

(] () () () (]

a a a a a
Ordinary Life 757,070,255 93% | 617,980,114 91% 361,719,474 89% 152,139,774 78% 73,791,76§ 31%
Takaful - 0% 22,240,60(¢ 3% 6,922,200 2% 3,492,381 2% 2,478,346 1%
Group Insurance premium 53,713,100 7% 37,689,415 6% 38,882,907 9% 39,841,32§ 20%| 160,109,817 68%
Total 810,783,355 100%| 677,910,127 100% 407,524,584 100% 195,473,483 100%| 236,379,931 100%

(vii) Description of Associates, subsidiary/related holding Company & their core areas

SLICL does not have any associate, subsidiary and holding company.

of business
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(viii) How the products or services are d istributed with details

Distribution Channel
Servicesof SLICL are rendered as follows:

Company

Insurance

agents/Online

Policy holders

Application
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of the distribution channel. Export possibilities and export obligation, if any

The Company operates its business through the Head Office at Dhaka and the branches throughout the country. The Company has been operating its
business through 76 branches along with one local office in Dhaka.

All branch offices:

Muhammad Cyrus

7 Rajuk Avenue Rupali Bima Bhaban,

Rupalilnsurance

Office Space: 1400 Sft

01 Motijheel (Metro) . " 30/09/2022 Advance: O
Zulgarnain 1977144715 Motijheel Dhaka Company Ltd. Rent: Tk 40,000/-
. . Office Space: 8300Sft
02 Malibagh Té;gf’;:;oggnoﬁman &8;:?%3::—'35&0'(? Chowdhury Para , Mostafa Golam Quddus 31/12/2021 Advance: O
Rent: Tk 40,56,500+
_ Muhammad Akbar 806/ A 0Boshor Ma n Office Space:950Sft
03 Bakulia Hossain 1815814826 Flyover Link Road, P.O: Bahaddarhat, | Hassan Murad 30/11/2020 Advance: 50,000/-
P.S: Chandgaon,Dist:Chittagong Rent: Tk 7,000/-
. . Office Space:1200Sft
04 | Comilla s Jiean &?:%roolj)lazz: y Z’f;p;‘raéz)”r'm@’ eNUe | \1d. Ibrahim Miah 30/11/2022 | Advance: 41,600/
) Rent: Tk 20,800/
Rashed Ahmed 110 no. Karim Super Market (3rd Office Space:875Sft
05 Rajshahi 01727865865 floor), P.O: Ghoramara,P.S: Bowaliya, | Zahar Lal Joysoyal 28/02/2021 Advance: 42,000/-
Dist: Rajshahi. Rent: Tk 14,000/-
House 170 (2nd Floor) Block- D Road Office Space:2100 Sft
06 Sugandha Baby Das 1813781371 No -2, Sugandha Residential Area | Sheikh Abdul Motin 31/12/2022 Advance:O

Panchlaish, Chittagong

Rent: Tk 42,000/-
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Name ofin S Principal terms and
Sl. Description charge& IP/Mobile No Location Name of the lessor datlz ;); ethe Condition Remarks
_ . Office Space:1050 Sft
07 Meah Bazar N 2l eyl Car.nlval (el AR .P'_O' Me.ah Bazar Saidunnessa 30/06/2022 Advance:O
Mozumder 01711701865 | P.S: ChauddagramDist: Comilla. )
Rent: Tk 12,000/-
. . . - Office Space:600 Sft
08 Mirza Pur Md. Jalil Miah 1829266697 E::]mzilHatl,P.O.+ P.SMirzaPur, Dist: Md. Mosaraf Hossain 30/09/2024 Advance:O
' ga. Rent: Tk 4,500/-
. e o . . Office Space:1005ft
09 Chandanish (I\)/Ilo7h1a1r2£1n4ec;j73 Alauddin (H:ﬁzlniglnrggsl\élaékr(]ei:télsotnﬂoor), boiltoli, g/lﬁu anSellmur Rashid 31/03/2022 Advance:10,000/-
' gong. 4 Rent: Tk 1,300/-
.. . Md. Abdur Rohim, Md Office Space:2300 Sft
10 | Kasba (Metro) 2"90'1' 129“2?)%” Ralie ﬁ:ﬁ‘:{:ﬁ;ﬁz";ﬁ"i’; 525;“38';'3;’“ Kasba| & lam  zilani  Abdul | 31/05/2021 | Advance:2,40,000/-
’ ’ ' Rowf Mulla Rent: Tk 20,000/-
Shohid Dr. Aynul Hoque Pourashava Office Space:1188 Sft
11 | Bonpara 5;‘;27936/;2?:‘1 Super Market (3rd Floor), P.O: 'I\D"sj’gshava Bonpara | 30/00/2020 | Advance:50,000/-
HararaP.O:Boraigram, Dist: Nator. Rent: Tk 8330/-
. . Office Space:667Sft
. Mohammed  Shahalam- | Aziz Shopping Center (4th Floor), .
12 Feni (Metro) 01818887246 189, S.9¢. Road, Feni. Ayesha Akter 30/04/2026 Adva'nce.O
Rent: Tk 21,600/-
Raiu Ahamed Vill: Shomserabad, Kamrul Alam Office Space:1250 Sft
13 Laxmipur 011726058596 P.O: Laxmipur , P.S: Laxmipur Sadar, Chowdhur 31/12/2022 Advance:20,000/-
Dist: Laxmipur. y Rent: Tk 7,000/-
Kanchan Bhatacharjee| Vill: SultanpurP.O + P.S: Raozan, | Mohammed Abul Office Space:396 Sft
14 | Raozan 01881715191 Dist: Chittagon Kashem Chowdhur 30/04/2021 | Advance:15,000/-
: gong. y Rent: Tk 4,500/-
. . Office Space:805 Sft
15 Netrokona S el SEE) 130/.1’ Sranel SEIpERO P Jinat Ara Parvin 30/11/2020 Advance:O
01714498672 Dist: Netrokona .
Rent: Tk 6,500/-
L Vill;  Srishtighor (Bus Stand Bazar) Office Space:100 Sft
16 ?_Irc:;lfzf'ggdl P)Alcgzosll_:g;zra Rahman P.O: Chaitanya, P.S: Shibpur, Dist: | Azizul Islam 30/09/2020 Advance:O
Norshingdi. Rent: Tk 700/-
. . Office Space: 8300Sft
17 | Metro Head Office | M Rashed Bin Aman S DI (Mo Cngnely e DITCL 31/12/2021 | Advance: O

+8809678200004

Malibagh Dhaka

Rent: Tk 4,56,500 +
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Name ofin S Principal terms and
Sl. Description charge& IP/Mobile No Location Name of the lessor datlz ;); ethe Condition Remarks
_ House No -196, Road no- 1 P.G Office Space: 1000Sft
18 Rangpur (Metro) g/ll(#126 4c65$‘|3m Kibria Alamnagar, P.S: Kotwali, gﬁg\;‘;ﬁjr Ara 31/10/2021 Advance: 39,000/-
Dist:Rangpur. y Rent: Tk 13,000 /-
Block No - I, Holding No - 174,
. Koibollodham R/ A, Shahjahan . . Office Space: 550Sft
19 | Akborshah (Takaful) '(\)"107h1a1“;2”4e:73 Alauddin | gy ohan, (1st Floor) Seven Market, 'I;":'u;hahjaha“ & Rezid | 3111212020 | Advance: 50,000/-
P.O: Ferozshah, P.SAkborshah, Dist: 9 Rent: Tk 9,000 /-
Chittagong.
. Islami Bank Bhaban (2nd Floor) Office Space: 750Sft
20 ;s%a;kcgfugown ('\)/'1%167'\2";’5’%""" Hosen | faramia, P.0:  Sanerhat, P.S: zr;?:r‘i' Alamand | 55041022 | Advance: 21,000/-
Sandwip, Dist: Chittagong. Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
21 Comilla (Metro) Md Reaz Uddin | Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue QLU;ifgif;gggosﬂ
01677717153 (8th floor) 2nd Kandipar Comilla. Md. Ibrahim Miah 31/08/2023 Rent: Tk 24,000/-
Shawpan Mahmud Jongi Shibpur Bazar Vill: Hosen Office Space: 1350Sft
22 Shibpur Bazar 01710%37647 Nogar P.O: Hosen Nogar P.S:| Shawpan Mahmud 30/09/2023 Advance: O
Raypura Dist: Norshingdi Rent: Tk 2,000/ -
23 Tangail Md. Ebrahim  Sarkar | House no - 410 Kodalia (1st Floor), | Md Shafiqul Islam 28/02/2022 ggtgicsepzcoe;)l(?(())/?Sﬂ
01712695506 P.O.: 1900P.S:+ Dist: Tangail. Bhuiyan Rent: Tk 7,500/
. . - . . . Office Space: 500Sft
24 (S:Ta;ki?uﬁkborhat I(\)/Ilo7h1a1n;4m‘1re(;173 Alauddin \élilsl’.thCahsiE);acl):’r;O. Gasuya P.S: Sandip Joynal Abedin 31/05/2025 Advance: 20,000/-
' gong. Rent: Tk 5,000 /-
. . . . . Office Space: 500Sft
Sondhip Shiberhat Md. Amir Hazer Bari, mait Vanga, .
25 . . . . Md.ldris Meah 31/03/2020 Advance: O
(Takaful) Samsuddin01829668437 | shiberhat, Sondhip, Chittagong. Rent: Tk 5,500 /-
. Vill: Bhuschi Bazar Office Space: 900Sft
26 l(?;_f;uki(;hr:f azar Rgf;riﬂ 1O(ir£ndra Das P.O: Choto Sharitpur-3573 Kazi Moniruzzaman 31/10/2023 Advance: O
P.S: Sadar DakshinDist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 1,000 /-
. Chowdhury Center (3rd Floor),225/ Office Space: 1050Sft
27 Chittagong (Metro) M(()jl.sl\l/lg;lér;lé)lsliloque MU A, C D A Avinew, Muradpur, Taslima Nasrin 30/04/2022 Advance: 50,000/-
Chittagong. Rent: Tk19,000 /-
28 Cox's Bazar(Metro) Mohammad Shajidul | Kashem Plaza (2nd Floor) Building 28/02/2022 Office Space: 900Sft
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_ Name ofin . S Principal terms and
Sl. Description charge& IP/Mobile No Location Name of the lessor datlz ;); ethe Condition Remarks
Anowar 01782171171 no - 1/3 Kalur DokanMain Road, P.O: | Ismail Jahed Advance: 2,00,000/-
Coxs Bazar P.S: Saday Dist: Coxs Rent: Tk 21,000 /-
Bazar.
. Abdul Motlob Shopping Complex Office Space: 1300Sft
29 Chokoria (Metro) pRICTILT Szl (2nd Floor), Chiringa, Chakaria, | M K Mohammad Miraj 30/04/2021 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar 01782171171 ) )
Cox'shaza. Rent: Tk12,000/ -
. . Office Space: 850Sft
30 | Bhola A K M Hossain | Habib Super Market: (4th Floor) | o o \wahid 310712024 | Advence | -0
01716899374 Mohajon Potti sadar RoadBhola .
Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
- Mowlana Jahangir Alam Market, P.O: Office Space: 1000Sft
31 Pekuya (Metro) PTG Shajidul Pekuya, Chowmohoni, Dist: Coxs Mowlan.a Mohammad 31/05/2024 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar 01782171171 Jahangir Alam .
Bazar. Rent: Tk4,800 /-
West World Sopping City (8th Floor) M ofik Ahmed Office Space: 870Sft
32 Sylhet (Metro) Anupam Das 01929191972 | Zollarpar Road, Zindabazar, Sylhet - Choudhury 31/10/2022 Advance: 65,000/-
3100. Rent: Tk13,000 /-
M.B Complex (3rd floor) Muntasir
Center (6thFloor) 253, CD.A Avenue Office Space: 700Sft
33 Wasa(Metro) Syattajit Das Gupta - | Wasa Circle Taj Mohammad 31/01/2026 Advance: 3,00,000/-
01881714850 P. O: -Dam paradP.S. KhulshiDist: Rent: Tk 56,000 /-
Chittagong
Md Golam Kibria Holding no -512Naresh Chanhan rc_)ad _ Office Space: 1400Sft
34 Thakurgaon (Metro) 017.12646747 Thakurgaon Sadar P S + Dist: | Rashida Begum 30/09/2024 Advance:100,000/-
Thakurgaon Rent: Tk14,000 /-
. - Dangbangla para (2nd Floor) P.O: Office Space: 840Sft
35 xﬂa;?;hkhall M:::vagdﬂgzﬂlslhﬂldu' Gorakgata P.S.: Maheshkhali Anwar Pasha 31/01/2021 Advance: 1,00,000/-
Dist: CoxsBazar Rent: Tk11,400 /-
Office Space: 1800 Sft
36 | B-Baria (Metro) Anupam Das 01929191972| —C Tower (3th Floor) Md Samsul Haq 31/12/2024 | Advance: 72,000/-
Court Road, Brahmanbaria )
Rent: Tk 30,000 /-
Monohorgonj Bazar P.O + P.S: M/S M ofassar Traders Office Space: 100 Sft
37 Monohorgonj Bazar | Sheikh Farid 01715700111 | Monohorgonj (Mofassar 30/04/2022 Advance: 3,000/-
Dist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 3,000 /-
38 Laldighi (Metro 65201Md. Anowar | Gazi Tower (2nd Floor) 47 Office Space: 660 Sft
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Name ofin S Principal terms and
Sl. Description charge& IP/Mobile No Location Name of the lessor datlz ;); ethe Condition Remarks
Hoasen Laldighi ,P.O; SadaP.S: Kotowali Dist: | Mohammad Saifullah 31/03/2022 Advance: 50,000/-
01815826206 Chittagong. Rent: Tk13,200 /-
A . . . . . Office Space: 1500 Sft
39 | Keranihat (Metro) Slhgl“gggfffi“ FEEED \é'i!tfczit?é'oﬁera”'hat' P53 sEiEnt vl Alam 30/04/2021 | Advance: 50,000/
' gong. Rent: Tk15,000 -
Gazi Badrujjaman _ | 1049, Hathazari City Corporation (3rd Office Space: 1970 Sft
40 Hathazari (Metro) floor) P.O. + P.S: Hathazari Dist: . Advance: 45,000/-
01849742085 Chittagong. Ahammed Hossain 31/01/2022 Rent: Tk15,000 /-
I . . . Office Space: 800 Sft
41 Taraganj (Metro) ek ol LTS Paschlm. Kyr§h§ Qorjlpara P.O+PS: Md. Sonaulla Sarker 30/06/2020 Advance: 12,000/-
01712646747 Taraganj Dist:Dinajpur .
Rent: Tk4,000
Dagonbhuva Mohammed Shahalam - 74, "Al - Nur Jame Moszid " Market | Al-Nur Jame Office Space: 1024 Sft
42 (Mgtro) Y UL LI (3rd Floor) Chowmuhani Road, P.O + | Moszid(Mahmudul 30/06/2022 | Advance: / -O
P.S: DagonbhuiyanDist: Feni. Huge) Rent: Tk14,000
, - 58, "Al Aksa Shoping Tower Office Space: 1050 Sft
43 (Ch;’;‘tfo'?azar Agency M:::vr\',‘::agﬂgzﬂflh?al“d“' Market(2nd Floor) P.O: Chiringa P.S: wi A@'u staegv,:\za:;d. 30/06/2029 | Advance: 2,00,000/-
Chokoria Dist: Cox's bazar. vy Rent: Tk 32,000
. - ) . Office Space:875 Sft
44 | Kurigram (Metro) Md. ~ Maidul Islam | Vill: GoshparaP.O + P.S: Kurigram | »yjina khatun 31/10/20 | Advance: 15,000/-
01722853179 Sadar Dist: Kurigram .
Rent: Tk 5,000
Fair PlazaPlot -C/3Block -D Road no . Office Space: 750 Sft
. ) - Make Fair &Ltd. (On i
45 Mirpur (Metro) Shol Rana 913433353 -1 P.S.; ShahoaliMirpur -1, BehalfMd Aga Khan) 31/08/2020 Advance: 1,00,000/-
Dist: Dhaka. 9 Rent: Tk15,000
Holding no- 626 Kayatpara P.O: Office Space: 680 Sft
46 Panchagarh (Metro) | Md. Alamgir 0 1737958345| Panchagarh -5000 P.S: Panchagarh | Md Jahangir Alam Jhunu 30/11/2023 Advance: 70,000/-
Sadar Dist: Panchagarh Rent: Tk 8,000
. . 492, Fulgazi Trade Center(2nd Floor) . . Office Space: 667 Sft
47 | Fulgazi (Metro) il Hossain | \\oin Road P.O+ P.S: FulgaziDist: | famal Uddin Firoz Md | 5101 o656 | advance: 60,000/
01813180269 . Mostafa Md Ibrahim )
Feni. Rent: Tk 10,000
Md Tiou Sultan House no - 48 Sher-E - Bangla Sarak Office Space: 1003 Sft
48 Jhenaidah (Metro) 017.16925055 P.O. + P.S: Jhenaidah Sada, Dist: Md.Mohiuddin 30/11/2020 Advance: 30,000/-
Jhenaidah ' Rent: Tk 6,000
49 Jatrabari(Metro) Md. Hasanur Rahman | 326, South  Kajla P.O:Dania, Office Space: 800 Sft
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Name ofin S Principal terms and
Sl. Description charge& IP/Mobile No Location Name of the lessor datli ;); ethe Condition Remarks
01982745989 P.O:Jatrabari, Dist: Dhaka. Md Habibur Rahman 31/07/2022 Advance: 2,00,000/-
Khan Rent: Tk 14,000/-
50 Mohammad Obaidul | Vil  Coat road P.O +. S| Khan Enterprise (Rafiqul 31/07/2020 %T,Zifgage: 240Stt
Kendua Islam Khan 01740965846 | KenduaDist: Netrokona Islam Khan) e
Rent: Tk 3,200 /-
Titon Place (5th Floor) Moddho .
. Office Space: 60,000Sft
51 Gaibandha (Metro) e, DOBIEPST (REVTEDD ParaBoad MOddhO. Para . .| Yesse Traders (MdNur - | 30/05/2022 Advance: O
01710482733 P. O: + P. S Gaibandha Sadamist: . .
. A - Habib) Rent: Tk 12,000 /-
Gaibandha
. Office Space: 1100Sft
52 | Madhabpur (Metro) | Anupam Das 01929191972| HOIing no - 349, Bus Stand Road P.Q y, £o 5 pian 31/01/2022 | Advance: 96000/-
+ P.S:Madhabpur Dist: Hobiganj
o ) ) Rent: Tk 8,000 /-
Mohammad Monzur | Flat no - A - 2 (2nd floor) Plot no -06 Office Space: 3000Sft
53 Gulshan (Metro) Morshed Gulshan Avenue Block - SW (H) 31/01/2028 Advance: 4,50,000/-
01765075987 Dhaka -1212. Meherunnesa Rent: Tk 1,50,000 F
. . Faizul Karim Md Office Space: 1600Sft
54 | Titas (Metro) 'i‘;“ldlaz‘é‘glqu“e :,'t;i ;Os‘;v,eé'r alhlrgzn'\g;rsigd RoadP.O +| \1oharak Hossain And | 31/03/2021 | Advance: 2,00,000/-
’ ’ ’ Saber Ahmed Rent: Tk 22,400 /-
. - . Office Space: 598Sft
55 | Lama (Metro) Mok Shajidul | Vill: ‘Lama Pourashava P.Q + P.St| \\yop., 30/11/2023 | Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar 01782171171 LamabDist: Bandarban. )
Rent: Tk 3,000 /-
. . . ! . . Office Space:800 Sft
55 | e
~~hitagong. Rent: Tk 10,500 /-
Imam Hossain Anowara Shoping Complex (2nd Office Space:1300 Sft
57 Parshuram (Metro) 01823727484 Floor) Main Road,Parshuram Bazar, | Md.Khairul Bashar 28/02/2021 Advance: 60,000/-
P.O +P.S:Parshuram,Dist: Feni. Rent: Tk 10,000 /-
. . . Office Space:650 Sft
58 Bandarban (Metro) Mohammad Shajidul | Hamid Market(2 no goli) Bandarban Rehena Akter 31/10/2021 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar 01782171171 Bazar Bandarban. .
Rent: Tk 5,500 /-
. Vill: Nur Nagar P.O: Chuadanga . Office Space:650 Sft
59 g\;‘;"’r‘g;"”a'ya Mohi Uddin 0 1621328651 | P.S:  Chuadanga  Sadar  Dist: I\S/Ir;ig?rt:;i?iju'taba 31/07/2022 | Advance: 22,500/
Chuadanga. ) Rent: Tk 7,500 /-
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Debidwar New Market (2nd Floor) Office Space:900 Sft
60 Debidwar (Metro) Anupam Das 01929191972| JanataSuper Market, P.O + P.S:| Delowar Hossain 30/06/2024 Advance: 50,000/-
Debidwar Dist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 8,000 /-
. Taher Mansion (st Floor) High School Office Space:960 Sft
61 Basurhat (Metro) (I\)/Ilughlz;rgsr‘nzagtiéla il Road, P.G Basurhat P.S: a:::]);amBegum L) /25l 30/06/2022 Advance: 60,000/-
Companiganj District :Noakhali. Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
Emtiaz Mugdho (Abir Al - | 229, Zilla Sadar Road, Akur Takur M/S Brothers Furniture Office Space:1300 Sft
62 Tangail (Metro) Amin) Para, P.Q Tangail -1900 P.S: Tangail Galler 28/02/2023 Advance: 1,00,000/-
01712740108 Sadar Dist: Tangail. y Rent: Tk 15,000 /-
- Office Space:1200 Sft
63 | Jamalpur (Metrg) | DU1al Kumar 1192 Tomal Tola Boro Mosjid Road | 14 apqys samad 30/04/2024 | Advance: 40,000/-
01754358042 P.O. + P.S 4Dist: Jamalpur. .
Rent: Tk 10,000 /-
Basudeb Chandra Fancy New Market Jamalour road Office Space:528 Sft
64 | Digpait (Metro) Kormokar il éomia Bazar .S ot F\)Jamal "+ | Muttakin Islam Mukta 31/01/2022 | Advance:Of -
01717783715 ~ ' ' P Rent: Tk 2,500 /-
Md. Anowar Hoasen M.M. Tower East Gomdandi P.O East| Abu Jafar Mohammed Office Space:648 Sft
65 Boalkhali (Metro) 01515826206 Gomdandi P.S: Boalkhali Dist: | Musa & Mohammad 29/02/2024 Advance:1,00,000/-
Chittagong. Ashraful Islam Rent: Tk 8500/-
- - . . . . Office Space:200 Sft
66 | Matarbari (Metro) | vohammad ~ Shajidul | Vill: - Mog DailP.O.; Matarbari P.S:| o poyop 30/06/2029 | Advance:50,000/-
Anowar 01782171171 Maheshkhali, Dist Cox's Bazar. .
Rent: Tk 2000/-
. . . Chowmuhani plaza (4th Floor) D.B Office Space:1680 Sft
67 (Ch;‘gt"r"c:;‘”ha”' '(\)"1“'7136'1b3r§‘2'2m Khalil | poad, P.0:  Chowmuhani ~ P.S:| Shamsudhoha 28/02/2030 | Advance:1,00,000/-
Begumganj Dist: Noakhali. Rent: Tk 18,000/-
. ) Office Space:360 Sft
68 Dewanganj (Metro) Ruaida Jannat 588_/1’(|5t Floor). Ward Nq 04, P.O: + Nasima Akter 31/12/2022 Advance:40,000/-
01727643994 P.S: DewanganjBazar, Dist: Jamalpur .
Rent: Tk 5,000/-
. . Rakib Plaza Ac Market(2nd Floor) Office Space:900 Sft
69 fﬁg:g?zmgency ?)/I1d£3127$225%l;3| Hoque | \ioiding no - 07 Pour Chator P.O +P. 'I;Ar?ui g’r']OSharaf HOsseN | 31/01/2024 | Advance:60,000/-
S SonagaziDist: Feni. y Rent: Tk 10,000/-
House no - 04 RN. Road Chowrasta Office Space:800 Sft
70 Jessore (Metro) Anupam Das 01929191972 Umesh Chandra Lane P.O + P.S:| A.K.M Khairat Hossain 28/02/2025 Advance:20,4,000/-

Kotwali Dist: Jessore

Rent: Tk 17,000/-
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Muktijoddha Mohammad Ali )
Office Space:930 Sft
71 Gazipur (Metro) L4 EElE] A TowerFIa.u o -ZeiE ) Road no Fatema Khatun 31/01/2025 Advance:50,000/-
01912078618 -27 P.O: Ershad Nagar, P.S: Tongi, .
- . Rent: Tk 15,000/
Dist: Gazipur.
Md Mohsin Khan Golabari New Dc office (1st Floor) Office Space:550 Sft
72 Madaripur (Metro) 017.83681217 P.O + P.S: Madaripur Sadar | Minara Sultana Reepa 30/04/2022 Advance:50,000/-
Dist: Madaripur Rent: Tk 5,000/-
Bapoi Kanii Lal Bhairabpur (Ari Baparir Bari) 1st Office Space:768 Sft
73 Bhairab (Metro) 01;);7321(1559 Floor P.O: + P.SBhairabDist: | Salam Miah 31/03/2025 Advance:30,000/-
Kishoreganj Rent: Tk 10,000/-
. Box Ali Meahgi Bari (2nd Floor) . Office Space:700 Sft
74 | Shebarhat (Metro) ('\)"1%2"“5”;’1“3%‘:5'1'“&”‘ HOSSIN | pajarampur  P.O:  Shebarhat, P.S: ngfgﬁlf”ah And Md. | 5010012026 | Advance:60,000/-
Senbagh,Dist: Noakhali Rent: Tk 6,500/-
Sara Bhaban - 2 (Ground Floor) )
. . Office Space:1200 Sft
75 | Chuadanga (Metro) | Anupam Das 01929191972| >h'anid Abul Kashem Sorok P.O: | Shahabuddin 31/01/2025 | Advance:1,87,200/-
ChuadangaP.S: Chuadanga Sadar] Mohammad Mujtaba .
. Rent: Tk 15,600/
Dist: Chuadanga.
. Block -A /5 House no - 10 P.O: Office Space:979 Sft
76 (Tl\";l‘ggi')' Sadar ('\)Aliuo:osgstgfu' Alam | o hgailP.s: Tangail Sadar Dist: | Md. Ashraful Alam 31/01/2025 | Advance:30,000/-
Tangail Rent: Tk 15,000/-
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Export Possibilities and Obligation:
The Company does not have any product regarding exports because the company is a life insurance
service provider.

(ix) Competitive conditions in business with names, percentage and volume  of market share of
major competitors;

Competitive Conditions of Business:

There are 29 private, 1 nationalized and 2 foreign life insurance companies in the country, having
extensive branch networks, holding huge premium deposit and enjoying certain prerogatives. The
third -generation private sector insurance companies comparatively having large branch networks,
reasonable access to technology and market. As a result, intense competition exists in this industry.
Although there is much competition in the insurance sector, the Sonali Life Insurance Company Ltd.
has earned a notable position in this market through its performance, reliabilities, efficient
management, experience and acceptance by its clients.

Turnover paid -up capital of some listed life insurance companies as par thar annual report ended 31
December 2018are mention below:

GrossPremium Paid-up Capital

SL. No. Company Name (Taka in crore) (Taka ?n crcr:re)
1. Meghna Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 432.91 33.52
2. Pragati Life insurance Co. Ltd. 255.99 13.34
3. Progressive Life Insurance Co.Ltd. 65.20 12.87

(x) Sources and availability of raw materials and the Names and address of the principal suppliers
and contingency plan in the case of disruption.

SLICL is a life insurance service provider, so this clause is not applicable here.
Contingency plan in cas e of Disruption of supplier
Not applicable.

(xi) Sources of, and requirement for, power, gas and water; or any other utilities and contingency
plan in case of any disruption;

The Company does not produce any product using power, gas and water. Therefore, it does not
require such utilities except for ordinary use in administrative work

(xii) Names, address(s), telephone number, web address, e-mail and fax number of the customers
who account for 10% or more of t he ¢ o mp a ny 6os semice onvthuticet amount and
percentage thereof

The Company has no such customer who contributes 10% or more of the total revenue.

(xiii) Names, address(s), telephone number, web address, e-mail and fax number of the suppliers

from whom account for 10% or more of its raw materials or finished goods with the amount

and percentage thereof

There are no suppliers who provided 10% or more ofits raw material/ finished goods.
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(xiv) Description of any contract which the issuer has with its principal suppliers or customers
of transaction for which the contract is made and the
duration of the contract. If there is not any of such contract, a declaration is to be disclosed

showing the total amount and quality

duly signed by the CEO or MD, CFO and Chairman on behalf of the Board of Directors

The Company has no such contract with principal suppliers or Customers.

Declaration regarding Contract with Principal suppliers or customers

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors certify that Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited did not
enter into any contract with its principal suppliers or customers.

Sd/-

Shah Abu Khair

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 08July, 2020

Sd/-

Mir Rashed Bin Aman
Chief Executive Officer (CC)

Sd/-

Noor -E-Hafza
Chairman

(xv) Description of licenses, registration, NOC and permissions obtained by the Company with
issue, renewal and expiry dates

Description of licenses, registrations, NOC and permissions obtained by the issuer with issue,
renewal and expiry dates:

Name of : .
. : Registration/
Licenses, License Issuer/ o :
: . . certificate/License Date of Date of
Sk | i, s No./ Permission letter LI Renewal expi
NOC and Authority : NoO piry
permission :
Registrar of Joint
p | Certificate of j Stock C-110085/13 07/07/2013 N/A N/A
Incorporation | Companies and
Firms
Trade Dhaka South
2 License City No-02009123 16/08/2020 | 30/ 06/2020 | 30/06/2021
Certificate Corporation
Controller of Applied to
3 | Certificate of | insurance Life 02/2013 30/07/2013 | 01/01/2021 | 'PRATOr
Registration | (Duly renewed renewal as
by IDRA) 03/11/2020
Insurance
NOC to raise | Development 53.03.0000.031.50.001
4 capital Regulatory 7.04 12/12/2017 N/A N/A
through IPO | Authority Dated:12/12/2017
(IDRA)
Customs, Excise
Vat & VAT
5 i Commission 0020206440202 01/ 08/ 2019 N/A N/A
Certificate
rate, Dhaka
(South)
National Board
6 TIN 311559304032 20/07/ 2013 N/A N/A
of Revenue
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(xvi) Description of any material patents, trademarks, licenses or royalty agreements

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited does not have any material patents, trademarks, licenses or
royalty agreements except as mentioned in the above table.

(xvii) Number of total employees and number of full -time employees

The company has211full time employees as on December 31, 2019. The details are given below:

Salary Range Catedor Officers and Staffs Workers Total
(Monthly) gory Head Office Branch (Permanent)
Above Taka 3,000/ Full tlme Employees 98 113 - 211
Part time employees - - - -
Below Taka 3,000~ |—-ultime Employees - - - -
Part time employees - - - -
Total 98 113 - 211

(xviii) Brief Description of Business strategy
SLICL6s key strategic objectives are to

A Ensure sustainable growth and modernization of existing facilities with potential for
success through increasing Life insurance premium and valued customer service and
transparency;

Achieve global competitiveness and to derive the full benefit of our World class ERB
advantage;

Achieve technological superiority in our potential market ;

Strengthening financial resources; and

To optimize our shareholders' return/risk pr ofile by ensuring that shareholders' equity
continues to reflect both the volume of business and a corresponding investment policy

p>

> > >

(xix) A table containing the existing installed capacities for each product or service, capacity
utilization for these products or services in the previous years, projected capacities for
existing as well as proposed products or services and the assumptions for future capacity
utilization for the next three years in respect of existing as well as proposed products or
services. If the projected capacity utilization is higher than the actual average capacity
utilization, rational to achieve the projected level;

There is no such capacity in this respect.
(e) Description of Property

() Location and area of the land, building, principal plants and other property of the company
and the condition there of;

The company possesses the fowing fixed assets as on December 31, 2019

Particulars Location ‘ Area | Condition
Land, Building andPrincipal .
Nil
Plant
Other Property The company Head Office is
(Furniture & fixture, Computer located at 68/B, Malibagh, Dhaka . .
hardware, Office & Electric | and the restoffice are in the Nil Atthe possessionof the SLICL
equipment, Motor vehicles ) branch offices.
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(ii) Whether the property is owned by the company or taken on lease;

The company does not have any immoveable property but other moveable properties as mention
above are ownedby the company.

(iii) Dates of purchase, last payment date of current rent (LvRbwgnd mutation date of lands, deed

value and other costs including details of land development cost, if any and current use
thereof;

Not applicable.

(iv) The names of the persons from wh om the lands have been acquired/ proposed to be acquired

v)

(vi)

along with the costof acquisition and relation, if any, of such persons to the issuer or any
sponsor or director there of;

Not applicable

Details of whether the issuer has received all the approvals pertaining to use of the land, if
required;

At present the company usageoffice spaces for its headoffice and branch offices on rental basis
and all formalities in this regard has been done by company.

If the property is owned by the issuer, whether there is a mortgage or other type  of charge on
the property, with name of the mortgagee;

Not applicable.
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(vii) If the property is taken on lease, the expiration dates of the lease with name of the lesser, principal terms and conditions of the lease agreements

and details of payment;

No property is taken on lease except theoffice premises, which are rented for Extended Head office and Branch Offices under operating lease agreement. The
detail is shown in the table below:

Name ofIn

Expiration date of

Principal terms and

Sl. Description charge& Mobile No Location Name of the lessor the lease Condition Remarks
. A . Office Space: 1400 Sft
o1 | Mateel ()
q ! pany ttd. Rent: Tk 40,000/-
. Mir Rashed Bin Aman 68/B DIT Road Chowdhury Para, | Mostafa Golam Office SPace: 8300Sft
02 | Malibagh +8809678200004 Malibagh Dhaka Quddus 81/12/2021 Advance: O
9 Rent: Tk 40,56,500+
Muhammad Akbar 806/ A o0Boshor Ma n § Office Space:950Sft
03 | Bakulia Hossain 1815814826 Flyover Link Road, P.O: Bahaddarhat, | Hassan Murad 30/11/2020 Advance: 50,000/~
P.S: Chandgaon,Dist:Chittagong Rent: Tk 7,000/-
. . Office Space:1200Sft
h
04 | Comilla g??;lguzlzgizzn Jean ;\Il:(?r?;':f}aézn?j?gf (’:\lg;fiﬁ;AvenUe @ Md. Ibrahim Miah 30/11/2022 Advance: 41,600/-
P ' Rent: Tk 20,800/-
Rashed Ahmed 110 no. Karim Super Market (34 floor), Office Space:875Sft
05 | Rajshahi 01727865865 P.O: Ghoramara,P.S: Bowaliya, Dist:| Zahar Lal Joysoyal 28/02/2021 Advance: 42,000/-
Rajshahi. Rent: Tk 14,000/-
House 170 (2nd Floor) Block- D Road Office Space:2100 Sft
06 | Sugandha Baby Das 1813781371 | No -2, Sugandha Residential Area | Sheikh Abdul Motin 31/12/2022 Advance:O
Panchlaish, Chittagong Rent: Tk 42,000/
Md Abu Tayub . . Office Space:1050 Sft
07 | Meah Bazar Mozumder gzngﬁgﬁiﬁ; f;on?gigj%ome"?: Bazar Saidunnessa 30/06/2022 Advance:O
01711701865 > 9 : ' Rent: Tk 12,000/-
. Md. Jalil Miah Baima Hati,P.0.+ P.S:MirzaPur, Md. Mosaraf Office Space:600 Sft
08 | Mirza Pur 1829266697 Dist: Tanaail Hossain 30/09/2024 Advance:O
- rangatl. Rent: Tk 4,500/-
. e S . . Office Space:100 Sft
09 | Chandanish g"lo7hlaﬂ4mf§7'§'a“dd'” gﬁ:nj;‘g:ils'r\faé';?tttélztnﬂw)’ boiltoli '\BA:Q iﬁ"m“r Rashid 31/03/2022 Advance:10,000/-
' gong. y Rent: Tk 1,300/-
.. . Md. Abdur Rohim, Office Space:2300
10 | Kasba (Metro) ';";1' 1“;32%%'?&“"‘&” ig‘::tgtr?Bi‘;g‘rp'i’;fgazr;’BaF:i‘;‘”’ Kasba | 14" ‘Gulam  Zilani 31/05/2021 SftAdvance:2,40,000/-
' ' ) Abdul Rowf Mulla Rent: Tk 20,000/-
11 | Bonpara Rashed Ahmed Shohid Dr. AynulHoque Mayor Bonpara 30/09/2020 Office Space:1188 Sft
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Name ofIn

Expiration date of

Principal terms and

Sl. Description charge& Mobile No Location Name of the lessor the lease Condition Remarks
01727865865 PourashavaSuper Market (3rd Floor), | Pourashava Advance:50,000/-
P.O:HararaP.O:Boraigram, Dist: Rent: Tk 8330/-
Nator.
. . Office Space:667Sft
12 | Feni (Metro) Mohammed Aziz Shopping C_enter (4th Floor), 189, Ayesha Akter 30/04/2026 Advance:O
Shahalam- 1818887246 | S.SK. Road, Feni. )
Rent: Tk 21,600/
Raiu Ahamed Vill: Shomserabad, Kamrul Alam Office Space:1250 Sft
13 | Laxmipur 01;26058596 P.O: Laxmipur , P.S: Laxmipur Sadar, Chowdhu 31/12/2022 Advance:20,000/-
Dist: Laxmipur. Y Rent: Tk 7,000/-
Kanchan Bhatacharjee | Vill: SultanpurP.O + P.S: Raozan, | Mohammed Abul Office Sp.ace:396 Sft
14 | Raozan 1881715191 Dist: Chittagon Kashem Chowdhur 30/04/2021 Advance:15,000/-
~Lnitagong. y Rent: Tk 4,500/-
. . . Office Space:805 Sft
15 | Netrokona ?;1? 46932?IZSarker ;Be?:;i(osnh:\hor Satpai,p.0.+ P.S. Dist Jinat Ara Parvin 30/11/2020 Advance:O
Rent: Tk 6,500/-
Vill;  Srishtighor (Bus Stand Bazar) Office Space:100 Sft
N Md. Lutfur Rahman ! . T on - . )
16 | Norshingdi (Takaful) 1820511528 P.O: Chaitanya, P.S: Shibpur, Dist: | Azizul Islam 30/09/2020 Advance:O
Norshingdi. Rent: Tk 700/-
. . Office Space: 8300Sft
17 | Metro Head Office Té;gg‘g;‘ggoggoﬁma” &8; l?baD'L gﬂii;ho"vdh“ry Para DITCL 31/12/2021 Advance: O
9 Rent: Tk 4,56,500 ¢
I House No -196, Road no- 1 P.G Office Space: 1000Sft
18 | Rangpur (Metro) gﬂfiz(gilg$1;<|brla Alamnagar, P.S: Kotwali, gﬁgxgﬁjr Ara 31/10/2021 Advance: 39,000/-
Dist:Rangpur. Y Rent: Tk 13,000 /-
Block No -l, Holding No - 174 )
. ’ . ’ Office Space: 550Sft
. Koibollodham R/ A, Shahjahan . )
19 | Akborshah (Takaful) g"lo7hla1’22f§73A'aUdd'” Bhaban, (st Floor) SeverMarket, P.O: l\RAgiia sga:;ﬁha” & 31/12/2020 ’Q‘i‘r’s_”ﬁs'gsg(s%ofl -
Ferozshah, P.SAkborshah, Dist: 9 ’ ’
Chittagong.
Islami Bank Bhaban (2nd Floor) Office Space: 750Sft
20 | Sandip Town (Takaful) '1”51'6'\%23?9" Hosen | | aramia, P.O: Sanerhat, P.S: Sandwip, nggt‘f]:'rs Alam - and 30/04/2022 Advance: 21,000/-
Dist: Chittagong. Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
21 | Comilla (Metro) Md Reaz Uddin | Nahar Plaza 67/58 Nazrul Avenue (8 th ggt;ifepﬁ:;ggg?Sﬂ
- . ; . . 142,
01677717153 floor) 2nd Kandipar Comilla. Md. Ibrahim Miah 31/08/2023 Rent: Tk 24.000/-
Shawpan Mahmud Jongi Shibpur Bazar Vill: Hosen Nogar Office Space: 1350Sft
22 | Shibpur Bazar P P.O: Hosen Nogar P.S: Raypura Dist:| Shawpan Mahmud 30/09/2023 Advance: O

1710837647

Norshingdi

Rent: Tk 2,000 /-
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Name ofIn

Expiration date of

Principal terms and

Sl. Description charge& Mobile No Location Name of the lessor the lease Condition Remarks
23 | Tangail Md. Ebrahim Sarkar House no - 410 Kodalia (1st Floor), | Md Shafiqul Islam 28/02/2022 /?;ill(;icsepzcoe:(}(?oc;?Sﬂ
1712695506 P.O.: 1900P.S:+ Dist: Tangail. Bhuiyan Rent: Tk 7,500/~
. - . . . Office Space: 500Sft
24 | Sandip Akborhat (Takaful) Mohammed Alauddin V'."' .Gasuya P.0: Gasuya P.S: Sandip Joynal Abedin 31/05/2025 Advance: 20,000/-
01711444073 Dist: Chittagong. .
Rent: Tk 5,000 /-
. . . . . Office Space: 500Sft
Sondhip Shiberhat | Md. Amir Hazer Bari, mait Vanga, .
25 . . . . Md.Idris Meah 31/03/2020 Advance: O
(Takaful) Samsuddin1829668437 | shiberhat, Sondhip, Chittagong. Rent: Tk 5,500 /-
Ratan Chandra Das Vill: Bhuschi Bazar Office Space:900Sft
26 | Bhuschi Bazar (Laksam) 1711710163 P.O: Choto Sharitpur-3573 Kazi Moniruzzaman 31/10/2023 Advance: O
P.S: Sadar DakshinDist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 1,000 /-
Md. Mohinul Hogue Chowdhury Center (3rd Floor),225/ Office Space: 1050Sft
27 | Chittagong (Metro) Khan _ 181373(]3051 A, C D A Avinew, Muradpur, [Taslima Nasrin 30/04/2022 Advance: 50,000/-
Chittagong. Rent: Tk19,000 /-
Kashem Plaza (2nd Floor) Building no )
Mohammad Shajidul - 1/3 Kalur DékanMain )Road F?O' . Office Space: 900Sft
28 | Cox's Bazar(Metro) . 0 | Ismail Jahed 28/02/2022 Advance: 2,00,000/-
Anowar -1782171171 | Coxs Bazar P.S: Saday Dist: Coxs X
Rent: Tk 21,000 -
Bazar.
. Abdul Motlob Shopping Complex Office Space: 1300Sft
29 | Chokoria (Metro) Mg:gxg?a_dlig?glfﬂl (2nd Floor), Chiringa, Chakaria, MMiral'( pichamae 30/04/2021 Advance: 50,000/-
Cox'sbaza. J Rent: Tk12,000 /-
. . . Office Space: 850Sft
30 | Bhola A KM Hossain - Habib Super Market: (4th Floon) . 0 wanid 31/07/2024 Advance: / -O
1716899374 Mohajon Potti sadar RoadBhola .
Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
. Mowlana Jahangir Alam Market, P.O: Office Space: 1000Sft
31 | Pekuya (Metro) e Pekuya, Chowmohoni, Dist Coxs [1oWlana Mohammad 31/05/2024 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar -1782171171 Jahangir Alam .
Bazar. Rent: Tk4,800 /-
. West World Sopping City (8th Floor) ) Office Space: 870Sft
32 | Sylhet (Metro) Az;ggrlng?g% Zollarpar Road, Zindabazar, Sylhet - MCOl:"c:udhur Ahmed 31/10/2022 Advance: 65,000/-
3100. y Rent: Tk13,000 /-
M.B Complex (3rd floor) Muntasir
Svattaiit Das Gupta - Center (6thFloor) 253, CD.A Avenue Office Space: 700Sft
33 | Wasa(Metro) 133’81711 2850 P Wasa Circle Taj Mohammad 31/01/2026 Advance: 3,00,000/-
P. O: -Dam paradP.S. Khulshi Dist: Rent: Tk 56,000 /-
Chittagong
34 | Thakurgaon (Metro) Md. Golam Kibria Holding no -512Naresh Chanhan road Rashida Begum 30/09/2024 Office Space: 1400Sft

1712646747

Thakurgaon Sadar P S + Dist:

Advance:100,000/-
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Thakurgaon Rent: Tk14,000 /-
- Dangbangla para (2nd Floor) P.O: Office Space: 840Sft
35 | Maheshkhali (Metro) Mgzsx;?a_d;ggjglfﬂl Gorakgata P.S.: Maheshkhali Anwar Pasha 31/01/2021 Advance: 1,00,000/-
Dist: CoxsBazar Rent: Tk11,400 /-
Office Space: 1800 Sft
36 | B-Baria (Metro) aubpamla g F.C Tower (3th Floor) Md Samsul Hag 31/12/2024 Advance: 72,000/-
1929191972 Court Road, Brahmanbaria .
Rent: Tk 30,000 -
. . Monohorgonj Bazar P.O + P.S: Office Space: 100 Sft
37 | Monohorgonj Bazar f;‘fg;hogi‘;'f Monohorgon M(’“SA gﬂa‘;‘;ﬁsar LTEE B 30/04/2022 Advance: 3,000/-
Dist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 3,000 /-
65201Md. Anowar Gazi Tower (2nd  Floor) 47 Office Space: 660 Sft
38 | Laldighi (Metro Hoasen Laldighi ,P.O; SadaP.S: Kotowali Dist: . Advance: 50,000/-
1815826206 Chittagong. Mohammad Saifullah 31/03/2022 Rent: Tk13,200 /-
S M Mohiuddin ) . . . . Office Space: 1500 Sft
39 | Keranihat (Metro) Faruquee \élilétfcﬁi.t(t)a..oﬁeranlhat, PSS ST Faridul Alam 30/04/2021 Advance: 50,000/~
1819534141 ' 9ong. Rent: Tk15,000 /-
Gazi Badrujjaman - 1049, Hathazari City Corporation (3rd Office Space: 1970 Sft
40 | Hathazari (Metro) floor) P.O. + P.S: Hathazari Dist: . Advance: 45,000/-
1849742085 Chittagong. IAhammed Hossain 31/01/2022 Rent: Tk15,000 /-
. . " . Office Space: 800 Sft
41 | Taraganj (Metro) AIE, I (I3 Paschlm_ K_urtc,h_a I_Dorjlpara O Md. Sonaulla Sarker 30/06/2020 Advance: 12,000/-
1712646747 Taraganj Dist:Dinajpur X
Rent: Tk4,000
Mohammed Shahalam 74, "Al - Nur Jame Moszid " Market Al - Nur Jame Office Space: 1024 Sft
42 | Dagonbhuya (Metro) - 01818887246 (3rd Floor) Chowmuhani Road, P.O + | Moszid(Mahmudul 30/06/2022 Advance: / -O
P.S: DagonbhuiyanDist: Feni. Huge) Rent: Tk14,000
Cox's Bazar Agency Mohammad Shaiidul 58, "Al Aksa Shoping Tower [M/S Al Aksa Pvt Ltd. Office Space: 1050 Sft
43 | Setro) gency Ao 17821171171 Market(2nd Floor) P.O: Chiringa P.S: | (Md Abu Nayyem 30/06/2029 Advance: 2,00,000/-
Chokoria Dist: Cox's bazar. Azad) Rent: Tk 32,000
. - . . Office Space: 875 Sft
44 | Kurigram (Metro) Md. Maidul Islam - Vil GqshpargP.O *+ P.S: Kurigram IAklima Khatun 31/10/20 Advance: 15,000/-
1722853179 SadarDist: Kurigram .
Rent: Tk 5,000
Fair PlazaPlot -C/3Block -D Road no - . Office Space: 750 Sft
45 | Mirpur (Metro) fgf;f;‘;;% 1 P.S.; ShahoaliMirpur -1, Mg';ﬁam; /f‘L;dkh;on;' 31/08/2020 Advance: 1,00,000/-
Dist: Dhaka. 9 Rent: Tk15,000
o Holding no- 626 Kayatpara P.O: . Office Space: 680 Sft
46 | Panchagarh (Metro) ';"7"?;7’32;”3% Panchagarh -5000 P.S: Panchagarh MthunJuahang" Alam 30/11/2023 Advance: 70,000/-
Sadar Dist: Panchagarh Rent: Tk 8,000
47 | Fulgazi (Metro) Mimdal Hossain - 492, Fulgazi Trade Center ( 2nd Floor) [Kamal Uddin Firoz 31/01/2026 Office Space: 667 Sft
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1813180269 Main Road P.O+ P.S:FulgaziDist:Feni. | Md Mostafa Md Advance: 60,000/-
Ibrahim Rent: Tk 10,000
Md. Tiou Sultan - House no - 48 Sher-E - Bangla Sarak Office Space: 1003 Sft
48 | Jhenaidah (Metro) 17i6925045 P.O. + P.S: Jhenaidah Sada, Dist: Md.Mohiuddin 30/11/2020 Advance: 30,000/-
Jhenaidah ) Rent: Tk 6,000
. ) . ! ’ Office Space: 800 Sft
49 | JatrabariMetro) Md. Hasanur Rahman 326, S_outh .Kajla P.O:Dania, P.O: | Md Habibur 31/07/2022 Advance: 2,00,000/-
-1982745989 Jatrabari, Dist: Dhaka. Rahman Khan )
Rent: Tk 14,000/
Mohammad Obaidul Vill: Coat road P.O +P. S KenduaDist: [Khan Enterprise Office Space: 240t
50 | Kendua Islam Khan - Netrokona (Rafiqul Islam Khan) 31/07/2020 Advance: O
1740965846 9 Rent: Tk 3,200 /-
_ Titon Place (5th Floor) Moddho Office Space: 60,000Sft
. Md. Mostafizer ParaRoad Moddho Para .
51 | Gaibandha (Metro) Rahman- 1710482733 | P. O: + P. S Gaibandha SadaDist: Yesse Traders (Md Advance: O
G.aibéndha. " | Nur - A - Habib) 30/05/2022 Rent: Tk 12,000 /-
. Office Space: 1100Sft
Anupam Das 8 | Holding no - 349, Bus Stand Road P.O . ) _
52| Madhabpur (Metro) 1029191972 + P.S:Madhabpur Dist: Hobiganj.  |0-Faysol Miah 31/01/2022 Advance: 96000/
Rent: Tk 8,000 /-
Mohammad Monzur Flat no - A - 2 (2nd floor) Plot no -06 Office Space: 3000Sft
53 | Gulshan (Metro) Morshed Gulshan Avenue Block - SW (H) Advance: 4,50,000/-
1765075987 Dhaka -1212. Meherunnesa 31/01/2028 Rent: Tk 1,50,000 F
. Amdadul Hoque Titas Tower, 1105 Mosjid RoadP.O + Faizul -~ Karim Mq Office SPace: 1600Sft
54 | Titas (Metro) 1711283145 P.S +Dist: Brahmanbaria Mobarak Hossain 31/03/2021 Advance: 2,00,000/-
) ) ) And Saber Ahmed Rent: Tk 22,400 /-
. - . Office Space: 598Sft
55 | Lama (Metro) AEERTED S=CN] AL L:_:lm.a FRNIEEITATE (P01 == [Pk Md. Ishaq 30/11/2023 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar -1782171171 | LamaDist: Bandarban. )
Rent: Tk 3,000 /-
) - . ) . . . Office Space:800 Sft
56 Dohazari Syattajit Das Gupta - V|_I| .+ P_.O. Dohazari, P.S:Chandanaish Md. Nurul Islam 28/02/2024 Advance: 1,50,000/-
(Metro) 1881714850 Dist: Chittagong. Rent: Tk 10.500 /-
Imam Hossain Anowara Shoping Complex (2nd Office Space:1300 Sft
57 | Parshuram (Metro) 1823727484 Floor) Main Road,Parshuram Bazar, Md.Khairul Bashar 28/02/2021 Advance: 60,000/-
P.O + P.S:Parshuram,Dist: Feni. Rent: Tk 10,000 /-
. . . Office Space:650 Sft
58 | Bandarban (Metro) Mohammad Shajidul Hamid Market(2 no  goli) Bandarban Rehena Akter 31/10/2021 Advance: 50,000/-
Anowar -1782171171 | Bazar Bandarban. .
Rent: Tk 5,500 /-
. Mohi Uddin - | Vill: Nur Nagar P.O: Chuadanga Shahabuddin Office Space:650 Sft
| ClmEREE (E) 1621328651 PS: Chuadanga  Sadar  Dist| Mohammad Mujtaba e Advance: 22,500/-
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Chuadanga. Rent: Tk 7,500 /-
Anupam Das - Debidwar New Market (2nd Floor) Office Space:900 Sft
60 | Debidwar (Metro) 1929191972 JanataSuper Market, P.O + P.S:|Delowar Hossain 30/06/2024 Advance: 50,000/-
Debidwar Dist: Comilla. Rent: Tk 8,000 /-
Muhammad Ala Taher Mansion (st Floor) High School Suraya Begum and Office Space:960 Sft
61 | Basurhat (Metro) Uddin Road, P.Q Basurhat P.S: Companiganj Abul Hashem 30/06/2022 Advance: 60,000/-
1816832945 District :Noakhali. Rent: Tk 7,000 /-
Emtiaz Mugdho (Abir 229, Zilla Sadar Road, Akur Takur M/S Brothers Office Space:1300 Sft
62 | Tangail (Metro) Al -Amin) Para, P.Q Tangail -1900 P.S: Tangail Furniture Gallery 28/02/2023 Advance: 1,00,000/-
1712740108 Sadar Dist: Tangail. Rent: Tk 15,000 /-
. Office Space:1200 Sft
63 | Jamalpur (Metro) I LTy R U] qua =500 [UEel) (Reg Md Abdus Samad 30/04/2024 Advance: 40,000/-
1754358042 P.O. + P.S 4Dist: Jamalpur. .
Rent: Tk 10,000 /-
Basudeb Chandra Fancy New Market Jamalpur road Office Space:528 Sft
64 | Digpait (Metro) Kormokar P.0: Sontia Bazar P.S +Dist: Jamalpur Muttakin Islam Mukta 31/01/2022 Advance: O -
1717783715 T ) ) Rent: Tk 2,500 /-
_ Md. Anowar Hoasen M. M. Tower East Gomdandi P.Q E_ast Abu Jafar Mohammed Office Space:648 Sft
65 | Boalkhali (Metro) 18i5826206 Gomdandi P.S: Boalkhali,Dist: | Musa & Mohammad 29/02/2024 Advance:1,00,000/-
Chittagong. Ashraful Islam Rent: Tk 8500/-
- - . . . . Office Space:200 Sft
66 | Matarbari (Metro ) Mohammad Shajidul Vill: * Mog . DQIIP'O", Matarbari P.S: Noor Baksh 30/06/2029 Advance:50,000/-
Anowar -1782171171 | Maheshkhali, Dist Cox's Bazar.
Rent: Tk 2000/-
Md Ibrahim Khalil - Chowmuhani plaza (4th Floor) D.B Office Space:1680 Sft
67 | Chowmuhani (Metro) 1713613742 Road, P.G  Chowmuhani P.S: [Shamsudhoha 28/02/2030 Advance:1,00,000/-
Begumganj Dist: Noakhali. Rent: Tk 18,000/-
. . Office Space:360 Sft
68 | Dewanganj (Metro) Ruaida Jannat- 588/1,(Ist Floor) Ward No - 04, P.O: + 1 o ayter 31/12/2022 Advance:40,000/-
1727643994 P.S: DewanganjBazar, Dist: Jamalpur i
Rent: Tk 5,000/-
. Rakib Plaza Ac Market(2nd Floor) Office Space:900 Sft
69 | SonagaziAgency (Metro) liﬂéjl?;lezuSI:Boque ) Holding no - 07 Pour Chator P.O +P. Mghll:/ilsasrk]\araf AL 31/01/2024 Advance:60,000/-
S SonagaziDist: Feni. Rent: Tk 10,000/-
Anupam Das - House no - 04 RN. Road Chowrasta A KM Khairat Office Space:800 Sft
70 | Jessore (Metro) 1929191972 Umesh Chandra Lane P.O + P.S: Hossain 28/02/2025 Advance:20,4,000/-
Kotwali Dist: Jessore Rent: Tk 17,000/-
Muktijoddha Mohammad Ali Office Space:930 Sft
71 | Gazipur (Metro) iy IR AR o || IR N AR R [REER 0] = e e 31/01/2025 Advance:50,000/-

1912078618

-27 P.O: Ershad Nagar, P.S: Tongi,
Dist: Gazipur .

Rent: Tk 15,000/-
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Md. Mohsin Khan - Golabari New Dc office (1st Floor) P.O Office Space:550 Sft
72 | Madaripur (Metro) 178.3681217 + P.S: Madaripur Sadar [Minara Sultana Reepa 30/04/2022 Advance:50,000/-
Dist: Madaripur Rent: Tk 5,000/-
. " . . . . Office Space:768 Sft
73 | Bhairab (Metro) Eatr) e ey - EWEITERIT (A0 EEEENT ) 286 [FOT | oy iy 31/03/2025 Advance:30,000/-
1747321659 P.O: + P.SBhairabDist: Kishoregan] .
Rent: Tk 10,000/-
Box Ali Meahgi Bari (2nd Floor) . Office Space:700 Sft
74 | Shebarhat (Metro) xc?:;nmﬂzgwlsgg?m Rajarampur P.O: Shebarhat, P.S:Ml\(jl'dsag:tl)?J LTJz!ﬁZr And 28/02/2026 Advance:60,000/-
Senbagh,Dist: Noakhali ) Rent: Tk 6,500/-
Sara Bhaban- 2 (Ground Floor) Shahid ) .
75 | Chuadanga (Metro) ATLIEE DG = At SR Sl PULE | Sl TE NG Bl 31/01/2025 g:itiit:sepicgflfggl-Sﬁ
9 1929191972 ChuadangaP.S: Chuadanga Sadar| Mohammad Mujtaba P
o Rent: Tk 15,600/-
Dist: Chuadanga.
Md. Ashraful Alam - Block -A /5 House no - 10 P.O: Office Space:979 Sft
76 | Tangail Sadar (Metro) ’ TangailP.S: Tangail Sadar Dist: Md. Ashraful Alam 31/01/2025 Advance:30,000/-

1711030339

Tangail

Rent: Tk 15,000/-
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(viii) Dates of purchase of plant and machineries along with s el | enardes
address,yearsofsale,conditionwhen purchased,country oforigin and remaining economic life,
purchase price and written down value

The company has no plant and machineries.

(ix) Details of the machineries required to be bought by the issuer, cost of the machineries, name
of the suppliers, date of placement of order and the date or expected date of supply, etc.

The Company has no plan to buy machineries.

(x) In case the machineries are yet to be delivered, the date of quotations relied upon for the cost
estimates given shall also be mentioned;

There are no suchmachineries, which are yet to be delivered.
(xi) If plant is purchased in brand new condition then it should be mentioned,;
SLICL is a life insurance service provider; it has no plant.

(xii) Details of the second hand or reconditioned machineries bought or proposed to be bought, if
any, including the age of the machineries, balance estimated useful life, etc. as per PSI
certificates of the said machineries as submitted to the Commission;

Since SLICLis a life insurance service provider, so this condition is not applicable.

(xiii ) A physical verification report by the issue manager(s) regarding the properties as submitted
to the commission;

Name of the company: Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

Company Overview : Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited, a public company limited by shares,
was incorporated under companies Act,1994 on July 07,2013 vide certificateof incorporation number

C-110085/13. The authorized share capital and paid-up share cagtal of Sonali Life Insurance
Company Limited as on date stand at BDT 100.00 crore and BDT 28.50 crore respectively.

Registered Office:
The registered office of the Company is located at Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7, Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka1000.

Extended Head office:
The Extended Head office of the Company is located at 68/B, DIT Road Chowdhury para, Malibagh,
Dhaka.

Nature of Business: The Company is engaged in the ordinary life insurance, pension and group
insurance business since its incorporation. The Company offers a wide variety of life insurance
products which fulfills the requirements of present and prospective policyholders of Rural and urban
People of Bangladesh.

Purpose of visit: SLICL signed an issue management agreement on 01 October 2018 with ICB Capital
Management Limited (ICML) and Agrani Equity & Investment Limited (AEIL) for listing its shares in
the stock exchanges through Initial Public Offering (IPO). As per approval and licensed of Insurance
Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), SLICL has 64 branches to operate its business. The
team of ICML & AEIL visited the Extended Head Office, Registered Office Jatrabari (Metro), Gulshan
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(Metro), Mirpur (Metro), Wasa (Metro), Chittagong (Metro), Sylhet (Metro) and Rajshahi branches of
Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited on October 01, 2018, March 15 2020 and March 16, 2020 on
random basisin order to get the operational status of the Company.

Visited and Accompanied by:

Particulars Name & Designation Company

Swapna Roy

Senior Executive Officer
Md. Fazlul Hoque
Executive Officer

A S M Monjur Morshed
Executive Officer

Irin Perveen Binte Faruque
Principal Officer

S.M. Shaiqul Alam
Principal Officer

Abu Anas Ibne Hoque
Senior Principal Officer

ICB Capital Management Limited

Visited by

Agrani Equity & Investment Limited

Mir Rashed Bin Aman

. Add. MD & Chief Financial Officer L o
Accompanied by : Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
Md. Rafe -Uz-Zaman

Company Secretary

Office 1 MWetiijbrel

Dato/i sQctt:ober 01, 2018

L oc atRiugpm:l i Bi ma Bhaban,7 Rajuk Avenue, Motij heel, Dhak:
Nat wrFeac i Re ¢ iy sotffe rceed a nodf i Bcrea(nMoht i j he el Met r o)

Building and CSUtli CLcbastr eooftieduldgingound fl oor

Det @miFlaciThe yfraci |l ityeed&t seaandfti&&rea engahnsetleyr Mot i j heel ( M

Office 2 Exb&hded hea
Datod/i sOct:ober 01, 201
Locat6i8dmB: DI'T Road Chowdhury para, Mali bagh, Dhaka

Nat wFeaci Extgndedi Head

Buil ding and CiSLillICLc dirast rmieattiean :fl oexcdptoml évealel 4 25 t&
the building .

Det miFlaciThet yfraci |l ity acohias. its extended head

d
8

Off iZJeat rabari (Metro)
Datod/i sMatr:ch 16, 2020

Locat3i2z®én:sout h kajl a, Dania, Jatrabari, Dhaka

Nat wfFeaci Bi agEhce(Jatrabari Metro), Busi neafsi dDee.vel opmer
Buil ding and CBSti CL c b & shtirr edbtbhEHuiloliogr.

Det @miFlaciThe yf:taci |l ityoicte mnametygy Bawnabari (Metro).

Off i £4Gul shatr o) .

Dato&/i sMatr:ch 16, 2020

Locati06; Gul shan -8WePheakBflack

Nat wfFeaci Bi agthce( Gul shan Metro), Busi nessofffiecvee.]l op ment
Buil ding and CBStiCLcbastr eoftheduddng.ond f | oor

Det @miFlaciThe yftaci |l ityoicte mnametygy Buhsbhn( Metro).

101



Prospectus of SLICL

Off i M r p(uMet r o) .
Dato/i sMatr:ch 16, 2020
LocatFiadm: PiCd Ba HP,loRedka-i , Mio-L,phua k a

Nat wFeaci Bi ag€&hce(Mirpur Metro), Busi nessofDewel opment
Buil ding and Citi CLc bastfrledithebdildirgi g ht
Det amiFlaciThet yfraci |l ityoficte mametyg Brepoh (Metro).

Off i &Ghittagong ( Met r o)
Dato/i sMar:chl1l5, 2020
LocatChomwdhury Centr e MuZ5/dhd uGDAChAavte nuwe am

Nat woFeaci BiagEhce(Chittagong Metro), Busi neafsi dDeevel op me
Buil ding and CBSUti CLcbaast r eocftheddldinghi rd fl oor

Det miFlaciThe yf:raci |l ity ofictse ahintetté&y airgm)c.h

Offi cr8vasa ( Met r o)

Datod/i sMar:chl1l5, 2020

LocatMuon:asir Centre, 253 CDA Avenue wasa Circle, Dampa
Nat wFeaci Bri agfhce(Wasa Metro), Busi ness Doffviecleopment anc
Building and CSti CL cntt eesdt rexttta biiildimg:.r

Det aiFlac iTThet yf:aci |l ityofhicte mametygy BeaaatMetro).

Off i ce § Meytlrhoet.
Dato&/i sviatr.ch 15, 2020

LocaWesmn: world shopping centre, Zoll arpar Road, Zi ndat
Nat wFeaci Bri agEhce( Syl het Metro), Busi nessofDievel opment &
Building and CSti CLcbast r edithebdildingi. ght f 1l oor

Det miFlaciThet yfraci |l ityoficte mametyg Bybheh( Metro).

Off i cRraj9s hahi

Datod/i sMatr:ich 15, 2020

LocatKiaaoan:m Super Mar ket 110, Shaheb Bazar, Raj shahi

Nat wfFeaci Bi agfhce( Raj shahi ), Business Deofecepment and i
Building and CBStiCLcboast r sobthebdldinghi rd f Il oor

Det amiFlac iTThet yf:raci |l ityoficte mametygy Bapeahbhhi

Signboard:
The signboard of the Company is well displayed at the registered office, Extended Head Office
premises and above-mentioned branches.

During the course of visit, we found that the registered office, Extended Head Office and above
mentioned branches ofSonali Life Insurance Company Limited are in operation and running well.

For Issue Managers

Sd/ - Sd/ -
(Ahmed Yousuf Abbas) (Md. Sohel Rahman)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer (Additional Charge)
Agrani Equity & Investment Limited ICB Capital Management Limited
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(xiv) If the issuer is entitled to any intellectual property right or intangible asset, full description of
the property, whether the same are legally held by the issuer and whether all formalities in

this regard have been complied with;

The Company is using computer software, an intangible asst to perform its daily business activities.
Which is properly accounted and reflected in financial statements and assets scledule according to
BAS 38. Thecomputer software is legally held by the company maintaining all formalities in this

regard.

(xv) Full description of other properties of the issuer;

The details of other properties are stated in the followi

ng table o

(Amount in BDT)

(as per audited accounts)

1 Furniture & fixture 25,299,099.00
2 Computer hardware 82,545,041.00
3 Office equipment 8,961,550.00
4 Electric equipment 44,622,166.00
5 Motor vehicles 106,680,632.0(
6 Office decoration 73,552,702.0Q
7 Telephone installation 518,566.00
8 Signboard 863,653.00
9 Computer software 52,513,826.00

Total 395,557,235.0(

(f) Plan of Operation and Discussion of Financial Condition :

0] I'f the i has not

ssuer

started i

ts

of operatomsdor a |

the period which would be required to start commercial operation which shall, among

others, include: -

a) Projected financial statements up to the year of commercial operation;

b) Rationale behind the projection;

¢) Any expected significant changes in the issuer 's policy or business strategies;

d) Detail plan of capital investment with break -up; and

e) Summary of feasibility report, etc.

Not Applicable.

(i) I f the issuer had been in operation, the i
position and changes in financial position and cash flows for the last five years or from
commercial operation, which is shorter, shall be furnished in tabular form which
shall,among others, include the following information:

Revenue and results from operation Amount in Taka

Income

E]ae'?/r;;er ofFund at the beginning  of 601,487,636 253,073,934 57,496,791 102,272,380 80,922,292

Premium Less Re-Insurance:

First Year Premium 421,577,8200 516,602,001 308,335,029] 117,087,531 53,816,499

Renewal Premium 335,492,435 123,618,713 60,306,649 38,544,624 22,453,615

Group Insurance Premium 53,713,100 37,689,413 38,882,907 39,841,328 160,109,817

Gross Premium 810,783,355 677,910,127] 407,524,585 195,473,483 236,379,931
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Revenue and results from operation

Amount in Taka

Less: Reinsurance Premium 4,561,810 2,060,750 1,804,007 814,829 416,316
Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Profit, Dividend and Rents 61,031,185 41,086,232 33,060,314 30,748,911 30,422,610
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976 5,759,184 373,571 136,927
Total Income 1,470,183,904 970,915,519 502,036,867| 328,053,517 347,445,444
Expenditure

Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Claims Under Policies (Including

Provision for Claims due or 94,057,587 57,139,401 34,570,434 108,801,233 126,940,585
intimated), less re -insurance:

Expense of Management

Commissions:

Commissio n to Insurance agents 107,866,032 88,904,105 42,770,131 26,914,448 25,339,120
Allowances and  commissions

(Other than commission including 27,265,609 30,712,768 19,660,054 11,981,240 8,100,766
in sub -item (a) preceding)

Salaries 61,935,552 53,034,266 51,419,450 42,600,606 21,571,078
bevelmEt SRS e 67,584,430 38,484,175 15420,971 11,122,053 11,197,354
allowance

Development incentive 3,402,877 954,078 1,279,659 201,766 81,812
Travelling and conveyance 709,159 481,355 358,613 252,899 232,761
Directors Fees 456,000 356,557 240,000 230,000 240,000
Audit Fees 103,750 61,087 36,250 27,500 25,000
Actuary Fees 625,000 2,225,000 - - -
Medical Fees 453,852 625,817 713,806 267,550 189,397
Legal and professional fees 214,000 20496 80,000 225,000 55,750
Insurance policy stamp 5,000,000 2,000,000 2,500,000 1,100,000 725,000
Advertisement and  promotional 114,941 482241 147,346 932,116 1,231,316
expense

Printing and Stationary 3,933,582 4,532,812 4,086,456 1,673,116 909,035
Office Rent 3,044,500 22,743,154 28,080,258 15,239,687 12,305,894
Bank Charges 6,653,184 2,470,849 1,629,465 955,552 437,220
Interest on ROU 2,124,184 - - - -
Financial Expenses - 319,020 8,557,682 10,719,705 4,427,692
Brokerage Commission 33,071 82,635 13,695 - -
Foreign currency loss - 7,771 25,932 - -
Repairs and Maintenance 256,072 525,798 399,983 190,596 347,392
ServiceMaintenance 2,822,051 2,241,670 1,148,601 834,333 624,000
Fuel, Oil Generator 68,413 120,184 87,880 55,530 40,524
Car Fuel, Maintenance & Repairs 1,669,790 944,268 885,566 727,218 387,597
Papers, Periodicals and Books 34,313 18,180 85,880 93,250 59,950
Telephone, Fax and Internet 716,407 1,689,750 1,341,055 1,247,770 1,587,644
Electricity & Utility Expenses 5,350,196 5,106,650 3,512,715 2,660,260 1,858,780
Training and Recruitment Expenses 416,962 198,243 8,750 590,500 224,734
Entertainment 1,376,162 1,173,239 283,517 377,264 281,513
Insurance premium (General) 887,863 390,465 383,468 246,223 112,850
Postage and Courier 646,215 489,760 305,897 138,858 128,049
Business Development Expenses 214,516 1,492,395 2,833,029 1,475,462 1,912,781
Prizes and Awards 141,000 266,533 152,000 651,206 225,630
gggpa”y REQBIETEn  (REMEHE) ; 1866991 786,781 1,133,543 529,084
Stamps & Forms 17,605 51,916 62,790 27,285 50,240
Fees, Subscriptions and Donation 1,623,738 2,175,990 2,065,228 1,032,050 259,362
Meeting, Seminar & Symposium 1,092,433 2,119,927 1,624,527 1,544,979 202,011
Uniform - - 241,500 36,230 5,250

104




Prospectus of SLICL

Revenue and results from operation Amount in Taka
Conference - - 481,250 - -
Written Off  pre-incorporation ) ) 2123525 ) i
expense
Reserve for unexpired risk - - - 5,270,007 -
Refreshment & Recreation 10,727,051 10788123 2,090,500 683,330 -
Provision fo_r Comml_ssmn expense ) 798,056 857,281 766,484 581,319
for outstanding premium
Prowsmn fgr change in value of ) ) ) ) 10,349,672
investment in shares
Depreciation on Fixed Asset 59,623,810 31,332,158 15,611,008 17,529,877 11,394,902
Provision for Income Tax 13,723,461 - - - =
Amortization on ROU 15,610,826 - - - -
Dividend 14,250,000 - - - -
Balance of Fund at the end of the 953,337,710| 601,487,636| 253,073,934 57,496,791 102,272,380
period/year
Total 1,470,183,904 970,915,519 502,036,867| 328,053,517| 347,445,444
Statement of Financial Position

Particulars | 31Dec-19 | 31-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15

Capital and Liabilities

Shareholders' Equity

Authorized Capital:

100,000,000 ordinary shares| 1,4 300 00d 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,00d0  1,000,000,000
of Tk. 10 each

Issued Subscribed and Paid-Up

28,500,000 ordinary sharesof

Tk. 10 each fully paid up in 285,000,000 285,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000
cash

SEMLRY Gt g7 i 15,000,000  15,000,0000 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
shareholders

Balance of Funds and Accounts

Life Insurance Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636 253,073,934 57,496,790 102,272,380
Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Estimated Liabilities in

respect  of outstanding 1,462,476 536,100 39,601,500 46,266,000 13,820,000
claims, whether due or

intimated

Amount due to other

persons or bodies carrying 1,611,882 - - 22,876 95,418
on insurance business

Lease Liability -ROU-Long 34,031,574

Portion ) ) ) )

Sundry Creditors 30,017,333 12,702,658 80,960,512 127,470,124 80,489,150
Lease Finance - - - - 1,747,202
Reserve for unexpired risk - - - 5,270,007 -

Premium Deposits 374,357 379,623 235,547 143,543 150,320
Provigier e dighe vEle 6,177,016| 31,854,271 1,290,469 10,433,832
fluctuation account

TOTAL EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES 1,327,012,347 946,960,288 568,871,493 432,959,810 404,008,302
PROPERTY AND ASSETS

INVESTMENT (AT COST)

S ChCs D 15,000,000  15,000,0000 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Bangladesh Bank
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Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Egzg'adesr‘ Govt. Treasury 38,200,000  38,200,0000  33,800,0000 28,800,000 ;
S IR 27,184,630| 50,405,220 35,301,380
exchange
Other Investment 249,414,444  127,912,431] 67,041,049 38,171,551 23,925,329
Outstanding Premium 18,348,221] 18,527,657 19,325,713 11,872,647 5,813,187
Profit, Dividends And Rents 44,808,796|  43525012| 24813171 15,631,740 8,300,427
Accruing but not due
COVENEES; IPERRENS 34535,097| 28141412  26,6837258 17,581,180 13,068,086
Sundry Debtors
Lease Assets ROU 35,290,643 - - - -
Pre-incorporation expense - - - 2,123,525 2,123,525
CASH AND OTHER BANK BALANCES
FhEn] ClHesiEs Wil 2 301,400,000 233,400,000 221,260,000 216,500,000 217,700,000
and Financial Institutes
Szﬁrkts term  deposit - with 137,144,349 123233546 54,641,468 11,766,421 5,529,326
Current Account with Banks 3,662,701 16,827,574 773,759 640,014 232,560
Savings Account with Banks 23,478,283 20,068,776 8,786,186 6,412 6,727
Cash in hand 2,675,461 1,915,215 938,847 1,782,108 1,351,576
OTHER ACCOUNTS
SEmpe, P 312,487 50,583 84,567 41,752 638,239
Stationery in hand
Fixed Assets 343,043,400 182,158,391  73,819,320] 45,403,326 38,713,066
Intangible Assets 52,513,826] 47,594,472 21,003,255 27,639,134 36,304,873
TOTAL ASSETS 1,327,012,347 946,960,288 568,871,493 432,959,810 404,008,302
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS FOLLOWS
Particular | 31-Dec-19 |  31-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 |  31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
Cash flow from operating activities
Collection from premium 806,395,715 676,791,509 398,359,516 188,592,418 231,180,475
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976 489,177 373,572 136,927

Payment for Claims

(93,131,211)

(96,204,801)

(41,234,934)

(76,355,233)

(126,920,585)

Payment for management

expense, commission, | (342,504,082) (322,973,536)| (276,295,857) (104,539,100) (55,814,223)
re-insurance and others

Tax Paid (2,081,991) (1,144,812)] (1,559,490 (2,315,248) (2,395,905)
Net cash flow from | ;50,5 969 257,374,336 79,758,412 5,756,409 46,186,689

operating activities

Cash flow from investing activit

ies

Acquisition of Fixed assets | (225,873,737) | (192,782,446)  (11,871,123)] (15,554,398) (46,661,107)
Disposal of Car 445 555 - - - -
Other Investment (121,502,013) (75,054,575)|  (29,770,398) 35,301,380 (23,925,329)
Investment In shares 23,220,590 (3,466,856) - - -
Bangladesh Govt. Treasury

Bond (BGTE) - (4,400,000) (5,000,000)|  (28,800,000) -
rpergé:f/’e'g""de”ds and Rents | 59 747 401 22,374,391 22,588,414 23,417,598 25,514,515
Net cash flows —from | ;g3 96 204) | (253,329,487)  (24,053,107) 118,359 -66,426,760

financing activities

Cash Flows From Financing
Activities

Dividend

(14,250,00D

the
the

Cash Payments for
interest  portion of
liability

(2,124,184)

Cash for the

Payments

(16,869,895)
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Particulars | 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
principal portion of  the
liability
Capital Introduced - 105,000,000 - - -
}\.'Et @ | ea 200 ) 105,000,000 - , -
Inancing activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in | 2, g5 gy 109,044,850 55,705,305 5,874,768 -20,240,071
cash and cash equivalents
Coali gt e2ell SEUNEENS | on /s gg 286,400,260 230,694,955 224,820,188 245,060,260
at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents | ,qg 354 794 395445110 286,400,260, 230,694,957 224,820,189
at the end of the year
Changes in financial position

Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Share Capital - Paid up 285,000,000 285,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000
Balance of Life Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636] 253,073,934 57,496,790 102,272,380
a) Internal and external sources of cash;

(Amount in BDT)

Particulars 31-Dec-19 31-12-2018 31-12-2017 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
Internal Source of Cash
Share Capital* 285,000,000 285,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000
Life Insurance Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636 253,073,934 57,496,791 102,272,380
Sub Total: 1,238,337,710 886,487,636 433,073,934 237,496,791 282,272,380
External source of Cash
Premium Deposit (net) 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Sub Total: 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Grand Total : 2,044,559,255 1,562,337,013 838,794,512 432,155,446 518,235,995

(b) Any material commitments for capital expenditure and expected sources

expenditure;

SLICL has no other material commitments for capital expenditures.

(C) Causes for any material changes from period to period in revenues, cost

operating expenses and net income;

of funds for such

of goods sold, other

We have used the accounting heads according to our Audited accounts to represent the changes
mentioned in the above clause.

Amount in Taka

Particular 30-Dec-19 | 30-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
Revenue (Gross Premium) 810,783,355 677,910,127 407,524,585| 195,473,483 236,379,931
Year_ to year changes in Revenue (@ross 20% 66% 108% 17% 56%
premium )
Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Year to year changes in Net premium 19% 67% 108% -18% 56%
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976| 5,759,184 373,571 136,927
Year to year changes in Other Income 59% -84% 1442% 173% 59%
Operating Expense 276,313,516| 239,122,997 164,820,833 111,401,746 81,815,124
Year to year changes in Operating Expense 16% 45% 48% 36% 28%
ManagementExpense 240,532,678 130,304,886 84,142,100| 159,154,980 163,357,940
Year to year changes in management expense 85% 55% -47% -3% 256%
BalanceOf Life Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636| 253,073,934 57,496,791| 102,272,380
Year to year changes in Balanceof life fund 58% 138% 340% -44% 26%
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Causes for changes in Revenue(Gross premium ) (%)

Due to changes in marketing policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our
business, volumeof premium collection increased subsequently which affected the gross premium
during the period.

Causes for changes in Net Premium (%)
Net premium is calculated bythe deducting re-insurance charges from gross premium. Reinsurance
chargesvary time to time which ultimate reflect the net premium

Causes for changes in operating expenses (%)
Due to increase business volume, agency commission was also increased and claim were settled. As
aresult, operating expense was also increased period to period.

Causes for changes in Management expenses (%)
Due to increase business volume, management expenses also increased. As a result financial expense
was also increased periodto period

Causes for changes in Other Income (%)
Due to change in interest rate, interest income was changed during the period. Other income
comprised of late feesandsale of proposal form etc. Which were also varied period to period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund (%)
Due to increase busness volume and increase investment income, Balanceof life fund was also
increased period to period.

(d) Any seasonal aspects of the issuer® business;

There is no significant seasonal aspect on theCompany & business.

(e) Any known trends, events or uncertainties that may have material effect on the issuer & future
business;

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that may affect on the future business of the
Companyexcept followings:

1. Changes in government policy

2. Political unrest situation

3. Natural calamities.

(f) Any assets of the Company used to pay off any liabilities;
None of assetsof the company has been used to payoff any liabilities of the company.

(g) Any loan taken from or given to any related party or connected person of the issuer with details
of the same;

No loan has beentaken from or given to any related party or connected person of the Company.

(h) Any future contractual liabilities the  issuer may enter into within next one year and the impact,
if any, on the finan cial fundamentals of the issuer:

The Companyhas no plan to enter into any future contractual liability within next one year except
normal course of business.

(i) The estimate d amount, where applicable, of future capital expenditure;
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The Companydoes not have any plan for capital expenditure in near future other than disclosed in
section XXIl under the head ofo U soé Proceedss .

() Any VAT, income tax, customs duty or other tax liability which is yet to be paid, including any
contingent liabilities stating why the same was not paid prior to the issuance of the prospectus.
Updated income tax status for the last 5 years or from com mercial operation, which is shorter;

VAT
The Company has VAT registration number 19011087443

The company does not have to pay VAT on its regular life insurance business. However, it has
outstanding amount of TK. 360,711which has arisen due to deduction from various suppliers bills
and full amount has subsequently been deposited to the government treasury after the balance sheet
date.

Income tax
The company paid TK. 91,602as TAX for the year ended 31st December 2019 in the formofo T A X
deducted at sourced.

Income Year Assessment Year Remarks

I  Taxreturn submitted to DCT

- The Company submitted return ason 18/07/2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority

-Assessment completed by NBR on 12/03/2020

2015 20162017
1  Taxreturn submitted to DCT
- The Company submitted return ason 18/07/2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority
-Assessment completed by NBR on 12/03/2020
2016 20172018
9 Tax return submitted to DCT
- The Company submitted return ason 18/07/2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority
-Assessment completed by NBR on 12/03/2020
2017 20182019

q Tax return submitted to DCT

- The Company submitted return as on 06/12/2020
2018 20192020 1  Updated status

-The Assessment is Pending Under DCT.

1  Taxreturn submitted to DCT

- The Company submitted return as on 06/12/2020
q Updated status

-The Assessment is Pending Under DCT.

2019 20202021
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SLICL has Tk. 13,723,461 as contingent liabilities foincome Tax of NBR for the last 05 (five) years.

(k) Any financial commitment, including lease commitment, the Company had entered into during
the past five years or from commercial operation, which is shorter, giving details as to how the
liquidation was or is to be affected;

Sonali Life Insurance Company does not have any financial commitment during the last five years
except following finance lease agreement:

Particulars Lease Agreement for Head Office
Lessor South Bangla Agriculture & Commerce Bank Ltd.
Lessee Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

Nature of Agreement

Financial Leaseagreement

Date of Lease Agreement

June 11, 2014

Effective Date of Tenancy | June 1, 2014
Period of Lease 2 (Two) Years from the 1st disbursement
Date of Lease Expiration May 31, 2016

Description of lease
finance

Purchaseof 5 reconditioned Toyota cars for Head Office.

Monthly Installment

BDT 2,58,036 per month
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() Details of all personnel related schemes for which the Company has to make provision for in

future years;

The Company has planned to implement attractive compensation plan and is also offering festival
bonus for attracting highly skilled pr ofessional staff with high degree of integrity, as it considers the
human resources as the most valuable assets. In order to enhance and advance thprofessional ability
and Knowledge of the employees, regular training programs are organized. Other Personnel related
scheme is given below:

Scheme

Status

Festival Bonus:

Employees are given festival bonus equivalent to one month gross salary in a year.

Allowances :

According to performance and pay scale, allowances are given for expenses such as
house rent, conveyance, medical expense, car maintenance and mobile phone facility.

Maternity Benefit :

FemalesEmployees are entitled to maternity leave for the birth of two children.

(m) Break down of all expenses related to the public issue;

SL Particulars Rate Amount in Tk.

1 Manager to the issue fees 1% of the public offering amount 1,900,000.00
VAT against Issue Management Fee | @ 15% on the Issudlanagement Fee 285,000.00
Listing Related Expenses:

Application Fee for Stock Exchanges | Tk. 50,000 for eachexchange 100,000.00
0.25% on Tk. 100 million of paid-up capital and
L 0.15% on the rest amount of paid-up capital;
) Listing Fee for DSE & CSE minimum; Tk: 56,000 and Maximum| Tk: 10 1,625,000.00
million for each exchange
0.05% on BDT 100 million of paid-up capital and
0.02% on the rest amount of paid-up capital;
Annual Fee for Stock Exchanges minimum BDT 50,000 and Maximum BDT 6 lacs 250,000.00
for each Exchange
BSEC Fees

3 | Application Fee Tk. 50,000 (nonrefundable) 50,000.00
Consent Fee 0.40% on the public offering amount 760,000.00
IPO Commission/Expenses:

4 Underwriting Commission 0.50% on the underwritten amount 332,500.00
Credit Rating Fee At actual 80,500.00
Auditors' Certification Fee At actual 500,000.00
CDBL Fees and Expenses:

Security Deposit of Eligible Securities | Having paid -up capital up to Tk. 50 crore 400,000.00

5 Documentation Fee At actual 2,500.00
Annual Fee Having paid -up capital above Tk. 20 crore 100,000.00
Connection Fee At actual 6,000.00
IPO Fees 0.015%o0f IPO size+0.015%of Pre-IPO paid up capital 71,250.00
Printing, Publication and Others:

Publication of Prospectus Estimated 800,000
Abr!dggd version of Prospectus and Estimated 900,000
Notice in 4 daily newspaper

Notice for_ Pro_spectus, Lottery, Estimated 300,000
Refund etc. in 4 daily newspaper

7 | Data processing for General Public
(RB & NRB) and | Estimated 800,000
Share Software Charge
Data Processing for Els and .
hare Bitners Chirge Estimated 2,000,000
Courier expenses Estimated 300,000
Stationeries and Other Expenses Estimated 450,000

Total 12,012,750.00
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| NB: The cost of the above mentioned IPO expenses may vary and will be adjusted accordingly |
(n) If the issuer has revalued any of its assets, the name, qualification and experiences of the valuer
and the reason for the revaluation, showing the value of the assets prior to the revaluation
separately for each asset revalued in a manner which shall facilitate comparison between the
historical value and the amount after revaluation and givi ng a summary of the valuation report
along with basis of pricing and certificates required under the revaluation guideline of the
Commission;

No assetsof the issuer have been revaluated till 31st December, 2019.

(o) Where the issuer is a holding or subsidiary Company, full disclosure about the transactions,
including its nature and amount, between the issuer and its subsidiary or holding Company,
including transactions which had taken place within the last five ye  ars of the issuance of the
prospectus or since the date of incorporation of the issuer, whichever is later, clearly indicating
whether the issuer is a debtor or a creditor;

The Company has no holding/subsidiary Company. Therefore, no transaction was occurred in this
regard.

(p) Financial Information of Group Companies and Companies under common ownership by more
than 50%: following information for the last three years based on the audited financial
statements, in respect of all the group companies of the issuer, wherever applicable, along with
significant notes of auditors:

(1) Date of Incorporation;

(2) Nature of Business;

(3) Equity Capital;

(4) Reserves;

(5) Sales;

(6) Profit after tax;

(7) Earnings per share and Diluted Earnings Per Share;

(8) Net Asset Value;

(9) The highest and lowest market price of shares during the preceding six months with
disclosures for changes in capital structure during the period, if any securities  of the group
are listed with any exchange;

(10) Information regard ing significant adverse factors relating to the group;

(11) Any of the group companies has become sick or is under winding up;

(12) The related business transactions within the group and their significance on the financial
performance of the issuer; and

(13) Sales or purchase between group companies or subsidiaries or associate companies when
such sales or purchases exceed in value in the aggregate ten per cent of the total sales or
purchases of the issuer and also material items of income or expenditure arising out of
such transactions;

Sonali Life Insurance Company has no relation with any group of companies.

(q) Where the issuer is a banking company, insurance company, non -banking financial institution
or any other company which is regulated and licensed by another primary regulator, a
declaration by the board of directors shall be includedintheProspectus stat ing that all
requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory requirements of its primary regulator have
been adhered to by the issuer
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To whom it may concern
All requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory requirements of its primary regulator hav e been
adhered to by the issuer.

Declared by the Board of Directors of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited:

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Noor -e-Hafza K. M. Farookh Kamrun Nahar
Chairman Nominee Director of Director

Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Maya Rani Roy Sheikh Omar Faruque Omar Khayum
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Hazera Hossain Hoda Ali Selim
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Honufa Akter Rikta Quazi Moniruzzaman Md . Nur un Ne
Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director

Dated: 25 October202Q

(n A report from the auditors regarding any allotment of shares to any person for any
consideration otherwise than cash along with relationship  of that person with the issuer and
rationale of issue price of the shares;

This is to certify that Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited has not allotted any shares for
consideration other than in cash to any person up to 31December2019.

Date: 7July 2020 Sd/ -
Place:Dhaka Shiraz Khan Basak
CharteredAccountants

(s) Any material information, which is likely to have an impact on the offering or change the terms
and conditions under which the offer has been made to the public

Other than information disclosed in this prospectus, there is no material information, which is likely to

have an impact on the offering or changes inthe terms and conditions under which the offer has been
made to the public.
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(t) Business strategies and future plans - projected financial statements shall be required only for
companies not startedcommercial operation yet and authenticated by Chairman, two Directors,
Managing Director, CFO, and CompanySecretary:

Business Strategies
SLI CL8ds key strategic objectives

The Company& strategic objective is to improve and consolidate its position in the insurance industry

with a continuous growth philosophy. The major focus of the Company is to enhance value creation
through delivering insurance product to wide range of clients. In order to achieve the objective, the
Company has been adopted the following strategies:

Marketing strategy

Emphasize service and support.

Increase market share.

Reinforce a market image as the finest service provider in the industry.
Forecast customer needs

= =4 =4 =

Financial strategy
1 Focusing on profit.
Maintaining transparency and integrity on financial transaction.
Focusing on controlling of cost.
Budgeting and variance analysis
Financial risk analysis

=A =4 =4 =

Operational excellence strategy

The reality of the insurance industry is that the service is the product. With this important fact

recognized, the Company strives to provide the highest level of customer service. The Company has

been continued to invest in operational excellence throughout the organiz ation. The Company is

addressing operational excellence through continuous process improvement, customer service and

technology development. Alignment of i t s peopl e t o 6 p b thowgls €hangemp r o v e me
management and upgrading of skills as required for customer satisfaction is a continuous activity.

Awareness of this quality commitment is widespread among all the employees.

Strategy for business competiveness

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited has been driven by client need for reducing business risk. By
satisfying client demand on time and proper service, it has gained on competitive advantage over the
others competitors.

Human capital strategy
The Company considers personnel as key resources. Therefore, we are continually waking to
preserve, encourage and develop the people to perform at their highest potential.

Future plan
In persuasion of aforesaid Strategiesof Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited has been set forth the
following plan to be implemented in future:

1 Expansion of business

9 Development of human resources

9 New product development

1 Broaden marketing base
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1 Enhance a client base
1 Adopt new technology
1 Focusing on long-term financial benefit of the Company. Accordingly, the net proceeds from

Initial Public Offering (IPO) will be used for as described in section-x x i i

of Proceeds .

Pricing strategy

under

Our customers are especially sensitive to value. We must ensure that our price and service are
perceived to be good value to our client.

(u) Discussion on the results of operations shall inter -alia contain the following

t he

(1) A summary of the past financial results after adjustments as gi ven in the
containing significant items  of income and expenditure
There was no significant adjust ment gi ven i of
income and expenditure during the last 05 (five) years. Summary of the financial results and
operations are presented below:
Amount in Taka
Particulars Yearended
31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
Non -CurrentAssets 1,062,046,952 694,670,513 403,909,091| 371,514,010 367,582,888
Current Assets 264,965,395  252,289,775| 134,962,402 61,445,799| 36,425,414
Total Assets 1,327,012,347 946,960,288 568,871,493 432,959,809 404,008,302
Shareholders' Equity 285,000,000 285,000,000, 180,000,000; 180,000,000; 180,000,000
Current Liabilities & Provisions 73,674,637 45,472,652| 120,797,559 180,463,019 106,735,922
Life Revenue Fund 953,337,710, 601,487,636 253,073,934 57,496,791| 102,272,380
Gross premium 810,783,355 677,910,127 407,524,585| 195,473,483 236,379,931
Net premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Other income 1,443,538 905,976 5,759,184 373,571 136,927
(2) A summary of major items of income and expenditure
Major items of Income
Particulars ieAdc o
31-Dec-19| 31-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17| 31-Dec-16| 31-Dec-15
Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976| 5,759,184 373,572 136,927
Major items of expenditure
Particulars Year ended
31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Operating expenses 276,313,516 239,122,997 164,820,833 111,401,746 81,815,124
Management Expense 240,532,678 130,304,886 84,142,100 159,154,980 163,357,940

*Qperating expense comprisettommission and Claims under policies
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(3) The income andsales on account of major products or services
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Particulars Gross Percentage Gross Percentage Gross Percentage(%) Gross Percentage Gross Percentage
Premium (%) Premium (%) Premium ge(o Premium (%) Premium (%)
Ordinary Life 757,070,255 93% | 617,980,114 91% | 361,719,478 89% | 152,139,744 78% 73,791,768 31%
Takaful - 0% 22,240,600 3% 6,922,200 2% 3,492,381 2% 2,478,346 1%
grrgrtr‘]ﬁ’um'“surance 53,713,100 7% | 37,689,413 6% | 38,882,907 10%| 39,841,328 20% | 160,109,817 68%
Total 810,783,355 100% | 677,910,127 100% | 407,524,585 100% | 195,473,453 100% | 236,379,931 100%

(4) In case, other income constitutes more than 10% of the total income, the breakup of the same along with the nature of the income, i.e.,
recurring or non -recurring

There was no such other income that constitutes 10% or moreof the total income.

(5) If a material part of the income is dependent upon a single customer or a few major customers, disclosure of this fact along with relevant data.
Similarly if any foreign customer constitutes a significant portion
business considering exchange rate fluctuations

oft he

The Company has no material part of incomedependent upon a single customer or a few major customers.

(6) In case the issuer has followed any unorthodox procedure for recording sales and revenues, its impact shall be analyzed a

The Company SLICL has not followed any unorthodox procedure for recording of sales and revenues.

i s s iness, disclosbra af the fact along with its impact on the

nd disclosed.
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(vi) Comparison of recent financial year with the previous financial years on the major heads
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of

the profit and loss statement, including an analysis of reasons for the changes in significant

items of income and expenditure

Particular 30-Dec-19 | 30-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
Gross Premium 810,783,355 677,910,127 407,524,585| 195,473,483 236,379,931
Year to year changes in gross premium 20% 66% 108% -17% 56%
Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655 235,963,615
Year to year changes in Net premium 19% 67% 108% -18% 56%
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976 5,759,184 373,571 136,927
Year to year changes in Other Income 59% -84% 1442% 173% 59%
Operating Expense 276,313,516 239,122,997| 164,820,833 111,401,746 81,815,124
Year to year changes in Operating 16% 45% 48% 36% 2806
Expense

ManagementExpense 240,532,678 130,304,886| 84,142,100 159,154,980 163,357,940
Year to year changes in management 85% 55% 47% 3% 256%
expense

Balance Of Life Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636| 253,073,934 57,496,791| 102,272,380
;Ler:]?jr to year changes in Balance of life 58% 138% 340% 44% 26%

Causes for changes in Gross premium (%)
Due to changes in marketing policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our
business, volume of premium collection increased subsequently which affected the gross premium

during the period.

Causes for changes in Net Premium (%)

Net premium is calculated by the deducting re -insurance charges from gross premium. Reinsurance
charges vary time to time which ultimate reflect the net premium.

Causes for changes in operating expenses (%)
Due to increase business volume, agency commission was also increased and claims were settled. As
a result operating expense was also increased period to period.

Causes for changes in Management expenses (%)
Due to increase business volume, management expenses also increased. As a result financial expense

was also increased period to period

Causes for changes in Other Income (%)

Due to change in interest rate, interest income was changed during the period. Other income
comprised of late fees and saleof proposal form etc. Which were also varied period to period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund (%)
Due to increase business volume and increase investment income, Balancef life fund was also

increased period to period.

Analysis of reasons for the changes in significant items of income and expenditure:

(1) Unusualorinfrequenteventsortransactions incl
activity, unusual items of income, change of accounting policies and discretionary reduction

expenses etc.

There were no unusualorinfrequenteventsortransactions including unusual trends on account

uding unusual trends on account

of business

of

of

business activity, unusual items of income, change of accounting policies and discretionary reduction

of expenses etc.
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(2) Significant economic changes that materially affect or are likely to affect income from
continuing operations

There were no significant economic changes that materially affect or are likely to affect income from
continuing operations.

(3) Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact
on sales, revenue or income from continuing operati ons

Though there are no known trends, events and/or uncertainties that shall have a material impact on

the companyds future busi mfeteesGompany enaytbe affeated bystheoper at i
following events:

1. Natural disaster

2. Social/politicalunrest i s generally known events that may aff e
3. Increased competition

(4) Future changes in relationship between costs and revenues, in case of events such as future
increase in labor or material costs or prices that will cause a materi al change are known;

Any event such as increase in labor or material costs or prices will not affect the operational result of
the Company. Therefore, with the passages of time, number ofpolicies and amount of net
premium sare also expected to increase in normal courseof operation and for introduction of new
products or services.

(5) The extent to which material increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales
volume, introduction of new products or services or in creased sales prices.

Increases in revenueswere linked to increases in volume of business activity carried out as a normal

course of business during last 05 (five) years as well as for introduction of new products.

(6) Total turnover of each major industry segment in which the issuer operated,;

Considering the business nature of SLIC, the Company is assumed to operate in insurance industry as
life sector. The turnover is considered here as premium income as nature of turnover in insuranc e
industry is different compared to other industry & turnover. According to Bangladesh Insurance
Association, the total premium income (total turnover) of life insurance companies is

Taka in billion
Year Total turnover (Total premium income)
2019 Tk.132.90
2018 Tk.123.82
2017 Tk.111.79
2016 Tk.75.06
2015 Tk.83.27
2014 Tk. 70.77
2013 Tk. 66.08
2012 Tk. 65.87
2011 Tk. 62.81
2010 Tk.58.54
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(7) Status of any publicly announced new products or business segment;
There are no publicly announced new products or business segmentof the company.

(8) The extent to which the business is seasonal;

The businessof the Company is not dependent on any seasonal aspects.

(w) Defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with fina ncial institutions or banks, conversion of
loans into equity along with reasons there of, lock out, strikes and reasons for the same etc.

during the history of operation of the company:

There is no history of defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with fin ancial institutions/banks, nor
conversion of loans into equity.

(x) Details regarding the changes in the activities of the issuer during the last five years which may
had a material effect on the pr ofits or loss, including discontinuance of lines of busin ess, loss
of agencies or markets and similar factors;

There wasno change in the activities of SLIC during the last five years which may had a material

effect on the profits/loss, including discontinuance of lines of business, lossof agencies or markets

and similar factors.

(y) Injunction or restraining order, if any, with possible implications;

There was no injunction or restraining order from any Court of Law or competent authority during
the entire life oft he Companyds business.

(z) Technology, market, managerial competence and capacity built -up
SLICL will pace with the above factors where and when requires.
(aa)Changes in accounting policies in the last three years

There is no change(s) in the accounting policiesof the Company during last three years.
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(bb) Significant developments subsequent to the last financial year: A statement by the directors
whether in their opinion there have arisen any circumstances since the date of the last
financial statements as discl osed in the Prospectus and which materially and adversely affect
or is likely to affectthe trading or pr ofitability of the issuer, or the value of itsassets, or its
ability to pay its liabilities within the next twelve months; Statement by the directors wh ether
there have arisen any circumstances since the date of the last financial statements which
materially and adversely affect the trading or pr ofitability of the issuer, or the value of its
assets, or its ability within the next twelve months;

Declaratio n regarding significant developments subsequent to the last financial year

This is to certify that in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge there has not arisen any
circumstances since the dateof the last financial statements as disclosed in thisprospectus and which
materially and adversely affect or is likely to affect the trading or pr ofitability of Sonali Life Insurance
Company Limited or the value of its assets, or its ability to pay its liabilities within the next twelve
months.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Noor -e-Hafza Kamrun Nahar K. M. Farookh
Chairman Director Nominee Director of
Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Maya Rani Roy Sheikh Omar Faruque Omar Khayum
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Hazera Hossain Hoda Ali Selim
Director Director Director
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Honufa Akter Rikta
Independent Director

Quazi Moniruzzaman
Independent Director

Md . Nur un
Independent Director

N a
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(cc) If any quarter of the financial year of the issuer ends after the period ended in the audited
financial statements as disclosed in the prospectus or information memorandum, unaudited
financial statements for each of the said quarters duly authenticated by the CEO and CFO of
the issuer or information memorandum, unaudited financial statements for each
quarters duly authenticated by the CEO and CFO of the issuer;

SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 September 2020

of the said

Particulars

| |Notes{

Amount in Taka |

30 Sep. 2020 ||

31 Dec. 2019 |

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Authorized Capital

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each

ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

28,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each fully paid up in cash

Statutory Deposit by the Shareholders

BALANCE OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
Life Insurance Fund

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Estimated liabilities in respect of outstanding claims,
whether due or intimated

4.01

4.02
5.00

6.00

7.00

Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business8.00

Lease Liabilties - ROU- Long Portion
Sundry Creditors

Premium Deposits

Provision for share Fluctuation Account

TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

LOANS

On Insurers' Policies within their surrender value
INVESTMENT (AT COST)

Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank (BGTB)
Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Boand (BGTB)
Investment in Share

Other Investment

Outstanding Premium

Profits, Dividends and Rents Accruing but not due
Advances, Deposits and Sundry Debtors

Lease Assets - ROU

CASH, BANK AND OTHER BALANCES

On Fixed Deposit with Banks & Financial Institutes
On Short Term Deposit with Banks

On Current Account with Banks

On Saving Account with Banks

Cash in Hand

OTHER ACCOUNTS

Stamps, Printing & Stationary in Hand
Fixed Assets (At Cost Less Depreciation)
Intangible Assets

TOTAL PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Schedule-1
9.00
10.00
11.00

12.00
12.A
13.00
14.00

15.00

16.00

17.00
Schedule-1

18.00
19.00
20.00
21.00

22.00
Schedule-2
Schedule-3

The annexed notes form an integtal part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/-
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Date : 25 October, 2020
Place : Dhaka

Chief Executive Officer

1,000,000,004)|

1,000,000,00(

285,000,000
15,000,000

1,276,829,585

285,000,000
15,000,000

953,337,710

1,276,829,585|

953,337,71d

90,057,266 73,674,637
1,778,274 1,462,476
- 1,611,882
42,505,662 34,031,574
30,518,892 30,017,333
466,838 374,357
14,787,600 6,177,016

1,666,886,851

1,327,012,34€&

473,124,631

329,799,074

15,000,000 15,000,000
38,200,009 38,200,000
35,795,210 27,184,630
384,129,421 249,414,444
18,545,632 18,348,221
55,627,175 44,808,796
33,114,985 34,535,097
43,579,850 35,290,643
567,020,247 468,360,794
416,400,009 301,400,000
111,201,237 137,144,349
4,439,361] 3,662,701
32,839,814 23,478,283
2,139,834 2,675,461
475,874,331 395,869,722
458,659 312,487
427,871,564 343,043,409
47,544,108 52,513,826

1,666,886,851

1,327,012,34€

Sd/-
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT
For the ended 30 September 2020
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Particulars

Notes

Amount in Taka

01 Jan 2020
to 30 Sep 202

01 Jan 2019
to 30 Sep 2019

01 July 2020
to 30 Sep. 2020

01 July 2019
to 30 Sep 201

Income

Balance of Fund at the beginning of the year 953,337,710 601,487,636 1,125,777,675 717,615,949
Premium Less Re-Insurance
First Year Premium 444,838,528 280,449,133 204,780,385 98,468,312
Ordinary Life 444,838,524 280,449,133 204,780,385 98,468,317
Takaful - - - -
Renewal Premium 335,825,137 233,230,035 144,028,714 80,453,677
Ordinary Life 335,825,137 233,230,035 144,028,714 80,453,671
Takaful - - - -
Group Insurance Premium 28,595,541 34,445,404 4,512,500 7,665,684
Life 28,595,541 34,445,404 4,512,500 7,665,684
Health - -
Gross Premium 809,259,205 548,124,572 353,321,599 186,587,674
Less: Re-insurance Premium 2,498,449 3,506,380 489,529 1,075,169
Net Premium 806,760,756 544,618,192 352,832,070 185,512,504
Profits, Dividend and Rents 27,475,867 18,547,526 8,967,444 5,459,542
Other Income 1,057,814 1,038,812 280,975 607,065
Total Income 1,788,632,148 1,165,692,166 1,487,858,164 909,195,060
First year premium, where the maximum pre mium paying period is:
Single 30,180,791.004( 25,577,769.0( 18,548,315.0( 3,717,430.0
Two Years - - - -
Three Years - - - -
Four Years - - - -
Five Years - - - -
Six Years - - - -
Seven Years - - - -
Eight Years - - - -
Nine Years - - - -
Ten-Eleven Years 338,802,565 190,426,913 149,274,860 72,137,701
Twelve -Fourteen Years 29,290,358 24,632,829 14,172,105 9,746,22(
Fifteen- Nineteen Years 45,763,454 37,361,299 22,451,432 12,540,55
Twenty Years & Above 801,357 2,450,323 333,673 326,41;ﬂ
444,838,528 280,449,133 204,780,385 98,468,312
Expediture - - -
Claims Under Policies (Including Provision For Claims due or intimated), less re-insurance:
By Death 20,689,822 26,281,266 8,805,469 11,331,54
By Maturity - - - -
By Disabilty 611,705 260,365 107,508 -
By Surrender 17,172,659 228,733 1233490 846,50
By Survival Benefit 48,692,070 35,292,041 17,686,684 2,550,10
By Survival Profit - - - -
By Hospitalization - - - -
87,166,256 62,062,405 38,934,563 14,728,151
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For the Period ended 30 Sep. 2020
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01 Jan 2020 01 Jan 2019 01 July 2020 01 July 2019
Particulars Notes to to to to
30 Sep 2020 30 Sep 2019 30 Sep. 2020 30 Sep 2019

Exp of M "
Commissions: 150,061,467 91,802,520 73,711,566 29,187,783
(a) Commissions to Insurance Agents

(Less that on Re-insurance) 108,640,887 73,196,469 54,750,735 27,070,547
(b) Allowances and Commissions (other than commission

including in sub-item (a) preceding) 41,420,580 18,606,051 18,960,831 2,117,236
Salaries etc.(Other than to Agents and those Contained in the
Allowances and Commissions) 194,497,484 160,922,135 70,678,874 38,678,938
Salaries 60,299,521 47,801,071 20,643,371 14,088,602
Development Salaries & Allowances 95,086,817 57,395,921 36,882,528 10,162,630
Development Incentive 1,639.489 3,137,717 356,456 378,249
Travelling and Conveyance 481,185 671,058 24,962 17,030
Directors' Fees 360,000 336,000 120,000 120,000
Auditors' Fees 62,500 53,750 - -
Actuary Fees 218,750 700,000 218,750 75,000
Medical Fees 416,700 321,692 133,240 80,102
Legal and Professional Fees 215,000 214,000 215,000 -
Insurance Policy Stamp 5,100,000 3,500,000 2,500,000 1,000,000
Advertisement & Promotional Exp 188,945 92,992 126,186 =
Printing and Stationery 2,263,076 3,508,085 699,196 1,193,760
Office Rent - 16,294,152 - 5,214,610
Bank Charges 8,198,644 3,476,458 3,611,144 1,497,263
Interest on ROU 1,960,130 = 602,324 -
Brokerage Commission - 32,778 - -
Repairs and Maintenance 320,939 224,245 135,570 47,182
Service Maintenance 4,542,579 2,143,702 1,898,100 837,948
Fuel, Oil Generator 39,000 45,500 6,500 13,000
Car Fuel, Maintenance & Repairs 852,600 1,196,273 415,620 397,964
Papers, Periodicals and Books 8,830 9,555 2,460 6,015
Telephone, Fax and Internet 806,456 330,142 256,456 257,859
Electricity & Utility Expenses 2,008,442 3,869,408 883,568 1,548,655
Training and Recruitment Expenses 47,450 416,962 35,100 376,500
Entertainment 475,750 1,241,376 113,456 185,927
Insurance Premium (General) 1,393,968 887,863 168,653 325,491
Postage and Courier 490,195 404,950 65,456 72,563
Business Development Expenses 222,057 132,501 168,000 81,563
Prizes and Awards 96,000 108.000 28,000 44,000
Stamps & Forms 13,000 15,520 1,720 1,640
Fees and Subscriptions 1,275,170 632,598 265,900 39,325
Meeting, Seminar & Symposium 414,291 1,000,815 101,158 616,060
Refreshment & Recreation 5,000,000 10,727,051 - -
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01 Jan 2020 01 Jan 2019 01 July 2020 01 July 2019
Particulars Notes to to to to
30 Sep. 2020/ 30 Sep 2019 30 Sep. 2020 30 Sep 2019
Other Expenses 80,077,356 41,970,004 27,703,575 17,665,08
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 60,736,63[1 41,970,004 21,235,86[7 17,665,04
Amortisztion on ROU Schedule-1 19,340,719 - 6,467,709 -
Total Expenditure 511,802,562 356,757,064 211,028,579 100,259,95
Balance of the fund at the end of the
year as shown in the Balance Sheet 1,276,829,585 808,935,102 1,276,829,585 808,935,10
1,788,632,148 1,165,692,166 1,487,858,164 909,195,06

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/-

Chief Financial Officer

Date :
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
Company Secretary

25 October, 2020

Sd/-

dd) Factors that may affect the results of operations;

There is no suchfactors that may affect the result of operations.

Chief Executive Officer
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CHAPTER VI MANAGEMENTO® S DI SCUSSI ON ANDF FANANTIALSIT S
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

a) Overview of business and strategies:

Overview of business:

The Company was incorporated on 7th July 2013 under the CompaniesAct, 1994 as a public company
limited by shares for carrying out life insurance business and was granted Certificate of
Commencement of business on 7th July 2013.The Company obtained the Certificateof Registration
from the Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) on July 30, 2013 under Insurance
Act, 2010.The company is engaged in life insurance business and has no subsidiary.

The information in respect of its business operation:

Since its establishment on 7h July 2013 the company has within a short spanof time established itself

as oneof the most reputed and trustworthy life insurance companies in private sector of the country.

Selective customer service, underwriting of liabilities and prompt settlement of claims have

contributed towards building up a very respectable image of the company within the business

community. Together with utmost transparency and customer service or ientation, it has implemented

the countryds first fully iinsurangervehichrehds natems opegrasidne m b a s e «
and activities streamlined, highly productive, efficient and cost effective.

SLI CL8s Strategies

A Ensure sustainable growth and modernization of existing facilities with potential for success
through increasing life insurance premium.

A Emphasizing on creating a quality administrative, organizational and operational platform to
practice good Life Insuran ce business;

A Achieve technological superiority;

A Strengthening financial resources;

(b) SWOT analysis:

A SWOT analysisis a structured planning method that helps to evaluate the strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats involved in a business venture. It identifies the internal and external factors
that affect business venture. Strength and Weakness are evaluated with internal factors whereas
Opportunity and Threat are evaluated by external factors. The SWOT analysis of the company is as
follows:

Strengths

Experienced Board of Directors
Experienced management

Sound financial records

Good track record for claim settlement
Sound marketing policy

No loan liabilities

=A =4 =4 -4 -4 -4

Weaknesses

T Low market share

1 Enlistment is not wide range
1 A very few advertisement
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Opportunities

91 Increasing Market

91 Diversified capital structure

1 Branding the Company

1 Improving future pr ofitability;

Threats
Huge competition
Unhealthy industry policy

Low premium rate
High rate of re insurance

=A =4 =8 -8 -4

Tendency of avoidanceof life insurance policy

Prospectus of SLICL

(c) Analysis of the financial statements of last five years with reason(s) of fluctuating revenue or
sales, other income, total income, costofmaterial, financecost, depreciation and amortization
expense, othere xpense; changes of inventories, net pr ofit before & after tax, EPS etc.

Particular 30-Dec-19 | 30-Dec-18 | 31-Dec-17 | 31-Dec-16 | 31-Dec-15
Revenue (Gross Premium) 810,783,355 677,910,127| 407,524,585 195,473,483 236,379,931
Year_to year changes in Revenue (gross 20% 66% 108% 17% 56%
premium )

Net Premium 806,221,545 675,849,377 405,720,578 194,658,655/ 235,963,615
Year to year changes in Net premium 19% 67% 108% -18% 56%
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976 5,759,184 373,571 136,927
Year to year changes in Other Income 59% -84% 1442% 173% 59%
Operating Expense 276,313,516 239,122,997| 164,820,833 111,401,746/ 81,815,124
Year to year changes in Operating Expense 16% 45% 48% 36% 28%
ManagementExpense 240,532,678 130,304,886| 84,142,100 159,154,980, 163,357,940
Year to year changes in management 85% 55% -47% 3% 256%
expense

Balance Of Life Fund 953,337,710 601,487,636| 253,073,934 57,496,791 102,272,380
Year to year changes in Balance of life fund 58% 138% 340% -44% 26%

Causes for changes in Revenue (Gross premium )
Due to changes in marketing policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our
business, volume of premium collection increased subsequently which affected the gross premium

during the period.

Causes for changes in Net Premium

Net premium is calculated by the deducting re -insurance charges from gross premium. Reinsurance
charges vary time to time which ultimate reflect the net premium.

Causes for changes in operating expenses

Due to increase business volume, agency commissionwas also increased and claims were settled. As
a result operating expense was also increased period to period.

Causes for changes in Depreciation

The company purchased a huge amount of fixed asset, which stated on the fixed asset scheduleof the

audit report 31st December, 2014.

Causes for changes in Inventory

Due to change in marketing policy and business vision for improving documentation, there was some
huge purchase of stamps and printing stationary, which caused fluctuation in inventory percentage.

126



Prospectus of SLICL

Causes for changes in Other Income (%)
Due to change in interest rate, interest income was changed during the period. Other income
comprised of late fees and saleof proposal form. Which were also varied period to period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund
Due to increase business volume, decrease management expense and increase investment income,
Balanceof life fund was also increased period to period.

Earnings per Share
N/A

(d) Known trends demands,commitments,eventsor uncertainties that is likely to have an effect on
the companyds business.

There are no known trends demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are likely to have an
effect on the Company® business except the followings:

1 Increase competition.

91 Political unrest.

1 Natural calamities.

(e) Trends or expected fluctuations in liquidity

There are no trends or expected fluctuations in liquidity.

(f) Off-balance sheet arrangements those have or likely to have a current or future effect on
financial condition

There are nooff-balance sheet arrangements those have or likely to have a current or future effect on
financial condition.
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CHAPTER VIII: DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS:

(a)

Na me,

nominated him/her;

Particulars of Directors

Fat her 6s

name,

age,

residenti al

Prospectus of SLICL

a d d of eaclsof theddirectars of tha eoinmpy andiary ipersart
nominated or represented to be a director, showing the period for which, the nomination has been made and the name of the organization which has

Name of the
SL Name of the Directors Father's name Age Residential address Edu_c_ano_nal Experience FesiiE M 172 Instltutlt_)ns i
qualification company Duration for
Nominated Director
Dream Castle, House # 7, Road# .
01 Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Md. Asaduzzaman 65 4Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212 M.Sc 37 Chairman -
. Rupali Insurance
Mr. KM Farookh_ (Nominee Abdul Hamid H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holding# 7, . Company Limited
02 director of Rupali Insurance - B.A - Director
Mazumder Road# 4, Gulshan# 1, Dhaka.
Company Ltd.)
30 years
Late  Sheikh  Abdul House#808, Road#4, Block #F, - .
03 Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Khaleque 56 Bashundhara, Dhaka-1209. B. S¢H on®) 31 Director -
. Late Bidhu Bhushan House- 67, Road07, BlockF, .
04 Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Saha 49 Banani, Dhaka-1213. M. A 19 Director -
05 Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Ferozur Rahman a7 VGO ERET . (Sl Jan_gal) BA( Honds 26 Director -
Sultanpur, B-Baria sadar, BBaria
My heart Sukrabad, House-8/1, . .
06 Mr.Omar Khayum Ferozur Rahman 41 Sukrabad, Dhaka. B.A (Hon&) 19 Director -
. . House-9, Road12, BlockSW(B) .
07 Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Enamuzzam Chowdhury 46 Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212. M.A 23 Director -
08 Mrs.Hazera Hossain Late Rabi Ullan 40 lDi/aIZ,East Raza Bazar, Tejgaon, BAMHonds) 11 Director -
1858, Sarder Ali Lane, Mohammed M.Scin Computer
09 Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Ali Selim Ahmed 41 | zaman Road, Mosque Goli, ’ . P 16 Director -
. ) science
Pachlaish, Chittagong.
10 Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta Md. Habibullah Ansari 33 Bashura, Uttar Padua, LLB (sHon 11 Independent -
Choddogram, Comilla Director
11 Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman Late Quazi Mohiuddin 66 Sl RUD.SI’ rupsi, - Rupgonj, B.com 41 Independent -
Narayanganj Director
House# 18, Road# 3, Post#
) Independent
12 Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi Sultan Ahmmed 73 Chakbazar, PS# Panchlash, Ph. D 51 . -
: Director
Chittagong.
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(b) The date on which he /shefirst became adirector and the date on which his current term  ofof fice
shall expire Directorship tenure in the Company;

Sl. Name of the Directors _ First date_ Date of Expiry _of Current

No. appointment as Director Term as director

01 Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza 07 July, 2013

Mr. K.M Farookh (Nominee director

02 of Rupali Insurance( Company Ltd.) 07 July, 2013

03 Mrs. Kamrun Nahar 07 July, 2013 )

04 | Mrs. Maya Rani Roy 07 July, 2013 The directors of the Company

05 Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque 07 July, 2013 are _SUbJeCt o _be rElEd _by

06 Mr. Omar Khayum 07 July, 2013 rotation accordln.g to Section
: : 91 and Regulation 7982 of

07 Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 07 July, 2013 Schedule | of The Company

08 Mrs. Hazera Hossain 07 July, 2013 Act, 1994.

09 Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim 07 July, 2013

10 Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta 27 September, 2018

11 Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman 27 September, 2018

12 Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi 27 September, 2018

(c) If any director has any type of interest in other businesses, names and types of business of such

organizations. If any director is also a director

other concern, the names of such organizations;

Directorso

interest

in other Business

of another company or owner or partner of any

Name of the Position in SLICL Dlrectorshlp/Sponsorshlp/Oyvnershlp with Position held
Directors other companies
Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman Farnoor Garments Limited Director
Nominee Director of . L Director
. Rupali Insurance Company Limited .
Mr. K. M. Farookh Rupali Insurance Managing
L Farnoor Garments Ltd. .
Company Limited Director
e LI Director K.S.Z Properties Limited Director
Nahar
Mrs. Maya Rani . Uttara Finance & Investment Company Independent
Director . :
Roy Limited Director
Hotel Eram International Ltd. Director
Hotel Peacock Ltd. Director
Mr. Sheikh Omar Director Olio Filling Station Proprietor & CEO
Faruque Golden Dragon Ltd. Director
Hotel Olio Int ernational Director
Araf Danial De Olio Center Proprietor
Hotel Eram International Ltd. Director
Hotel PeacockLtd. Director
Mr. Omar Khayum Director F. R Orbit International Limited. Proprietor & CEO
Golden Dragon Ltd. Director
Hotel Olio Int ernational Director
bils, Ah”?ed REfEE Director Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited. Mgnaglng
Samdani Director
Mrs. Hazera . Manna Group Director
. Director :
Hossain Hannan Desh Wear Director
Intraco Refueling Station Ltd. MD;:]?t?nr
Intraco Renewable Energy Ltd. Direcgiorg
Mrs. Hoda Ali . Intraco Power Ltd. .
. Director . Managing
Selim Intraco Ready-mix Ltd. .
Director
Intraco Developers Ltd. Managina Director
Intraco Water World Ltd. ging .
Managing
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Name of the Position in SLICL Dlrectorshlp/Sponsorshlp/Oyvnershlp with Position held
Directors other companies
Director
Managing
Director
'\R/lirki'a Honufa Akter Independent Director | Not connected with any company N/A
Mr . Quazi . Max sweater limited Ma}naglng
. Independent Director : - Director
Moniruzzaman Rupali Insurance company Limited .
Director
Mr. a R® b dzNXZ Independent Director | Icon College, UK Princip al

(d) Statement of if any of the directors of the issuer are associated with the securities market in
any manner. If any director of the Issuer Company is also a director of any issuer of other listed

securities during last three years then dividend payment history and market performance

issuer.

of that

Neither any of the directors of SLICL is associated with the securities market in any manner nor is a
director of any issuer of other listed securities except the followings:

Name of the Dividend Payment History
Name of the Direct f th
Listed "lescsﬁresr ;’re € 20182019 20172018 20162017
Company Associated with Stock Cash Stock Cash Stock Cash
Dividend | Dividend | Dividend | Dividend | Dividend | Dividend

Uttara Finance
& Investment Mrs. Maya Rani Roy 20% 30%
Company - - - -
Limited
Golden Harvest .
Agro Industries | M- Ahmed Rajeeb) 5, 7% 10% 10%

= Samdani - -
Limited
Intraco
Refueling Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim 10% i 5% 5% i i
Station Ltd.

e)Any family r el at i onship
spousedsmot her ,

spouseds

(father, mother, spouse, brother,
S p 0 u sfficérs:

brother,

There are no family relationships among the top five Officers and directors except the followings.

Sl. Name of Director Position Relationship

1. | Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman Spouseof Mr. K.M Farookh.
Mr. K.M. Farookh

2. | (Nominated director of Rupali Director Husband of Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza
Insurance Company Ltd.)

3. Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director Brother of Mr. Omar Khayum.

4. Mr. Omar Khayum Director Brother of Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque.
Mrs. Nargis Mahmuda Shareholder Sister of Mr. Sheikh Omar Farugue and

Mr. Omar Khayum.

6. Mr. Mir Rashed Bin Aman Chief Executive Officer (CC) _I?:rs];and of Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun

7. Mr. Shah Abu Khair Chief Financial Officer No family relation with other Directors.

8. Mr. Md. Rafe-uz-zaman Company Secretary and HR | No family relation with other Directors.

9. Mr. Bikash Chandra Biswas Sl UREETTITG No family relation with other Directors.

Department
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(f) A very brief description

of other businesses of the directors

Brief descriptions of other business of the directors are given below:
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Name of the Directors

Position in SLICL

Directorship/Sponsorship/Ownership with other companies

Nature of Business

Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza

Chairman

Farnoor Garments Limited

RMG products and Kanitting

Mr. K. M. Farookh

Nominee Director ofRupali Life
Insurance Company Limited

Rupali Life Insurance Company Li mited
Farnoor Garments Ltd.

Life Insurance Company
RMG products and Knitting

Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director K.S.Z Properties Limited Real state Business
Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director Uttara Finance & Investment Company Limited Financial Institution
Hotel Eram International Ltd. Hotel Business
Hotel PeacockLtd. Hotel Business
. . Olio Filling Station Oil and CNG filling station
Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director Golden Dragon Ltd. Restaurant
Hotel Olio Int ernational Hotel Business
Araf Danial De Olio Center Hotel and restaurant
Hotel Eram International Ltd. Hotel Business
Hotel PeacockLtd. Hotel Business
Mr. Omar Khayum Director F. R Orbit International Limited. IT company
Golden Dragon Ltd. Restaurant
Hotel Olio Int ernational Hotel Business
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited. Agro Based Business
Mrs. Hazera Hossain Director Manna Group Textile
Intraco Refueling Station Ltd. CNG and Refueling station
Intraco Renewable Energy Ltd. Oil energy
S . Intraco Power Ltd. Oil and energy
Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director Intraco Ready-mix Ltd. RMG

Intraco Developers Ltd.
Intraco Water World Ltd.

Developing business
Water business

Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta

Independent Director

Not connected with any company

N/A

Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman

Independent Director

Max sweater limited
Rupali Insurance company Limited

Managing Director
Director

Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi

Independent Director

Icon College, UK

Principaal
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(g) Short Bio Data of the Directors

Noor -E-Hafza, Chairperson

Noor-E-Hafza is the Chairman of the company. She holds postgraduate degree on zoology from
Rajshahi University. She completed diploma in Food & Nutrition from the University  of Dhaka. She
obtained diploma degree on art and theater from the University ofLondon School ofArts. She served
as personnel officer in Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation (BCIC). She worked as chief
nutritionist in National nutrition council for 3 years. She is a Director of Farnoor Garments Limited
for more than 30 years.

K.M. Farookh, Director

Mr. K.M Farookh represents himself as a Director of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited on
behalf of the Rupali Insurance Company Ltd. He is also the founder and Chairman of Farnoor
Garments Ltd.

Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani, Director

Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani is a Directorof the Company. He is the Managing Director of Golden Harvest
Group and the founder and trustee of Samdani Art Foundation. He is also the founding committee
member of Tate Museum, United Kingdom, South Asia Acquisition Committee. He is the Secretary
General of the Bangladesh Human Rights Foundation. He has started his career as a commodity
broker with Stemcor. Over the years, his company, Golden Harvest has expanded its businesses into
Information Technology, Commaodities, Logistics, Food processing, Agricultu re, Aviation business,
Real Estate and Insurance business

Hazera Hossain, Director

Hazera Hossain is a Director of the Company. After graduating from AIUB, she has served in
different corporate houses in Bangladesh. She was a Directorof Famous Spinning Mills. She is also a
Director of Hannan Desh Wear.

Sheikh Omar Faruque, Director

Sheikh Omar Faruque is a Director of the company. He is involved in different types of Businesses.
He is a Director of Hotel Eram Int" Ltd. and Hotel Peacock Ltd. He is a proprietor of Olio
International .

Omar Khayum, Director

Omar Khayum is a Director of the company. After graduating, he is involved in different businesses.
He is a Director of Hotel Eram Int" Ltd. and Hotel PeacockLtd. He is also a proprietor & CEO of F. R
Orbit International Limited.

Kamrun Nahar, Director
Kamrun Nahar is a Director of the company. She is involved in Real Estate business. She is also a
Director of K.S.Z Properties Limited.

Maya Rani Roy, Director

Maya Rani Roy is a Director of the Company. She holds a Master of Arts Degree from Jagannath
University. She served in different corporate houses. She was an Alternate Director of Uttara Finance
& Investment Company Limited. She was a member of different voluntary welfare organizations in
the country.

Hoda Ali Selim, Director

Hoda Ali Selim is a Director of the Company. She holds postgraduation degree from National
University. She is involved in different types of business. She is a Directorof Hotel Agrabad Limited.
She is also a Managing Directorof Intraco Ready Mix Limited.
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Honufa Akter Rikta , Indepen dent Di rector

Honufa Akter Rikta is an Independent Di rector of the Company. She holds a L.L.B Degreeand
member of Bangladesh bar association. She was a member of different voluntary welfare
organizations in the country .

Quazi Moniruzzaman 2Indepen dent Director

Quazi Moniruzzaman, one of the Independent Directors of the Company.He is the director of
different type of business organization in this country. He is the Managing Director of Max Sweaters
and Director ofRupali Insurance Company Ltd.

Professor Nurun Nabi , Indepen dent Director

Professor Nurun Nabi oneof the Independent Directors of the Company. He holds MBA (Henley at
Oxon), PhD (London), Certificate in SBM (Harvard), FInstLM, MPDSE . He was a memberof different
voluntary welfare organizations and educational organization in the country

(h) Loan status of the issuer, its directors and shareholders who hold 10% or more shares in the
paid -up capital of the issuer in terms of the CIB Report of Bangladesh Bank

Neither SLICL nor any of its Sponsors or Directors or shareholders who hold 10% or more shares in
paid-up capital of the SLICL is a loan defaulter in terms of the CIB Report of the Bangladesh Bank.
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(i) Name with positi on, educational qualification, age, date of joininginthecompany,overallexperience (in year),
oftheChiefExecutive Officer,ManagingDirector,Chief
Departmental Heads. If the Chairman,

the financial year

Particulars of Top Executives & Departmental heads of the Company including Consultants & A dvisers:
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previous employment, salary paid for
Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Advisers,
any director or any shareholder received any monthly salary than this information should also be included

Consultants and all

Date of Educational Overall Salary paid
Name Position Joining in Age S e Experience 01 Jan 31 01 Jan 31 Previous employment
the company (in year) Dec, 2019 Dec, 2018
'\A"r;an Mir Rashed — Bin (Cch'ce)f Executive  Officer | 1 572013 | 34 Masters 18 4,290,000.00| 3,960,000.00| Rupali Insurance Co.Ltd.
Mr. Shah Abu Khair Chief Financial Officer 08.01.2014 | 37 Masters 13 624,000.00 504,000.00 | Rupali Insurance Co.Ltd.
MBA (HRM &
Marketing) and
Mr. Md. Rafe -uz-zaman Company Secretary and HR | 02.09.2013 | 28 Chartered 8 572,000.00 444,000.00 | Robi Axiata (Sales team)
Secretaries (Level
2)

M_r. Bikash  Chandra | GM, Underwriting 01.06.2014 | 47 Masters 23 709,800.00 604,800.00 Delta Life insurance co.
Biswas Department Ltd.
Mr. Md. Golam Mostofa Head of IT & AGM 01.12.2013 | 30 Masters 13 689,000.00 564,000.00 Forest greeri_td.

SiEel METERE, Shandhani Life insurance
Mr. Rajesh Aich Development Admin 01.01.2014 32 Bachelor 17 522,80.00 410,400.00 coLtd

Division "
Mrs. Polly RaniSarker 'B"S?s?gsr’ Policy  Services| 7 692013 | 32 Masters 6 392,600 297,600.00 ;
Mr. Sanjoy Chakraborty mngagnegéuaum And Group | o1 09 2013 | 29 Masters 6 452,400 374,400.00 -
Mrs. — Muttakin —Islam | oo 4 of Training 25112017 | 55 Masters 28 1,319,500 | 720,000.00 | Charered Life Insurance
Mukta Co. Ltd.

Adviser SLICL has no adviser
Consultant SLICL has no consultant

Apart from this, no other director including Chairman, or any shareholder

of the Company do not receive any monthly Salary from the Company.
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() Changes in the key management persons during the last three years. Any change otherwise than
by way of retirement in the normal course in the senior key management personnel
particularly in charge of production, planning, finance and marketing during the last three
years prior to the date offiling the information memorandum. If the turnover of key
management personnel is high compared to the industry, reasons should be discussed:

Sl. No. Name Position in the Company Remarks

1 Mr. Ajit Chandra Aich chief executive officer Resigned on and released

Mr. Mir Rashed Bin . . ) appoint edthrough 29 board meeting dated
2 Aman chief executive officer (cc) 13 June 2020
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(k) A profile oft h e
business, positions or posts held in the past, directorship held, other ventures

sponsor s

i ncluding

t hei

r

names,

fatheros
of each sponsor and present position :
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names, age,

peer sonal

. Exp. in Position . . Status of the Sponsor in other ventures and position
Name of the , Educational . Directorship
ek Sponsor's REErS R Age HEECEEL b o ualification LG R held Name of the Compan Position
P q business the past pany
Mrs. Noor -E- Dream Castle, House # Since

01 ) Md. Asaduzzaman 65 | 7, Road# A4Gulshanl, M.Sc 37 Chairman . . Farnoor Garments Limited Director

Hafza inception
Dhaka-1212
Mrs. Fauzia Mostofa Golam House #2/3, Road# 03, | B.Sc(Hons), Sponsor Since Imperial Sweater Industries .Ltd.' Managl_ng Director
02 . 36 . 12 . . Dragon Sweater and Spinning Director
Quamrun Tania Quddus Banani,Dhaka-1213 M. Sc Shareholder inception L
Limited, Bangladesh
Mr. K. M.
Farookh - . .

03 (Nominee I oRdzE | | YA Dream Castle, House # Director Since REGROEF RS HITEe Managing Director
Director of Y21 dzY RS NJ 72 | 7, Road# 4Gulshani, B.A 37 inception Ruoali Insurance Company. Ltd Ditector
Rupali Insurance Dhaka-1212 p pany Lid.

Company Ltd.)
. . Director
Mr. Sheikh _ _ House & 4, Road06, BBA, Sponsor Since Mirage Agro Complex. Director

04 | Mohammed Sheikh Abdul Matin 34 . . . 11 . . Mirage Group . .

. Khulshi, Chittagong. Graduation Shareholder inception . - Managing Director
Danial FinenessApparel limited
Mrs. Shafia Zafar Ullah House-69, _RoadO?, BBA, Sponsor Since Perag Socks IndustriesLtd. o Director

05 | Sobhan Chowdhu 37 | Block-F, Banani Dhaka- Graduation 11 Shareholder incention Dragon Sweater and Spinning Director

Chowdhury Y 1213 P Limited, Bangladesh
. House#808, Road# 24, .

06 Mrs. Kamrun Late Sheikh Abdul 56 | Block #F, Bashundhara BSc hons 31 Director . Smc_e K.S.Z Properties Limited Director

Nahar Khaleque inception
Dhaka-1209.
Mrs. Maya Rani Late Bidhu Bhushan AR - B _RoadO?, Masters in . Since Uttara Finance & Investment Independent
07 49 | Block-F, Banani, Dhaka 19 Director . . s .
Roy Saha 1213 Arts inception Company Limited Director
Hotel Eram In ternational Ltd. Director
Hotel PeacockLtd. Director

. Yakub nagar, (South - - .

08 Mr. Sheikh Omar Ferozur Rahman 47 | jangal) Sultanpur, B- BBA 26 Director Since Olio Filling Station Proprle_tor & CEO

Faruque - . . . Golden Dragon Ltd. Director
Baria sadar, BBaria inception - . .
Hotel Olio Int ernational Director
Araf Danial De Olio Center Proprietor
Mr. Omar My heart Sukrabad, Hotel Eram International Ltd. Director
09 Kh-a um Ferozur Rahman 41 | House-8/1, Sukrabad, B.A Hons 19 Director Since Hotel PeacockLtd. Director
Y Dhaka inception F. R Orbit International Limited. Proprietor & CEO
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. Exp. in Position . . Status of the Sponsor in other ventures and position
Name of the , Educational . Directorship
ek Sponsor's REErS R Age HEECEEL b o ualification il R held Name of the Compan Position
P q business the past pany
Golden Dragon Ltd. Director
Hotel Olio Int ernational Director
) Chief Executive
Golden Harvest Agro Industries )
Mr. Ahmed Enamuzzam House-9, Road12, Limited Officer and
10 ; . 46 | Block-SW(B) Gulshan-1, MBA 23 Director Since S . Managing Director
Rajeeb Samdani | Chowdhury . . Samdani Art Foundation
Dhaka-1212. inception . . Founder
Alvina Samdani Trust
Founder
Mrs.Hazera . 18/ B,East Raza Bazar, . Since Manna Group Director
1 Hossain L (R Tl &Y Tejgaon, Dhaka BBA 1 UG inception Hannan Desh Wear Director
Intraco Group Managing Director
1858, Sarder Ali Lane, . Intraco Renewable Energy Ltd. ging o1
. MSC in Managing Director
12 Mrs. Hoda Ali a1 Mohammed zaman Computer 16 Director Since Intraco Power Ltd. Managing Director
Selim Ali Selim Ahmed Road, Mosque Goli, P . . Intraco Ready-mix Ltd. ging o1
. : science inception Managing Director
Pachlaish, Chittagong. Intraco Developers Ltd. Managing Director
Intraco Water World Ltd. ging
LJ7Es [leTI Independent
13. | Akter Rikta MdHab i bAndd 4 33 | la KdzNJ = i U LLBHons 11 Di?ector AGM 2018 Not connected with any company N/A
/ K2RR23NI Y3
R Max Sweaters Limited
Mr. v dzt 1 A { 2dzii K w dz| Independent Managing Director
4 a2y ANzl L H[FGST vzl 1) 66 | ) 52 yeas bt N B.com 4l Director AGM2018 | pipali  Insurance  Company Director
Limited
Mr.a R® b dzN I-My 9@ 2w KJ 1 0 -1 Independent o
- ] o
15. bl oA {dzA& Gy ! KY| 73 tFyOKEF &aKs |/ Phd. 51 Director AGM 2018 Icon College, UK Principal
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() If the present directors are not the sponsors and control

ProspectusfSLICL

of theissuerwasacquiredwithinfiveyears immediately preceding the date of filing Prospectus

details regarding the acquisition ofcontrol,date of acquisition,terms of acquisition, consideration paid f or such acquisition etc. :

None of the Directors of the Company acquired controlling shares within five years immediately preceding the date of filing Prospectus.

(m) If the sponsors or directors do not have experience in the proposed line

out or managed:

All the sponsors/directors have experience in the proposed line of business.

(n) Interest of the Key management persons:

of business, the fact explaining how the proposed activities would be carried

SL Name Designation Details of Interest
1 Mr. Mir Rashed Bin Aman Chief Executive Officer (CC) Salary
2 Mr. Shah Abu Khair Chief Financial Officer Salary
3 Mr. Md. Rafe -uz-zaman Company Secretary Salary
4 Mr. Bikash Chandra Biswas General Manager Salary

(o) All Interest and facilities enjoyed by the directors, whether pecuniary or non -pecuniary :

All Interest and facilities enjoyed by the directors, whether pecuniary or non -pecuniary as on 31December2019 are as follows:

Name of Directors Relationship Nature of facilities Amount in Taka

Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. K. M. Farookh .

(Nominee director of Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.) Director Board Attendance Fee 24,00000
Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. Omar Khayum Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director Board Attendance Fee 24,00000
Mrs.Hazera Hossain Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director Board Attendance Fee 24,00000
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Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta Independent Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman Independent Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi Independent Director Board Attendance Fee 32,00000
(p) Number of Shares held and percentage of Shareholding (Pre -IPO)
Shareholding
Sl. Name of the Shareholders BO ID Address No. of Shares (%)
1 | Noore-Hafza 1203 000058289777 Dream Castle, Houd#7, Roaed4, Gulshasd1, Dhaka. 1,160,000 4.07%
2 | Fauzia Quamrun Tania| 1203 000073109007 House2/3, Road03, Banani, Dhaka. 2,831,500 9.94%
3 | Rupali Insurance Co. Lt{ 1203 710045692077 Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7 Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka. 3,000,000 10.53%
4 | Shafia Sobhan 1203 710040903803 | House69, Roaed7, Blocke, Banani, Dhaka . 2,130,000 7.47%
Chowdhury
5 ggi'i';rl‘ Mohammed | ;543 000056349992 | House04, Roaed6, KhulshiChittagong . 1,700,000 5.96%
6 Kamrun Nahar 1201 820064096496 House808, Roael4, BlockF, Bashundhara, Dhaka. 1,100,000 3.86%
7 | Maya Rani Roy 1203 770072678151 House67, RoaeD7, BlockF, Banani, Dhaka. 1,000,000 3.51%
8 | Sheikh Omar Farugue | 1602070008340181 | “I- South Jangal, Sultanpur, Brahmanbaria Sg ;441 5o 3.51%
Brahmanbaria.
9 | Omar Khayum G0 ETERIEEARr g | LAY N SUllonel, [FRUSER, Sulvelsael, IWETmiRe il - g e a5 3.51%
Shera Bangla Nagar, Dhaka.
10 | Ahmed Rajeeb Samdan 1204500032808706 House9, Roadl2, BlockSW(B), Gulshah, Dhaka. 1,030,000 3.61%
11 | Hazera Hossain 1204 090039637479 18/B, East Raja Bazar, Tejgaon, Dhaka. 1,285,000 4.51%
12 | Hoda Ali Selim 1204 500061169239 | 1828, Sarder Ali Lane, Mohammad Jaman Rbkque 950,000 3.33%
Goli, Chapilish, Chittagong.
. 2/Ka/12/13, Green House, Mumenshing Road, Nay o
13 | Nargis Mahmuda 1602 070008340163 Habibulla Road, Shahbagh, Dhaka. 1,000,000 3.51%
14 | Phowzia Khan 1204 500061587841 893, Middle Monipur, Mirpu2, Dhaka. 330,000 1.16%
15 | Quazi Moniruzzaman | 1203 000073436876 South Rupsi,Rupsi, Rupgonj, Narayangon]. 110,000 0.39%
16 | Md. Nurun Nabi 1203 000073434968 H-18. R3, PostChakbazar, PBanchlash, Chittagong. 312,000 1.09%
17 | Hanufa Akter Rikta 1203000073417825 Bashura, Uttar Padua, Choddogram, Comilla. 475,000 1.67%
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Sl. Name of the Shareholders BO ID Address No. of Shares Shar((et;/c:;ding
18 | Ajit Chandra Aich 1203 000060707171 Eﬁfg 7, ahammad bag, POasabel2l4, sobujbag 20,000 0.07%
19 | Ishra Tahiyat 1203 000072576205 H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdir§ R4, Gulshna 1, Dhaka. 612,500 2.15%
20 ﬁ;?(‘)':)::"h"hammad 1203 000073395060 | H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdify R4, Gulshnal, Dhaka. 500,000 1.75%
21 | Alamzeb Radin Ahmed | 1203 000072575856 gﬁfﬁg’ R B WIBBISrlET, AESE ROUEE A eI 500,000 1.75%
22 | Md. Mahbubzzaman 1203 000073418169 H-420/C,Khilgaon, P&hilgaon,Dhakd219. 5,000 0.02%
23 | Mifrah Zahir 1203 000072578410 H-8/b, R82, Gulshaf2,POGulshan, Dhak&212. 40,000 0.14%
24 | Fatema Zahir Majumder 1203 000072609401 H-8/b, R-82, Gulshaf2,POGulshan, Dhak&212. 60,000 0.21%
25 | Md. Momin Hossain 1203 050047573995 H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdir§ R4, Gulshnal, Dhaka. 50,000 0.18%
26 | Mir Rashed Bin Aman | 1203 000056345571 H-2, R2/3, Banani, Pd8Bananil213, Gulshan. 109,000 0.38%
27 | Mst. Fazlutun nessa 1203 000073366526 Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 720,000 2.52%
28 | Abdul latif manik 1204 570056429298 Nur Thajir, Bari, Rajfulicari, Savar. 25,000 0.09%
29 | Md. Borhan Uddin 1205 000045087327 Kalsi, Kalapani, MirpuRhakal216. 25,000 0.09%
30 | Mohammad Wasser | ;545 750058382008 | Pachgaon, PBlaogaon, Narayangong, Dhaka. 25,000 0.09%
Hossain Rifat
31 | Saidun Nessa 1203 000073368319 | Vill-Belghor, PMiabazar, P&Ehoddogram, Comilla. 5,000 0.02%
32 | Kamrun Nahar Ahmed | 1203 000073435606 H-7/2, Digonto Jalalabad , Sylhet. 15,000 0.05%
33 | Gazi Badrujjaman 1203640072474400 Khulna Fultola, Dakkhin Dihitartibpur, Fult®210. 6,500 0.02%
34 | Md. Alauddin Mia 1202 420029483751 | V/RD¢ Montoli, P.O.- Siziara Bazar, P.§.Nangolkot, 35,000 0.12%
DIST Comilla.
35 | Md. RafeUzZaman 1203 000073417983 H-155, Boshpara,-Bhoramara, PBoyalia, Rajshahi. 55,000 0.19%
36 | Kallol Barua 1203 000073418415 g’;‘:éaRNO”h Road, Vutergoli, Newmarket, Dhanmond 1,000 0.00%
37 | Sujan Talukder 1203 000035644515 | VI-Dewanpur, - Pebewanpur, P®ewanpur, Rawjan 25,000 0.09%
Chattagrom.
38 | Md. Golam Kibria 1203 000072580454 | Vil Dondopal, Péagdha, Devigonj, panchagor. 7,500 0.03%
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Sl. Name of the Shareholders BO ID Address No. of Shares Shar((et;/c:;ding
39 Sheikh Md. Bodyuz 1203 000072769862 V/RD- 2_24/18, BlockK,South Bonosree, P.©Khilgaon, 40,000 0.14%
zaman P.S¢ Khilgaon, DISTDhaka.
40 | Md. Golam Mostofa 1201 580032848483 H-885A, Terkhadia, Senanibash, Rajpara , Rajshahi. 25,000 0.09%
41 | MK Muhammad Miraz | 1201 960040465147 \ég;(b:;;?rpara EEITEEEY, SSlEMER,  [RElel @ie) 23,000 0.08%
42 | Moushumi Roy 1204 490063876124 H-58/6/3, North Mukdhapara, Basabo, Sobujbug, Dhak 20,000 0.07%
43 | Md. Abdullah Hil Kafee | 1203 640021579237 T&T Staff Quater, Regi para, Tangail. 20,000 0.07%
44 | Md. Asraful Islam 1201 830063000713 H-226, VitSouth kutubkhali Dhonia , Jatrabari, Dhaka. 15,000 0.05%
45 | Rajesh Aich 1203 000073434652 Housel35/5/7, Ahamadbag, basabo sabujbahg, Dhakg 2,000 0.01%
46 | Mostafa Golam Quddus 1203000072964990 Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla . 2,680,000 9.40%
47 g"(‘)’s;jr? Quamrus 1203 710008260461 | Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 300,000 1.05%
48 | Tasnia Quamrun Anika | 1203 000073450244 Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 1,200,000 4.21%
49 | Md. Fahad Bin Farooqu| 1201 840064455403 | HH1090. Jakir Hossain Road, East Nasirabad, Chitta 20,000 0.07%
Po-Khulshi 4209.
H-Abdul Mabud Sowdagor bari,-Korban Ali Sowdagqg
50 | Md. Shahed Hossain 1204 890062632243 para, Southhalishohor, PeBandar4100, Chitatgong port 20,000 0.07%
chittagong.
H-Jonab Ali sowdagor bari.-NRaij Para, South Middl¢ 0
51 | Md. Parvez Igbal 1204 890038310461 Halishohor! PBandar 4100, Chitagong port, Chittagor 20,000 0.07%
135/5/7, ahammad bag, Rosmhammad bag, PBasabo 0
52 | Sume Sen 1203000045013427 1214, sobujbag, Dhaka south city corporation, Dhaka. 15,000 0.05%
53 | Md. Shajidul Anwar 1201 960072414747 Vill:Shaeguna, Post:Sharbil, Chakria, CoxBazar. 15,000 0.05%
54 S. M. Mohiuddin 1203 000072386743 H-Hajera. Baper bari,-RAkubdondi, POlgbal park 4365 15,000 0.05%
Faruquee Boalkhali, Chittagong.
55 | Md. Mir Kadim 1203 680073001502 | Kosba 3rd part, POKosba 3460, kosba porosoba 15,000 0.05%
Brammonbaria.
56 | Md. Shah Alam 1201590016654207 H-karupolli, 290/West Ukil Para, Abid Munshio Bari - 15,000 0.05%
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Sl. Name of the Shareholders BO ID Address No. of Shares Shar((et;/c:;ding
Feni sadar 3900, Feni.

57 | Md. Rafiqul Islam 1208 ERIeTTEEsy | 1 W ReRe), Sinenieey) ShRmiieger dad 15,000 0.05%
Motijheel Dhaka.

58 | Md. Anowar Hoasen | 1201590063914216 | -Amir Hossain Sowdagor,-kRdhurkhil, Pckodurkhil 10,000 0.04%
4368, Boalkhali Chittagong.

59 | Uttam Kumar Bhowmik | 1204 780000116729 gﬁjkaB’ SR CGENEIU [BEe) MOyt 120 10,000 0.04%

60 | Md. Alauddin 1204 180073195906 | Moulovi  Anawer  Member  bari,Sharikai  sanc 10,000 0.04%
Chattagarm.

61 | Mir Ashiful Karim 1203 000073435095 H-198, Elephant Road, Plew Market 1205, Dhaka. 9,500 0.03%

62 | Md. Thamjidul Alam | 1201 960072414458 | RSikdar Para, Fasiakhali, -Pasiakhali 4741 cokoria, 7,500 0.03%
Coxsbazar.

63 | Fazlur Rahman T000 SrapiseEReg | Dl ML ORI, (R U Mt e, [Rueilell den 7,000 0.02%
Zatrbari, Dhaka.

64 | Jannatul 1203 000072580719 Gunda,Gunda road,RPGonda, kandua, netrokona. 7,000 0.02%

65 | Md. Delwar Hossan 1208 GROUTANENERE | DINESIE |, [PYIesE R, lege [peesued 7,000 0.02%
Brammonbaria.

66 | Md.Golum Mostofa 1203 000072766925 H-ka/142, Nort para, P&hilkhet 1229, Khilkhet, Dhaka. 6,000 0.02%

57 || ol Sl Rl | 220 seniseege, | - oureell, Ze0nniEst DI R, Ao LTS BRI - 5,500 0.02%
Feni sadar 3900, Feni.

68 | Sanwar Hosan 1203 050055259159 | HMondol Bari, Sripur kumaria PoKumaria 2001 5,000 0.02%
Jamalpur sadar, Jamalpur.

69 | Marina Sultana 1203 000072574182 H-56, sobujbag, Fsobujbag, PéBasabo 1214, Dhaka. 5,000 0.02%

70 | Md. Abdul Malik 1203 000064313371 B1/5,VillWest Agargong,P®lohammadpur, Dhaka. 5,000 0.02%

71 | Sanjoy Chakraborty 1203 000072579648 Gashigram, Thakurbari, Miyabazar, Choddogram, Con 5,000 0.02%

72 | Md. Shahidur Rahman | 1203 000072573608 | OUSe No. 350, Palash Bagh , West Rampura, 4th 5,000 0.02%
Khilgaon1219, Dhaka.

73 | Nusrat Sarmin Smriti 1203 000072579225 H- Ta 212/1, RBoishakhi soroni, Middle badda 2nd pa| 5,000 0.02%
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PGGulshanr1212.

74 | Md. Anowar Hossain | 1201 600073463668 | Tafor miar basa Raji dulamia bhuiyan sorok, Sou 5,000 0.02%
charipur, PGFeni 3900.

75 | Md Lokman Hossain 1204 140068177869 Rhoriyan sugar mill PGRa. Ci. Ka 6211, Poba, Rajshal 5,000 0.02%

76 | Md. Wazed Ali 1203 000072580074 Vill-kalibari, Pe Thakurgaon 5100, Thakurgaon. 5,000 0.02%

77 | Md. Wahidul islam er sepeeasEEey | UHEEEDY  vilaliuain CeresiEr  RemgiEars 5,000 0.02%
Sadar,Barisal.

78 | Polly rani sarker 1203 000072578694 ;‘(‘)%7’ Noni  Saha, East paik para, -PErammonbaria 4,000 0.01%

79 | Abu Shahadat Dulal 1201 590066424874 Paikpara, ward no. 4, Takiabajar, sonagazi, Feni. 4,000 0.01%

) ) H-Dhaka Tower, Fl&801, 50 Green Road PNew
ki b 0
80 | Anika Aziz 1203 260072518385 | 1o e Danmondi Dhaka. 3,500 0.01%
81 Md. Mohinul Hoque 1203 000072487181 H—A_kmal Master Bari, Boro Uthan, FRjil Khar hat 4371 3.500 0.01%
Khan Potia, Chittagong.

82 t"ac;:?mmad Mizanul | 1501 960072414061 | H-999, Fasiakhali, Peasiakhali 474Tokoria, Coxsbaza 3,000 0.01%

83 | Bijoy Parsad Bhadra | 1204 780072455965 | Hlouse42/2, VillHemendo das road,Dhaka sad 3,000 0.01%
sutrapur Dhak&l100.

84 | Arfin Badal 1205 700063965332 H-1003,East Shewrapara,Mirpur,Dhak216. 3,000 0.01%

85 | KohinoorAkther 1201 510019766625 | = 211802 Bl.Aarong Plaja ,bora Moghbajar, Outer Cirg 2,000 0.01%
Road , PESHantinagar.

86 | Kaium Ahamed 1203 000072577531 Ejd?rgioﬁ'\mbamn School , East Jurain,-Faridabad, 2,000 0.01%

87 | Shah Faysal Mahamud| 1203 000072575002 Vill- Nandina aliyabad, P®ajitpur, Kishorgon;. 2,000 0.01%

88 | Anannya Bhattacharjee| 1203 680021709937 | +52/5/7, ahammad bag, Roashammad bag, POasabe 2,000 0.01%
1214, sobujbag, Dhaka.

89 | Md. Mahir Ameer 1908 GRai2iepsn | SEABUE, RSP 0Re, B ek, <2eHiEl 2,000 0.01%

Nagar, Dhaka.
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90 | Bikash Chandra Biswas 1201 580025249662 H-174, Purbo Razabazar, Tejgaon,Dhaka. 2,000 0.01%
91 | Labiba laila 1203 000072577970 H-77, North Mugdapara, P0214, sobujbag, Dhaka. 2,000 0.01%
135/6, ahammad bag, Roathammad bag, P®asabo o
92 | Avijit Sarkar 1202 550065728250 1214, Sobujbag, Dhaka. 1,500 0.01%
93 E/I%Tl?rgdue(:dm 1203 000072573003 | Mozunder Bari, Uttor rampur, Ahmad Nagar , Comilla. 1,000 0.00%
94 | ZaedBin-Zahir 1203 390072776138 H-808,R24/F, Bashundhara R/A, Dhaka. 50,000 0.18%
95 | Nadia Khalil Choudhury| 1204 500046515450 H-5, kalchadpur, Gulshan, Dhaka. 500,000 1.75%
96 | Mohammed Riyadh Ali | 1204 500061522374 (H:}]li?tggbn gZaman Road, Medical College, Pachl 50,000 0.18%

* Transferred as perB (B@Ea & BF a £ C E CHEBRAENE B d $3.03.0000.031.50.026.18,54d CHDia b E BhERBHD

“BJBdEQRPFIECECEBHEH EH|d ¢ 580E0000.031.50.026.18hp 'DEB d 8d & HIER BSddecba ED B EBERMHBM Ehe ™), &, EbEDEFUC
d

dEG¢E” dOETHRC HE RPD dBd ¢ ELEBRME@ " d¢ ZEE dithd , BIWOW) D E FdEB E Bld gBI)d @D Da Eb EB EREX E° d ¢ D2dHE
BDdF2 ®@BBECDARS

(q) Changes in the Board of Directors in the last 03 three) years:

There are no changes in the Boardof Directors in the last three Years:

r

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Date of Joining Date of retirement Present Status
1 Honufa Akter Rikta AGM 2018 Nill Independent Director
2 Quazi Moniruzzaman AGM 2018 Nill Independent Director
3 Md. Nurun Nabi AGM 2018 Nill Independent Director

(r) Director's engaged with similar business

Following Directors are engaged in similar business:

SI No. Name of the Directors Position in Similar Business Nature of Business
01 K.MFarookh Director Insurance
02 Quazi Moniruzzaman Director Insurance
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CHAPTER IX: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS:

(a) A description of any transaction during the last five years, or any proposed transactions certified by the auditors, between the issuer and an
following persons, giving the name of the persons involved in the transaction, their relationship with the issuer, the nature
transaction and the amount of such interest, namely: -

()Any director or sponsor or executive officer of the issuer;
(i)Any person holding 5% or more of the outstanding shares of theissuer;

(iii)Any related party or connected person

of any of the above persons;

Certification of Statement of Related Party Transaction of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited

ProspectusfSLICL

y of the

of their interest in the

This is to certify that the financial statements of the Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited furnished for our audit does not have any transaction during the
last five years, or any proposed transaction between the issuer and anyof the following persons:

i. Any dir ector or sponsor or executive officer to the issuer;
ii. Any person holding 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the issuer;
iii. Any related party or connected person of any of the above person;

Except the transactions for the last five years described in thefollowing table:

Amount in Tk.

Relationship with

Name of the Party the Company Nature of transaction 31 Dec. 2019 | 31 Dec. 2018 | 31 Dec.2017 | 31 Dec. 2016 | 31 Dec. 2015
Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun Tania (Resigning . . .
from the board on 12 September 2020) Vice Chairman Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. KM Farookh (Nominee —of Rupali | 0o e Shareholder | Board Meeting Fee 24,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Insurance Company Limited)
Mrs. Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury ( Resigning . .
from the board on 12t September 2020) Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. Sheikh Mohammed Danial (Resigning . .
from the board on 12t September 2020) Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
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Relationship with

Name of the Party the Company Nature of transaction 31 Dec. 2019 | 31 Dec. 2018 | 31 Dec.2017 | 31 Dec. 2016 | 31 Dec. 2015
Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. Omar Khayum Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 24,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mrs. Hazera Hossain Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 32,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director & Shareholder Board Meeting Fee 24,000 29,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman Independent Director Board Meeting Fee 32,000 - - - -
Mrs. Honufa Akter Rikta Independent Director Board Meeting Fee 32,000 - - - -
Mr. Md. Nurun Nabi Independent Director Board Meeting Fee 32,000 - - - -
Imperial Sweater Industries Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 5,191,260 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Perag Socks IndustriesLtd. Common Director Group Insurance 5,327,870 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Dragon Sweater BangladeshLtd. Common Director Group Insurance 10,411,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Rupali Insurance Company Limited Common Director Group Insurance 803,546 844,627 - - -
Golden Harvest Developers Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 24,600 - - - -
Golden Harvest Commodities Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 7,312 - - - -
Samdhani Art Foundation Common Director Group Insurance 11,250 - - - -
Bran Train Studio Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 15,675 - - - -
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 246,000 49,950 95,175 95,175 -
Golden Harvest Icecreame Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 285,975 56,025 124,200 124,200 -
Golden Harvest Foods Ltd. Common Director Group Insurance 224,475 18,900 17,550 17,550 -
Dragon IT & Communication Ltd. Common Director Payable - - 4,842,885 22,582,285 4,751,328
Intraco Refueling Stations Limited Common Director Receivable 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Rulali Insurance Company Limited Common Director Office rent 480,000 480,000 480,000 480,000 120,000

Sd/ -

Place: Dhaka
Date: 7July 2020

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accounts
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(b) Any transaction or arrangement entered into by the issuer or its subsidiary or associate or entity
owned or significantly influenced by a person who is currently a director or in any way
connected with a director of either the issuer company or any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or associate concerns, or who was a director or connected in any way with a director
at any time during the last three years prior to the issuance of the Prospectus.

There is no transaction or arrangement entered into by the issuer or its subsidiary or associate or
entity owned or significantly influenced by a person who is currently a director or in any way
connected with a director of either the issuer company or any of its subsidiaries/holding company or
associate conceris, or who was a director or connected in any way with a director at any time during
the last three years prior to the issuance of the prospectus except the transaction mentioned under
clause(a)of CHAPTER (IX).

(c) Any loans either taken or given from or to any director or any person connected with the
director, clearly specifying details of such loan in the Prospectus, and if any loan has been
taken from any such person who did not have any stake in the issuer, its holding company or
its associate concerns prior to such loan, rate of interest applicable, date of loan taken, date of
maturity of loan, and present outstanding of such loan.

The company has not taken or given any loan from/to any director or any pers on connected with the
directorwithin last five years.
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CHAPTER X: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION:

The total amount of remuneration or salaryor perquisites paid to the top five salaried

ProspectusfSLICL

officers of

the issuer in the last accounting year and the name and designation of each such officer:

The total amount of remuneration/salary/perquisites paid to the top five salaried

officers of the

issuer in the last accounting year and the name and designation of each suchofficer as follows:

(Amount in BDT)

Remuneration/sa_llary Remuneration/salary
SL Name Designation (155 eIt XSiete (Tk.) for the year
from 01 January ended 31 Dec, 2018
to31December, 2019 !
1 | Mir Rashed Bin Aman Chief Executive Officer (CC) 4,290,00000 3,960,000.00
2 | Shah Abu Khair Chief Financial Officer 624,000.00 504,000.00
3 | Md. Rafe-uz-zaman Company Secretary 572,000.00 444,000.00
4 | Bikash Chandra General Manager 709,800.00 604,800.00
Biswas
Total 6,195,800.00 5,512,80000

(b) Aggregate Amount of Remuneration paid to all directors and
accounting year:

officers as a group during last

(Amount in BDT)

Amount in Taka

Particular Nature of Payments 31Dec, 2019
Directors Board Meeting Fees 456,000.00
Directors Remuneration Nil

Salary and Allowance 61,935,552.00

Executives & Employees

Total 62,391,552.00

(c) If any shareholder director received any Monthly salary  or prerequisite or benefit it must be
mentioned along with date of approval in AGMor EGM , terms thereof and payments made
during the last accounting year:

Noshareholder director of the company received monthly salary or prerequisite or benefit.

(d) The Board Meeting attendance fee s received by the director including the managing director
along with date of approval in AGM or EGM:

The Board meeting attendance fees received by all the Directors including the Chief Executive Officer
(CC), for the year ended December31, 2019 are as follows:

Name & Designation Attendance Boa(rjnm?ritling'l:f)e Datei:])f Aﬁé)slroval
Noor -E-Hafza 4 32,000

Fauzia Quamrun Tania 4 32,000

K. M. Farookh 3 24.000

(Nominee director of Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.) ’

Sheikh Mohammed Danial 4 32,000

Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury 4 32,000

Kamrun Nahar 4 32,000

Maya Rani Roy 4 32,000| 26 September,
Sheikh Omar Faruque 4 32,000 2020
Omar Khayum 4 32,000

Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 3 24,000

Hazera Hossain 4 32,000

Hoda Ali Selim 3 24,000

Quazi Moniruzzaman 4 32,000

Honufa Akter Rikta 4 32,000

Md. Nurun Nabi 4 32,000
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(e) Any contract with any director or  officer providing for the payment of future compensation :

There is no such contract made with any directors or officer providing for the payment of future
compensation.

(f) If the issuer intends to substantially increase the remuneration paid to its directors and officers
in the current year, appropriate information regarding thereto

The Company does not have any intention to substantially increase the remuneration paid to its
directors and officers in the current year, except annual increment.

(9) Any other benefit or facility provided to the above persons during the last accounting  year:

No other benefit/facility provided to the above person during the last accounting year except car
facility.
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CHAPTER XI: OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES:

(1) The following information in respect  of any option held by each director, the salaried officers,
and all other officers as a group, namely: -

(i) The date on which the option was granted;

(i) The exercise price of the option;

(i)  The number of shares or stock covered by the option;

(iv) The market price of the shares or stock on the date the option was granted;
(v) The expiration date of the option;

(vi) Consideration against the option.

SLICL did not grant any options to its directors, officers and other employees.

(2) If such options are held by any person other tha n the directors, and the officers of the issuer
company, the following information shall be given in the prospectus, namely: -

() The total number of shares or stock covered by all such outstanding options;
(i) The range of exercise prices;
(i) The range of expiration dates;
(iv) Justification and consideration of granting such option .

Not applicable
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CHAPTER XII: TRANSACTION WITH THE DIRECTORS AND SUBSCRIBERS TO THE MEMORANDUM:

(a) The names of the directors and subscribers to the memorandum, the nature and amount

from the above persons, or by the said persons, directly or indirectly, from the issuer during the last five years along w
services or other consideration received or to be received:

Benefit received from the company by the board ofdirectors and subscriber to the memorandum during last 05 (five) years:

ProspectusfSLICL

of anything of value received or to be received by the issuer

ith the description of assets,

Relationship with

Amount in Taka

SL No Name of the Person/ Party the Issuer Nature of transaction 201516 20162017 20172018 20182019 20192020
Remuneration - - - - B
Dividend (Cash) - - - - 580,000
1 Mrs. Noor -E-Hafza Chairman Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee 20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000 32,000
Remuneration - - - - -
Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun Tania Dividend (Cash) - - - - 2,155,750
2 (Resigning from the board on 12 Vice-Chairman Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
September 2020) Board Atten. Fee 20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000
32,000
Remuneration - - - - R
3 Mr. K.M Farookh (Nominee director Direcior B:X:SZ:S Eg?);:)s) - - - 1’500’00_0
of Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd.)
Board Atten. Fee 15,000 20,000 13,000 29,000 24,000
Remuneration - - - - -
Mr. Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury Dividend (Cash) - - - - 1,065,000
4 (Resigning from the board on 12 Director Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
September 2020) Board Atten. Fee 20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000
32,000
Remuneration - - - - R
Mr. Sheikh Mohammad Danial Dividend (Cash) - - - 850,000
5 (Resigning from the board on 12 Director Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
September 2020) Board Atten. Fee 20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000
32,000
Remuneration - - - - -
6 Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdan Director Dividend (Cash) - - - 515,000
Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
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SL No Name of the Person/ Party Relationship with Nature of transaction Amount in Taka
Board Atten. Fee - - 13,000 29,000 24,000
Remuneration - - - - -
7 Mrs. Hazera Hossain Director Dividend (Cash) - - - 642,500
Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Director 20,000 20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000
Remuneration - - -
. Dividend (Cash) - - - 500,000
8 Mr. Omar Khayum Director Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee -20,000 20,000 13,000 29,000 32,000
Remuneration - - - - -
. . Dividend (Cash) - - - 500,000
9 Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruque Director Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee 15,000 13,000 29,000 32,000
Remuneration - - - - -
10 Mrs. Kamrun Nahar Director D!v!dend (Cash) . . . 550,000
Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee 20,000 13,000 29,000 32,000
Remuneration - - S- - -
. . Dividend (Cash) - - - 500,000
11 Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee 20,000 13,000 29,000 32,000
Remuneration - - - - -
12 Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Director Dividend (Cash) - - - 475,000
Dividend (Bonus) - - - - -
Board Atten. Fee 20,000 13,000 29,000 24,000

(b) If any assets were acquired or to be acquired within next two
method used to determine the price shall be mentioned in the prospectus, and if the assets were acquired by the said persons

to transfer those to th e issuer, the acquisition cost there of paid by them:

financial years from the aforesaid persons, the

SLICL does not have any plan to acquire any asset from the aforesaid persons within next two financial years.

amount paid for such assets and the
within five years prior
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CHAPTER XIll: OWNERSHIP OF THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES:

(&) The names, addresses, BO ID Number of all shareholders of the company before IPO, indicating the amount
of the securities represented by such ownership, in tabular form

ProspectusfSLICL

of securities owned and the percentage

Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
= Shareholders Bl HRRIEES Securities (%) PO (%)
1 | Noor-e-Hafza 1203000058289777 Dream Castle, Hous®7, RoaeD4, Gulshasd1, Dhaka. 1,160,000 4.07% | 2.44%
2 TF:;;'a Quamrun | 1 503000073109007 House2/3, Road03, Banani, Dhaka. 2,831,500 9.94% | 5.96%
3 E‘épa'"”surance €01 120371004569207] Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7 Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka. 3,000,000| 10.53%]| 6.32%
4 gzimﬁjgha” 1203710040903807 House69, RoaeD7, BlockF, Banani, Dhaka . 2,130,000, 7.47% | 4.48%
5 ggﬁ:‘;‘ Mohammed |1 51300005634999] House04, RoaeD6, Khulshi, Chittagong . 1,700,000 5.96% | 3.58%
6 | Kamrun Nahar 120182006409649¢ House808, Roae?4, Block-, Bashundhara, Dhaka. 1,100,000| 3.86% | 2.32%
7 | Maya Rani Roy 120377007267815] House67, Roaed7, Block=, Banani, Dhaka. 1,000,000 3.51% | 2.11%
8 | Sheikh Omar Faruquj 160207000834018] Vill: South Jangal, Sultanpur, Brahmanbaria Sadar, Brahmanbaria. | 1,000,000 3.51% | 2.11%
9 | Omar Khayum 160207000834014] My Hart Sukrabad, Hous®1, Sukrabad, Mohammadpur, Shera Ban 1,000,000 3.51% | 2.11%

Nagar, Dhaka.
10 ggmggn'?ajeeb 120450003280870( House9, Road12, BlockSW(B), Gulshah, Dhaka. 1,030,000 3.61% | 2.17%
11 | Hazera Hossain 1204090039637479 18/B, East Raja Bazar, Tejgaon, Dhaka. 1,285,000 4.51% | 2.71%
12 Hoda Ali Selim 120450006116923¢ 1858, Sarder Ali Lane, Mohammad Jaman Road, Mosque Goli, Ch 950,000 3.33% | 2.00%
AhmedMohamed Chittagong.
13 | Nargis Mahmuda | 160207000834016] 2/K&/12/13, Green House, Mumenshing Road, Nawab Habibulla 4 56 600l 35196 | 2.11%
Shahbagh, Dhaka.
14 | Phowzia Khan 1204500061587847 893, Middle Monipur, Mirpui2, Dhaka. 330,000| 1.16% | 0.69%
15 | Quazi Moniruzzaman 120300007343687¢ South Rupsi,Rupsi, Rupgonj, Narayangon;. 110,000| 0.39% | 0.23%
16 | Md. Nurun Nabi 120300007343496¢ H-18. R3, p-Chakbazar,RBanchlash, Chittagong. 312,000 1.09% | 0.66%
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Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
&l Shareholders e feliEEs Securities (%) PO (%)
17 | Hanufa Akter Rikta | 120300007341782% Bashura, Uttar Padua, Choddogram, Comilla. 475,000 1.67% | 1.00%
18 | Ajit Chandra Aich 120300006070717] 135/5/7, ahammad bag, RBasabel214, sobujbag, Dhaka. 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
19 | Ishra Tahiyat 1203000072576205 H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdirgy R4, Gulshnal, Dhaka. 612,500| 2.15% | 1.29%
20 E:li')gl'i"h"hammad 120300007339506( H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdiy R4, Gulshnal, Dhaka. 500,000, 1.75% | 1.05%
21 ﬁ'har;”eng Radin 120300007257585( H-98/5, R Big Mogbajar, Rajshahi House; Blantinagar, Dhaka. 500,000, 1.75% | 1.05%
22 | Md. Mahbubzzaman | 1203000073418169 H-420/C,Khilgaon, P&hilgaon,Dhakd219. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
23 | Mifrah Zahir 120300007257841( H-8/b, R82, Gulshat?,POGulshan, Dhak&212. 40,000 0.14% | 0.08%
24 :\:ﬁjir;%;ah” 120300007260940] H-8/b, R82, Gulsha2,POGulshan, Dhaka212. 60,000 0.21% | 0.13%
25 | Md. Momin Hossain | 120305004757399% H-Dream Castle, D/1, Holdifng R4, Gulshnal , Dhaka. 50,000 0.18% | 0.11%
26 | Mir Rashed Bin Amai 120300005634557] H-2, R2/3, Banani, P@ananil213, Gulshan. 109,000/ 0.38% | 0.23%
27 | Mst. Fazlutunnessa | 120300007336652¢ Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 720,000 2.52% | 1.52%
28 | Abdullatif manik 120457005642929¢ Nur Thajir, Bari, Rajfulicari, Savar. 25,000 0.09% | 0.05%
29 | Md. Borhan Uddin 1205000045087327 Kalsi, Kalapani, Mirpur, Dhak216. 25,000| 0.09% | 0.05%
Mohammad Wasser
30 Hossain Rifat 120572005838200¢ Pachgaon, PMaogaonNarayangong, Dhaka. 25,000 0.09% | 0.05%
31 | Saidun Nessa 1203000073368319 Vill-Belghor, PMiabazar, PE€hoddogram, Comilla. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
32 iﬁmg&” Nahar 120300007343560¢ H-7/2, Digonto Jalalabad , Sylhet. 15,000/ 0.05% | 0.03%
33 | Gazi Badrujjaman 120364007247440( Khulna Fultola, Dakkhin Dihitartibpur, Fult®210. 6,500 0.02% | 0.01%
34 | Md. Alauddin Mia 120242002948375] V/IRD¢ Montoli, P.O- Siziara Bazar, P&Nangolkot, DISTComilla. 35,000| 0.12% | 0.07%
35 | Md. RafeUzZaman | 1203000073417983 H-155, Boshpara,-Bhoramara, PBoyalia, Rajshahi. 55,000| 0.19% | 0.12%
36 | Kallol Barua 1203000073418414 H-46, RNorth Road, Vutergoli, Newmarket, Dhanmondhi, Dhaka. 1000| 0.00% | 0.00%
37 | Sujan Talukder 120300003564451% Vill-Dewanpur, PeDewanpur PSDewanpur, Rawjan, Chattagrom. 25,000| 0.09% | 0.05%
38 | Md. Golam Kibria 1203000072580454 Vil Dondopal, Péagdha, Devigonj, panchagor. 7,500| 0.03% | 0.02%
39 | Sheikh Md. 1203000072769867 V/RD - 224/18, Block K,South Bonosree, P.@. Khilgaon, P.Sc¢ 40,000| 0.14% | 0.08%
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Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
&l Shareholders e feliEEs Securities (%) PO (%)
Bodyuzzaman Khilgaon, DISTDhaka.
40 | Md. Golam Mostofa | 1201580032848483 H-885A, Terkhadia, Senanibash, Rajpara , Rajshahi. 25,000| 0.09% | 0.05%
41 m:?al\zlluhammad 1201960040465147 Vill Uttarpara Lakhachar,-hiranga, RE€hokoria, Coxbazar. 23,000| 0.08% | 0.05%
42 | Moushumi Roy 1204490063876124 H-58/6/3, North Mukdhapara, Basabo, Sobujbug, Dhaka . 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
43 I\K/I;jf.eébdullah - 1203640021579237 T&T Staff Quater, Regara, Tangail. 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
44 | Md. Asraful Islam 1201830063000719 H-226, VilSouth kutubkhali Dhonia , Jatrabari, Dhaka. 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
45 | Rajesh Aich 120300007343465Z7 Housel35/5/7,Ahamadbag, basabo sabujbahg, Dhaka. 2,000 0.01% | 0.00%
46 gﬁjﬁg Golam 120300007296499( Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla . 2,680,000 9.40% | 5.64%
47 g"gs;js Quamrus | 4 54371000826046] Belgor, Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla, 300,000| 1.05% | 0.63%
48 ;if;elta Quamrun | 4 5300073450244 Belgor Miabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 1,200,000 4.21% | 2.53%
Md. Fahad Bin ) . . . . ,
49 Farooque 1201840064455409 H-1090, Jakir Hossain Road, East Nasirabad, ChittagekgiPshi 4209 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
. J H-Abdul Mabud Sowdagor barRKorban Ali Sowdagor para, Sou o 0
50 | Md. Shahed Hossain| 120489006263224: halishohor, PeBandar4100, Chitatgong port, chittagong. 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
H- Jonab Ali sowdagor bari-NRaij Para, South Middle Halishohor ,-F 0 0
51 | Md. Parvez Igbal 120489003831046 Bandar 4100, Chittagong poghitagona.. 20,000| 0.07% | 0.04%
52 | Sume Sen 120300004501342] 132/2/7, ahammad bag, Rosmhammad bag, POasabel214, g 444! 4059 | 0.03%
sobujbag, Dhaka south city corporation, Dhaka.
53 | Md. Shajidul Anwar | 1201960072414747 Vill:Shaeguna,Post:Sharbil,Chakria,CoxBazar. 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
54 S. M. Mohiuddin 1203000072386741 H-Hajera Baper bari, -RAkubdondi, PO Igbal park 4365, Boalkha 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
Faruquee Chittagong.
55 | Md. Mir Kadim 1203680073001507 Kosba 3rgart, PG Kosba 3460, kosba porosoba , Brammonbaria. 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
56 | Md. Shah Alam 1201590016654207 H-karupolli, 290/West Ukil Para, Abid Munshio Bari - Peni sadal 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
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Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
&l Shareholders e feliEEs Securities (%) PO (%)
3900, Feni.
57 | Md. Rafiqul Islam 120300007276856( H-73,Mosjid Road, Shantibag fhantinogor 1217, Motijheel Dhaka. 15,000| 0.05% | 0.03%
58 | Md. Anowar Hossain| 120159006391421¢ HXAMIr Hossain Sowdagor si&dhurkhil, Pekodurkhil 4368, Boalkhay 4, 56| () 0406 | 0.020%
Chittagong.
Uttam Kumar . . .
59 Bhowmik 1204780000116729 H-22 B, RRojoni Chowdhuri road,R@endaria 1204, Dhaka. 10,000| 0.04% | 0.02%
60 | Md. Alauddin 120418007319590¢ Moulovi Anawer Member bari,Sharikai sandip Chattagarm. 10,000| 0.04% | 0.02%
61 | Mir Ashiful Karim 1203000073435094 H-198, ElephanRoad, PENew Market 1205, Dhaka. 9,500| 0.03% | 0.02%
62 | Md. Thamjidul Alam | 120196007241445¢ R-Sikdar Para, Fasiakhali,-Pasiakhali 4741, cokoria, Coxsbazar. 7,500| 0.03% | 0.02%
63 | Fazlur Rahman 120151001433943: gg{g M 9817, XA ETUE] Bieet PR P EWE dsie, 28Nl o aeq)| g amen | @an
64 | Jannatul 1203000072580719 Gunda, Gunda road,PGonda, kandua, netrokona. 7,000 0.02% | 0.01%
65 | Md. Delwar Hossan | 1203680073001924 Vill-Kosba , P&Kosba 3460, kosba porosoba , Brammonbaria. 7,000 0.02% | 0.01%
66 | Md.Golum Mostofa | 1203000072766925 H-ka/142, Nort para, P&hilkhet 1229, Khilkhet, Dhaka. 6,000| 0.02% | 0.01%
67 | Md. Sahidur Rahman 1201590066381811 ;';Bag“gg'r:'i’ Zetiiest I (Eee, Aot numeile (B - Fon) S266Y 5 men)| g amen | @i
68 | Sanwar Hosan 120305005525915¢ g'a':"nc;rl‘;?r' Bari, Sripur kumaria Pumaria 2001, Jamalpur sads 5 1001 o 6294 | 0,019
69 | Marina Sultana 1203000072574182 H-56, sobujbag, Robujbag, P@asabo 1214, Dhaka. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
70 | Md. Abdul Malik 120300006431337] B1/5,VillWest Agargong,P®ohammadpur, Dhaka. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
71 | Sanjoy Chakraborty | 120300007257964¢ Gashigram, Thakurbari, Miyabazar, Choddogram, Comilla. 5,000| 0.02% | 0.01%
72 Md. Shahidur 120300007257360¢ House No. 350Ralash Bagh , West Rampura, 4th Floor, Khild2d®, 5.000| 0.02% | 0.01%
Rahman Dhaka.
73 | Nusrat Sarmin Smriti| 120300007257922° Tleza 212/1, RBoishakhi soroni, Middle badda 2nd part, BDIshan | 5 544 0204 | 0.01%
74 | Md. Anowar Hossain| 1201600073463668 ggggor miar basa Raji dulamia bhuiyan sorok, South charipur-P@i| 5 1 ¢ 5504 | 0,010
75 | Md Lokman Hossain| 1204140068177869 Rhoriyan sugar mill PGRa. Ci. Ka 6211, Poba, Rajshahi. 5,000| 0.02% | 0.01%
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Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
&l Shareholders e feliEEs Securities (%) PO (%)
76 | Md. Wazed Ali 1203000072580074 Vilkkalibari, Pe Thakurgaon 5100, Thakurgaon. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
77 | Md. Wahidul islam 1201830064955297 VilkHappy Villa,Muslim Gorostan Road,Barishal Sadar,Barisal. 5,000 0.02% | 0.01%
78 | Polly rani sarker 1203000072578694 H-427, Noni Saha, East pai&ra, POBrammonbaria 3400. 4,000| 0.01% | 0.01%
79 | Abu Shahadat Dulal | 1201590066424874 Paikpara, ward no. 4, Takiabajar, sonagazi, Feni. 4,000| 0.01% | 0.01%
80 | Anika Aziz 120326007251838q Tonaka Tower, FI01, 50 Green Road PQlew Market 1205 4544|0104 0.01%
DhanmondDhaka.
81 Md. Mohinul Hoque 120300007248718 H—Akmal Master Bari, Boro Uthan, Mjil Khar hat 4371, Poti 3.500| 0.01% | 0.01%
Khan Chittagong.
82 '\K/';)r?r?]mmad Mizanul| 1 20196007241406] H- 999, Fasiakhali, Pleasiakhali 4741, cokori@pxsbazar. 3,000 0.01% | 0.01%
83 | Bijoy Parsad Bhadra| 120478007245596% House42/2, VillHemendo das road, Dhaka sadar, sutrapur DHHIGO. 3,000( 0.01% | 0.01%
84 | Arfin Badal 1205700063965337 H-1003,East Shewrapara,Mirpur,Dhakal6. 3,000| 0.01% | 0.01%
85 | Kohinoor Akther 120151001976662¢ gfalnltinigi/r& AEITEIY P 1o IEEsElEY, OUUET CleUlEr [Rese 2,000| 0.01% | 0.00%
86 | Kaium Ahamed 120300007257753] H-1340, RNobarun School , East Jurain;FParidabad, Kadamtoli. 2,000| 0.01% | 0.00%
87 ar;ir;;%sal 1203000072575007 Vil Nandina aliyabad, P@ajitpur, Kishorgon;. 2,000| 0.01% | 0.00%
a8 Anannya . 120368002170993] 135/5_/7, ahammad bag, Roashammad bag, P®Oasabel214, 2.000| 0.01% | 0.00%
Bhattacharjee sobujbag, Dhaka.
89 | Md. MahirAmeer 120368007242335] 932/603, RElephant road, Big mogbajar, P2hanti Nagar, Dhaka. 2,000 0.01% | 0.00%
90 g:zsvzzc“a”dra 1201580025249662 H-174, Purbo Razabazar, Tejgaon,Dhaka. 2,000| 0.01% | 0.00%
91 | Labiba laila 120300007257797( H-77, NorthMugdapara, P€1214, sobujbag, Dhaka. 2,000 0.01% | 0.00%
92 | Avijit Sarkar 120255006572825( éﬁ& ahammad bag, Rosthammad bag, POasabel214, Sobujbag 4 5041 ¢ 9104 | 0.00%
93 3%?5; d%‘:d'” 1203000072573003 Mozunder Bari, Uttor rampur, Ahmadagar , Comilla. 1,000| 0.00% | 0.00%
94 | ZaedBin-Zahir 1203390072776138 H-808,R24/F, Bashundhara R/A, Dhaka. 50,000| 0.18% | 0.11%
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Name of the No. of Pre-IPO | Post-
&l Shareholders e feliEEs Securities (%) PO (%)
Nadia Khalil
95 120450004651545( H-5, kalchadpur, Gulshan, Dhaka. 500,000| 1.75% | 1.05%
Choudhury
96 )IXIlf)hammed Riyadh 1204500061522374 H-1858, Zaman Road, Medical College, Pachlaish, Chittagong. 50,000 0.18% | 0.11%

* Transferred aspeB d Ba E a4 & BF a £ C E CHBRAEXE B d $3.03.0000.031.50.026.18,54d CHDt& b E BhERBHY

“BUBIEYRPFAECECEBHEW EQLd CEB0E0000.031.50.026.18lp PEBJEE EDER P R EDDEBEEDBP CE~
hbt ™) @, EbEREFGS E” dDETHEC HI DD dBd ¢ EDBAME@G " d¢ EEQMddEd ") DEFRJEBEBURDC
BDPQIRPDIEL EDEREE E” d&PAUPE, dBRIETOBBECHAR®
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(b) There shall also be a table showing the name and address, age, experience, BO ID Number, TIN number, numbers
including percentage, position held in other companies

of all the directors before the public issue
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of shares held

. . Age Experience E- TIN No. of share Pre- Position
Name of the Directors Address (years) (years) BO ID number held PO % Name of other Company held
0
™
N
Dream Castle, House # 7, R¢ N~ o .
Mrs. NooE-Hafza 4Gulshaft Dhakd 212 64 36 1203000058289777 E 1,160,000 4.07% Farnoor Garments Limited| Chairman
a
N
K.M Farookh(Nominee Dream Castle, House Raad# 1203 g Farmoor Garments Limtied
director of Rupali | /= "0 4010 72 37 S 3,000,00( 10.53% Director
Insurance Company Ltd uishad,Unha 710045692077 8~ Rupali Insurance Company Ltd.
House#808, Road#24,Block 1201 N8 o .
Mrs. Kamrun Nahar ’ ' 55 30 =0 1,100,00( 3.86%| K.S.Z Properties Limited Director
Bashundhara, Dh&l09. 820064096496 e
. House 67, Roaf7, Block, 1203 S 0 . Independent
Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Banani, Dhal213. 48 18 770072678151 g § 1,000,00( 3.51%| Mrs. Maya Rani Roy Director
> F.R Group
= Hotel Eram Int’ Ltd.
=
. i 1602 © Hotel Peacock Ltd. ‘
Mr. Sheikh Omar Faruqt \S(a:iUb na_lgar_(Sou(tjh _g:ga 46 25 =2 1,000,000 3.51% Olio Filling Station Director
ultanpur,-Baria sadararia 070008340181 S Golden Dragon Ltd.
8 Hotel Olio Int
Araf Danial De Olio Center
& F.R Group
w Hotel Eram Int" Ltd.
S Hotel Peacock Ltd.
My heart Sukrabad, Helige 1602 @ 0 _ , ‘
Mr.OmaKhayum Sukrabad, Dhaka 40 18 | 070008340147 & 1.000,000 SSLA P g, O mematonal | Diectr
N Golden Dragon Ltd.
Hotel Olio Int
o Golden Harvest Agro
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb House, Road 2, BlocsW(B) 45 29 1204 § S 1030000 3.61% Industries Limited. Director
Samdani Gulshaii, Dhakd212. 500032808706 § 2 ’ ’ : Samdani Art Foundaon
N~

Alvina Samdani Trust
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. . Age Experience E- TIN No. of share Pre- Position
Name of the Directors Address (years) (years) BO ID number held PO % Name of other Company held
. 18/ B, East Raza Baz 1204 RS o] Manna Group .
Mrs. Hazera Hossain Tejgaon, Dhaka 39 10 090039637479 § § 1,285,000 4.51% Hannan Desh Wear Director
= Intraco Group
1858, Sarder Ali Lai 1204 S Intraco Renewable Energy Ltd.
Ce Mohammed zaman Rg 2 o, Intraco Power Ltd. ;
Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim Mosque Goli, Pachlai 40 15 500061169239 0 950,000 3.33% Intraco Ready-mix Ltd. Director
Chittagong. = Intraco Developers Ltd.
= Intraco Water World Ltd.
Mrs. Honufa Akter 1203 NG i
| Bashura, Uttar Padua, 32 10 S8 475,000 1.67% Not connected with any NIA
Rikta Choddogram, Comilla 000073417825 8- company
- § Max Sweaters Limited Managing
. . . ~
Mr.Q_ua2| South Rupgl,RupS|, Rupgol 65 40 R N 110,000 0.39% _ Director
Moniruzzaman Narayangonj 000073436876 o Rupali — Insurance  Company Director
[19) Limited
: H-18. R3, pChakbazar,RS 1203 I . -
Mr.Md. Nurun Nabi Panchlash, Chittagong 72 50 000073434968 § 3 312,000 1.09%| Icon College Principle
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(c) The average costof acquisition of equity shares by the directors certified by the auditors

The Average Cost of Acquisition of Equity Shares by the Directors certified

ProspectusfSLICL

This is to certify that all the shares of the Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited have been allocated to its Directors in Cash or Bonus and the average costof
acquisition of equity by the directors and necessary particulars of shareholdings, allotments dates and consideration are given below:

No. of Shares Held
IS Average
Nature of Rupali Fauzia Shafia Sheikh Ahmed Sheikh Maya Hoda ® Acquisitio
Date Transaction Insurance | Quamrun Sobhan Mohammad N:;{Z: Rajeeb :(?ste;?] Kﬁz;nﬁ;n Omar KS;HZP Rani Ali g n cost of
Co. Ltd. Tania Chowdhury Danial Samdani Y Faruque Roy Selim @ shares
8 Tk.
By
07.07.2013| Subscription 3,000,000 | 2,450,000 | 1,930,000 1,500,000 | 1,160,000 | 1,030,000| 1,030,000( 1,000,000 1,000,000( 1,000,000( 900,000 | 670,000 | Cash 10
MOA
09.06.2018| By Allotment 1,566,000 | 1,936,500 | 1,700,000 2,195,000 | 1,767,500| 500,000 | 255,000 - - 150,000 | 100,000 | 330,000 | Cash 10
25.07.2019| By Transferred | -1,566,000| -75,000 -1,500,000 -1,995,000 | -1,767,500| -500,000 -50,000 -50,000 | Cash 10
05.10.2020| By Transferred - -1,480,000 - - - - - - - - - -
Total 3,000,000 2,831,500 2,130,000 1,700,000 1,160,000 1,030,000 1,285,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,100,000 1,000,000 950,000
Sd/ -

Date: 7July 2020
Place: Dhaka

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accounts
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(d) A detail description of capital built up in respect of shareholding (name -wise) of t h e
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A detail description of capital built up in respect of shareholding (name-wise) oft he i ssuer &8s sponsors/ directors:
Date of % Pre- % Post
Allotment/ . . Nature of No. of Equity Issue Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of issue 7 . . |Sources of
Consideration . Face value : . . . issue paid
Transfer of fully issue shares Price/Transfer Prices Equity shares paid up ub capital fund
paid- up shares capital b cap
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 1,160,000 10 10 1,160,000 4.07% 2.44% Oown
09.06.2018 Cash Share 1,767,500 10 10 2,927,500 Source
25.07.2019 Cash -1,767,500 10 10 1,160,000
K.M Farookh (Nominee of Rupali Insurance Company Limited)
Date of Issue P_rlce/Acqwsmon % Pre-
. Price/Transfer . . % Post
Allotment/ . . Nature of No. of Equity . Cumulative no. of issue . . Sources
Consideration . Face value Prices . . issue paid
Transfer of fully issue shares Equity shares paid up : of fund
. . up capital
paid- up shares capital
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 3,000,000 10 10 3,000,000| 10.53% 6.32% Own
09.06.2018 Cash Share 1,566,000 10 10 4,566,000 Source
25.07.2019 Cash -1,566,000 10 10 3,000,000
Fauzia Quamrun Tania
Date of Issue P_rlce/Acqwsmon % Pre-
. Price/Transfer . : % Post
Allotment/ . . Nature of No. of Equity . Cumulative no. of issue . . Sources
Consideration . Face value Prices . . issue paid
Transfer of fully issue shares Equity shares paid up : of fund
. . up capital
paid- up shares capital
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 2,450,000 10 10 2,450,000| 9.94% 5.96% Oown
09.06.2018 Cash Share 1,936,500 10 10 4,386,500 Source
25.07.2019 Cash -75,000 10 10 4,311,500
05.10.2020 Cash -1,480,000 10 10 2,831,500
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Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury

AII?) ::fe?]];/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of | No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of Equity issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . 8
full id issue shares value Price/Transfer shares paid up paid up fund
ully paid - up Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 1,930,000 10 10 1,930,000| 7.47% 4.48% Oown
09.06.2018 Cash Share 1,700,000 10 10 3,630,000 Source
25.07.2019 Cash -1,500,000 10 10 2,130,000
Sheikh Mohammad Danial
AII?) ?r;eeﬁf[/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of | No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of Equity issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . . . A
. issue shares value Price/Transfer shares paid up paid up fund
fully paid - up : . .
Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 1,500,000 10 10 1,500,000f 5.96% 3.58% Oown
09.06.2018 Cash Share 2,195,000 10 10 3,695,000 Source
25.07.2019 Cash 1,995,000 10 10 1,700,000
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani
D f
AIIo?rtneeﬁt/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of | No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of Equity issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . .
. issue shares value Price/Transfer shares paid up paid up fund
fully paid - up : . .
Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 1,030,000 10 10 1,030,000f 3.61% 2.17% Oown
09.06.2018 Cash Share 500,000 10 10 1,530,000 Source
25.07.2019 Cash -500,000 10 10 1,030,000
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Date of
Allotment/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of | No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of Equity issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . .
fullv paid - u issue shares value Price/Transfer shares paid up paid up fund
yp p Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 1,030,000 10 10 1,030,000 4.51% 2.71% Own
09.06.2018 Cash Share 255,000 10 10 1,285,000 Source
Omar Khayum
Date of _ Issue % Pre- % Post
Allotment/ . Price/Acquisition . . :
. . Nature of No. of Equity Face - Cumulative no. of issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . Price/Transfer : . .
. issue shares value . Equity shares paid up paid up fund
fully paid - up Prices . .
capital capital
shares
Ordi
On MAAA Cash iid 25.07.20190000 10 10 25.07.20190000  351%|  2.11% Own
are Source
Sheikh Omar Faruque
A”Ig ?rtneeﬁf[/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . . .
fully paid - u issue shares value Price/Transfer Equity shares paid up paid up fund
yp P Prices capital capital
shares
Ordi
On MAJAA Cash id 25.07.20190000 10 10 2507.20190000  351%| 211%| W
Bl Source
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A”'(D) ?r;eeﬁi/ Issue % Pre- | % Post
. . Nature of No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . . .
fully paid - issue shares value Price/Transfer Equity shares paid up paid up fund
ufly paid - up Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 25.07.2019000(¢ 10 10 25.07.2019000(¢
09.06.2018 Cash Share 150,000 10 10 1,150,000/ 3.86% 2.32% S?)Wle
25.07.2019 Cash -50,000 10 10 115,000 ur
Maya Rani Roy
A”[c)) f;}ee?;/ Issue %Pre- | % Post
. . Nature of No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . 8 8
fullv paid - u issue shares value Price/Transfer Equity shares paid up paid up fund
yp P Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 900,000 10 10 900,000 Own
Share 3.51% 2.11%
09.06.2018 Cash 25.07.2019000 10 10 25.07.2019000(¢ Source
Hoda Ali Selim
A”I(D) ?r:]ee(r)]];/ Issue % Pre- % Post
. . Nature of No. of Equity Face Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of issue issue Sources of
Transfer of Consideration . ) . . .
fullv paid - u issue shares value Price/Transfer Equity shares paid up paid up fund
yp P Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 670,000 10 10 670,000 own
09.06.2018 Cash Share 330,000 10 10 25.07.20190000 3.33% 2.00% Source
25.07.2019 Cash -50,000 10 10 950,000
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Date of Consideration Nature of No. of Equity Face Issue Cumulative no. of % Pre- % Post | Sources of
Allotment/ issue shares value Price/Acquisition Equity shares issue issue fund
Transfer of Price/Transfer paid up paid up

fully paid - up Prices capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 25.07.20190000 10 10 25.07.20190000¢ 3.51% 2.11% Own
Share Source
Phowzia Khan

Date of Consideration Nature of | No. of Equity Face Issue Price/Acquisition Cumulative no. of % Pre- % Post | Sourcesof
Allotment/ issue shares value Price/Transfer Equity shares issue issue fund
Transfer of Prices paid up paid up

fully paid - up capital capital
shares
On MA/AA Cash Ordinary 330,000 10 10 330,000 1.16% 0.69% Oown
Share Source

Detail of shares issued by the company at a price lower than the issue price:

All the shares are issued by the Conpany at face value of Tk. 10.00 each before this issue.

History of significant (5% or more) changes in ownership of securities from inception.

There are no changes inownership, which indicates 5% or more change in ownership of securities from inception of the company SLICL.
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CHAPTER 06XIV: CORPORATE GO VERNANCE:

a) Management disclosure regarding compliance with the requirements  of Corporate Governance
Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission :

The Company declares that it is in compliance with the requirements of the applicable regulations of

Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC in respectof corporate governance including constitution

of the Board and committees thereof. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective
independent Board, separationoft he Boar dds supervisory role from the
and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under applicable law.

Sd/ -
(Mir Rashed Bin Aman )
Chief Executive Officer (CC)
Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited
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(b) A compliance report of Corporate Governance requirements certified by Artisan.

REPORT TO THE SHAREH OLDERS
OF
SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code SONALI LIFE

INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  for the year ended on 31T December, 2019. This Code relates
to the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 -158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 ™ June 2018 of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation there of as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Stadards
(BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and
after due scrutiny and verification there of, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the abovementioned Corporate Governance Code issued bythe Commission.

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Instituteof Chartered Secretariesof Bangladesh (ICSB) as
required by this Code except as stated in ther e ma rcdudng in the status of Corporate
Governance.

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies
Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The Governanceof the company is satisfactory.

Sdf -
Place: Dhaka Md. Selim Reza FCA FCS
Dated: 7September, 2020 Partner

ARTISAN -CharteredAccountants
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ons

i mposed by

governance code No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under
section 2CCof the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 (Report under Condition No. 9.00):

Con'\cljcl)t.lon Title Corgtr: iigce Remarks(If any)
1. Board of Directors:
Boardds Size: There are  Fifteen
1.1 The number of the Board members shall not be less than 5| Complied | Directors in the Board
(five) and more than 20 (twenty); of the Company.
1.2 Independent Directors:
The company has
At least one fifth (1/5) of total number of directors shall be . appointed 3 (three)
1.2(a) Independent Dires:tor? Complied Independent Directors
(ID)
1.2(b) Independent Director means a Director:
The Independent
1.2(b) (i) Does not hold any share or holds less than 1% shares of the Complied Directors have
' total paid -up shares of the Company; declared their
compliances.
Not a sponsor of the company or not connected with the
companyads any [directorsnpnunatsdo r
director/shareholder/associates/sisterconcerns/subsidiaries
and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) | Complied | Do
1.2(b) (i) | or more sharesof the total paid -up shares of the company on
the basis of family relat ionship and his/her family members
also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company;
not been an executive of the company in immediately .
1.2(b) (i) preceding 2 (two) financial years; Complied | Do
Does not have any otherrelationship, whether pecuniary or
1.2(b) (iv) | otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary/associated Complied | Do
companies;
1.2(b) (v) Not a member.or TREC holder, director or officer of any Complied | Do
stock exchange;
Not a shareholder, director excepting independent director
12 . | or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange| Complied | Do
.2(b) (vi) . . . i
or an intermediary of the capital market;
Not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the
1.2(b) > .
(vii) conce_r_ned company?ds st.atut_o Complied | Do
engaged in internal audit services or conducting special
audit or pr ofessional certifying compliance of this code;
1.?__(b) Notlndepen.dent director in more than 5 (Five) listed Complied | Do
(viii) companies;
Not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
1.2(b) (ix) | defaulter in payment of any loan or advance to a bank or a| Complied | Do
Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFI);
1.2(b) (x) Not.beer.1 convicted for a criminal offence involving moral Complied | Do
turpitude;
Appointed by the Board of Directors and approved by the . .
1.2(c) sr?z;)reholdergin the AGM; i g Complied | In practice
The post of Independent Director cannot remain vacant for . There was no vacancy
1.2 (d) more than 90 (ninety) days; Complied | in them position of
’ Independent Director.
Tenure ofoffice of an Independent Director shall be for a
1.2 (e) period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one)| Complied

term only;
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Condition . Compliance
No. Title Status Remarks(If any)
1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)
Shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is ggc?k ?ouua:glcatlon angf
able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and . 9 .
. oo Complied | Independent Directors
1.3(a) corporate laws and can make meaningful contribution to A . o
- ] justify their ability as
business;
such.
1.3(b) Independent director shall have following qualifications:
Business Leader: Promoter or director of an unlisted .
. . - . Mr. Quazi
company having minimum paid -up capital of Tk.100.00 . -
. . . Not Moniruzzaman is a
million or any listed company or a member of any national - .
1.3(b)(i) | or international chamber of commerce or business applicable | business leader and a
' S member of BGMEA.
association; or
Corporate Leader: Top level executive not lower than Chief
Executive Officer/ Managing Director /Deputy Managing
Director/Chief Financial Officer/Head of Finance or
Accounts/Company Secretary/Head of Internal Audit and Not
1.3(b)(i) Compliance/Head of Legal Service or a candidate with | applicable
' equivalent position of an unlisted company having
minimum paid up capital of Tk.100.00 million or of a listed
company; or
Former Govt. Official: Government or statutory or
autonomous or regulatory body in the position not below 5 th
Grade of the national pay scale, having at least educational | Complied
1.3(b)(iii) . .
background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce or
business or law; or
: University Teacher: Having educational background in . .me' D_r. N_urun Ml
1.3(b)(iv) . . : . Complied | is a University Teacher
economics or commerce or business studies or law; or .
has foreign degrees.
Professional: An advocate practicing at least in the High
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Not Advocate Honufa
Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified aoolicable Akter Rikta is a
1.3(b)(v) | Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered pp practicing lawyer in
Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or the High Court
equivalent qualification; Division.
Shall have at least 10 (ten) yearsof experiences in any field .
1.3() mentioned in clause 1(3)(b)(i) to (v); ol
In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may| Not
1.3(d) . : oo .
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission; applicable
1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer:

1.4(a)

Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD)
and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall
be filled by different individuals;

Complied

Chairman of the Board
and MD/CEO are
different individuals.

1.4(b)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same position
in another listed company;

Complied

1.4 (c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among
the non-executive directors of the Company;

Complied

1.4 (d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing
Director and /or Chief Executive Officer;

Complied

1.4 (e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves from non-
executive directors as Chair
meeting; the reason of absenceof the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

Complied

has
the

No such case
occurred during
year
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Condition . Compliance
No. Title Status Remarks(If any)
15 The Di rRepadrttorSkateholders
. . The Direct
1.5(i) .Industry. outlook & possible future developments in the Complied | complies  with  the
industry; A
guidelines.
1.5(ii) Segment wise or product - wise performance; Complied | Do
1.5(iii) Risks and Concerns; Complied I3n(1:I:l;ded in the Notes
. . . . Directorsbd
1.5(iv) Dlscusspn on .C(?St of goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Complied | complies  with the
Net Profit Margin; R
Guidelines
. . - . . . Not
1.5(v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra-ordinary gain or loss; applicable Do
1.5(vi) Disclosurefor related party transactions; Complied | Do
- Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights issues Not
1.5(vii) ) - Do
and/or through any others; applicable
1.5(vii) Explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the Not Do
' company goes for IPO, RPO, RightsOffer and Direct Listing; | applicable
Explanation about significant variance occurs between
. . . : ; Not
1.5(ix) Quarterly Financial performance and Annual Financial . Do
. applicable
Statements;
. . . o . ) . Included in the Notes
1.5(x) Remuneration to directors including independent directors; Complied to Accounts 31.01
Directors?d
1.5(xi) Fairnessof financial statement; Complied | complies with the
Guidelines
1.5(xii) Maintenance of proper books of account; Complied | Do
1.5(xiii) Application of appropriate accounting policies and estimates; | Complied | Do
1.5(xiv) Eollovyed IAS or IF.RS as applicable in preparation of the Complied | Do
financial statements;
1.5(xv) Soundnessof internal control system; Complied | Do
1.5(xvi) The |nter-est ofthe minority shareholders have been duly Complied | Do
protected;
1.5(xvii) | Ability to continue as a going concern; Complied | Do
1.5(xviii) | Significant deviations from the last year; Complied | Do
1.5(xix) Key o.peratmg and financial data of at least preceding 5(five) Complied | Do
years;
Dividend has been
1.5(xx) Reasons for not declared dividend; Complied CEIE _and _detalls
are mentioned in the
Directors?d
. No bonus share or stock dividend has been declared as . No interim ghwdend
1.5(xxi) ST . . Complied | declared during the
interim dividend during the year; year
1.5(xxii) Number of Board meetings held during the year and Complied D!sclosed~ in the
attendance; DirectorsGReport.
1.5(xxiii) Pattern of shareholding and name wise details disclosing aggregate number of shares:
1.5(xxiii) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related . Included in the
. ; o Complied - ~
(a) parties (Name wise Details); Directorsbd
Directors, CEO, CS, CFO, HIAC and their spouses and minor .
1.50xxiii)(b) children(Name wise details); Complied | -Do-
1'583“") Executives (name wise details); Complied | -Do-
- 5 -
1.5(xxiil) (d) _Shareholders ho_Idnng te_n .percent (10%) or more voting Complied | -Do-
interest (Name wise details);
1.5 (xxiv) | In case of appointment/re -appointment of a Director, disclose:
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Con'\cljcl)t.lon Title Corgtr: iﬁgce Remarks(If any)
1.5(xxiv)(a) | A brief resume of the Director; Complied | -Do-
1.5(xxiv)(b) | Expertise in specific functional areas; Complied | -Do-
. Holding the directorship and the membership of committees .
1.500M)(€) | 4t the board other than this company; Complied | -Do-
1.5(xxv) Management 8ds Discussion and Anal ysis
1.5(xv)(a) Accou_nting policies., and estimation for preparation of Complied | -Do-
financial statements;
Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any,
1.5(xxv)(b) | disclosethe effect on financial performance or results and NOt
. . . ) applicable
financial position as well as cash flows;
Comparative analysis of financial performance or results and
1.5600v)(€) financia! pogition as well as cash flowg for current finapgial Complied | -Do-
year with immediately preceding five years explaining
reasons thereof;
Compare such financial performance or results and financial
1.5(xxv)(d)| position as well as cash flows with the peer industry | Complied | -Do-
scenario;
1.5(xxv)(e) Briefly explain the firTanciaI and economic scenario of the Complied | -Do-
country and the globe;
1.5(xxv)(f) | Risks and concerns issues related to the financiaktatements; | Complied | -Do-
Future pl an or projection .
1.500)(9) operation, performance and financial position; Complied | -Do-
Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the CEO and CFO certified
1.5(xxvi) | Board on Financial Statements for the year ended 30" June | Complied | to the Board regarding
2019; financial statements.
The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of . Certified by
. . ) Complied | ARTISAN -Chartered
1.5(xxvii) | conditions of Corporate Governance Code;
Accountants.
1.6 Meetings of the Board of Directors
Meeting of the Board of Directors and record the minutes of
the meetings as well as keep required books and records in
line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh | Complied
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Instituteof
Chartered Secretariesof Bangladesh (ICSB);
1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board Members and Chief Executive  Officer
The Board shall lay down a Code of Conduct for the
1.7(a) Chairperson of the Board, other Board Members and Chief | Complied
Executive Officer of the Company;
The Code of Conduct as determined by the NRC shall be
posted on the website of the Company including, among
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; .
. . . . . . Posted on the website
conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and | Complied of the Compan
1.7(b) regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with pany.
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and
independency;
2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company
Sonali Life Insurance
2(a) Composition of the Board of Directors; I\!Ot Company s
applicable | does not have any
subsidiary company.
At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the Not
2(b) holding company shall be a director on the Board of the -
B~ ) applicable
subsidiary company;
. . . Not
2(c) Submission of minutes to the holding company; applicable
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Condition . Compliance
No. Title Status Remarks(If any)
. . . . Not
2(d) Review of minutes by the holding company; applicable
. . . . . Not
2 (e) Review of Financial Statements by holding company; applicable
3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head

of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

3.1 Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief

3.1() Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Aud it and Complied
Compliance (HIAC);
3.1 (b) The positions of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall be Complied

filled by different individuals;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company
3.1(c) shall not hold any executive position in any other company | Complied
at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles,

=) responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS; Celpls
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed
3.1 (e) from their position without approval of the Board as well as Complied No such case occurred
immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock during the year
exchange(s);
3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Di r ect or sd Meeti ngs
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall
attend the meetings of the Board except such part of a Complied | In practice
meeting of the Board which involves consideration of an
agenda item relating to their personalmatters;
33 (Dutie:;, ofManaging Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer
) CFO
3.3(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for

the year and that to the bestof their knowledge and belief:

These statements do not contain any materially untrue
3.3(a)(i) | statement or omit any material fact or contain statements | Complied
that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair viewof the
3.3@)() |[companyds affairs and ar e Complied
accounting standards and applicable laws;

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to
the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered
3.3 (b) into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, Complied
illegal or in violation of the Code of Conduct for the
Company06s Boabeds; or i ts me

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be

33() disclosed in the Annual Report; Complied
4 Boardof Di r ect or s Commi ttee
4. Audit Committee; Complied
4.ii Nomination and Remuneration Committee; Complied
5 Audit Committee
5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors
The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub- .
51() committee of the Board; Complied
Assist the Board in ensuring that the financial statements
5.1(b) reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Complied

company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within
the business;
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Con'\cljcl)t.lon Title Corgtr: iigce Remarks(If any)
5.1(c) Responsible to the Board and the duties of the Audit Complied
' Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing;
5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee
5.2(a) Shall be composedof at least 3 (three) members; Complied | comprises of 3 (Three)
members.
The members of the
Audit Committee are
The Board shall appoint members of the Committee who appointed by the
5.2(b) shall be non-executive directors of the company excepting Complied Board who are non-
’ Chairperson of the Board and shall include at least 1 (one) executive directors
independent director; and which includes 2
(Two) Independent
Directors.
Based on the academic
qualification and
professional
experiencesand all the
All members oft he awudi t commi ttee existing members of
5.2(c) literated and at |l east 1 (o Complied the Audit Committee
' or related financial management background and 10 (ten) ar e oFin
years of such experience; Literatebo
have 0R
Financial Management
experiencebo
BSEC notification.
5.2(d) Casua-l vacancy in Audit Committee shall be filled by the Complied ;ZzitBoarnggp::iltr:;eed
Board; . .
member in due time.
5.2(¢) The C_ompI)any Secretary shall Act, as the Secretaryof the Complied | In practice
committee;
The quorum of the Audit Committee (AC) meeting shall not .
32() constitute without at least 1 (one) Independent Director; Canipls | 12
5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee
The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) memberof the
5.3 (a) Audit Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, | Complied
who shall be an Independent Director;
In the absenceof the Chairperson of the Audit Committee,
the remaining members may elect one of themselves as
5.3 (b) Chairperson for that particular meeting and the reason of | Complied
absenceof the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in
the minutes;
5.3 (c) Chairman of the Audit Committee shall remain present in Complied
' the Annual General Meeting (AGM);
5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee
5.4(a) The Audit _Commi_ttee shall conduct at least its four meetings Complied | In practice
in a financial year;
The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
5.4(b) constituted in presence of either two members or two -third Complied | In practice
of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is
higher, where presence ofan independent director is a must;
5.5 Role of Audit Committee
5.5(a) Oversee the financial reporting process; Complied
5.5(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; Complied
5.5(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure Complied

that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the
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Con'\cljcl)t.lon Title Corgtr: iigce Remarks(If any)
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Rep ort;
5.5(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; Complied
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
5.5(e) review of the annual financial statements before submission | Complied
to the Board for approval;
Review along with the management, the annual financial .
33y) statements before submission to the Board for approval; el
Review along with the management, the quarterly and half
5.5(9) yearly financial statements before submission to the Board | Complied
for approval;
5.5(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; Complied
. Review the Managementds Disc .
5.5() disclosing in the Annual Report; Complied
5.5()) Review all related party transactions; Complied
5.5(K) Review Mgnagement Letters or .Lettcler of Internal Control Complied
weakness issued by statutory auditors;
Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and
magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for .
33 effective audit and evaluate the performance of external (Sl
auditors;
Oversee whether IPO proceeds utilized as per the published Not .No IPO /RPO/nght
5.5(m) Prospectus: applicable issue was made in the
' year 2019
5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee
5.6.(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
5.6 () (i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Complied
Board,;
5.6 (a) (i) | The Audit Committee shall immediately report on the following findings to the Board:
There was no
5.'.6 (@) Report on conflicts of interest to the Board of Directors; NOt repor_table _case .Of
(ii)(a) applicable | conflict of interest in
the year 2019
Will report any suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity
5.6 (a) or material defect identified in the internal audit and Not Do
(ii)(b) compliance process or in the financial statements to the | applicable
Board;
5.6 (a) Will report any suspected infringement of laws, including Not Do
(ii)(c) securities related laws, rules and regulations to the Board; applicable
5.6 (a) Will report any other matter which deems necessary shall be Not Do
(ii)(d) disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately; applicable
Reporting to the Authorities (BSEC):
5.6.(b) If any materials impact on the financial condition & results Not Do
o of operation, unreasonably ignored by the Board of | applicable
Directors;
Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: The Au.d't _Commltteg
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, report is disclosed in
. . . the Annual Report and
57 |ncIU(_j|.ng any repprt made to_the Board of Dlrectors under Complied | signed by the
condition 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by .
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the Cha}rperson_ of  the
. ) Audit Committee.
annual report of the issuer company;
6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors
6.1(a) The company shall have a Nomination and | Complied |
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance
Status

Remarks(If any)

RemunerationCommittee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the
Board;

6.1(b)

Assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
experiences and independence of directors and top level
executive as well as a policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

Complied

6.1(c)

The Terms of Reference (TOR)of the NRC shall be clearly set
forth in writing;

Complied

In practice

6.2

Constitution of the NRC

6.2(a)

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members
including an independent director;

Complied

The NRC is composed
of 3 (Three) members.

6.2(b)

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive
directors;

Complied

6.2(c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and

appointed by the Board;

Complied

6.2(d)

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any
member of the Committee;

Complied

6.2(e)

Casual vacancy in NRC shall be filled by the Board;

Complied

The Board appointed
NRC member in due
time.

6.2(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt
any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the
Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if
the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such
external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required
or valuable for the Committee;

Complied

No such case in the
year

6.2(9)

The Company Secretary shall Act, as the Secretaryof the
committee;

Complied

In practice

6.2(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without
attendance of at least an Independent Director;

Complied

Do

6.2(i)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy
rol e or ot her wi s e, ot her
from the company;

t h|

Complied

6.3

Chairperson of the NRC

6.3(a)

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) memberof the
NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an
Independent Director;

Complied

6.3(b)

In the absenceof the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for
that particular meeting and the reason of absence of the
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

Complied

No such case in the
year

6.3(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders;

Complied

In practice

6.4

Meeting of the NRC

6.4(a)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial
year,

Complied

In practice

6.4(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC;

Complied

No such case in the
year

6.4(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted
in presence of either two members or two third of the
members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presenceof an independent director is must;

Complied

In practice
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Con'\cljcl)t.lon Title Corgtr: iﬁgce Remarks(If any)
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be
6.4(d) recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be | Complied | Do
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC;
6.5 Role of the NRC
NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to .
6.5(2) the Board and to ti?e shareholders;p Complied
6.5(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to
) the Board:
Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
6.5(b)(i) | director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top
level executive, considering the following:
The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
6.5(b)(i)(a)| sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to | Complied
run the company successfully;
6.5(b)(i)(b) The relationshi.p of remuneration to performa.mce is clear and Complied
meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a
6.5(0)(i)(C) balance between fixed and int.:ent.ive pay reflect.ing short and Complied
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals;
Devi sing a policy on Boar
6.5(b)(i)) | consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational | Complied
background and nationality;
Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in top level executive position in .
e accordance \)//vith thgpcriteria laid gown, and recomrﬂend their ozl
appointment and removal to the Board;
. Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of .
6.5(b)(iv) independer?t directors and the Board; P Complied
ldenti fying the company®6s n¢
6.5(b)(v) | levels and determine their selection, transfer or replacement | Complied
and promotion criteria;
6.5(b)(vi) Developing, reciommending and reviewing annually the Complied
company6s human resources an
Disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the Not
6.5(c) evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a Complied
glance in its annual report;
7. External or Statutory Auditors:
7.1() N(_)n-engag_ernen.t in Appraisal or valuation services or Complied | In practice
fairness opinions;
7.1(i) Non.-engagemen_t in. designing Financial information systems Complied | Do
and implementation;
7.1(iii) Non-engagement in Book-keeping; Complied | Do
7.1(iv) Non-engagement in Broker-dealer services; Complied | Do
7.1(v) Non-engagement in Actuarial services; Complied | Do
7.1(vi) Non-engagement in Internal Audit or Special Audit services; Complied | Do
7.1(vii) Non-er_lgag.ement in services that the Audit Committee Complied | Do
determines;
Non-engagement in Audit or certification services on
7.1 (viii) compliance of Corporate Governance as required under | Complied | Do
condition No. 9(1);
7.1(i%) _Non-en.gagement of any other service that creates conflict of Complied | Do
interest;
79 No partner or employees of the exte_rnal audit firms sha!l Complied | Do
possess any shareof the company during the tenure of their
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Condition . Compliance
No. iz Status

Remarks(If any)

audit assignment; his or her family members also shall not
hold any shares in the said company;

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain
present i n t he Sharehol der g
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the
queries of the shareholders;

7.3 Complied | Do

8. Maintaining a website by the Company

The company shall have an official website linked with the .

8.1 . ) Complied
website of the stock exchange;

8.2 Thg gompany shall keep the website functional from the date Complied
of listing;
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures

8.3 on its website as required under the listing regulations of the | Complied
concerned stock exchange(s);

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant
or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary)
9.1 other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis Complied
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report;

Certified by ARTISAN,
Chartered Accountants

The professional who will provide the certificate on A separate agenda to
9.2 compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be | Complied | be provided in the
appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting; ensuing 7th AGM.
The directors of the company shall attach the compliance
9.3 status in the directors?d r ¢ Complied

complied with these conditions or not;

(c) Details relating to the Issuer's Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, including the
name of committee members and a summary of terms of reference under which the committee
operate

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Background

In accordance to the best practicesof Corporate Governance as per Notification of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) No.SEC/CMRRCD/2006158/129/Admin/43 dated 7
August 2012, issued under section 2CCof the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is now composed of the following member

Name Position in Company Position in Audit Committee
Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman Independent Director Chairman
Mrs.Fauzia Quamrun Tania Vice Chairman Member
Mr. Sheikh Mohammed Danial Director Member

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Mr. Mir Rashed Bin Aman and Head of Internal Audit Mr. Shah
Abu Khair attend the meeting by invitation only as and when necessary. The Company Secretary
Mr . Md. Rafe-Uz-Zaman the functions as theSecretaryof the Audit Committee.
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Meeting

During the year ended 31st Dec 2019 the Audit Committee held one meeting. Proceedings of the
Audit Committee Meetings were reported regularly to the Board of Directors. The details of
attendance of the Audit Committee Members have been shown as below:

Audit committee meeting and attendance during the period ended 30hDecember, 2019

Name of Members No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting attended
Mr. Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman 4 4
Mr. Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun Tania 4 4
Mr. Sheikh Mohammed Danial 4 4

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee assisted the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities regarding the

Companyds accounting and financial reporting process
x Theintegrity oft he Companyds financial statements
x  The independence, qualifications and performance quality of its external auditors
x The Compan yd istermalycentroés m
x  The performanceoft he Companyds internal audit process
x The Companyds compliance wi tohcondetwiha vievetgul ati ons a

safeguard the interest of all stakeholders of the Company

Summary of Activities
The Audit Committee carried out the following activities during the financial year for the period  of 1st
January, 2019 to3@ June, 2019.

Regularity Compliance

TheCommi tt ee examined whether the Companyds procedures
x  The laws and regulations framed by the regulatory Authorities
x  Internal regulations approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company is duly following the rules and regulations of the Regulatory bodies and also strictly
follows areas with conflict of interest. The Committee was satisfied that the Company substantially
complied with these regulatory requirements.

Approval of Financial Policy & Procedures
Financial policy & procedures have been approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial Reporting

The Committee assisted the Boardof Directors and the management to carryout their responsibilities
for preparing true and fair financial statements in accordance with the books of accounts and
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) by:

x  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures in
order to provide responsible assurance that all transactions are accurately and completely
recorded in the books of accounts;

x  Reviewing the integrity of the process by which financial statements are prepared from the
books of account;

x  Reviewing the process by which compliance of provision of Bangladesh Accounting
Standards.

The Committee also reviewed:

x  The quarterly, half-yearly and financial statements of the Company prior to recommending
them for the approval by the board;
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x  The annual audited financial statements of the company with external auditors prior to
submission to the Board for approval. The review focused particularly on changes of
accounting policy and compliance with applicable accounting standards as adopted in
Bangladesh and other legal & regulatory requirements.

External Audit

The Committee met with the external auditors at the conclusion of the annual audit and exchanged
views on their Audit report. The Committee reviewed the findings and recommendations made by
the external auditors in order to remove the weaknesses as deteced in the external auditing process.
The Committee reviewed the performance of the auditors and recommended to the Board on their
appointment and fees.

Approval of Financial Statements

The Audit committee reviewed and examined the Annual Financial Statements at 30 June 2019
prepared by the Management and audited by the External Auditors Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.,
Chartered Accountants and recommended to place the same before the Board for consideration. The
Board approved the Annual Financial Statements at its Board meeting.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Audit Committee expressed its sincere thanks to the Chairmanand members of the
board, management and the auditors for their support in carrying out its duties and responsibilities
effectively.

On behalf of the Audit committee,
Sd/ -

Mr. Quazi Moniruzzaman
Chairman of Audit C ommittee
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CHAPTER XV: VALUATION REPORT OF SECURITIES PREPARED BY THE ISSUE MANAGER:
The valuation report of securities offered is prepared and justified by the Issue Manager on the basis
of the financials and all other information pertinent to the issue.

According to the actuarial valuation, the value per ordinary share of Sonali Life Insurance Co. Ltd. as
on 31 December 2019 based on Net Asset Value (NAV) is Tk25.47as worked out below:

Particulars Amount in Tk.

Total realizable assets 1,327,012,347.0(
Less: Total liabilities 601,129,637.0(
Net assets 725,882,710.0(
Number of ordinary shares issued 28,500,000.0(
Value per ordinary share 25.47

Net Asset Value per ordinary share of Tk. 10 each is Tk. 25.47 which is higher than the face value, but
the Company intends to keep the initial public offered (IPO) price at Tk. 10 perordinary share which
is at par value.

Total realizable assets = Property and assetsd preliminary expenses - deferred expenses

Total liabilities =(Capital and liabilities+ net policy liabilities) d(paid up capital+life insurance fund)

Net Policy Liabiliti es taken from the valuation report as at 31.12.2019.e., Tk. 512,455,000.00

Note: No actuarial valuation is made after 31 December 2019. According to section 13 (1)of Insurance
Act, 1938, valuation report of life insurance business is valid up to two ye ars. Therefore, value per
share has been calculated on the basisf valuation report as on 31 December 2019.

In the calculation of NAV, value of property & assets, preliminary expenses, deferred expenses,
capital & liabilities, paid up capital, life insurance fund are taken from the Balance Sheet as at
31.12.2019 and Net Policy Liability is taken from Valuation report 31.12.2019 since no valuation report
is made after 31.12.2019.

The offering price for the ordinary shares of Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited has been
determined at par value of Tk.10.00 each.
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Z. Halim G AAssociates Empori Parkview, Flat 9A, House 1/c

Road 86, North Gulshan, Dhaka 1212

ACTUARIAL & PENSION CONSULTANTS Phone : 01713012238, 01678126225

2hi.

Zbii.

2biii.
2biv.

2bv.

2ci.

2cii.

2d.
Zei.

2eii.

2fi.

01712089601
E-mail : ceo@zhalim.com

REPORT ON THE VALUATION OF POLICY LIABILITIES OF
SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

The Valuation Date was 31 December 2019.

This report was prepared in accordance with the guidelines contained in
paragraph 160 of the Insurance Act 2010 (The Fourth Schedule of the
Insurance Act 1938).

The valuation bases were approved hy the Insurance Development and
Regulatory Authority (IDRA).

The liabilities under all classes of assurance were arrived at by deducting
from the present value of the sum assured and bonuses (if any) the present
value of future net premiums.

Net premiums were initially calculated on the bases set out in paragraph 3
below. These were adjusted to allow for recovery of initial expenses by
adding with the net premium the equivalent value of an additional fixed
amount per thousand taka sum assured/pension over the term of the policy.

The age at entry was taken to be the age nearest birthday at entry age.

The actual premium paying term and the exact maturity date were used.

Group term insurances were valued by receiving 40% of premiums received.

The valuation age was taken as the age at entry plus nearest duration of the
palicy to the valuation date.

The factors for valuing the sums assured and bonuses where appropriate and
the net premiums were calculated for each Plan of assurance separately.

No specific reserve was made for future bonuses.
All premiums were assumed to be paid annually.

Where premiums were paid more frequently than annually the net premiums
in respect of outstanding installments of premiums were deducted from the
linbilities.

Na specific provision was made for immediate payment of claims.
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No specific provision was made for future expenses and profits on limited
payment and paid up policies.

No provision was made for revival of lapsed policies.

Policies were valued according to types of assurances, risk year and term.
Calculations were carried out on a computer which was programmed to
ignore negative values arising as a result of the valuation method adopted.

Extra premiums for additional risks and supplementary riders were valued
by reserving 40% of premiums received.

No policy in any foreign currency was issued.
The bases of valuation used were:

(i) All policies with participation Mortality : A 49-52 Ultimate
in profits. Rate of Interest/ Rate of Return @ 3.75%
p.2. compound

(i) Al policies  without Mortality: A 49-52 Ultimate Table
participation in profit: and all Rate of Interest/ Rate of Return: 7.0 %
with & without profit paid up p.a.compound

policies.

The proportion of future office premiums provided for future expenses (and
profits) were:

For assurances with participation in prafils: 29%.
For assurances without participation in profits: 7%.

The investment yield of the Life Fund for the year 2019 was 8.2% pér annum.
This had been calculated following the guidelines of paragraph 3. (i) of Part 1
of The Forth Schedule.

According to Form I, there was a surplus of Tk. 44,08,83,000. The basis of
distribution of surplus between the insurer and the policyholders was
determined by the Company as per the Insurance Act 1938 and the
recommendation of the Actuary.

The distribution of surplus among the policyholders was made by the use of
simple reversionary bonus methods.

a. The distribution of surplus was made by the Company as per
recommendation of the Actuary.

b. The bonus vested on the policy anniversary subsequent to allotment
provided that the policy was then inforce.
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8i. It was recommended that Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited allocate
bonuses under with profit policies in force as at 31 December 2019 as
follows:

Simple reversionary bonus would be paid per thousand sum assured for all
with profit policies at a rate of 75.

It was also recommended that till the next actuarial investigation the same
rate of honuses would be paid to fully in force with profit policies becoming
claimsdue to death or maturity.

The estimated cost of honuses is BDT. 116,171,000.

8ii. Appropriation of surplus

BDT (000)
Surplus as at 31 December 2019 440,883
Less:
Surplus brought forward on shareholders account in 2018 4,878
Surplus brought farward an Policyhelders account in 2018 53,035
Surplus for the year 2019 382,970
Appropriation of surplus
Surplus to Sharcholders
Surplus brought forward from last valuation 4,878
Share of current year's surplus 38,297
Total surplus available ta shareholders for the year 2019 43,175
Surplus available to sharchalders for payment of dividend for the
year 2019 (At the rate of 10% far paid up capital) 28,500
Surplus transferred to shareholder’s Account 14,675
Surplus to Policyholders
Surplus brought forward fram last valuation 53,035
Share of current year's surplus 344,673
Surplus available to policyholders 397,708
Surplus allocated for bonuses to policyholders for the year 2019 116,171
Surplus transferred to palicyholders’ Account 281,537

9: Forms G, H and I had been attached.

10.  No provision for disability (sickness) benefits was made since no such
policies were issued except for supplementary riders which had been
accounted for.

11.  No specific provision was made for climate change. The long term effect of
carbon emission could be alarming.

Fully Regulated Member of UK Actuarial Profession
10 September 2020
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FORM-G
Consolidated Revenue Accounts for the Valuation period
SONALI LIFE INSURANCE CO. LTD

(The Company deposited annually revenue accounts with the Insurance
Development and Regulatory Authority).

Z, HAL[M)& ASSOCIATES Aeh7
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Summary of Valuation of the inforce Policies of Sonali Life Insurance Co. Ltd, as at 31 December 2019

Particulars of the Policies for Valuation Valuation BDT. (000)
Number s ke Net Year] o
Description of Transactions Assured/Pension/Annuities | Yearly - Assured/Pension/ | Office Yearly | NetVearly = Net
of .~ | Premi % : : e
Jlicies & Bonuses Premium (BOT) Annuities & Premium  Premium  Liabilities
P (B0T) (80T) Bonuses ‘
Division I- Insurances
Group A- With Immediate participation in profits
Endowment Insurance (Plan#01) 1,587 339,503 29376 187713 219,138 223401 170866 45,768
Anticipated Endowment (3 stage
payment Plné(?) 2,986 438139 37636 28155 326837 316,185 245916 76418
Anticipated Endowment (5 stage ’
payment Panéi3) 4507 474976 4708 30213 353,368 388,191 294875 5121
Child Protection Assurance (Plan#06) 1,663 183801 17826 13304 132437 161878 119648 11,163
Education Expense Assurance
(Plan07) 15 785 59 44 489 467 47 74
Ordinary Endowment Insurance - .
(Plan08) 1184 110,090 9,041 6511 71900 77,680 39,895 10,650
Uenmohor Bima (Plan#11) 34 2556 20 157 1,698 1840 1388 287
Hajj Bima (Plan#12) 18 1859 172 120 1237 1405 1,060 148
Monthly Saving Assurance (Plang13) 22912 2,101,288 174388 127810 1377830 1578348 1155853 151,909
Nty S eon e 2195 W w3 pa e s
(Plan#14)
Group A (Total) 35176 3674922 317,625 226,581 2,501,209 2761814 2,059,798 353,550

%
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Form-H (Continued)
Particulars of the Policies for Valuation | Valuati BDT. (000) ]
Sum Office
Description of Transactions | NWP€T | 4 ocy ed Pension/Annuities | Yearly | NCt YERTY | S|
of 3 Premium  Assured/Pension/Annuities  Yearly | Yearly . -
policies Brats tadin (BDT) & Bonuses Premium | Premium Nl
(BDT) (BDT) ’ |
Group B-With Deferred participation in profits - Nil
Group C-Under discounted bonus systems - Nil
Group D- Without participation in profits
Endowment Insurance (Plan#04) 27 3417 225 169 1,652 1,757 1277 353
Moty Tk Team Ly % 13151 611 497 5674 4040 3687 1817
(Plan#05)
Single Premium Insurance (Plan#09) 598 66,896 80,445 75366 95786 = - 93,786
Assurance Cum Pension (Plan#10) 94 13,897 4247 3435 43353 40,155 32522 10421
Group Insurance 13,485
Group D (Total) 818 97,361 85528 79467 146,465 45952 37486 121,862
Supplementary Rider 2,145
Paid-up Policies 34,897
Grand Total 512,455
Life Fund 953,338
Surplus 440,883
Value of bonus (@75 per 1000 S4) 116,171
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Form |
Valuation Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019
SONALI LIFE INSURANCE CO. LTD

BDT. (000) BDT. (000)

Net liability as shown Balance of Life Insurance
in Form H 512,455 Fund as shown in the 953,338
Balance Sheet

Surplus 440,883

953,338 953,338

Tof?7
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CHAPTER XVI: DEBT SECURITIES

The Company neither issued nor is planning to issue any debt security within next six months.
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CHAPTER XVII: PARTIES INVOLVED AND THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES

Parties invo Ived with So nali Life Insurance Company Limited

Responsibilities

(a) Issue Manager

ICB Capital Management Limited
&
Agrani Equity & Investment Limited

ThelssueManagersare
responsibletocomplywithallthe
requirementsasperBangladeshSecuritiesandE
xchange
Commission(Publiclssue)Rules,2015including
preparationand
disclosuresmadeintheprospectus,Road
showandother responsibilities as mentioned
in the due diligence certificate.

(b) Underwriter

ICB Capital Management Limited

The Underwriter(s) is responsible to
underwrite the public offering onafirm -
commitmentbasisasperrequirementofBangla
desh
SecuritiesandExchangeCommission(Publiclss
ue)Rules,2015. In caseof under-subscription
in any category by up to 35% in an initial
public offer, the unsubscribed portion of
securities shall be taken wup by the
underwriter .

(c) Statutory Auditor

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Partner: Mr. Md. Shirazul Islam
Khan, FCA

To express an opinion on financial statements
of the auditor based on their audit. An

auditor conducting an audit in accordance

with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing

(BSA) is responsible for obtaining reasonable
assurance that the financial statements taken
as a whole are free from material
misstatements whether caused by fraud or
error.

(d) Cost Auditor

Not Applicable

Not Applicable.

(e) Actuarial

Z Halim & Associates

Actuary is responsible for the accuracy of the
valuation of policy liabilities of Sonali Life
Insurance Company Limited as at 31
December 2017 made for the purposesof the
Abstracts prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Section 1600f the Insurance
Act, 2010(Part Il of the Fourth Schedule of the
Insurance Act,1938).

() Credit Rating
Agency

Argus Credit Rating ServicesLtd .

Credit Rating Company is responsible for
conducting the long term and short-term
rating of the company based on its financial
statements and other relevant qualitative and
guantitative  information. Credit Rating

Company shall publish the rating in its public

website when it issues or updates a final
rating.
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CHAPTER XVIII: MATERIAL

ProspectusfSLICL

CONTRACTS:

(c) Major agreements entered into by the Issuer.

1) Issue Management Agreement between among the Company and ICB Capital Management
Limited and Agrani Equity & Investment Limited ;
2) Underwriter Agreement with ICB Capital Management Limited.

(d) Material part of the agreements:

Contract

Material parts of the agreements

Issue Management
Agreement with

ICB Capital Management
Limited

and

Agrani Equity &
Investment Limited

Signing Date October 01, 2018
This Agreement shall be valid until completion of subscription of
Tenure: shares and unless this Agreement is extended or earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

1) According to Article 2.1; the scope of the services to be
rendered by the ISSUE
MANAGERtothelSSUERunderthisagreementshallcoverRegul
atory Compliance, Underwriting Co -operation, Issue
Arrangements and Public offer and invitation.

2) According to Article 3.1 Without prejudice ISSUER hereby
declaresthat it agrees to comply with all statutory formalities
under Companies Act, 1994, Guidelines issued by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission and other relevant
status to enable it to make the issue.

Principal 3) According to Article 4.1 Without prejudice to o ther

Terms and stipulations relative to the responsibility of the ISSUE

Condition: MANAGERS, it is responsible towards the COMPANY for
strict compliance of this Agreement and to comply with all
term therein.

4) According to Article 5.1 the Issuer shall payto Issue
Managers at 1.00% on the public offer amount for the Issue
Management Services.

5) According to Article 8.1 The Issue Manager shall ensure

compliance of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015, Dhaka Stock
Exchange (Listing) Regulations, 2015, Chittagong Stock
Exchange (Listing) Regulations, 2015 and other relevant rules,
regulations, practices, directives, guidelines, etc.
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Contract

Material parts of the agreements

Underwriting Agreement with
ICB Capital Management

Limited

Signing Date

October 01, 2018

Tenure:

This Agreement shall be valid until completion of
subscription of shares and unless thisAgreement is extended
or earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

Principal
Terms and
Condition:

1. In case of under-subscription in any category by up to

35% in an Initial Public Offer, the undersubscribed
portion of securities shall be taken up by the underwriter.

. In caseof failure to deposit the remaining amount by the

eligible investors, the unsubscribed securities shall be
taken up by the underwriter.

. The issuer, in the event of under subscription, shall send

notice to the underwriter(s) within ten days of closure of
subscription calling upon them to subscribe the securities
and pay for this in cash in full within fifteen days of the
date of said notice and the said amount shall be credited
into securities subscription account within the said
period. If payment is made by Cheque/Bank Draft by the
underwriter it will be deemed that the underwriter has
not fulfilled his obligation towards his underwriting
commitment under this agr eement, until such time as the
Cheque/ Bank Draft has been
account credited. In any case within 7 (seven) days after
the expiry of the aforesaid 15 (fifteen) days, the Company
shall send proofof subscription and deposit of money by
the underwriter to the Commission.

In the case of failure by the underwriter to pay for the
shares under the terms mentioned above, the said
underwriter will not be eligible to underwrite any issue,
until  such time as he fulfills his underwriting
commitment under this Agreement and also other
penalties as may be determined by the Commission may
be imposed.

In the case of failure by the underwriter to pay for the
shares within the stipulated time, the Company/issuer
will be under no obligation to pay any underwriting
commission under this Agreement.

In the case of failure by the Company to call upon the
underwriter for the aforementioned purpose within the
stipulated time, the Company and its Directors shall
individually and collectively be held responsib le for the
consequences and/or penalties as determined by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission under
the law.

. The Company shall pay to the underwriter an

underwriting commission at the rate of 0.20% of the
amount underwritten hereby agreed to be underwritten
by it.
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Contract Material parts of the agreements

Registrar to the Issue Agreement N/A

(C)Fees Payable to different parties

Manager(s) to the Issue fee

ICB Capital Management Limited and Agrani Equity & Investment Limited are the Managers to the
Issue. The Issue Manages will get 1% of the Issue size as issue management fed.e. BDT19.00 lac;Of
this amount BDT 17.10 lac will be paid to ICB capital Management Limited and BDT 1.90 lac will be
paid to Agrani Equity & I nvestment Limited.

Commission for the Underwriters
The company shall pay to the underwriters an underwriti ng commission at the rate of 0.50% of the
IPO amount of the issue value of shares underwritten by them out of the Public Issue.

Reqgistrar to the Issue fee
N/A

Credit Rating fee

The Credit rating of the Company is conducted by the Argus Credit Rating servicesLtd. and they got
Tk. 200,00000 as credit rating fee.
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CHAPTER XIX: OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, FINE OR PENALTY:

a) The following outstanding litigation against the issuer or any of its Directors and fine or

penalty imposed by any authority:

(i) Litigation involving Civil Laws

(i) Litigation involving Criminal Laws

(iii) Litigation involving Securities, Finance and Economic Laws

(iv) Litigation involving Labor Laws

(v) Litigation involving Taxation (Income tax, VAT, Customs Duty and any other taxes or duties)
(vi) Litigation involving any other Laws

There is no outstanding litigation against the issuer or any of its Directors and fine or penalty
imposed by any of the above authorities.

b) Cases including outstanding litigations filed by the Company or any of its directors:

()
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Litigation involving Civil Laws:  No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.
Litigation involving Criminal Laws:  No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.

LitigationinvolvingSecurities,FinanceandEconomicLaws: Nocasesfiledbythe company or any
of its directors.

Litigation involving Labor Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors
regarding some disallowances of expenses and adding backof arbitrary income .

LitigationinvolvingTaxation(Incometax,VAT,CustomsDutyandanyother taxes/duties ): There
are no outstanding cases filed by the Company or any of its Directors relating to above
litigations .

Litigation involving any other Laws:  No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.
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CHAPTER XX: RISKFACTORS AND MANA GE RHRNHPFIONS ABOUT THE RISKS:

Investors should be aware of the risk factors for the investment in the capital of the company and the
management perception about the risks. These risks may result in lossof the capital investment. The
foll owing are the external and i nt er tiomthereoni-sk f actor s

() Internal risk factors;
(i) External risk factors.

Internal Risk Factor:

a) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk when a borrower or an issuer of debt securities may default on making
payments to lenders or debt holders on schedule in keeping with contractual obligations. Investors
should keep in mind that there is a difference between equity securities and debt securities. As a
residual owner, the claim of an equity shareholder comes last and in an extreme situation he/she may
loss his/her entire investment .

Management Perception:
The management does aware about the equiy shareholders or credit risk position of getting their
respective claims and believes that this kind of extreme situation would not arise.

b) Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity Risk is a risk of insufficient liquid assets to meet payouts from policies (surrender, expenses,
maturities, etc.), forcing the sale of assets at lower prices, leading to losses, despite company being
solvent.

Management Perception:
SLICL is doing its level best to collect premium income and manage insurance claims in efficient way
to maintain liquidity risk.

c) Risk associatedwitht he | ssuer 6s interest in subsidiaries, |joi
I f the subsidiaries or associate or | oi statementoht ur e me
financial position . In a joint venture or subsidiaries or associate eachof the participants is responsible

for pr ofits, losses and costs associated with it.

Management Perception
Since SLICL has no subsidiaries, joint ventures anda s s o ¢ toacere. &a, there is no risk related as
such.

d) Significant revenue generated fro m limited number of customers, losing any one or more of
which would have a material adverse effect on the issuer:
SLICL is reknown life insurance company (4hGeneration) of the country.

Management Perception:

SLICL market is spread all over the country and it has long-standing business relationship with the
customers, which will also safeguard for life insurance Business.
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e) Dependency on a single or few suppliers of raw materials, failure of which may affect
production adversely:

ManagementPerception :
SLICL has provided life coverage. So,there is no possibility of disruption regarding dependency on a
single or few suppliers of raw materials, failure of which may affect production adversely.

f) More than 20% revenue of the issuer comes from sister concern or associate or subsidiary:

Management Perception:
SLICL has no subsidiaries, associates concern andsister concern.S o , the company doesndt
20% or more revenue from any of its sister concerns or associate or subsidiary.

g) Negative earnings, negative cash flows from operating activities, declining turnover or
profitability, during last five years, if any:

Management Perception:

SLICL has not recorded any negative earnings negative cash flows from operating activities,
declining turnover or pr ofitability during last five years except in the FY 2015-2016, total income
decreased 6%compare to its previous year.

h) Loss making associate/subsidiary/group companies of the issuer:

Management Perception:

Since SLICL has no subsidiaries,group companies and a s s 0 ¢ coacere. & there is no risk related

as such.

i) Financial weakness and poor performance of the issuer or any of its subsidiary or associates:

Management Perception:

SLICL has not suffered financial weakness or poor perfor manc e . The Comgndiathgrds r ev el
perform ance indicators showedpositive trend in the last few financial years.

j) Decline in value of any investment

Management Perception:
SLICL have investment in FDR and Treasury Bond and increasing in line with premium income.

k) Risk associated with useful economic life of plant and machinery, if purchased in second hand
orreconditioned:

Management Perception:
SLICL is alife insurance company and not related with purchase any second hand or reconditioned
plant and machinery. Therefore, this type of risk is not applicable to SLICL.

[) Adverse effect on future cash flow if interest free loan given to related party or such loans taken
from directors may recalled:

Management Perception:
There are no related party loans which are given or taken. Therefore, there is no risk related as such.
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m) Potential conflict of interest, if the sponsors or directors of the issuer are involved with one or
more ventures which are in the same line of activity or business as that of the issuer and if any
supplier of raw materials or major customer is related to the same sponsors or directors:

Management Perception:
There is no risk related as such.

n) Related party transactions entered into by the company those may adv ersely affect competitive
edge:

Management Perception :
SLICL does not engage any such transaction, which may adversely affect competitive edge.

0) Any restrictive covenants in any shareholders’ agreement, sponsors' agreement or any
agreement for debt or preference shares or any restrictive covenants of banks in respect of the
loan/ credit limit and other banking facilities.

Management Perception:

There a&a e no restrictive covenants in any sharehol der si
agreement relating to debt or preference shares or any restrictive covenantsof Banks in respect of

loan or credit limit and other banking facilities.

p) Business operations may be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or increase in wage
demands by employees:

Management Perception:

SLICL has different incentive packages for their employees so that they can be beneficial to such

package. Because they belige that employees are very important part of the business.

g) Seasonality of the business of the issuer:

Management Perception:
SLICL is engaged in the businessof insurance services which has no seasonal effect.

r) Expiry of any revenue generating contract that may adversely affect the business

Management Perception:

SLICL has no contract for which the future revenue would be squeeze.

s) Excessive dependence on debt financing which may adversely affect the cash flow:

The company may expose to high degree of risk and its future cash flow from operation shall be
squeezed due to financial expenses.

Management Perception:

SLICL has no excessive dependency on debt finanang due to net worth is positive for last Syears. The

operating cash flow of SLICL was positive for last 5 years which indicates that the SLICL cash
generation capacity from operating activities is sufficient.

197



ProspectusfSLICL

t) Excessive dependence on any key management personnel absence of whom may have adverse
effectonthei ssuer 8s business performance:

Management Perception:
Corporate Governance iswell practiced in SLICL. SLICL also has a well structure organogram. So any
change in the key management can be replaced with capable pofessionals.

u) Enforcement of contingent liabilities which may advers ely affect financial condition:

Management Perception:
SLICLdoes not have any contingent liabilities which may adversely affect financial condition.

V) Insurance coverage not adequately protect a gainst certain risks of damages:

Management Perception:
SLICL maintain re-insurance to meet up claims. Again, there are no such assets for which insurance
coverage required.

w) Absence of assurance that directors will continue its engagement with Company  after expiry of
lock in period:

Management Perception:
Al | t he dfiSkl@L.catednvalved in the business for long time and they will continue the
business after expiry of lock in p eriod.

X) Ability to pay any dividends in future will depend upon future earnings, financial condition,
cash flows, working capital requir ements and capital expenditure :

Any future dividend payment of SLICL depends on the future revenue generation. Any negative
earnings in future shall be hindered future fin ancial stability of the Company.

Management Perception:
SLICL premium income is increasing day by day which indicates its business growth and ability to
pay dividends.

y) History of non-operation, if any and short operational history  of the issuer and lack of adequate
background and experience of the sponsors.History of non-operation indicates weak
operational management of the Company. Non -operation leads to negative cash flow, incurring
of losses and bankruptcy in worst case scenario:

Management Perception:

SLICL has no history of non-operation in the past. The Company is an independent body. It has been
in operation by i ts Memorandum & Articles of Association and other applicable laws Implemented by
the Government. Besi des, the Companyds financi
Directors and Management team to make the Company more efficient and stronger in market
capturing. So, the chanceof becoming non-operative of the Company is very less.

z) Risks related to engagement i n new type of business, if any:

Management Perception:
Currently the Company has no plan to engage in any new type of business.
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aa) Risk in investing the securities being offered with comparison to other available investment
options:

Management Perception:

Like other securities in Bangladesh, the share priceof SLICL may be affected by various factors such
as inflation, economic and political shocks etc. Management perceives that the investors would get a
reasonable return in line with future proposed dividend.

bb) Any penalty or action taken by any regulatory  authorities for non -complia nce with provisions
of any law:

Management Perception:
There was no such penalty or action taken by any regulatory authorities for non -compliance with
provisions of any law.

cc) Litigations against the issuer for Tax and VAT r elated matters and other government claims,
along with the disclosures of amount, period for which such demands or claims are
outstanding, financial implicati ons and the status of the case:

There is no litigation involving Taxation (Income tax, VAT, Customs Duty and any other
taxes/duties) .

Management Perception:
There is no litigation against the Company for Tax and VAT related matters except as follows:

Income TAX
Income Year | Assessment Year Remarks
9 Tax return submitted to DCT
- The Company submitted return ason 18/ 07/ 2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority
-Assessment completed by NBRon 12/ 03/ 2020
2015 20162017
9 Tax return submitted to DCT
- The Company submitted return ason 18/ 07/ 2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority
-Assessment completed by NBRon 12/ 03/ 2020
2016 20172018
1  Taxreturn submitted to DCT
- The Company submitted return ason 18/ 07/ 2018
1  Correspondence from Tax authority
-Assessment completed by NBRon 12/ 03/ 2020
2017 20182019
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i Tax return submitted to DCT

- The Company submitted return as on 06/12/2020

-The Assessment is Pending Under DCT.

1  Taxreturn submitted to DCT

- The Company submitted return as on 06/12/2020
q Updated status

-The Assessment is Pending Under DCT.

2019 20202021

dd) Registered office or factory building or place of operation is not owned by the issuer :

If office and factory location is not owned by the Company business operation may hamper.
Management perception :

The Company is operating its business through corporate head office on a rental basis since the
inception. It is also mentionable here that there is reasonable time allowed to SLICL to vacant the
place.

ee) Lack of renewal of existing regulatory permissi ons/ licenses:

Management Perception:

All licenses are valid and up dated. The management of the Company always takes timely steps to

renewal of all its regulatory licenses. So scopeof arising any risk in this respect is low.

ff) Failure in holding AGM or declaring dividend or payment of interest by any listed securities of
the issuer or any of its subsidiaries or associates

Management Perception:
The SLICL has no listed securities na any subsidiaries or Associate Companies.

g9) Issuancesof securities at lower than the PO offer price within one year:

Management Perception:
The company hasissued 10,500,000n0. ofshares on09.06.2018at a issue priceoftk. 10.00per share.

hh) Refusal of application for public issue of any securities of the issuer or any of its subsidiaries
or associates at any time by the Commission.

Management Perception:
There was no refusal of application for public issue of any securities of the issuer or any of its
subsidiaries or associates atany time by the Commission.

(ii) External Risk Factors:

a) Interest Rate Risks:
Interest rate risk concerned with borrowed funds of short term and long-term maturity, volatility of
money market, which ultimately influences the interest rate structure of fund.

Management Perception:

The Management of the Company is always aware of interest rate. Volatility of money market may
influence the overall interest rate structure of the country and also affect SLICL business. The
management of SLICL take initiative to cope up this situation.
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b) Exchange Rate Risks:
Devaluation of local currency against major international currencies i.e., USD, GBP and Hiro may
affect company®s income.

Management perception:
Since SLICL is not engaged into anyinsurance business in foreign currency, exchange rate risk is not
relevant here.

¢) Industry Risks:

Industry risk arises due to risk associated with business and macro-economic factors of the industry
such as labor unrest, shortageof power, rising of raw material cost or shortage of raw material supply
etc.

Management perception

The Company is operating in a highly competitive industry. Presently, 3 2 Life insurance companies
including the JBC are operating in the country. SLICL has to face stiff competition arising from the
existing 32 life insurance companies excluding JBC.

The Company has successfully accessed the market till date with a proactiveapproach by a group of
professional and vast experienced peoples. Therefore, the Company is working onoffering services at
competitive ter ms. Despite the extreme competition,
performance.

d) Economic and Political risks:

Economic risks:

The economy could be adversely affected by various factors such as political or regulatory action,
including adverse changes in liberalization policies, social disturbances, terrorist attacks and other
acts of violence or war, natural calamities, commodity and energy prices and various other factors.
Any significant changes may adversely affect our business and financials.

Management Perception:

Bangladesh economy is booming for last few years. Consistent industrial growth along with increased
agricultural production has made the Per Capita Income higher than that of recent years. In addition,
favorable government policies and industry friendly policies by other regulatory bodies have proved
to be congenial to the economy of the country.

Political risks:

The performance of the company may be affected by the political and economic instability both in
Bangladesh and worldwide. Any instance of political turmoil and disturbance in the country may
adversely affect the economy in general.

Management Perception:

The company can prosper in a situation of political stability and a congenial business environment.
Political turmoil and disturbance are bad for the economy and so also for this sector. This is why the
management of the company is always concerned about the prevailing and upcoming further changes
in the global or national policy and shall response appropriately and timely to safeguard its interest.

e) Market and Technology -related Risks:
Market Risk:

Market risk involves exposure to other unanticipated movements in financial variables or to
movements in the actual or implied volatility of asset prices and options. To be competitive in the
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market, insurance companies need to develop new services/products and offer excellent client
services and also to expand the market by bringing more and more items under the purview of
i nsurance otherwise the competitors may take away Con

Management Perception:

Insurance business globally is increasing. Industrialization and other infrastructure of the country are

remarkably developing; as such the life insurance business is increasing day by day. New products

are coming under the cover of insurance. The market is expanding as people are realizing the

importance of insurance. Becauseof t he Company&s excellent ofeewvi ces a
products, the Company faces low risk related with market.

Technology -related Risks:
Technology always plays a vital role for existence of any industrial concern. Innovation of new and
cost-effective technology may obsolete existing technology, which may cause negative impact.

Management perception:
As overall insurance industry is not technology driven, the Company believes that there is very low
probability that the technology change may adversely impact on the Companies Business operation.

f) Potential or existing government regulations:

The company operates under Companies Act, 1994 and insuranceAct, 2010, taxation policy adopted
by NBR, BSEC rules and rules adopted by other regulatory bodies. Any abrupt changes of the policies
formed by those bodies may impact the business of the company adversely.

Management perception:

The Government of Bangladesh is highly concentrated on economic development of the Country
through industrialization. Bangladesh has been considered the most emerging economy country
which economy is growing continuou sly. As progress ofeconomy is continuing the other sub sectors
also improving. By this waylife insurance sector shall be developed as new business opportunity has
been created through economic progress. The Management of SLICL perceives that these facilities
shall remain in near future which shall have positively impact on development of lifeinsurance
industry of our Country.

g) Potential or existing changes in global or national policies;

The Company operates in an insurance industry. At present, government policy and global business
situation is favorable for development in this sector. If any change in this condition, the pr ofitability
of the Company shall be affected.

Management perception

Insurance sector is a vital sector for the economic development of Bangladesh. The Government is
keen to support this industry. Again, any changes in therelated policy may adversely affect and the
life insurance business. So,in that case the managementof SLICL shall reset their policy according to
the global policy changes.

h) Statutory clearances and approvals those are yet to be received by the issuer:

To smooth running of the business operation statutory clearance is required. The Company has to
comply with several specific regulations of its primary regulator i.e., Insurance Development and
Regulatory Authority (IDRA). Any non compliance of its rules and regulation s may impede the Initial
Public Offering Process.

Management perception

The Management of SLICL has been aware about the rules and regulationsof their primary regulator
i.e, Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA). In past, The Company always seeks
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prior approval for its capital raising from IDRA before apply to BSEC. The Company has also notified
IDRA regarding rising of capital through IPO and NOC for raising capital through IPO has also been
received from IDRA prior to applying to BSEC for IPO.

i) Competitive condition of the business:

SLICL is operating in a free-market economy regime. The company might have to face stiff
competition from its competitors. Easily availability of global products in the local markets adds to
the competition, challenging the pr ofitability of the business. The insurance industry in Bangladesh is
very small compared to its economy and the number of insurance policyholders is still not increasing

satisfactorily. At present, there are 45 general (non-life) insurance and 32 life insurance companies are
operating in Bangladesh which are inadequate to provide insurance services to about 160 million
people.

Management Perception:

There are many good signs for the insurance business in Bangladesh. The factors that can facilitate the
insurance business in our country as arei) Higher GDP ii) Increased population iii) New busi nessds
individual insurance iv) Developing mass awareness about life insurance. v)Micro insurance, these

facts can be measured as the prospective fields for insurance business in Bangladesh.

j) Complementary and supplementary products/services which may have an impact on business  of
the issuer:

Management Perception:

SLICL provides insurance services which has supplementary or complementary product at all to its
users.

Other Risk Factors:

Provision against contingent liabilities:

SLICL has Tk. 13,723,461 as contingent liabilities for income Taof NBR for the last 05 (five) years.
Management perception

The Company aware about any future payment may arise due to claim by NBR for settlement of Tax

and VAT.It is mentionable that, the Company is generating pr ofit from existing business. Moreover,
IPO fund shall be invested in fixed deposit and Treasury bond, which will be increase pr ofit of SLICL.
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CHAPTER XXI: DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUE:

a) Issue Size: The proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of SLICL is Tk. 190,000,000.0@inder Fixed
Price Method.

(b) Number of securities to be issued;
The campany intends to issue 19,000,000 ordinary share®f Tk. 10.00 each at an issue pricef Tk. 10.00
through IPO totaling Tk. 190,000,00000 under fixed price method subject to BSEC approvals.

(c) Authorized capital and paid -up capital; Amount in BDT

Authorized capital 1,000,000,000.0(

Paid-up capital 285,000,000.0(

(d) Face value, premium and offer price per unit of securities; Amount in BDT

Face Value per share 10.00

Offer Price per share 10.00

(e)Number of securities to be entitled for each category of applicants;

Offering of 19,000,000 ordinary sharespf these ordinary shares 40%i.e.,7,600,000 ordinary shares are
reserved for Eligible Investor (EI) which includes 30%i.e.,5,700,000 ordinary shares for El excluding
Mutual Funds and CIS and 10% i.e., 1,900,000 ordinary shares for Mutual Funds and CIS and
remaining 60% i.e.,11,400,000 ordinary shares for General Public including NRB at the issue price of
Tk. 10.00 (atpar) totaling BDT 190,000,000.00

No.of ordinary shares Percentage of holding

SL | Shareholding Category Pre-Issue IPO Post-Issue

Pre-Issue Post-Issue
(a) (b) (atb)
1 | Sponsors and 28,500,000 - 28,500,000 100% 60%
Directors***

2 | Institutional - 7,600,000 7,600,000 - 16%
3 | Public - 11,400,000 11,400,000 - 24%
Total 28,500,000 19,000,000 47,500,000 100% 100%

* Transferred as perBdBds aEaFav a D H®EBRA PEBd R H™BCOE@1.50.026.18.54,d ¢ D2

abEBEBR]

o BdBds aEaFavaDFaE, EXF122DE9 £ Bz EEAME E 53.03.0000.031.50.026.18.72

aWDEBJdCZzECBJAEbLBEDEad¢d¢de bhieha EDEbDCEQEDZ2EBEBdaD¢@®BP E™ ¢ ¢
EzE

. a5, EbEZzE, dDEFJdCJEGE™ dCz71CEPDEF ¢ @d, EBECJ DU DE b B0,835G000

Bm" @¢ £Ed, Dadgd, d¢Bdm” D) DDEFdCz EBEBdaD¢ 82 8DOIDD

aa, Das_ EbDEZE, dDEFdCJdECE dC*” ECaDz>dDE, daE, CEGCBDAF DnadB, E,
Eligible investor (El) General public
Mutual Fundsg cls | ' excluding ”gljtsua' il e NRB GP excluding NRB
% No. of % No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares
Shares
10% 1,900,000 30% 5,700,000 10% 1,900,000 50% 9,500,000
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(HHolding structure of different classes of securities before and after the issue;

No of ordinary shares Percentageof holding
SL Shareholding Category Pre-Issue IPO Post-Issue Pre-Issue Postlssue
(@) (b) (ath)
1 Sponsors andDirectors*** 28,500,000 - 28,500,000 100% 60%
2 | Institutional - 7,600,000 7,600,000 - 16%
3 | Public - 11,400,000/ 11,400,000 - 24%
Total 28,500,000 19,000,000 47,500,000 100% 100%

* Transferred as perBdBds aEaFav a DRIPEA)BEEB d € ER0E®E0DH.50.026.18.54, d € D12
abEBEBE]

*ox BdBdsaEaFavaDFaE, EQ@1280E9 EBz Ed €z E 53.03.0000.031.50.026.18.72
awDEBdCzECBJAEbDBEDEad¢d¢de bkl EDEbDCEQEDZ2 EBEBdaD¢®BD E™ ¢ ¢
. as, EbEZE, dDEFdGdE¢E™ d@oo (B¢ iz FddBQId 7ERREMGRENC @¢ £Ed, Dadd, d¢Bdm™ L
T DDEFdG:?

(g) Objective of the issue including financing requirements and feasibility in respect of enhanced
paid -up capital.

The proceeds from IPO through issuance of 19,000,000n0s. of ordinary shares at par totaling
Tk. 190,000,00@0will used as projected bellow:

Sl. Area of utilization of IPO Proceeds Amount in Tk. Remarks
1 Investment in FDR & Treasury Bond 178,000,000.0(¢ Please see Notel
2 To meet up IPO expenses 12,000,000.00

Total 190,000,000.0¢

Note-1: Details break up of Investments in FDR & Treasury Bond

Sl Area of Investment % of Investment Amount Rate of Interest
1 FDR 85% 151,300,000.00 Subject to market rate
2 Treasury Bond 15% 26,700,000.00 Subject to market rate
Total 100% 178,000,000.00
Feasibility:

As SLICL is not planning to expand its business or acquire any assets from IPO Proceeds hence,
feasibility study is not necessary here.
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CHAPTER XXII: USE OF PROCEEDS
The use of the issue proceeds shall be disclosed in the prospectus in details:

Provided that not more than 1/3rd of the issue proceeds shall be used for repaymentof loans or as
working capital. The following disclosures shall be made in this regard:

(a) Use of net proceeds of the offer indicating the amount to be used for each purpose with head -
wise break -up;

Sl. Area of utilization of IPO Proceeds Amount in Tk. Remarks
1. Investment in FDR & Treasury Bond 178,000,000.00 Please see Notel
2. To meet up IPO expenses 12,000,000.00

Total 190,000,000.00

Note-1: Details break up of Investments in FDR & Treasury Bond

Sl A % of Investment Al Rate of Interest
Investment Tk.
1 FDR 85% 151,300,000.00| Subject to market rate
2 Treasury Bond 15% 26,700,000.00| Subject to market rate
Total 100% 178,000,000.00

b) Utilization of the total amount of paid-up capital and share premium, if any, including the

sponsors® contri but of thaissaenal thectimg of submissian o prospectus,
in details with indication  of use of such funds in the financial statements ;

The sponsor of the company has given paid up capital through cash consideration, which was used
in ordinary course of business. Apart from that, the company has not received any fund through
private placement from any sponsor or any other person.

The utilization of the paid up capital of the company are as follows:

GBI Amount Fund Utilized for Reflected in Financial Statement
year in Taka
_— Acquisition cost for the formation of company
2 BB eI (Printing , MOA, Legal and others license fees etc.).
Fixed Deposit with | Acquisition of Investment under t he h
2013 180,000,000 Banks Deposit with Banks & Fi nanci al I nst
Bangladesh Govt. | Acquisition of Investment under the head
2013 15,000,000 | Treasury Bond [0 Bangl adesh Govit . Tr e a
(Statutory Deposit) Deposit) 6.
2018 39,786,000 | Motor Vehicles Acqwsmon_ of fixed assets unde'r the head
0OTangi bl e Assets 6.
2018 17,300,000 | FDR \ACC]UISIIIOI"I. of fixed assets unde,r the head
oOTangi bl e Assets 6.
2018 4,400,000 Treasury Bond \Acqmsmon. of fixed assets unde,r the head
oTangi bl e Assets 0.
2018 1,520,150 Furniture ,\Acqwsmon_ of fixed assets unde,r the head
oTangi bl e Assets 0.
2018 3.804,817 Equipment Acqwsmon_ of fixed assets unde,r the head
oTangi bl e Assets 0.
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GBI Amount Fund Utilized for Reflected in Financial Statement
year in Taka
2018 31,564,312 | Computer hardware fkcqmsmon_ of fixed assets unde’r the head
oTangi bl e Assets 0.
2018 6,624,721 Software Acqmsﬂmn of. fixed assets under tk}e head
olntangi bl e Assets 0.
Total 302123,525
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shah Abu Khair Mir Rashed Bin Aman Noor -E-Hafza
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer (CC) Chairman

(c) If one of the objects is an investment in a joint venture, asubsidiary, an associate or any
acquisition, details of the form of investment, nature of benefit expected to accrue to the issuer
as a result of the investment, brief description of business and financial s of such venture;

The Company has no objective to invest in any joint venture, subsidiary, associate or for any
acquisition purpose.

(d) If IPO proceeds are not sufficient to complete the project, then source of additional fund must
be mentioned. In th is connection, copies of contract to meet the additional funds are required
to be submitted to the Commission. The means and source of financing, including details  of
bridge loan or other financial arrangement, which may be repaid from the proceeds of the
issue along with utilization  of such funds;

IPO proceed are sufficient for investment in FDR, TB and IPO cost.

(e) A schedule mentioning the stages of implementation and utilization  of funds received through
public offer in a tabular form,progressmadesofar,givingdetails ofland acquisition, civil works,
installation of plant and machinery,the approximate date of completion of the project and
theprojecteddate offullcommercialoperationetc.The schedule shall be signed by the Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Chairman on behalf of
Board of Directors of the issuer;

Implementation schedule of IPO proceed

Sl. Area of utilization of IPO proceeds Amount in Tk. Approximate date of utilization of fund
1 Investment in FDR & Treasury Bond 178,000,000.00 Within 01 month after listing
2 To meet up IPO expenses 12,000,000.00 Time to time as and when required
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shah Abu Khair Mir Rashed Bin Aman Noor -E-Hafza
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer (CC) Chairman
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(f) If there are contracts covering any of the activities of the issuer for which the proceeds of sale of
securities are to be used, such as contracts for the purchase of land or contracts for the
construction of buildings, the issuer shall disclose the terms of such contracts, and copies of
the contracts shall be enclosed as annexure to the Prospectus;

There is no contract covering any of the activities of the issuer company for which the proceeds of sale
of securities from IPO is to be used.

(9) If one of the objects of the issue is utilization of the issue proceeds for working capital, basis of
estimation of working capital requirement along with the relevant assumpti  ons, reasons for
raising additional working capital substantiating the same with relevant facts and figures and
also the reasons for financing short with long term investments and an item wise break  -up of
last three years working capital and next two years projection;

No objects of the issue for utilization of the issue proceeds asvorking capital.

(h) Where the issuer proposes to undertake one or more activities like diversification,
modernization, expansion, etc., the total project cost activity -wise or projectwise, as the case
may be;

There are no such activities proposes to undertake by the issuer.

(i) Where the issuer is implementing the project in a phased manner, the cost of each phase,
including the phases, if any, which have already been implemented;

SLICL will invest in FDR and TB with its IPO proceeds.
() The details of all existing or anticipated material transactions in relation to utilization of the
issue proceeds or project cost withsponsors,directors,keymanagementpersonnel, associates and

group companies;

There is no such material transaction with sponsors, directors, key management personnel, associates
and group companies in relation to utilization of the issue proceeds.

(k) Summary of the project appraisal or feasibility report by the relevant pr ofessionals not
connected with the issuer, issue manager and registrar to the issue with cost of the project and
means of finance, weaknesses and threats, if any, as given in the appraisal or feasibility report;

Not Applicable.

209



Prospectusf SLICL

CHAPTER XXIII: LOCK -IN
(@) Provisions for lock -in as per these Rules;

Ordinary shares of the issuer, at the time of according consent to the public issue, shall be subject to
lock-in, from the first trading day at the exchange in the following manner:

(a) shares held by sponsors, directors and shareholders holding 10% (ten percent) or more, for 03
(three) years;

(b) in case,any existing sponsor or director of the issuer transfers any share to any person, those
transferred shares, for 03 (three) years;

(c) shares allotted to any person, before 4 (four) years or moreof according consent to the public
issue, other than the persons mentioned in clause (a) and (b), for 01 (one) year;

(d) shares held by alternative investment funds, for 01 (one) year; and

(e) shares held by any person, other than the shares mentioned in clause (a) (b), (c) and (d)
above, for 02 (two) years

Provided that ordinary shares converted from any other type of securities shall also be subject to lock
in as mentioned above.
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(b)

Statement of securities to be locked in for each shareholderalong with BO account number, lock
in:

Prospectusf SLICL

-in period and number of securities to be locked

The following table indicates the Lock-In status of the shareholders ofSonali Life Insurance Company Limited :

Transfer Lock Pre-
NS(I) Name Designation BO Account No. All(ét;]:snt date Sggﬁrict)itas Ir! Sggﬁrict)itas IPO
Period (%)
07.07.13 - 1,160,000
1 | NoorE-Hafza Chairman | 1203 000058289777 09.06.18 - 1,767,500 3 Years| 1,160,000 4.07%
25.07.19 ~1,767,500
K.M Farookh 07.07.13 - 3,000,000
o | (Nominee Of Rupali 1 o | 1203 710045692077_09:06-18 1,566,000 3 years| 3,000,000 10.53%
Insurance Company
Limited). 25.07.19 -1,566,000
07.07.13 ] 2,450,000
Fauzia Quamrun Sponsor 4 09.06.18 - 1,936,500
3 : Share | 1203 000073109007 3 Years| 2,831,500 9.94%
Tania Folder ; 25.07.2019 -75,000
] 05.10.2020 ~1,480,000
_ Sponsor 07.07.13 - 1,930,000
4 | Shafia Sobhan Share | 1203710040903803| 09.06.18 1,700,000 3 Years| 2,130,000 7.47%
Chowdhury
Holder 25.07.19 -1,500,000
Sheikh Moh o sponsor 07.07.13 ] 1,500,000
5 Daﬁlial ohamme Share | 1203 000056349997 09.06.18 2,195,000 3 Years| 1,700,000 5.96%
Holder 25.07.19 -1,995,000
6 égmggrﬁa‘eeb Director | 1204 50003280870 8;:8;:1: - 1’238,’888 3 Years| 1,030,000 3.61%
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Transfer Lock Pre-
I\SI;(I) Name Designation| BO Account No. A”((th;?:nt date Sggﬁrgifes Ir! Sggﬁr(i?ifes IPO
Period (%)
25.07.19 500,000
. . 07.07.13 ] 1,030,000
7 | Hazera Hossain Director 1204 09003963747¢ 09.06.18 - 255,000 3 Years| 1,285,000 4.51%
07.07.13 - 1,000,000
8 | Kamrun Nahar Director | 1201 82006409649 09.06.18 i 150,000 ° Years| 1,100,000 3.86%
-50,000
. . | 07.07.13 - 900,000
9 | Maya Rani Roy Director | 1203 770072678151 09.06.18 - 100,000 3 Years| 1,000,000 3.51%
07.07.13 ] 670,000
10 | Hoda Ali Selim Director | 1204 500061169239 09.06.18 - 330,000| 3 Years| 950,000 3.33%
25.07.19 -50,000
11 ﬁgf&gﬁfmaf Director | 1602 070008340181 07.07.13 ; 1,000,000 3 Years| 1,000,000 3.51%
12 | Sheikh Umar Director | 1602 070008340147 07.07.13 - 1,000,000 3 Years| 1,000,000 3.51%
Khumyam
Sponsor
13 | Nargis Mahmuda Share | 1602 070008340163 07.07.13 ; 1,000,000 3 Years| 1,000,000 3.51%
Holder
Sponsor
14 | Phowzia Khan Share | 1204 500061587841 07.07.13 . 330,000 3 Years| 330,000 1.16%
Holder
Quazi Sponsor
15 : Share | 1203000073436876 ; 25.07.19 110,000| 3 Years| 110,000 0.39%
Moniruzzaman Holder

212




Prospectusf SLICL

Sl
No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

16

Md. Nurun Nabi

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007343496

25.07.19

312,000

3 Years

312,000

1.09%

17

Hanufa Akter Rikta

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073417825

25.07.19

475,000

3 Years

475,000

1.67%

18

Ajit Chandra Aich

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000060707171

25.07.19

20,000

3 Years

20,000

0.07%

19

Ishra Tahiyat

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072576205

25.07.19

612,500

3 Years

612,500

2.15%

20

Khair Mohammad
Farookh

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007339506(0

25.07.19

500,000

3 Years

500,000

1.75%

21

Alamzeb Radin
Ahmed

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072575856

25.07.19

500,000

3 Years

500,000

1.75%

22

Md. Mahbubzzamar

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073418169

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

23

Mifrah Zahir

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007257841C

25.07.19

40,000

3 Years

40,000

0.14%

24

Fatema Zahir
Majumder

Sponsor
Share

1203 000072609401

25.07.19

60,000

3 Years

60,000

0.21%
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Sl
No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

Holder

25

Md. Momin Hossain

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 050047573995

25.07.19

50,000

3 Years

50,000

0.18%

26

Mir Rashed Bin
Aman

Chief
Executive
Officer (CC)
&

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000056345571

25.07.19

55,000

13.06.20

54,000

3 Years

109,000

0.38%

27

Mst. Fazlutunnessa

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073366526

25.07.19

625,000

21.12.19

95,000

3 Years

720,000

2.52%

28

Abdul latif manik

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204 570056429298

25.07.19

25,000

3 Years

25,000

0.09%

29

Md. Borhan Uddin

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1205 000045087327

25.07.19

25,000

3 Years

25,000

0.09%

30

Mohammad Wasse
Hossain Rifat

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1205 720058382008

25.07.19

25,000

3 Years

25,000

0.09%

31

Saidun Nessa

Sponsor

1203 00007336831¢

25.07.19

100,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%
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Sl
No

Name

Designation

Share
Holder

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

21.12.19

-95,000

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

32

Kamrun Nahar
Ahmed

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073435606

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

33

Gazi Badrujjaman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

120364007247440C

25.07.19

6,500

3 Years

6,500

0.02%

34

Md. Alauddin Mia

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1202 420029483751

25.07.19

35,000

3 Years

35,000

0.12%

35

Md. RafeUz-
Zaman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073417983

25.07.19

55,000

3 Years

55,000

0.19%

36

Kallol Barua

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073418413

25.07.19

55,000

13.06.20

-54,000

3 Years

1,000

0.00%

37

Sujan Talukder

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000035644515

25.07.19

25,000

3 Years

25,000

0.09%

38

Md. Golam Kibria

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072580454

25.07.19

7,500

3 Years

7,500

0.03%

39

Sheikh Md.
Bodyuzzaman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072769862

25.07.19

40,000

3 Years

40,000

0.14%
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Transfer Lock Pre-
I\SI;(I) Name Designation| BO Account No. Allzt;?:nt date Sg(?ﬁrgifes In Sgc(;)ﬁr(i?ifes IPO
Period (%)
Sponsor
40 | Md. Golam Mostofa Share 1201 580032848483 - 25.07.19 25,000/ 3 Years 25,000| 0.09%
Holder
Sponsor
41 mifa'\z"“hammad Share | 1201 96004046514] - 25.07.19 23,000\ 3 Years|  23,000| 0.08%
Holder
Sponsor
42 | Moushumi Roy Share | 1204 490063876124 ; 25.07.19 20,000| 3 Years| 20,000/ 0.07%
Holder
. Sponsor
43 I\K/Igfé ébd“"ah Hil Share | 1203 640021579237 - 25.07.19 20,000| 3 Years|  20,000| 0.07%
Holder
Sponsor
44 | Md. Asraful Islam Share | 1201 830063000713 ; 25.07.19 15,000| 3 Years|  15,000) 0.05%
Holder
Sponsor
45 | Rajesh Aich Share | 1203 000073434652 - 25.07.19 2,000/ 3 Years 2,000| 0.01%
Holder
Sponsor 25.07.19 1,200,000
46 | Mostafa Golam Share | 1203 00007296499( - 3 Years| 2,680,000 9.40%
Quddus Holder 05.10.20 1,480,000
Mostafa Quamrus Sponsor
47 Share | 1203 71000826046 . 25.07.19 300,000| 3 Years| 300,000/ 1.05%
Sobhan
Holder
4g | Tasnia Quamrun SPonsor | 1503 000073450244 - 25.07.19 1,200,000 3 Years| 1,200,000 4.21%
Anika Share
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Sl
No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

Holder

49

Md. Fahad Bin
Farooque

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201840064455403

25.07.19

20,000

3 Years

20,000

0.07%

50

Md. Shahed Hossai

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204 890062632243

25.07.19

20,000

3 Years

20,000

0.07%

51

Md. Parvez Igbal

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204 890038310461

25.07.19

20,000

3 Years

20,000

0.07%

52

Sume Sen

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000045013427

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

53

Md. Shajidul Anwar

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 960072414747

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

54

S. M. Mohiuddin
Farugquee

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203000072386743

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

55

Md. Mir Kadim

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 68007300150z

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

56

Md. Shah Alam

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 590016654207

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%
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Sl
No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

57

Md. Rafiqul Islam

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007276856C

25.07.19

15,000

3 Years

15,000

0.05%

58

Md. Anowar
Hoasen

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 590063914216

25.07.19

10,000

3 Years

10,000

0.04%

59

Uttam Kumar
Bhowmik

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204780000116729

25.07.19

10,000

3 Years

10,000

0.04%

60

Md. Alauddin

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204 180073195906

25.07.19

10,000

3 Years

10,000

0.04%

61

Mir Ashiful Karim

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000073435095

25.07.19

9,500

3 Years

9,500

0.03%

62

Md. Thamijidul
Alam

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 960072414458

25.07.19

7,500

3 Years

7,500

0.03%

63

Fazlur Rahman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 510014339431

25.07.19

7,000

3 Years

7,000

0.02%

64

Jannatul

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007258071¢

25.07.19

7,000

3 Years

7,000

0.02%

65

Md. Delwar Hossan

Sponsor
Share

1203 68007300192}

25.07.19

7,000

3 Years

7,000

0.02%
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Sl
No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

Holder

66

Md.Golum Mostofa

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072766925

25.07.19

6,000

3 Years

6,000

0.02%

67

Md. Sahidur
Rahman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 590066381811

25.07.19

5,500

3 Years

5,500

0.02%

68

Sanwar Hosan

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 05005525915!

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

69

Marina Sultana

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072574182

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

70

Md. Abdul Malik

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000064313371

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

71

Sanjoy Chakraborty

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007257964§

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

72

Md. Shahidur
Rahman

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203000072573608

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%

73

Nusrat Sarmin
Smriti

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 00007257922!

25.07.19

5,000

3 Years

5,000

0.02%
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Transfer Lock Pre-

I\SI;(I) Name Designation| BO Account No. Allzt;?:nt date Sg(?ﬁrgifes In Sgc(;)ﬁr(i?ifes IPO

Period (%)
Md. Anowar Sponsor

74 . Share 1201 60007346366¢ - 25.07.19 5,000 3 Years 5,000| 0.02%

Hossain

Holder
Md Lokman Sponsor

75 . Share 1204 14006817786¢ - 25.07.19 5,000( 3 Years 5,000| 0.02%

Hossain

Holder
Sponsor

76 | Md. Wazed Ali Share 1203 000072580074 - 25.07.19 5,000( 3 Years 5,000| 0.02%
Holder
Sponsor

77 | Md. Wahidul islam Share 1201 830064955297 - 25.07.19 5,000( 3 Years 5,000| 0.02%
Holder
Sponsor

78 | Polly rani sarker Share 1203 000072578694 - 25.07.19 4,000| 3 Years 4,000| 0.01%
Holder
Sponsor

79 | Abu Shahadat Dula Share 1201 590066424874 - 25.07.19 4,000| 3 Years 4,000| 0.01%
Holder
Sponsor

80 | Anika Aziz Share 1203 26007251838¢ - 25.07.19 3,500( 3 Years 3,500| 0.01%
Holder
. Sponsor

81 '\K"ﬁér']v"’h'”“' Hoquel  “spare | 1203 000072487181 - 25.07.19 3,500/ 3 Years|  3,500| 0.01%
Holder

g2 | Mohammad SPONSOr | 1501 960072414061 - 25.07.19 3,000| 3 Years|  3,000| 0.01%
Mizanul karim Share
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No

Name

Designation

BO Account No.

Allotment
date

Transfer

date

No. Of
Securities

Lock
In
Period

No. Of
Securities

Pre-
IPO
(%)

Holder

83

Bijoy Parsad Bhadr:

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1204 780072455965

25.07.19

3,000

3 Years

3,000

0.01%

84

Arfin Badal

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1205 700063965337

25.07.19

3,000

3 Years

3,000

0.01%

85

Kohinoor Akther

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 510019766625

25.07.19

2,000

3 Years

2,000

0.01%

86

Kaium Ahamed

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072577531

25.07.19

2,000

3 Years

2,000

0.01%

87

Shah Faysal
Mahamud

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 000072575002

25.07.19

2,000

3Years

2,000

0.01%

88

Anannya
Bhattacharjee

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 680021709937

25.07.19

2,000

3 Years

2,000

0.01%

89

Md. Mahir Ameer

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1203 68007242335

25.07.19

2,000

3 Years

2,000

0.01%

90

Bikash Chandra
Biswas

Sponsor
Share
Holder

1201 580025249667

25.07.19

2,000

3 Years

2,000

0.01%
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Transfer Lock Pre-
I\SI;(I) Name Designation| BO Account No. A”((th;?:nt date Sggﬁrgifes In Sggﬁr(i?ifes IPO
Period (%)
Sponsor
91 | Labiba laila Share 1203 00007257797( - 25.07.19 2,000| 3 Years 2,000| 0.01%
Holder
Sponsor
92 | Avijit Sarkar Share 1202 55006572825( - 25.07.19 1,500 3 Years 1,500| 0.01%
Holder
. Sponsor
g3 | Borhan Uddin Share | 1203 00007257300 - 25.07.19 1,000| 3 Years|  1,000| 0.00%
Mozumder
Holder
Sponsor
94 | ZaedBin-Zahir Share 1203 390072776131 - 25.07.19 50,000| 3 Years 50,000( 0.18%
Holder
Nadia Khali Sponsor
95 Share 1204500046515450 - 25.07.19 500,000| 3 Years| 500,000] 1.75%
Choudhury
Holder
. Sponsor
96 X'l‘i’hammed Riyadh| - “gpare | 1204 500061522374 - 25.07.19 50,000| 3 Years,  50,000| 0.18%
Holder
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CHAPTER XXIV: MARKETS FOR THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

The issuer shall apply to the following stock exchanges within 07 (seven) working days from the
date of consent accorded by the Commission to issue Prospectus:

SL Name of the Exchange Logo Address
| " Va \ '_

1 | Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) ‘1 ltt; - | 9/F, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka -1000.
| SSEEED

CSE Building, 1080 Sheikh Muijib

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) CHITTAGONG Road, Chittagong

Declaration about Listing of Shares with the Stock Exchange(s)

If none of the Stock Exchange(s), if for any reason, grant listing within 75 days from the closure of
subscription, any allotment in terms of this Prospectus shall be void and the company shall refund the
subscription money within fifteen days from the date of refusal for listing by the stock exchange, or
from the date of expiry of the said 75 Geventy-five) days, as the case may be.

In case of non-refund of the subscription money within the aforesaid fifteen days, the company

directors, in addition to the issuer co mpany, shall be collectively and severally liable for refund of the
subscription money, with interest at the rate of 2% (two percent) per month above the bank rate, to
the subscribers concerned.

The issue manager, in addition to the issuer company, shall ensure due compliance of the above-
mentioned conditions and shall submit compliance report thereon to the Commission within seven
days of expiry of the aforesaid fifteen days time period allowed for refund of the subscription money.

Trading and Settlement

Trading and Settlement Regulation of the stock exchanges shall apply in respectof trading and
settlement of the sharesof the company.

The issue shall be placed in
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CHAPTER XXV : DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OUTSTANDING OR BEING OFFERED

All

types of securities out standing or being offered with date or proposed date of such issue and

to whom those are offered, number of securities and issue or offer price along with the following
information:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

Dividend, voting and preemption rights;

The Share Capital of the company is divided into Ordinary Shares, carrying equal rights to vote
and receive dividend in terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1994 and the
Articles of Association of the company. All Shareholders shall have the usual voting rights in
person or by proxy in connection with, among others, election of Directors & Auditors and other
usual agenda of General MeetingdOrdinary or Extra -ordinary. On a show of hand, every
shareholder presents in person and every duly authorized representative of a shareholder present
at a General Meeting shall have one vote and on a poll every shareholder present or by proxy
shall have one vote for every share held by him or her.

In caseof any additional issue of shares for raising further capital, the existing shareholders shall
be entitled to Right Issue of shares in terms of the guidelines issued by the BSEC from time to
time.

Conversion and liquidation rights;
In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 1994, Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant rules in force, the shares of the Company are freely transferable. The Company
shall not charge any fee for registering transfer of shares. No transfer shall be made to a firm, an
infant or person of unsound mind.

Dividend policy;

i. The profit of the Company, subject to any special right relating thereto created or authorized
to be created by the Memorandum and subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association,
shall be divisible among the members in proportion to the amount of capital paid-up on the
shares held by them respectively.

ii. No large dividend shall be declared than is recommended by the Directors, but the Company
in its General Meeting may declare a smaller dividend. The declaration of Directors as to the
amount of Net profit of the Company shall be conclusive.

iii. No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the Company or any other
undistributed pr ofits. Divide nd shall not carry interest as against the Company.

iv. The Directors may from time to time pay the members such interim dividend as in their
judgment the financial position of the Company may justify.

v. A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared thereon before the
registration of transfer.

vi. No limitation in payment of dividend is stipulated in any debt instrument or otherwise.

Other rights of the securities holders;

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994, Articles of Association of the Company
and other relevant rules in force, the sharesof the Company are transferable. The Company shall
not charge any fee, other than Government duties for registering transfer of shares. No transfer
shall be made to a minor or person of unsound mind.

The Directors shall present the financial statements as required under the law & International
Accounting Standard. Financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the International
Accounting Standards consistently applied thr oughout the subsequent periods and present with
the objective of providing maximum disclosure as par law and International Accounting
Standard to the shareholders regarding the financial and operational position of the company.
The shareholders shall havethe right to receive all periodical statement and reports, audited as
well as un audited, published by the company from time to time.
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CHAPTER XXVI : FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDI TOR6S REPORT

AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

OF

SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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| NDEPENDENT A BREPORR G
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF
SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Sonali Life Insurance Company

Limited , which comprise the Financial Position as at 31 December 2019 and the Life Revenue
Accounts, Statementof Changes in Equity and Statementof Cash Flows for the year then ended and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 209, and their financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are rfthert her d
Audit of the Financial Statements sectionof our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the I nternational Et hi ofsEthiStfm@ndar ds
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

the audit of financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed inthe context of

the auditoft he f i nanci al statements as a whole, and in for
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provid ed in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities desofthebed i n

financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performanc e of procedures designed to respond to our
assessmentof the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements. These resultsof our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Risk |

Our response to the risk

Revenue Recognition (refer to Note No. 3.01 of the Financial Statements)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, total
reported revenue is of Tk. 810,783,355 (Ag
disclosed in note no. 23.00). The company,
generates revenue from giving serving to the
general people for safety the lives and future
security.

The timing of the revenue recognized and realized

Wehavetestedthedesignandoperating
effectivenesofkeycontrolsfocusingonthe
following:

We assessed the appropriateness of the

Companyads account.i

ng

recognition and compliance of those policies

with applicable accounting standards.
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increases the riskof exposure of revenue to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

There is a risk that invoices may be issued to local

customers or Government & Non-Government
Institutional customers erroneously. There may be

duplication of invoice placed to customers as there

are huge numbers of customers.

The revenue recognition has been considered as

key audit matter, since it is one of the key
performance indicators of the company and also
the key financial element which would eventually
increase the inherent risk of the company.

We obtained the supporting documents for sale
transaction along with checking the recording
period of revenue recognition.

We compared a sample of revenue transactions
recognized during the year with the sale invoices
and other relevant underlying documentatio n.

Assessed manual journals posted to revenue to
identify unusual or irregular items, and finally
assessed the appropriateness and presentatiorof
disclosures  against  relevant  accounting
standards.

Risk |

Our response to the risk

Valuation of Insurance Life Fund (refer to Note No. 6.00 of the Financial Statements)

Valuation of life fund involves complex and
subjective judgments about future events,
both internal and external to the business, for
which small changes in assumptions can
result in material impacts to the valuation of
theseliabilities.

At 31 December2019,the company Reported
total balance under the head of Life Insurance
Fund of BDT 953,337,71M0 (As at 31
December 2018 Life Insurance Fund BDT
601,487,6380)

The work to address the valuation of life fund
included the following procedures:

Understood the governance process inplace to
determine the life fund. Reviewed the actuarial
report and assessedthe reasonablenessof the
assumptions used to estimate the liability.

Tested key judgment and control over the
liability, including the preparation of the
manually calculated components. We focused
on the consistency in treatment and
methodology period -on-period.

Basedon the work performed and the evidence
obtained, we consider the assumption used to
be appropriate.

Risk |

Our response to the risk

Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding Claims, whether due or intimated

(refer to Note No. 7.00 of the Financial Statements)

Outstanding claims include outstanding death
claims, Outstanding maturity claim and ||
Outstanding survival benefit, which is due to or
intimated during the year amount of Tk.
1,462,47600

As disclosed in Note 3.08 claim cost consistsof
the policy benefit amount and claim settlement
cost, where applicable. Death claims are
accounted for on receipt of intimation. Annuity
benefits and Maturity benefits are accounted
when due. Surrenders are accounted for on the
receipts of consent from the insured to the
guote prescribe in the policy deed provided by
the Company.

To test the reasonablenessof t h e
estimation process, or a sample of claims, we
compared actual claim payments in the year to the
prior year claims estimate provisions and no
material difference were Noted.

Verified the validity
testing on sample basisof claims with the available
supporting document.

To test the valuation of the insurance contract

iabilities, we performed the following audit

procedures:

We evaluated and tested controls around the claim
handling and reserving.

Co my

of claims outstanding by
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Risk

| Our response to the risk |

Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business (Re -insurance and other
recoveries)(refer to Note No. 8.00 of the Financial Statements)

The company has extensive
arrangements  with  Score
Reinsurance Company Ltd.
Trust International

Global

exposure to risky claim events.

reinsurance
Life
(Singapore) and
Insurance & Reins Co.
(Bahrain) designed to protect its aggregate

Our audit procedures included amongst others:

Testing, for a sample of contracts, how the re-
insurance claims accounted for including their
processing.

Evaluating a sample of the transaction pressed
relating to the re-insurance contracts, we tested the
consistency of the contract terms to the criteria for
the recognition of the transaction contained in
those requirements.

Risk

| Our response to the risk |

Contingencies relating to Income Tax (refer to Note N0.3.04 of the Financial Statements)

Contingent liabilites are current or
possible obligation arising from past
events and whose existence $ due to the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events which are
not within the control of the company.
The company has pending tax
assessments for the assessment year
20142015, 201852016, 2012017, 2017
2018, 20182019.

Our audit procedures included:
Understanding the process of estimating, recording
and reassessingtax provision and contingencies.

Analyzing the report on open tax assessments
prepared by t he company
understand the position and conclusions made by the
company.

Inspecting the correspondence with Tax Authorities,
where available.

We also assessedthe adequacy of the ¢ o mp a1
financial statements disclosures in respect of the tax
positions and contingent liabilities.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Provision for Income Tax(refer to Note No. 26.00of the Financial Statements)

Provision for Income Tax requires consideration of
incomes from both actuarial surplus and gross
external incomings in accordance with the 4t
schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO 1984).
For this purpose, after the year-end, the appointed
Actuary of the company provides a summary and
valuation oft he pol i cies as pei
the Insurance Act, 1938 (as amended in 2010). Policy|
liability (as per actuarial valuation) amount in excess

of t he 6LiI fe Fund as rep
St atement o i s referred d
Also,t he i ncome from 6gr os§g

management expensebd i s (
1984, tax has to be calculated on the higher base
comparin g bet ween t he inco
surplusdé and O6gross exte
applicable considering the allowable deductions as

per the 4th Schedule of the said Ordinance.

We reviewed the tax calculation work flows
and related details. To be specific, our
substantive testing procedures included the
following :

We made sure that tax was calculated on the
higher base comparing between the incomes
fromactuarial surpluses and gross external
incomings.

Actuarial surpluses were derived properly
taking into consideration the approved from
H by the appointed Actuary.

l ncomes from

derived properly.

6gross e

Deductions as allowable by the 4t Schedule
of ITO, 1984 were applied duly.

Risk |

Our response to the risk

Fair Value Change Account (refer to Note No. 11.00 of the Financial Statements)

Insurance company makes a number of
investments in the listed capital market with
required regulatory permission. Income
generated from the investments (realized gain
and dividend received) is credited to the Profit &
Loss Account. Unrealized gain or loss if any is
transferred to the Fair Value Change Account.

This item has significant impact on the earnings
performance of the company and return to the
shareholders and might be prone to misreporting
as large unreported fall in the value of any
holding may wipeout the value of the portfolio
and hamper the distribution capability of the
company.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls around
monitoring, valuation and updating of prices
of the positions held by the company from
trusted sources. Additionall y, we performed
the following:

Obtained year-end shareholding positions
from the company and through directional
testing assessed the completeness of the
report.

As curtained the valuation of the holding
asper IFR. Recalculated unrealized gain or
loss at the year-end. Carried out cut-off
testing to ensure unrealized gain or loss was
recognized in correct period.

Finally, assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards, the Companies Act,
1994, InsuranceAct, 2010 and other applicable
rules and regulations and regulatory
guidelines.
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Ma n a g e nseRespongbility on Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual report other than the finar
The directors are responsible for the aher information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilites of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, the CompaniesAct, 1994, the InsuranceAct, 2010, the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Rules 1987 and other apficable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparationof financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

I n preparing the financi al statement s, management i s
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basisof accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for 0\
process.

Audi tor ds Re s pon s dithof thel Finaneiad Stdftementst he Awu

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from materi al mi sstatement, whet her due to
that includes our opini on. Reasonable assurance is a high levebf assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with applicable International Standard on Auditing (ISAs) will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arisefrom fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basisof these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise pofessional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

A Identifyandassesstherisksofmaterialmisstatementofthefinancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respon sive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve c ollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

A obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

A Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenesf accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

A conclude on the appropriateness of ma n a g e me n to the goisgeconcern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast S i
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditords report to the
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of ou r audi tords report. However

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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A Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governan ce, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
regulation precludes publi ¢ disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ofsuch
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the InsuranceAct, 2010, the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issued by Bangladesh Securities and Echange
Commission, we also report that:

® we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposeof our audit and made due verification thereof;

(i) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so
far as it appeared from our examination of those books; and (where applicable) proper returns
adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

(i) the company 6 s St et Rnaneia Position as at 31 December 201%nd the Life Revenue
Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by the
report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(iv) the expenditure incurred w as for the purposeoft he Companyds business;

(v) as per Section 63(2)f the insurance Act, 2010, we certify that to the bestof our knowledge and
belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, all expenses of management
wherever incurr ed and whether incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of the life insurance
business of SLICL(Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited) transacted in Bangladesh during the
year under report have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts of the company;

(vi) as per regulation-11 of part-1 of the third schedule of Insurance Act, 2010, we certify that to the
best of our information and as shown by its books, SLI during the year under report has not
paid any commission to any person in any form out side Bangladesh in respectof any of its
business reinsured abroad,;

(vii) The information and explanation required by us have been received and found satisfactory; and

(viii) The company has complied with relevant laws and regulations pertaining to reserves.

Sd/-
Date:June 13, 2020 Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
PlaceDhaka Chartered Accountants
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Particulars Notes Amount in Taka
31 Dec. 2019 || 31 Dec. 2018

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Authorized Capital
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each 4.01 1,000,000,004 [ 1,000,000,00(
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
28,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each fuly paid up in cash 4.02 285,000,000 285,000,000
Statutory Deposit by the Shareholders 5.00 15,000,000 15,000,000
BALANCE OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 953,337,710 601,487,636
Life Insurance Fund 6.00 953,337,71d | 601,487,634
LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

73,674,637 45,472,652
Estimated Llabll¢|e§ in Respect of Outstanding Claims, 7.00 1,462,476 536,100
whether due or intimated
Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business 8.00 1,611,882 -
Lease Liabiltes - ROU- Long Portion Schedule-1 34,031,574 -
Sundry Creditors 9.00 30,017,333 12,702,659
Premium Deposits 10.00 374,357 379,623
Provision for share Fluctuation Account 11.00 6,177,016 31,854,271
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 1,327,012,347 946,960,288
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
LOANS
On Insurers' Policies within their surrender value - | | - |
INVESTMENT (AT COST) 329,799,074 231,517,651
Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank (BGTB) 12.00 15,000,000 15,000,00(¢
Bangladesh Gowt. Treasury Boand (BGTB) 12.A 38,200,000 38,200,00(
Investment in Shares 13.00 27,184,630 50,405,22(
Other Investment 14.00 249,414,444 127,912,431
Outstanding Premium 15.00 18,348,221 18,527,657
Profit, Dividends and Rents Accruing but not due 16.00 44,808,796 43,525,012
Advances, Deposits and Sundry Debtors 17.00 34,535,097 28,141,412
Lease Assets - ROU Schedule-1 35,290,643 -
CASH, BANK AND OTHER BALANCES 468,360,794 395,445,110
On Fixed Deposit with Banks & Financial Institutes 18.00 301,400,000 233,400,000
On Short Term Deposit with Banks 19.00 137,144,349 123,233,544
On Current Account with Banks 20.00 3,662,701 16,827,574
On Saving Account with Banks 21.00 23,478,283 20,068,774
Cash in Hand 2,675,461 1,915,215
OTHER ACCOUNTS 395,869,722 229,803,446
Stamps, Printing & Stationary in Hand 22.00 312,487 50,583
Fixed Assets (At Cost Less Depreciation) Schedule-2 343,043,409 182,158,391
Intangible Assets Schedule-3 52,513,824 47,594,477
TOTAL PROPERTY AND ASSETS 1,327,012,347 946,960,288
The annexed notes form an integtal part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  Chief Executive Officer Director Vice Chairman Chairman

Signed in terms of our separate report on even date an

Date : 13 June 2020
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountant
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Amount in Taka

Amount in Taka

Particulars | Notes || 31Dec. 2019 |[ 31 Dec. 2018 |
Income
Balance of Fund at the beginning of the year 601,487,636 253,073,934
Premium Less Re-Insurance
First Year Premium 421,577,820 516,602,001
Ordinary Life 421,577,820 501,598,687
Takaful - 15,003,31
Renewal Premium 335,492,435 123,618,713
Ordinary Life 335,492,435 116,381,427
Takaful - 7,237,286
Group Insurance Pre mium 53,713,100 37,689,413
Life 53,713,100 37,689,413
Health - -
Gross Premium 810,783,355 677,910,127
Less: Re-insurance Premium 4,561,810 2,060,75
Net Premium " 23.00 806,221,545 675,849,377
Profit, Dividend and Rents " 24.00 61,031,185 41,086,232
Other Income " 25.00 1,443,538 905,976
Total Income 1,470,183,904 970,915,519
First year premium, where the maximum premium paying period is:
Single 30,837,250 298,264,453
Two Years - -
Three Years - -
Four Years - -
Five Years - -
SiX Years - -
Seven Years - -
Eight Years - -
Nine Years - -
Ten-Eleven Years 295,472,205 120,849,657
Twelve -Fourteen Years 37,236,737 40,185,404
Fiteen- Nineteen Years 55,836,174 48,690,453
Twenty Years & Above 2,195,454 8,612,039
421,577,820 516,602,001
Expe nditure - -
Claims Under Policies (Including Provision For Claims due or intimated), less re-insurance:
By Death 26,602,418 15,753,864
By Maturity - -
By Disabilty 1,331,045 856,984
By Surrender 3,813,764 360,910
By Survival Benefit 62,310,360 40,167,639
By Survival Profit - -
By Hospitalization - -
94,057,587 57,139,401
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
LIFE REVENUE ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Particulars

Notes

|[ 31Dec.2019 || 31 Dec.2018 |

Expenses of Management

Commissions:

(a) Commissions to Insurance Agents
(Less that on Re-insurance)

(b) Allowances and Commissions (other than commission
including in sub-item (a) preceding)

Salaries etc.(Other than to Agents and those Contained in the
Allowances and Commissions)

Salaries

Development Salaries & Allowances
Development Incentive

Traveling and Conveyance
Directors' Fees

Auditors' Fees

Actuary Fees

Medical Fees

Legal and Professional Fees
Insurance Policy Stamp
Advertisement & Promotional Expenses
Printing and Stationery

Office Rent

Bank Charges

Interest on ROU

Financial Expenses

Brokerage Commission

Foreign Currency loss

Repairs and Maintenance

Service Maintenance

Fuel, Oil Generator

Car Fuel, Maintenance & Repairs
Papers, Periodicals and Books
Telephone, Fax and Internet
Electricity & Utility Expenses
Training and Recruitment Expenses
Entertainment

Insurance Premium (General)
Postage and Courier

Business Development Expenses
Prizes and Awards

Company Registration (Renewal) Fees
Stamps & Forms

Fees and Subscriptions

Meeting, Seminar & Symposium
Refreshment & Recreation

135,131,641 120,414,929
107,866,032 89,702,16
27,265,609 30,712,76
184,448,868 160,541,395
61,935,552 53,034,264
67,584,430 38,484,179
3,402,877 954,078
709,159 481,355
456,000 356,557
103,750 61,087
625,000 2,225,000
453,852 625,817
214,000 20,496
5,000,000 2,000,000
114,941 482,241
3,933,582 4,532,817
3,044,500 22,743,154
6,653,184 2,470,849
2,124,184 -
- 319,020
33,071 82,635
- 7,771
256,072 525,798
2,822,051 2,241,670
68,413 120,184
1,669,790 944,268
34,313 18,180
716,407 1,689,750
5,350,196 5,106,650
416,962 198,243
1,376,162 1,173,239
887,863 390,469
646,215 489,76(
214,516 1,492,395
141,000 266,533
- 1,866,991
17,605 51,916
1,623,738 2,175,99(
1,092,433 2,119,927
10,727.05 10,788,121
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Particulars Notes || 31Dec.2019 || 31 Dec.2018 |
Other Expenses 103,208,097 31,332,158
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 59,623,810 31,332,159
Provision for Income Tax " 26.00 13,723,461 -
Amortization on ROU Schedule-1 15,610,826 -
Dividend 14,250,000 -
Total Expenditures 516,846,194 369,427,883

Balance of the fund at the end of the
year as shown in the Financial Position 953,337,710 601,487,636
1,470,183,904 970,915,519

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sc Sd/- Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer = Company Secretary  Chief Executive Officer  Director Vice Chairman Chairman

Sdf-
Date : 13 June 2020 Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Place : Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Amount in Taka

Particulars

Share Capital

Share
Premium

General
Reserve

Retained
Eamings

Other
Reserve

Total

Balance as on 01 January 201

9285,000,000

285,000,000

Addition during the period

Balance as on 31 December

285,000,000

2019

285,000,000

SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Amount in Taka

Particulars

Share Capital

Share
Premium

General
Reserve

Retained
Eamings

Other
Reserve

Total

Balance as on 01 January 201

8180,000,000

180,000,000

Addition during the period

105,000,000

105,000,000

Balance as on 31 December
2018

285,000,000

285,000,000

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Company Secretary

Sd/-

Director

Date : 13 June 2020
Place : Dhaka

Vice Chairman

Sd/-

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Date : 13 June 2020
Place : Dhaka

. Amount in Taka || Amountin Taka
Particulars Note 2019 2018
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection from Premium 32.00 806,395,715 676,791,509
Other Income 1,443,538 905,976
Payment for Claims 33.00 (93,131,211) (96,204,801)
Payment for management expenses, commission,
re-insurance and others 34.00 (342,504,082) (322,973,536)
Tax Paid (2,081,991) (1,144 812)
Net Cash Flows from operating activities 370,121,969 257,374,336
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (225,873,737) (192,782,446)
Disposal of Car 445,555 -
Investment in Shares 23,220,590 (3.466,856)
Other Investment (121,502,013) (75,054,575)
Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond (BGTB) - (4,400,000)
Profit, Dividends and Rents Received 35.00 59,747,401 22,374,391
Net Cash Flows from investing activities (263,962,204) (253,329,487)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend (14,250,000) .
Cash payment for the interest portion of the liability (2,124,184) -
Cash payments for the principal portion of the liability (16,869,895) -
Capital Introduced - 105,000,000
Net Cash Flows from financing activities (33,244,080) 105,000,000
D. Net Increase/(Decrease)in cash and cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 72,915,685 109,044,850
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 395,445,110 286,400,260
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 468,360,795 395,445,110
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Director Vice Chairman Chairman
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Particulars

| 31Dec.2019 || 31 Dec. 2018

Assets

Investment

Outstanding Premium

Profit, Dividends & Rents accrued but not due
Advances, Deposits & Sundry Debtors
Lease Assets - ROU

Cash & Bank Balances

Stamps, Printing and Stationery in Hand
Fixed Assets (at cost less depreciation)

Less: Liabilities

Amount due to Other Persons or Bodies
Carrying on insurance business

Estimated liabilties in respect of
Outstanding Claim whether due or intimated
Share Value Fluctuation Account

Lease Liabilties - ROU- Long Portion
Sundry Creditors

Premium Deposits

Gross Fund

Less: Shareholders' Capital (Paid-up Capital)
Less: Statutory Deposit by the Shareholders
Life Insurance Fund as on 31 December 2019

329,799,074 231,517,65]
18,348,221 18,527,657
44,808,796 43,525,012
34,535,097 28,141,412
35,290,643 -

468,360,794 395,445,110

312,487 50,583
395,557,235 229,752,863
1,327,012,347 946,960,288
1,611,882 -

1,462,476 536,100
6,177,016 31,854,271
34,031,574
30,017,333 12,702,658
374,357 379,623
73,674,637 45,472,652
1,253,337,710 901,487,636

285,000,000 285,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000

953,337,710 601,487,636
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FORM-"AA"
Classified Summary of the Assets in Bangladesh

As at 31 December 2019

Total:

1,320,835,331

1,327,012,347

BOOK VALUE MARKET
Sl. No. NAME OF ASSETS Taka VALUE Taka REMARKS
1. Investment :
a) Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank 15,000,000 15,000,000 At cost
b) Bangladesh Gowvt. Treasury Bond (BGTB) 38,200,000 38,200,000 At cost
c) Other Investment 249,414,444 249,414,444 At cost
d) Share Listed on Stock Exchanges 21,007,614 27,184,630 Market value
"2. Cash, Bank & Other Balances:
a) On Fixed Deposit with Banks 301,400,000 301,400,000 Realizable Value
b) Cashin Hand, STD & Current Account with Ba 166,960,794 166,960,794 Realizable Value
c) Proft, Dividends & Rents accrued but not due 44,808,796 44,808,796 Realizable Value
3. Other Assets:
a) Stamps, Printing & Stationery in Hand 312,487 312,487 At Cost
b) Outstanding Premium 18,348,221 18,348,221 Realizable Value
¢) Advances, Deposits, Loans & Sundry Debtors 34,535,097 34,535,097 Realizable Value
d) Lease Assets - ROU 35,290,643 35,290,643 Realizable Value
e) Fixed Assets (At cost less depreciation) 343,043,409 343,043,409 Depreciated Value
f) Intangble Assets 52,513,826 52,513,826 Amortized Value
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SONALI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended 31 December 2019

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Establishment and Status of the Company

Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh on July 7, 2013 as a
Public limited Companyunder the Companies Act, 1994 as adopted in Bangladesh vide
certificate of incorporation No. C -110085/13. The Company was also registered with the
Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) in carrying on the business of life

insurance on July 30, 2013 vides registration no. Life 02/2013 under Insurance Act, 2010.

Registered Office of the Company
The registered office is situated at Rupali Bima Bhaban, 7, Rajuk Avenue, Motijheel, Dhaka-
1000.

Nature of Business

The Company is engaged in the ordinary life insurance, pension and group insurance business
since its incorporation. The Company offers a wide variety of insurance products which fulfills
the requirements of present and prospective policy holders. The product portfolio of the
Company feeds the following insurance lines:

a. Ordinary Life Insurance;
b. Group Insurance;
c. Islami Jibon Bima (Takaful).

BASIS OF PREPARATION ANDSTATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE

Basis of Presentation

Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the
accounting policies mentioned below. The financial statements have been prepared in
adherence to Insurance Act, 2010, Insurance Rule 1958, CompaniesAct, 1994, Securities and
exchange rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Statement of compliance

The following underlying assumptions, laws, rules, regulations and accounting pronouncements

have been considered in preparing accompanying financial statements:
1 Insurance Act, 2010;
Companies Act, 1994;
Bangladesh Securities and ExchangeRules 1987 (as amended to date);
Income Tax Ordinance 1984 (as amended to date)
Value Added Tax Act, 2012;
The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) which have been adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) which comprise of.

=a =4 —a —a 9

i) International Financial Reporting Standards ;
i) International Accounting Standards ;
iii) Interpretations.

1 Any other applicable laws, regulations, covenants, conventions and practices prevailing
with the insurance industry in Bangladesh.

240



2.03

2.04

2.05

Prospectus of SLICL

1 Where the requirement of the companies Act, 1994, The InsuranceAct, 2010, The Securities
and ExchangeRules, 1987 differ with the requirement of these standards, te requirements
of the Companies Act, 1994, The InsuranceAct, 2010 and The BSECRules, 1987 take
precedence

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards that are applicable for the financial statements
for the year under review, include the following:

IAS/IFRS | Name of Standards Status of Application
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Applicable
IAS 7 Statementof Cash Flows Applicable
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Applicable

Errors
IAS 12 | Income Taxes Applicable
IAS 16 | Property, Plant and Equipment Applicable
IAS 19 | Employee Benefits Applicable
IAS 24 | Related Party Disclosures Applicable
IAS 32 | Financial Instruments: Presentation Applicable
IAS 34 | Interim Financial Reporting Applicable
IAS 38 | Intangible Assets Applicable
IFRS 4 | Insurance Contracts Applicable
IFRS 7 | Financial Instruments Disclosures Applicable
IFRS 9 | Financial Instruments Applicable
IFRS 13 | Fair Value Measurement Applicable
IFRS 15 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers Applicable
IFRS 16 | Leases Applicable

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in accounting policies relating to investments.

The functional and presentation currency

The financi al statements are presented in Ban
presentation currency. All amount presented in these financial statements have been rounded off to
the nearest taka.

Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accepted accounting principal and
standards required that the Companyds Managen
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses for the year and reported balanceof assets
and liabilities. The estimates and assumpti on
upon managementd the relevant facts tandocincumstances of the date of financial
statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates. Any revision to the accounting estimates
is recognized prospectively.

The areas where required assumptions and est
statements or where Judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

a) Useful life of depreciable assets.
b) Impairment of assets.
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¢) Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims.
d) Provision for income taxes.

However, assumptions and judgment made by management in the application of accounting
policies that have significant effect on the financial statement are not expected to result in material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Reporting period
Financial statementsof the company cover one year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

Components of the financial statements
The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1:
Presentation of Financial Statements. The Financial Statement comprises:

i)  Statementof Financial Position as at December 31, 2019;

i)  Life Revenue Account for the year ended December 31, 2019;

i) Statementof Changes in Sharehol derds Equity for th
iv) Statementof Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2019;

v) Statementof Life Insurance Fund for the year ended December 31, 2019;

vi) Statementof classified summary of the Assets (Form AA) as at December 31, 2019;

vii) Notes to the accounting policies and explanatory information for t he year ended December 31, 2019.

Date of Authorization of Financial Statements
The Board of Directors has approved these financial statements on 13June 2020.

Going Concern
It was reviewed by the management, there was no significant going concern threat is available in
the operation of the company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are consistent
with those of the previous financial year.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set
out below.

Revenue Recognitions

The revenue is recognized after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided

Il FRS 15: ORevenue from contract with customer
The income from premium is comprised of the total amount of premium earned on various classes
of life insurance business during the year, the gross amount of premium earned against various

policies, the number of claims less reinsurance settled during the year have all been duly accounted
for in the books of account of the Company. While preparing the final statement of accounts, the
effect of re-insurance accepted and reinsurance ceded as well as the effectof total estimated

liabilities in respect of outstanding claims at the end of the year.

Individual life policies

Individual life first year and single premium are recognized once the related policies are issued
against receipt and realization of premium.
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Group Life Policies

The premiums of Group policies are recorded after receipt of the premiums and in certain
circumstances premiums falling due under the policies within the financial period are also
recognized if these premiums are subsequently received.

Profit, Dividends and Rents

Profit income is recognized on accrual basis unless otherwise stated. Accretionof discount and
amortization of premium in respect of debt securities and other fixed income securities is
amortized over the remaining period to maturity of such instrument on straight line basis.

Profit income on bank deposits (FDRS) is recognized on accrual basis.
Profit is accounted at gross value (before deduction of Income tax).

Investments in Government securities- Bangladesh Government Treasury Bond (BGTB) and Fixed
Deposit Receipt (FDR) are stated at face values.

Profit incomes on investments are recognized on accrual basis for the number of days these are
held taking into account effective yield on the instruments.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the Financial Position if, as a result of past events, the company has
present legal or constructive obligations that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Contingencies and Commitments

Contingencies arising from claims, litigation, tax assessment, fines, penalties etc. are recognized
when it probable that the obligation has been incurred and the amount can be reasonable
measured.

Contingent liabilities ar e current or possible obligation arising from past events and whose
existence is due to the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which
are not within the control of the Company. The company has pending tax assessments for tle
assessment year 2014015,20152016,20162017,20172018,20182019.

Premium Deposit
Premium deposit represents installment of premium received in advance from policyholders which
will be adjusted with premium in subsequent year.

Re-Insurance

The Company maintains facultative reinsurance arrangement with Scor Global Life Reinsurance
Company of Singapore and Trust International Insurance & Reins Co. (Bahrain) The net retention
of the company for Ordinary life is Tk. 3 .00lac per insured. Reinsurance premium is recorded as an
expense evenly over the period of the reinsurance contact and offset against the premium income
of respective year.

Commission
These are direct cost incurred in acquiring and maintaining insurance pol icies.

Commission to insurance agents (less that on reinsurance) is classified under first year
commission.

Allowance and commission (other than commission to insurance agents) represent all forms of
remuneration and incentives paid to certain developm ent officers, field force staff and insurance
agents.

Claims costs
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Claims costs consistof the policy benefit amount and claim settlement costs, where applicable.
Death and rider claims are accounted for on receipt of intimation.

Investments
Investments are made in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Rules, 1958, Insurance

Act, 2010 and the circulars/notifications issued by the Controller of Insurance/ IDRA in this
context from time to time.

i) Debt Securities

Debt securities with fixed income (Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond), Private and Public Bonds and
Debentures are categorized by class and are a
at cost. The discount in respectof the debt securities which is the difference between the purchase
price and the redemption amount is amortized and recognized in the Revenue Account on straight
line basis over the remaining period to maturity of these securities. For fair presentation, premium,
if any, premium on acquisition of those bonds and debentures are however charged to Revenue in
the year of acquisition.

i) Shareslisted in stock exchange

Listed equity shares are catedfaw-Baked asdahhactc
at the lower of their acquisition cost and the yearend (last) closing prices on the Stock Exchanges

Adequate provision is however made for diminution if any, in the cost price of such shares against
such quoted prices in the Stock Exchange. If the quoted pricesof this class of share are higher than

the cost prices.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost
includes the purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Fixed assets of small value and assets for which useful lives cannot
be estimated properly are fully charged to the Revenue in the year of their purchases. Subsequent
expenditures incurred on existing fixed assets are expensed out except where such expenditure
increases the future economicbenefits from the existing assets. Any addition to the original fixed
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Methods of providing depreciation are
consistently applied in relation to the previous year.

Tangible Assets
The company has adgted the reducing balance method of depreciation onassets at rates in the

following manner:

Furniture & Fixture 10%
Computer & Computer Equipment 25%
Electric Equipment 15%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Office Decoration 10%
Telephone Installation 10%
Signboard 10%

Intangible Assets

In accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets, the intangible assets are reported at acquisition value
with deductions for impairment losses, if any. Intangible Asset comprises Computer Software
which is stated at cost of acquisition, including any cost attributable for bringing the same to its
working condition less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated on reducing balance
method using 25% amortization rate.
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Disposal of assets

An asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and subsequent disposal. Gain or loss arising from the disposal of an asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under other income in the statement of life

revenue account. There was no disposalof assets during the year.

Stamps, Printing and Stationery in hand
Stocks of stamps, printing and stationary materials etc. in hand are valued at cost determined on
average basis.

Taxation

Current Tax
Provision for Taxation is based on taxable income determined under the Fourth Schedule of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and best judgmentof the management.

Deferred Tax
The company does not provide for deferred taxation as current tax has been calculated based on
the actuarial valuation and there is no effect of tax base assets and liabilities.

Risk Minimization Strategies

Individual Life Business
Insurance underwriting risk is the risk that the company will suffer losses due to economic situation or the
rate of occurrence of an incident contrary to forecast made at the time of setting up of the premium rate.

The underwriting risk arises from death and sometimes due to permanent disability and critical illness.
The company may get exposed to poor risk due to unexpected experience in termsof claim severity or
frequency. This can be a resultof anti-selection, fraudulent claims or poor persistency. The company may
also face the riskof poor investment return, inflation of business expenses and liquidity issues on monies
invested in the fund. The Company faces the risk of under pricing particularly due to nature of long
contract. In addition to this, d ue to poor Persistency, the company would be unable to recover expensesf
policy acquisition. The company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims
handling policy and other related control mechanisms. The company has a well -defined policy and avoids
selling policies to high-risk individuals. Underwriting procedures have been enhanced and Rules, have
been structured to enable the Company to strike a balance between mitigating risk, ensuring control
providing better service. This puts a check on anti-selection.

The Company Seeks to reduce its risk exposure by reinsuring certain levelsof risks wi th renowned Global
Life Reinsurance Company of Singapore and Trust International Insurance & Reins Co. (Bahrain).

The company provides quality service to the policy holders and checks to minimize miss -selling and avoid
poor persistency. A regular monitori ng of laps rate is conducted. The Company has procedures in place to
ensure avoidance of payment of fraudulent claim. The Claim Committee reviews high sum assured and
early claims for verification and detailed investigation of all doubtful and early claims are conducted. The
company maintains adequate liquidity to cater for potentially sudden and high cash requirement.

Group Life

The major risk underwritten by the company is death which depends on mortality. Other risks
underwritten include dis ability and major disease.
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Risk increases as a result of catastrophic events, business procurement without following
underwriting guidelines, business procurement at low premium rate due to tough market
competition and fraudulent claims. Non -receipt of premium in due time is an additional factor.

The Company manages these risks through proper underwriting, effective claims handing and
other claim control mechanism. The Company also avoids underwriting group business with
employees exposed to hazardous profession. Pricing is done in line with actuarial guideline,
experience and the mortality exposure the concerned group faces. Moreover, premium rates of
existing group are also reviewed from time to time on the basis of claim experience. Besides, the
company avoids payment of fraudulent claims through claim investigation. Strict monitoring is in
place to keep the outstanding balancesof premium at a minimum.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To

guard against the risk the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with
liquidity in mind, maintaining healthy balance of cash and cash equivalent and readily market
securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to interest rate risk. Interest
rate risk to the Company is the risk of changes in market. Interest rate reducing the overall returns
on its interest basis securities. The Company limits interest risk by monitoring changes in interest
rates in the money market and by diversifying into various institutions ( issuersof securities).

Market Risk (investment pattern)

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to the individual secuity or
its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market.The company is exposed to market
risk with respect to its investment.

The company continues to adopt a prudent policy in respect of investments. The investments are
mainly in Govt. securi ti es. Fi xed Deposits Receipts (
financial institutions having acceptable performance parameters and ratings and equity shares in
listed companies having good and positive fundamental and technical attributes.

The Company also limits market risk maintaining a diversified pr ofile and by continuous
monitoring of developments in Govt. securities (bonds) equity and term finance certificates
markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect the underlying

value of these securities

Reinsurance Risk

The company seeks to redue its risk exposure by reinsuring certain levels of risk with re -insurer.
Re-insurer ceded does not relieve the company from its obligation to policyholder and as a result,
the company also remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that
re-insurer does not obligations ultimately under the reinsurance agreements.

In order to minimize the risk, the company has obtained reinsurance cover from a renowned re -
insurer, Scor Global Life Reinsurance Company Limited of Singapore and Trust International
Insurance & Reins Co. (Bahrain) with proven sound financial health.

Foreign Currency Risk

As at the Financial Positiondate there are no financial instruments denominated in foreign
currency. Therefore, the company is not exposed to risk from any foreign currency exchange rate
risk fluctuation.
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3.13(h) Credit Risk

3.14

3.15

3.16

Credit Risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to disch arge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Major credit risk is
in bank. The management monitors exposure to credit risk through regular review of credit
exposure and assessing credit worthinessof counter parties.

Empl oyee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits, which fall due wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service Including salaries, bonuses
and other allowances. With effect from the financial year ended 31 December 2016 the company
has adopted IAS 19 Employee Benefits of which payment oflong-term benefits to employees after
retirement and/or after the completion of contract service is recognized on an accrual basis in the
Financial Position; such amount is recognized as a liability shown under sundry creditors.

Related party disclosures

The parties are considered to be related if oneof the parties has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decision.
The company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm length basis at
commercial rates with its related parties (Please refer to Note No. 31).

GENERAL

) The previous yearo6s figures have been re
necessary. Amount and other disclosures of where preceding year are included as an
integral part of the current financial statements;

ii)  Amounts presented have been rounded to the nearest taka.

iii) The insurance premium general represents the premium paid for assets like Cars and
motor vehicle. The amount increased from the previous year as the company allocated
the amount of premium with its relevant assets at the time of acquisition at cost; and

iv) The company has a landof Tk. 1,000,00000 derives from the contribution paid to BIA as
advance payment for land; the company has not received any papers from BIA and
registration is under process.
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Amount in
Taka 2019

Amount in
Taka 2018

Share Capital
Authorized Capital :

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10/= each. 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed, Called-up and Paid-up capital:
28,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10/= each fully paid in cash. 285,000,000 285,000,000

Statutory Deposit by the Shareholders
This represents amount deposited by the shareholders as statutory deposit in accordance with Sec-23(1) of Insural

2010 :

Mrs. Noor-E-Hafza 966,667 966,667
Mrs. Fauzia Quamrun Tania 2,041,667 2,041,667
Rupali Insurance Company Limit 2,500,000 2,500,000
Mrs. Shafia Sobhan Chowdhury 1,608,333 1,608,333
Mr. Sheikh Mohammed Danial 1,250,000 1,250,000
Mrs. Kamrun Nahar 833,333 833,333
Mrs. Maya Rani Roy 750,000 750,000
Mr. Sheikh Omar Farugue 833,333 833,333
Mr. Omar Khayam 833,333 833,333
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 858,333 858,333
Mrs. Hazera Hossain 858,333 858,333
Mrs. Hoda Ali Selim 558,333 558,333
Mrs. Nargis Mahmuda 833,333 833,333
Ms. Phowzia Khan 275,000 275,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
6.00 Life Insurance Fund
This consists of the accumulated balance of revenue surplus up to December 31, 2019.
Opening balance 601,487,636 253,073,934
Add: Increase / (Dcrease) in Life Revenue A/c during the period 351,850,074 348,413,702

7.00

8.00

9.00

Closing balance

The detailed break up is shown in statement of life insurance fund.

53,337,710 601,487,636

Estimated liabilities in respect of outstandina claims whether due or intimated

This balance made up as follows:

Opening balance 536,100 39,601,500
Add: Claim intimated during the period 94,057,587 57,139,401
94,593,687 96,740,901
Less: Paid during the period 93,131,211 96,204,801
Closing balance 1,462,476 536,100
Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business
Opening Balance - -
Add: Addition during the period 4,561,810 2,258,218
4,561,810 2,258,213
Less: Adjustment during the period 2,949,928 2,258,21:
Closing Balance 1,611,882 -

The amountrepresentshe balancedue to Scor Global Life ReinsuranceCompanyLimited on accountof shareof re-

insurance premium.

Sundry Creditors
The balance is made up as follows:
Auditors Fee 50,000 25,000
Actuary Fees 500,000 500,000
Tax deduction 9.01 2,247,697 2,229,991
VAT deduction 360,711 189,890
Utility Bills 9.02 124,624 82,600
Agent's License Fee 9.03 2,891,705 1,312,003
Provision for Income Tax 13,723,461 -
Link3 Technologies Ltd. 142,435 -
Agent's Commissiol 745,683 1,184,488
Provident fund 9,231,017 7,178,686
30,017,333 12,702,658
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9.01 Income Tax (IT) Deduction

IT -Commission 2,156,095 1,995,791
Tax Deduction at Source 91,602 234,20C
2,247,697 2,229,991

This represents amount deducted at source as Advance Income Tax which will be deposited to Govt. Treasury .

9.02 tilitv Bills

Electricity 112,624 74,600
WASA 12,000 8,000
124,624 82,600

This amount charged in Revenue Account as recurring expenses but not paid during the year .

9.03 Agents License Fee
This representamountsreceivedfrom variousagent'sor doinglicenseson behalfof themas feeswhich is underprocessand
will be deposited gradually to the IDRA.

10.00 Premium Deposit

First year Premium 194,008 199,185
Renewal Premium 180,349 180,438
374,357 379,623

This representpaymentby policyholdersas excessamountof their premium. This will be adjustedwith their premiumin
subsequent year.

11.00 Provision for Share Value Fluctuation Account

Market Value (Quoted Market Price) as at 31.12.2019 27,184,630 50,405,220
Less : Book Value at Cost as at 31.12.2019 21,007,614 18,550,949
Closing Balance 6,177,016 31,854,271

The company has made the above provision due to the price variance of its portfolio investmentlisted with DSE for
safeguarding the future losses of this investment in compliance with the IDRA Circular No. Life-04/2012 dated 11 Jun

12.00 Investment in Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank
In compliancewith section23(1) of InsuranceAct 2010, Tk. 15,000,000.0¢0One CroreFifty Lac) only hasbeeninvestedin
BangladeshGovt. TreasuryBond throughJanateBank Ltd. bearingISIN No. BD093336120&nd depositednto Banglades
Bank as StatutoryDepositin favor of the Companywith Profit @ 12.48%per annumto be maturedon 27/03/2033.Profit
earned and received during the year has been duly accounted for.

12.A Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond

No
20 year 8.28% government treasury bond BD0936401209 10,000,000 10,000,00(
10 year7.59% government treasury bond BD0926021108 13,800,000 13,800,00(C
15 year 7.79% government treasury bond BD0931401154 5,000,000 5,000,00(
20 year 8.70% government treasury bond BD0935201204 5,000,000 5,000,00(
2 year 3.7 % government treasury bond BD0920111029 2,000,000 2,000,00(
5 year 4.50 % government treasury bond BD0923131059 1,100,000 1,100,00(
10 year 7.15 % government treasury bond BD0928131103 1,300,000 1,300,00(

38,200,000 38,200,000

This represents investment made in government treasury bond as per provision of section 41 of the Insurance Act
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SN Name of the | Number of | *Average cost | Total Book Value | ** Average Market Value Total Market

L Company Share per unit(Tk.) at cost (Tk.) per unit as on 31-12-19 Value (Tk.)
Dragon

T oo tonses 2.082.500 8.73 18.175.664 11,10 23.115.750
Spinning Ltd.

2 |Active Fine 6.000 37,99 227.950 14,70 88.200

3 |BSRM L. 1.100 95,45 105.000 48,80 53.680
Intraco

4  |Refueling 288.750 8,65 2.499.000 13,60 3.927.000
Stations Ltd

Total : 21.007.614 27.184.630

* Total book value at cost has been divided by the number of unit.

Hdeke
The total market value (as per price index of DSE) of the above shares as on 31 December 2019 stood at
Tk.27,184,630 against the book value of Tk. 21,007,614

14,00 Other Investment
Monthly Investment Scheme
Placement Share

14,01 Monthly Investment Scheme

First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .
First Security Islami Bank Ltd .

DPS # 118.371.0000001 1
DPS # 118.371.00000012
DPS # 118.371.00000013
DPS # 118.371.00000014
DPS # 118.371.00000015
DPS # 118.371.00000016
DPS # 118.371.00000017
DPS # 118.371.00000018
DPS # 118.371.00000019
DPS # 118.371.00000020
DPS # 118.371.00000021
DPS # 118.371.00000022
DPS # 118.371.00000024
DPS # 118.371.00000025
DPS # 118.371.00000026
DPS # 118.371.00000027
DPS # 118.371.00000028
DPS # 118.371.00000029
DPS # 118.371.00000030
DPS # 118.371.00000031
DPS # 118.371.00000035
DPS # 118.371.00000036
DPS # 118.371.00000037
DPS # 118.371.00000038
DPS # 118.371.00000039
DPS # 118.371.00000040
DPS # 118.371.00000032
DPS # 118.371.00000033

First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001413
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001414
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001415
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001416
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001417
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001418
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001419
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001420
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001421
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001422
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001423
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001424
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001425
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001426
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.341.00001427
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000064
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000065

Note
14,01
14,02

239.414.444 115.412.431]
10.000.000 12.500.000
249.414.444 127.912.431
3.026.146,09 2.206.935
3.025.944.93 2.206.754
3.025.763,63 2.206.590
3.081.698,73 2.246.645
3.010.372,87 2.181.903
2.940.029,67 2.118.053
2.869.767.,22 2.054.277
2.869.767,22 2.054.277
2.869.070,86 2.053.644
2.869.070.86 2.053.644
2.868.984.86 2.053.566
2.869.004,10 2.053.962
2.911.242,54 2.087.231
2.911.241,54 2.087.230
2.911.242,54 2.087.231
2911.242,54 2.087.231
2.911.242.54 2.087.231
2.910.856,94 2.086.876
2.910.857.94 2.086.877
2.910.487.61 2.086.536
2.543.939,83 1.741.705
2.544.336.62 1.742.072
2.544.336,62 1.742.072
2.545.037,20 1.742.720
2.544.336,62 1.742.072
2.544.336,62 1.742.072
2.839.964,07 2.021.607
2.839.964.,07 2.021.607
475.573,04 91.147
475.573,04 91.147
475.573.04 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990.54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990.54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990,54 91.147
473.990.54 91.147
2.095.494,14 399.507
2.095.494,14 399.507
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First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000066
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000067
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 01 18.371.00000068
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000069
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000070
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.0000007 1
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000072
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000043
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000044
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000045
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000046
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000047
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000048
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000055
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000056
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000054
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000057
First Security Islami Bank Lid.-DPS # 0118.371.00000049
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000050
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000051
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000052
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000053
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000058
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000059
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000060
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000061
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000073
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000074
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000081
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000082
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000083
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000084
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000085
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000086
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000087
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000088
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000089
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000090
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000091
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000092
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000093
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000094
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000095
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000096
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000097
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000098
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000099
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000101
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000102
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000103
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000104
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000105
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000106
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000107
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000109
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000108
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000110
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.DPS # 0118.371.00000111

First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000112
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000113
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.000001 14
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000115
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000116
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000117
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000118
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000119
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000120
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000121
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000122
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000123
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000124
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000125
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000126
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000127
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Amount in Amount in
Taka 2019 | Taka 2018
2.088.070,87 399.507
2.088.070,87 399.507
2.088.070.,87 399.507
2.088.070,87 399.507
2.088.070.87 399.507
2.088.070,87 399.507
2.088.070,87 399.507
148.771,72 28.366
148.772,72 28.367
148.772,72 28.367
148.772,72 28.367
148.772,72 28.367
148.772,72 28.367
244.702,50 46.639
244.702,50 46.639
244.702,50 46.639
244.702,50 46.639
199.530,88 38.035
199.530,88 38.035
199.530,88 38.035
199.530.88 38.035
199.530,88 38.035
302.644.33 57.676
302.644.33 57.676
302.644.33 57.676
425.071,71 80.996
1.129.881,71 215.959
1.129.882,71 215.960
57.513,00 -
116.938,73 -
116.938,73 -
57.513.88 -
116.938,73 -
57.513.88 -
116.938,73 -
57.513.88 -
116.938,73 -
116.938,73 -
57.513,88 -
116.938,73 -
57.513,88 -
164.219,69 -
57.513,88 -
164.219.69 -
57.513,88 -
164.219,69 -
164.219.69 -
164.219,69 -
57.513.88 -
164.219.69 =
77.116,68 -
77.116,68 =
77.116.68 -
77.116,68 -
77.116,68 -
77.116,68 -
77.116,68 -
438.165.75 -
438.165,75 -
438.165,75 -
438.165,75 -

438.165,75
317.590.02
94.561.95
317.590,02
317.590,02
317.590,02
92.703,88
94.561,95
94.561.95
94.561,95
810.310,75
810.310.75
810.310,75
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First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000128
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000129
First Security Islami Bank Ltd.-DPS # 0118.371.00000100

Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000013
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000024
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000035
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000046
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000057
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8040000068
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8350000028
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-8350000039
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS # 018-835000004 1
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8350000017
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000079
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000081
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000092
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000103
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000029
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000031
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000042
Sacial Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000053
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000064
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000018
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000029
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000031
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8050000058
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8050000069
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000012
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000023
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000449
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000451
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000462
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000125
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8040000136
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000042
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000053
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8030000438
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8350000052
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8350000063
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8350000074
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8050000082
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000064
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000075
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8360000086
Sacial Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000075
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8090000086
Social Islami Bank Limited-DPS #018-8050000093
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8050000104
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-80500001 15
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8050000126
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8360000097
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8360000108
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8360000119
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8360000121
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8090000097
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8090000108
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8090000119
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8090000121
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8040000147
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8040000158
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8040000169
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8040000171
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8350000096
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8350000107
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8350000118
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8350000085
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8030000484
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8030000495
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8050000148
Social Islami Babk Limited-DPS#018-8050000159
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Amount in Amount in
Taka 2019 Taka 2018
810.310,75 -~
810.310,75 -
57.513,88 -
1.561.300,00 1.008.349
1.560.922,00 1.008.349
1.560.701,00 1.008.349
1.560.4 14,00 1.008.214
1.560.386,00 1.008.206
1.560.231.00 1.008.123
2.048.710,00 1.398.450
2.048.710,00 1.398.450
1.993.073,00 1.347.396
2.048.979,00 1.398.471
1.328.796.00 794.141
1.328.757.00 794.121
1.328.757,.00 794.121
1.328.757,00 794.121
1.148.965,00 686.794
1.148.801,00 686.794
1.148.731,00 686.794
1.148.731,00 686.794
1.148.731.00 686.794
1.004.377.00 600.930
1.004.119,00 600.819
1.004.047,00 600.792
897.688.00 536.569
8§97.682,00 536.569
1.602.111,00 895.659
1.602.111,00 895.659
1.430.214,00 737.920
1.430.161,00 737.895
1.430.161,00 737.895
1.185.560.00 662.804
1.185.551,00 662.795
895.639,00 501.388
895.449.00 501.341
1.488.159,00 791.092
1.248.505,00 664.218
1.248.505.00 664.218
1.248.454,00 664.218
743.885.00 395.499
830.948,00 442,691
830.948,00 442.691
830.051,00 442.691
951.886,00 506.199
951.878.00 506.199
714.951,00 368.947
714.951.00 368.947
714.925.00 368.923
714.925,00 368.923
797.588,00 413.061
797.588.00 413.061
797.572.00 413.047
797.572,00 413.047
914.798,00 472.222
914.788.00 472214
914.652,00 472.103
914.652.00 472.103
1.058.323,00 546.044
1.058.323,00 546.044
1.058.323.00 546.044
1.058.323,00 546.044
1.199.707.00 619.591
1.199.551.00 619.591
1.199.489,00 619.591
1.199.820,00 619.591
1.357.926,00 672.581
1.357.471.00 672.581
678.354,00 336.179
678.191.00 336.130
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Amount in
Taka 2019

Amount in
Taka 2018
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